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2023 highlights

AuM

US$55.9bn

2022 US$54.0bn
-13% YoY

Net revenue

£196.4m

2022: £262 &m
-25% YoY%

Profit before tax

£111.8m

2022: £118.4m
6% Yoy

Dividends per
share

16.9p

2022: 16.9p

AuM outperforming
benchmarks (3 years)

69%

2022: 28%

Adjusted EBITDA
margin

54%

2022: 64%

Diluted EPS

12.2p

2022:12.6p
-4% YoY

Pages 2 t0 61 constitute the
Strategic report which was
approved by the Board on

5 September 2023.

Mark Coombs
Ch‘\eff‘E){ecu{Ne Otficer
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- Ashmore’s purpose, as a specialist

- Emerging Markets investment

- manager, is to deliver long-term

- investment outperformance for
clients and to generate value for
shareholders over market cycles.

Strong
foundations

Ashmore has managed
investments in
Emerging Markets on
behalf of its clients for
more than 30 years,
and has witnessed the
development of a large,
diversified and highly
attractive investment
universe,

+ Read more on pages 2-3

Powerful

convergence

Emerging Markets are
following powerful and
well-established trends
of economic, political
and social convergence
with the developed
world. These provide
superior growth and
many investment
opportunities.

+ Read more on pages 6-7

Specialist
understanding

The size, scale and
diversity of Emerging
Markets are often
misunderstood and
underappreciated.

This creates investment
opportunities, requiring a
specialist, active approach
to exploit inefficiency
and to deliver long-term
investment performance.

+ Read more on pages 12-13



Strong

foundations...

Ashmore has managed investments in Emerging Markets on behalf of
its clients for more than 30 years, and has witnessed the development
of a large, diversified and highly attractive investment universe.

Emerging Markets represent a highly diverse
set of more than 70 countries, with in excess
of US$75 trillion of tradable equity and fixed
income securities.

One of the most significant developments of
the past few decades is the growth of local
currency markets, allowing governments and
companies to fund in their domestic currency
and providing protection against external
shocks. In total, bonds issued in local
currencies represent 88% (equivalent to
US$34 trillion) of the total Emerging Markets
fixed income investment universe.

The underlying economies have delivered
strong growth over the past three decades,
resulting in emerging nations now generating
more than half of the world’s GDP.

Allocations to Emerging Markets are at levels
significantly below global benchmark weights,
providing for substantial AuM growth as
investors recognise the superior growth,
attractive returns and diverse investment
opportunities available across the asset classes.

Emerging Markets’ rising share of world GDP (%)

Source” IMF WEQ database (PPP basis)




ASHMORE AT A GLANCE

Ashmore’s distinctive

characteristics

...underpin the ability to continue to deliver long-term value
over market cycles for clients and shareholders.

Substantial long-term
opportunities

Ernerging Markets are expected to continue to
deliver supericr economic growth, underpinned

by powerful convergence trends, a propensity to
reform and structural changes such as a shift to
local currency funding. This growth protile, and the
conseguent investment opportunities, support
Ashmore’s strategic focus on delivering long-term
growth and value for clients and shareholders.

+ Read more on pages 16-17

Emerging Markets consistently deliver superior
GDP growth (%)

Source. IMF WED database

Three-phase strategy

Ashmore’s strategy is designed to capitalise on the
Emerging Markets growth opportunity, with three
distinct but complementary phases.

first, to raise developed world investors' allocations
to Emerging Markets from profoundly underweight
levels; second, to diversify Ashmore's business to
mitigate the impact of market cycles; and third, to
participate in the nascent but significant opportunity
10 source capital from Emerging Markets’ investors
and deploy this across the broad Emerging Markets
nvestment universe.

Ashmore has made progress in all three phases, but
each has further substantial growth potential that
wiil allow the Group to continue to deliver value to
chents and shareholders over market cycles.

Establish Emerging Markets
asset classes

Ashmore 1s a specialist Emerging Markets

investor with more than 30 years’ experience.

Diversify investment themes
and sources of capital

Diversitied revenue streams help to
mitigate the iImpact of market cycles.

Mobilise Emerging Markets capital

Ashmmore’s growth potential 1s enhanced
through accessing rapidly growing pools of
investable capital in Emerging Markets

Ashmore Group plc Arninual Report and Accounts 2023




Consistent investment
philosophy
Ashmore has implemented its investment philosophy

consistently and successfully since it launched its first
fund in October 1992.

Specialist, active investment management enables
Ashmore to exploit inefficiencies in a diverse set of
more than 70 emerging countries.

Ashmore has integrated the consideration of ESG factors
into its investrment processes, providing a comprehensive
and consistent view of risks and opportunities.

+ Read more on pages 18-20
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Highly diversified

Ashmore’s AuM is diversified by investment theme, client type and client geography. Strategic objectives
focus on increasing the proportion of AuM in equities and alternatives themes, and increasing capital sourced

locally in Emerging Markets and through retail intermedaries.

Investment themes (%) Client type (%)

+ Read more on pages 28-34

Client geography {%)

Ashmore’s busingss model 1s designed te operate as
AuM varies with market cycles, while providing a robust

Resilient

operating platform to support the Group's longer-term
strategic growth initiatives. This 1s achievec through:

& Scalable — Investment committees with capacity to manage

substantially higher AuM levels.

bUSlneSS mOdEI - Focus on institutional mandates with retail capial scurced

Designed to operate over market
cycles, delivering long-term
investment performance and
value for shareholders

through intermediaries.
— Cost disciplineg and flexible remuneraton philosophy.
Financial strength represented by a liquid, well-captalised
balance sheet,

+ Read more on pages §-9

Ashmore Group ple Annual Report and Accounis 2023
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Powerful
convergence...

The Emerging Markets are following powerful and well-established
trends of economic, political and social convergence with the developed
world. Over time, these provide superior growth and many investment
opportunities, underpinning outperformance and the creation of value
for investors with appropriate allocations to Emerging Markets.

The end of the Cold War allowed the least
developed countries to pursue policy reforms,
instil better economic management and
improve the guality of institutional decision-
making, while introducing political structures
that provide greater accountability.

This has created a virtuous circle, whereby
capital is attracted to those countries successfully
following the convergence path, allowing for
further investment and beneficial reforms.

While not all countries are following the same
path, an expression of the aggregate impact of
these convergence trends is the consistently
rising wealth of the emerging world, with
growth in GDP per capita significantly
outpacing that in the developed world. Notably,
however, the absolute level (US$14,000) is still
only one-fifth that of the developed world, and
equivalent to the position of the developed
world in 1985, thereby underpinning further
convergence-driven growth in the future.

Within the long-term growth trends, there are
inevitably shorter economic and market cycles.
Ashmore’s investment processes and business
model are designed to manage through such
cycles and to create value for clients and
shareholders over the long term.

GDP per capita

Source” IMF WEQO database




BUSINESS MODEL

Resilience and scalability...

...from a consistent
‘business model

Ashmore’s business model supports its growth strategy and is designed
to create value for the Group’s stakeholders over market cycles.

...through a
distinctive
approach

White pursuing the longer-term strategic
benefits, the following characteristics provide
scalability over market cycles

Specialist focus
on Emerging
Markets...

Active investment management, with ESG
integration

o iversified client b
The model capitalises on the Diversified client base

structural growth and investment
opportunities in Emerging
Markets to deliver positive
outcomes for Ashmore’s clients,
shareholders and employees as
well as recognising Ashmore's
responsibilities to a broader set of
stakeholders including society.

Financial strength

Cost discipline underpinned by flexible
remuneration philosophy

Long-term alignment of interests between
clients, employees & shareholders

8 Ashmore Graup ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023




Resilience & scalability...

Ashmore's experience of investing in Emerging Markets for more than
30 years means it has a business modei that is designed to cope with
the full market cycle, from peak to trough.

Well-capitalised, liquid balance sheet

Ashmore has £705 millicn of financial resources, including £468 million
of cash, and nc debt.

Investment committees and diverse client base

‘No star’ cutture and focus on diversified institutional clients, with retail
capital sourced through mtermediaries.

Flexible remuneration philosophy

Ashmore's employees have a salary cap and variable remuneration is
determined by profitability and perfarmance, not formulae.

...delivering value
over the cycle

A proven business model that supports long-term growth objectives while

protecting returns and enabling investment over market cycles.

I (o)
c”ents 69 /0 AuM ocutperforming over three years

Consistent implermentation of investment
philosophy exploits market inefficiencies to
deliver long-term outperformance.

(o)
Emp" oyees "40 /) employee equity ownership

Allgnment of interests delivered through equity-

biased remuneration with five-year deterral period.

syt projects supported by
commun’t'es >75 The Ashmore Foundation [see pages 54-55)

Ashmore donates 0.5% of profit before tax to
charities, including The Ashmore Foundation,

SharEhOIders 54% adjusted EBITDA margin

High operating margin and significant cash

generation (£112 million in FY2023) support returns

to shareholders.

Ashmore Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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CEO REVIEW

Consistent strategy

implementation

With the experience of more than 30 years of specialist investing,
Ashmore’s strategy is to capitalise on the long-term opportunities

in Emerging Markets, and its established business model responds to
the shorter-term impact of market volatility. Ashmore is delivering
outperformance for clients and is well-positioned for an ongoing

recovery in markets.

The past year provided encouraging evidence that the cyclcal
recovery has begun across Emerging Markets, with higher asset
prices, an improving growth outlook, falling inflation and the benefits
of a weaker US dollar. There remains, however, a degree of

caution among some Investors, particularly those in the US, given
macrceconomic cencerns such as pelicy tightening by developed
world central banks and conflict or gecpalitical tension in Europe
and Asia. Additcnally, the largest Emerging Market, China,

needs to navigate the headwinds of lower consumer confidence
and demand following the reopening of Its econormy.

Against this backdrop, Ashmore has delivered meaningful
outperformance for ¢clients and has continued to execute s long-term
growth strategy, and 1ts business model remains appropriate to
manage the impact of market valatility. As has been expernenced

In previous cycles, after a perod of chailenging market conditions
the Group’s financial performance naturally lags the turn in markets
and the delivery of investrment outperformance. The Group started
this financial year with AuM of US$64 billion, which was more than
20% below the level of average AuM 10 the prior financat year and
therefore represented a notable revenue headwind for the current
year. There was encouraging momentum over the year with client
activity levels, net flows and investment performance higher in H2
compared with H1. Overall, lower average AuM resulted i a 35%
YoY dechine in adjusted EBITDA, but as a result of lower losses on
the Group's seed capital investrments and higher interest earned on
cash balances, protit before tax was 8% lower and diluted EPS fell
by 4% . Conseguently, the Board has recommended an unchanged
final ordinary dividend.

Undiminished long-term growth and investment
opportunities in Emerging Markets

Irrespective of events in the short term, the longer-term potental
ot Emerging Markets remains undiminishad. Supsenor economic
growth I1s expected to continue as a result of powerful convergence
trends with the developed world. These trends are supported by
ongoing reforms, particularly the shift by larger countries to local
currency funding and high-guality policymaking that delivers better
economic management and greater resiience to external shocks.
The resulting investment cpportunities for a specialist, active manager

10 : Ashmore Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023

are diversifisd across an investment universe spanning more
than 70 emerging countries and with approximately US$75 trilhion
of fixed income secunties and equity market capitalisation

Appropriate strategy to deliver long-term growth

The Group's three-phase strategy 1S 10 capture these opportunities
while seeking to protect the Group from scme of the more significant
challenges facing active asset managers such as the threat of
passive competition. Inevitably, given the cyclical nature of markets,
nrogress made in each of the three phases will vary.

Phase one

Risk aversion by some investors resulted in an adjustment to
allocations to Emerging Markets in the year, yet this was more
nronounced among developed world investors than those based

in Emerging Markets. Ashmare’s AuM from the latter increased
over the year by US$1.71 bilhon and from 27% to 33% of total AuM.

While interest rates have increased in hoth developed and emerging
countries, there is additional yield available i Emerging Markets
that helps to compensate for higher risk, whether percerved or actua,
and the merits of equity allocatons are underpinned by the supernor
growth prospects of emerging economies. Theretore, as the market
recovery continues, a broader range of iInvestors s expected to
recogrise and act upon the attractive investment opportunities
available in Emerging Markets fixed income and eguities.

Phase two

Ashrmore’s chjiective 1s 1o diversify its business and revenue streams
over tme, and the current focus 1s on converting the strong equities
investment performance into client flows, with encouraging activity
levels picking up through the perod; increasing alternatives AuM,
and delivering growth in intermediary retall assets as rsk

appetite mcreases.

The AuM opportunity within each tnitiative 1S substantial, with
the potential to delver a significantly larger and more diversified
business, thereby enhancing further the Group’s resihience to
market cycles.



Phase three

Ashmore has established a network of lccal asset management
operations across six emerging countries, from Colombia in the
west to Indonesia in the east. Collectively, they manage US$7
billion for dormestic and mternational institutions and intermediary
retall investors. Importantly, they provide the Group wath diversification
benefits, as seen tangibly this year with stable locally managed
AuM comparad wath a dechine for the Group’s global business, and
access 10 significant long-term growth opportunines as each country
develops 1ts capital markets and asset management industry.

Each business conunues 10 develop according to 1ts local strategy,
wath iistard equihies ouinartgtmghice, nvesununl realisalions ang
further capital raising planned in Colombia; devetopment of a
broader product range and client diversification in Saudi Aratia;
good investment performance and growing AuM in India; and
investment outperformance and successful management ot
industry regulatory changes in Indonesia.

The success of Ashmore Indonesia illustrates the near-term
development opportunity 1in these businesses, and the potential
value creation for Ashmore’s shareholders. With the Group's
support, the management team established a highly profitable
business of more than US$2 billion AuM. with significant employee
equity ownership and a listing on the local Jakarta Stock Exchange.
The business is currently valued at more than US$150 million.

Consequently, Ashmore has significant organic growth potential
avallable in each of these countries and will pursue opportunities to
expand the network over time.

Established business model to manage impact of
market volatility

Ashmere has experienced many different market envirenments in
more than 30 years of specialist investing in Emerging Markets
and, while every cycle 1s different, its business medel 1s designed
10 mitigate the impact of fluctuating AuM levels cn 1ts operational
and financial performance.

The Board tcok the decision to increase the proportion of profits
paid to employees in variable remuneration from 22.5% to 25.0%
ot EBVCIT. While in absolute terms the bonus pool is 24% lower,
the higher percentage reflects the cumulative impact of three

vears of mostly challenging market conditions and consequently

a significant reduction in AuM and pre-bonus profits. The Board
remains mindfui of achieving an appropriate balance between overall
employee remuneration and the profits avalable to shareholders,
and has recommended an unchanged final ordinary dividend this year.

Delivering strong investment performance

As descnbed in the Market review, Emerging Markets benchmark
ndices delivered good returns for the year. In fixed income,
Ashmgre's value-based mvestment process delivered
outpertormance through active management and adding positions
at attractive market levels over the past fewv years. Similarly, the main
equities strategies have navigated the market volatility of recent
years and delivered consistent cutperformance, with a strong track
record over ong, three and five years. Overall, 68% of the Group's
AuM 1s outperforming benchmarks aver three years, a significant
increase compared with 28% a year ago.

Ashmgare has a well-established pattern of exploting cychcal market
weakness through active management embedding significant upside
value in portfelios, and the subseguent market recovery leading

to outperformance for chents. While the drivers of each cycle are
different, Ashmore's consistent approach has again delivered a sirmilar
profile of investment performance in this cycle.

United Arab Emirates Pavilion, Dubai

Employees

In recent years, Ashmore’s employees have expenenced
significant changes in working practices, high levels of market
volatility and a period of cyclically iower AuM and profits. Delivering
performance for clients 1s the responsibility of all colleagues, not
just the investment protessionals, and theretore on behalf of the
Board, | would ltka to thank each of them for therr steadfast
commitment 1o Ashmore's purpose, therr expertise and high levels
of professionalism, and mantaining the Group’s highly etfective
team-based culture.

Positive outlook as the market cycle turns

There 1s mounting evidence that the negative cycle has turned

and, while the recavery may not be a straight line, 1t 1s well-supported
by improving fundamentals across the farger emerging countries,
although notably Chuna faces some headwinds from lower consumer
confidence after reopening its economy. Some Investors remain
cautious, but chent actvity levels are increasing and the combination
of posiive performance and attractive valuations avallable across
Emerging Markets should dnve capital flows over the medium
term, as has occurred after previous down cycles.

Ashmore 1s focused on pursuing its strategic growth objectives,
while managing the business appropriately to mitigate the impact
of market conditions and competitive pressures, and to deliver
upside through operating leverage as AuM grows as a
conseguence of performance and chent fiows.

Ashmore remains highly profitable, 1s delivering outperfermance
for clients and has a scalable operating platform, which means it
1s well-positioned to benefit from the ongoing recovery in
Emerging Markets.

Mark Coombs
Chiet Executive Otficer

5 September 2023
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Specialist
understanding...

The size, scale and diversity of Emerging Markets are often
misunderstood and underappreciated. This creates investment
opportunities through the mispricing of assets, which therefore requires
a specialist, active approach to exploit inefficiency and to deliver
long-term investment performance.

Most capital markets are imperfect, but asset The integration of ESG factors into investment
prices in Emerging Markets frequently reflect processes is important, and recognises that the
sentiment, which can be fickle and influenced emerging countries need capital for investment
by misperceptions or inherent biases, rather in order to address some of the challenges

than underlying fundamentals. This is facing the world, such as how to achieve a just
compounded by relatively low index climate transition.

representation, particularly in local currency

markets, and often a lack of comprehensive
sell-side coverage of securities. Wide range of sovereign debt returns (%]

The resultant price dislocations provide
significant investment opportunities for active
managers, but require deep understanding
and experience of the markets, together with
rigorous credit and financial analysis, in order
to recognise when value is available.

Source: EMBI GD (12 months to 30 June 2023)




THREE-PHASE STRATEGY

‘ Specialist understanding...

...supported by a
consistent strategy

Ashmore’s strategy is appropriate to capitalise on the substantial growth
1 opportunities available in Emerging Markets. Each of the three phases
 has the potential to deliver further significant long-term growth in AuM
| and profits, creating value for shareholders.

Establish Emerging Markets asset classes
Ashmore is recognised as an established speciahist

Established Emerging Markets manager, and 1s therefore

weli-positioned to capture developed world investors’
nsing allocations to the asset classes

Diversify investment themes and developed
world capital sources

. . Ashmore 1s diversifying its revenues to mitigate the
DlverSlﬁed impact of |nhefemtly cyclical markets. There 1s parucular
focus on growing the equity and alternatives investment
themes, and raising capital through intermediary
retait channels

Mobilise Emerging Markets capital
Ashmore's growih poientals enhanced through

Local accessing rapidly growing pools of investable capital
in Emerging Markets

14 Ashmeore Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
|



Opportunity

Progress in FY2023

Potential sources of risk

- Developed world investors hold
more than US$100 trillion of
assets and yet aie profoundly
underweight Emarging Markets
tarqet allocations are less than
10% compared with giobat
benchmark waights of
approximately 10% 1o 30%

— The tong-tenn Emerging Markets

allocaticn opportunity 1emamns
substantial, but nsk aversion by
sorne investars based on cyclical
factors has affected chent Hows

— Sentment towards,
and tundamental performance
ot, Emeragmg Matkets

— Long-term invesiment
performance

The Emerging Markets investment
universa conlinues 1o giovw and
drversify, andg Ashmore strives 1o
be a1 the forefront of accessing
new rnarket opportunitlies as

they anse

- Dwersitying revenue streams
provides greater stability through
the cycle

— Focus on convertng shang
equities mvestrment performance
o chent flows, with Incieasing
actvity levels through the penod

— Demand for 1G strategies
contmues, particuiarly from
European and Asian chents

— intermediary retal AuM impacied
by recent market cycle, but statile
at 4% of Group AuM

— Potential consttaints on tonger-
ter growth such as conpetition

— Longierm nvestment
pertonmance

- Industry AuM in Emerging
Markets 1s growing twice as
tast as the developed waorld

- Thig presents a sigrificant
growth opportunity in local assat
management platforms, as well
as cross-border Emerging
Markets opportunities over the
longer term

-~ The local plattoris defivered
a sahd performance with
stable Auivt

— AuM sourced from clents
domicided in Emerging Markets
increased by US$1.1 ilhon, and
Hom 27% 10 33% of Group AuM

- Managing the devilopment of
local asset management
platforms in Emerging Markets

Read more on pages 16-17 & 22-25

Read more on pages 28-34

Read more on pages 35-41

Ashmore Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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| THE EMERGING MARKETS STORY

- Growth, reforms and
‘diversification

Emerging Markets have historically, and justifiably, been associated
with high growth, but their development also delivers improvements

in institutional decision making and the asset classes offer significant

! diversification benefits.

Emerging countries’ share of
world GDP

58%

Praportion of world population
living in an emerging country

84%

Emerging countries’ share of
world FX reserves

72%

Structural shift to local currency funding (US$ trillion)

Sowee Bank of Amenca, 215, Bloomberg

Superior growth

In recent decades, Emerging Markets have delivered superior
growth compared with the developed world. This 1s expected to
continue as powerful economic, polical and socal convergence
trends mean emerging countries are becorming more wealthy,
wilh steadily rising GDP per capita lfrom a relatively low level),
and are better able to manage external shocks.

The positive long-term outlook 1s also underpinned by Emerging

Markets’ dominant share of economic resources, such as:

— BB% share of world GDP, on a PPP basis;

- approximately US$10 tnllion ot FX reserves, representing 72%
of the world total; and

— B49% ot the world’s population ives in an emerging country.

The srong relative growtn delivered by Emerging Markets wall

continue to put upward pressure on thar aggregate weight in

global market indices. from current levels of approxmately 10%

16 Ashmare Graup ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023

{equities) to 30% (bonds). In this context, developed world
investors, who typically have a target aflocation of less than 10%,
are profoundly underweight these increasingly important markets

Structural reforms

The willingness to reform 1s an important factor in the long-term
success of an emerging country. Arguably the most significant
development of the past few decades has been the shift from
external to local currency funding, supported by improvements

in the quality and effectiveness of menetary and fiscal policymaking.
Although many commentators continue 1o believe that developing
countres fund therr dehicits in US dollars, the typical model for

a larger country 1s not to rely solely on external financing but to
establish local capital markets with the long-term support of domestic
investors such as pension funds. Indeed, local currency markets
dominate tixed income Emerging Markets, with US$34 riion of
bonds outstanding, representing 88% of the nvestment universe




Ulun Danu temple, Bali

Local currency funding provides a buffer against external shocks,
albert that it requires effective monetary and fiscal policies to ensure
that other nisks, such as inflation, do not undermine the advantages.
Qver the past few years, many countries have successfully followed
an orthodox monetary policy path in the face of significant broader
economic and geopglitical challenges, underlining the resilience
that can be achieved by implementing effective long-term reforms.

Diversification benefits

Although it 1s converient to use the label 'Emerging Markets’,
this can often and unfairly mask the fact that there are more than
70 developing countries with investable equity and fixed income
rmarkets Owver the longer term this set of countries wall benefit
from the structural growth trends descnbed, but at varying rates
of progress and always in the context of shonerterm economic
cycles and the potentral impact of world events.

This therefore provides a wide range of potential opportunities for
the active investor, and particularly 1in those penods when sertiment,
misperception or other biases have a short-term influence on asset
prices rather than each country's specific set of economic and
political circumstances.

Market inefficiencies provide opportunities

The fundamental factors described above provide substantial support
for the long-term evolution of Emerging Markets, and underpin the
potential for attractive investment returns from the asset classes.

However, such development does not occur linearly over time

nor insolation fram world events. Theretore, volatility in economic
indicators, political events, market inefficiencies and shifts in Investor
sentiment provide opportunities for an active manager such as
Ashmore to deliver long-term performance for 1ts chents

Indonesia: a case study of
successful policy
implementation

Indonesia is one of the larger and most
successful emerging countries, with a well-
managed economy, attractive demographics
and rapidly developing capital markets.

Effective fiscal and monetary policies

Like many other countries, the Indonesian
authorities adopted an aggressive monetary
policy stance and provided fiscal stimulus in
2020, but then began to consolidate the fiscal
deficit early and subseqguently delivered
consistent results. The IMF expects the deficit to
be less than 1.5% of GDP in 2023, reducing from
6.1% 1n 2020, 4.5% n 2021 and 2.3% in 2022.

Structural reforms

The necessary economic stimulus did not
detract from the pursuit of reforms, continuing @
comprehensive programme set out In 2015. The
Indonesian government continues to implement
labour market, tax and investment pohcy reforms
1o support future economic development.

Ashmore Group plec Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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INVESTMENT PHILOSOPHY

Delivering investment
performance for
clients

Ashmore has successfully implemented its investment philosophy for
more than 30 years, over which time it has delivered outperformance
over market cycles for clients. Ashmore’s specialist approach to active
| management in Emerging Markets has long-standing characteristics
that are relevant to both fixed income and equities.

Significant investment universe l External deht J

invests in debt instruments 1ssued by sovereigns and

US$39 trillion e vdsmomcomnvon rerces
|

I Local currency

of Emerging Markets bonds in 1ssue Invests in local currencies and local currency-denominated
debt instruments 1ssued by sovereigns, quasi-sovergigns
and companies.

- - IEorporate debt ]
US $ 34 trllllon Invests in debt instruments 1ssued by public and private

sector companies.
l Blended dehbt I

Asset allocation across the external debt, local currency
and corporate debt investmeant themes, measured

US $ 3 7 trillion I;i?:;:“b”made blended indices. |

of Emmerging Markets equity market capitahsation Invests in equity and eguity-related instruments
including global, regional, country, small cap, frontier
and multi-asset opportunities.

I ARernatives _I

Invests in private equity, healthcare, infrastructure, special
situations, distressed debt and rea! estate opportunities.

of Emerging Markets debt is in local currencies
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Investment committees

Atthe core of the philosophy i1s a committee-based approach 1o
managing client portfolios. This provides a highly institutionalised,
team-based framewvork that results in a 'no star’ culture in which
no individual 1s single-handedly responsible for investment
decisions or chent portfolios.

Incfficicnt asset classes

The Emerging Markets fixed income and equity asset classes are
large and diversified, but also remain relatively inefficient. There 1s
relatively low index representation and securty prices can be heavily
influenced over short time penods by factars other than underlying
economic, potitical and company fundamentals. Consequently,
Ashmare actively manages client portfohos to exploit these
inefficiencies and to generate long-lerm outperformance.

Proprietary research

Ashmere’s long history of specialising in Emerging Markets and
its extensive netwaork of relationships means that proprietary
research Is an important source of Investment ideas. These insights
are shared across asset classes, but importantly there is no
‘house view' that has to be followed by the investment teams
when constructing portfolios. This supports the diversification
benefit of managing a range of strategies in muluple distinct
Investment themes.

Importantly, Ashmore’s independent local office iInvestment teams
in countnes such as Colombia, Saud! Arabia, India and Indonesia
provide valuable 'on the ground’ insights to the global equity and
fixed income ICs, including macro and company analysis and trading
intellgence. In turn, the local offices benetit from the ICs' global
macra views and other research 1o consider as inputs to therr

own Independent investment processes.

Ashmore’s Emerging Markets investments
and worldwide network

Emerging Markets invested
Ashmore presence

Medina, Al Madinah Province, Saudi Arabia
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Active management

Ashmore has delivered meaningful alpha through actve management
and the expression of high conviction ideas in portfelios. The poor
index representation of fixed income and equity Emerginig Markets
means that alpha can be generated both through active rnisk
against benchmark weights and through investing in off-benchmark
secunties. The latter does not necessanty mean instruments are less
iquid or have significantly different nisk charactenstics, it sumply
means that they do not conform to the strict engibility criteria of

the benchmark index prowvider.

Focus on liguidity

Understanding market liquidity has always been central 1o Ashmore's
nvestment processes, since the Investment teams must decide
on specific securites to rade and seek 1o execute any portfcho
changes promptly. In addition 1o pre and post-trade comphance
oversight, the ICs review execution outcomes 1o ensure that they
comply with the agreed decisions.

Investment committees structure

Fixed income Equities
Ic IC
*-e *
Local offices
& & o>—
Investment Investment
teams Allocation teams
{sub ICs) {sub ICs)
—— —
— External debt - Blended debt — All cap
-~ Local currency — Active
- Caorporate debt — Fronter
— Mulu-asset

ESG integration
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INVESTMENT PHILOSOPHY (CONTINUED)

The Group's global operating hubs in New York, London and
Singapore provide round-the-clock trading capabilities and Ashmore
has a wide range of strong, well-established counterparty trading
relationships.

Importantly, given that the majority of Emerging Markets secunties
are issued, owned and traded locally, these relationships include
local brokers as well as global investment banks. Hence, as hquidity
increasingly moves to local trading venues wittin Emerging Markerts,
Ashmore's portfolio managers are well positioned 1o source hquidity
when executing trading decisions.

ESG integration

Ashmare recognises that being a responsible mvestor brings
with it a duty 1o act in a manner that benetits wider society.
This responsibility 1s particularly acute in the markets in which
Ashmore invests and operates, with the need to balance ESG
factors with the financal wellbeing of Emerging Markets
sovereigns and clients.

Ashmoaore has integrated the analysis of ESG factors into s

fixed Income, equities and alternatives investment processes,
which reflects its philosophy that the incorperation of nop-financial
factors 1s essential 10 bullding a robust understanding and
assessment of an issuer. Over time this should imgrove investment
perfarmance, promote better business models, and help foster
more sustanable economic development. Ashmore’s ESG
research s primanly propnetary in nature, based on third-party
data supplemented by research visits and meetings with 1ssuers.
Therefore, in accordance with the Group’s ESG Policy, analysis of
ESG factors s integrated into the investment processes in a simular
way 10 how Ashmore assesses macroeconomic nsk, financial
perfarmance and credit metnics.

More information on Ashmaore’s responsible investment approach
can be found in1ts Sustanability Report, avallable on the
Group's website.

Ashmore’s private equity
healthcare initiative

Ashmore, in partnership with King's College Hospital
London, is developing a network of world-class ternary
care hospials in Emerging Markets. The comibynation
brings together Ashmore's expeneance in private equity
wansacneons, including in the healthcare indusiries

in South Asia, MENA and Latin America, with King's
long-established world<lass chrical expertise

The ntiative targets investments in countries with

the following charactenstics:

- Growing and ageing population with increasing

middle class

Increasing prevalence of non-communicable

lifestyle diseases

— Increasing government rehance on private sector
to deliver healthcare

— Rising medical tounsm

— Affinity for western healthcare standards

The pantnership built a 105-bed hospital and & range of
chirics in the United Arab Emirates (Dubail, and (s currently
developing a sirmilar project in Saudi Arabia [Jeddah) while
evaluating the potential of other Asian countries,




The Museo Soumaya Museum, Mexico
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MARKET REVIEW

A stronger year in
Emerging Markets

Conditions in Emerging Markets improved over the year, leading
| to fixed income returns of 6% to 11% and outperformance versus
. developed markets, and equities delivered a positive return of 2%.

After a weak first quarter in cornmon with global capital markets,
Emerging Markets rallied over the subsequent nine months to
deliver positive returns for the year overall. This refiects the benefit
of sound and effective monetary policies, lower debt levels than
developed countries, tighter sovereign and corporate spreads over
the period, and the positive impact of a weaker US dollar on local
currency returns.

The year was characterised by the conunued tightening ot policy
rates by central banks in response to high inflation, banking failures
in the US and Europe, and ongoing cenfiict or geopolitical tension
in Europe and Asia. Several important economic indicators
underpinned the rally in Emerging Markets asset prices:

— GDP growth across Emerging Markets is expected 1o be
significantly higher than in the developed world.

— After more than two years of tighter monetary polcy, inflation
15 falling in Emerging Markets and interest rates are now higher
than expected CPlinflation. The inflection paint in the rates cycle
has been reached, the credibility of most central tanks 1s high,
and monetary policy easing by Emerging Markets central banks
15 possible in the foreseeable future.

— The US dollar has enjoyed a prolonged bull run, which appears
to have ended in 2022 as the weak underlying fundamentals in
the US economy, and the prospect of a recession and correction
n the equity market, put downward pressure on the currency.

The sections below present the recent performance and prospects
for each of the main fixed Income and equity asset classes.

22 Ashmore Group ple Annuat Report and Accounts 2023

Near-term returns are underpinned by attractive valuations and further
improvement in cyclical factors against a backdrop of structural growth.

External debt

The EMBI GD delivered a positive return of 7.4% over the 12
months, and the Index spread over US Treasuries tightened

by 110bps to 430bps. Although the first quarter saw a materal
drawdown {-4.6%) due to high inflation and hawkish central banks,
the index delivered positive returns in each subsequent guarter.
By region, Eastern Europe, Africa and Labin America performed well,
while Asia and the Middie East lagged the index.

The HY Index spread bnefly exceedead 1,000bps early in the period,
which historically is a level from which substantial positive returnsg
are achieved over the following 12 months. Indeed, HY assets
outperformed over the 12 months with a return of 11.8%
compared with 32.4% for the |G index.

Some higher-yielding countries, such as Egypt and S Lanka,

tace challenges, but each situation is specific to the country In
question and the path for each —in terms of avoiding detauit,
undertaking a credible restructuning, or remaiing m limbo without
access to markets — depends as much on the domestc capacity for
reform as it does on the global macro environment. The iInvestmeant
opportunty in each snuatcn wall be determined by the extent to which
the various scenarios have been pnced by bond and equity markets.

The US rate cycle 15 approaching its peak and the external debt asset
class 1s set to outperform given its still wide spread by historical
standards, a yield in excess of 8%, and substantal diversification
avallable in an index compnsing 89 countnigs and with 51% of
honds rated I1G.



Sovereign external debt spread over US Treasuries {hps)

Source: J.P. Morgan

Local currency

The GBI-EM GD performed well with a return of 11.4% over the
year, mostly through a rally in iocal markets with only 1% coming
from stronger Emerging Markets currencies against the US dollar.
The asset class has benefited from the early and eftective
monetary policy tghtening pursued by many countries’ central
panks over the past couple of yvears, whch nas dehvered macro
stabihiy and anchored inflaton expeciations m those countnes,

and also prowvided a path for policy easing in the foreseeable future.

The index returns were particularly strong in Latn Amernica and

Eastern Europe, while Asia lagged. Weaker perfarmance in the

Middle East and Africa reflected the country-specific challenges
in Egypt and South Afnca.

The outlook for the US dellar 1s important 19 mvestor percepuons
and performance of the local currency asset ciass. After o prolonged
bull run, several factors point 1o a penod of weakness in the US
dollar, ncluding large fiscal deficis, imbalanced external accounts
and ovelly expenswe currency and stocks, particularly i the context
of a potential recesswon. For context, the trade-weighted real value
of the US dollar peaked in 2022 only 10% helow the 1985 Plaza
Accord level and ahove the level reachsd around the dot-com
bubble, thus representing one of the highest levels that the currency
has seen tn the past 50 years. In contrast, Emerging Markets
currencies rade at attractive real effective exchange rate valuations.

Natwithstanding the returns delivered over the past 12 months,
the local currency asset class continues to offer substantial value
with an attractive vield of more than 8%, accelecating GDP growth
and the potential for Interest rate cuts in many of the 20 countnes
N the index if inflation continues to trend down.

Al Tijaria Tower, Kuwait City, Kuwait

Positive real local rates delivered by effective
monetary policy (%)

Source: Ashmore, Bioomberg, J.P. Morgan
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MARKET REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Corporate debt

The CEMBI BD performed similarly 1o the sovereign market,

with an investrment return of 5.7% over the year supported

by a ughtening of spread from 400bps 1o 320bps. HY bonds
outperformed with a return of 2.9% compared with 2.5% for

1G bends. In terms of regions, corporate assets performed
strongly in Eastern Europe, with returns closer to the overall index
performance in Latin America, Africa, Asia and the Middle East.

Defauit rates are low in Latin Amenica, Africa and Middie East
{less than 1%) and comparable 1o the US market. Higher default
rates have been experienced due to policy tightening in China
and as a consequence af the war in Ukraine, but 1t appears that
overall default rates may have peaked in this cycle.

This asset class has characlenstics that are supenor to the eguivalent
US credit markets and, afier a repricing of assets dunng the current
interest rate cycle, underpin the relative value avalable in Emerging
Markets corporate debt These charactensucs include;

- The index s highly diversitied with more than 750 1ssuers across
63 countrigs. More than half (58%) of the bonds in the iIndex are
rated 'G.

~ Companies in Emerging Markets tend to have lower leverage
compared with US and Eurcpean peers, because management
teams have a maore conservative approach given the need to
compensate for higher perceived country risk. Net leverage in
the IG market 15 iess than 1.5x EBITDA, compared with 2.5x
10 3.5%1n the US and Europe. There Is a similar picture in the
HY market, with net leverage of around 2x in Emerging
Markets compared with 3.5x to 5x i the US and Europe.

- Despite lower teverage, Emerging Markets G bands affer
a significant spread pick-up of 100bps per turn of leverage,
compared with egquivalent-rated US high-grade issuers.

— Sirmularly, the RY index ofters an attractive vield ot 9.5%,
which despite the lower leverage 1s a point higher than
the US HY market.

The above factors, when combined with the pasitive outlook for
corporate earnings as a consequence of accelerating GDP growth
and & supportive techmcal posiion given subdyed new issuance,
mean that the corporate debt assel class 1s well-positioned to
deliver further positive returns over the medium term.

24 Ashmore Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Lower historical net leverage in EM 1G credit versus peers

Source: Bank of Amenca

Equities

The MSC! EM index rose by 1.8% over the year, with the impact
of tighter financial condimons in the first guarter and weaker than
expected Asian economic data in the final guarter holding back
returns compared with the fixed income markets. Frontier Markets
were a lttle weaker (IMSCI Frontier -2.8%), but small cap markets
performed better, with the MSCI EM Small Cap index nsing 13.3%.

After a challenging penod in many countries, the outlook tor eguity
market performance is positive. Importantly, aggregate GDP growth
N emerging countries is expected 10 accelerate over the next few
years, and consequently the prermium to developed world growth
will expand. Histoncally, there has been an understandable correlation
between the relative perfarmance of equity markets and economic
growth ditferentials, which therefore provides a tirm underpin to
the asset class.

Against this backdrop of accelerating economic growth, the return
opportunity In Emerging Markets equities refiects a combination

of secular growth opportunities, particularly in Asian countnes such
as Inda and Indonesia, and other markets trading at substanual
discounts to ther history and far vafue, for example in Latin Amenca
and China. Earmings growth expectations are miodes!, and in this
cantext the subrstantat pricefearnings ratio discount at which
Emerging Markets equities trade 1o developed markets {17.0x
compared with 18.5x for the S&P500) appears unusthied and
supports outperformance of the asset class over the medium term.



Equities refative performance (x) correlated with
economic growth potential {%}

Source: IMF WEOQ database, MSCI

Outlook

The structural drivers of growih in Emerging Markets are intact
and underpinned by ongoing reforms in Asia, Latin America and
Afnica together with dominance over the world’s natural resources
and the supply chains necessary for energy transition. This 1s
reflected in the continued superior GDP growth expected when
compared with the developed wortd. However, this growth potential
18 nol reflected in current valuations, providing investors with an
opportunity to participate in the cngeing recovery In asset prces
atter a challenging few years in capital markets outside the US.

From a cyclical standpoint, there are several factors that should
explicitly support the performance of Emerging Markets:

— Inflation 1s falling and interesi rates are peaking following early
and effective monetary policy tightening by Emerging Markets
central banks, well ahead ot the Fed and other developed world
policymakers.

— China has a renewed focus on delivering economic growth and
consequently 1s providing significant monetary and fiscal stimulus
to its economy, which will have both a domestic impact but also

a broader positive effect on trade. Policy choices must also recognise
the need to navigate the headwinds of lower consumer confidence
and demand following the reopening of its economy.

— After a prolonged bull run, the US dollar appears t¢ have peaked
in late 2022, Objectively, 1t is still overvalued, partially as a result

of significant flows into the US equity market that 1s also vulnerable
10 a correction given its high valuation and the potential for a
recession In a lagged response to ughter financial conditions.

With this backdrop, the near-term outlook for the main Emerging
Markets asset classes is positive.

Givern the historical strong correlation, equities should benehit from
an expansion of the relative economic growth rate, and a weaker
US dollar will support returns from this asset class for many
developed world investors. Similarly, local currency bond returns
will be underpinned by the monetary easing cycle in many
countries togeiher with dollar weakness.

IG sovereign and corporate markets offer meaningful yield
enhancerment compared with the developed world, and provide
a lower-risk alternative for investors that remain concerned about
aspects of the global macro environment, At the HY end of the
market, distressed credits offer potentially significant recovery
upsido ac tho oconomia oyalo turna.

Given the global macro challenges of the past few years, and

the ongoing war in Europe and geopolitical tension in Asia, there

1s understandably an element of risk aversion among some investors,
particularly those in the US. However, a broader set of investors
ncreasingly recegnises the opportunities represented by the superor
growth prospects and attractive yields available across Emerging
Markets. As has been seen in previous cycles, an increase in capital
flows and investment supports economic growth in the developing
world and can therefore lead to further asset class outperformance.
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. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

|
Driving
performance

Performance measure

Assets under management

The movement between opening

and closing AuM provides an indication

of the overall success of the business
dunng the penod. in terms of subscripuons,
redemptions and investment perfarmance.

The average AuM level duning the period,
combined wath the average fee margins
achieved, determines the Group’s
management fee revenues

Investment performance

The proportion of relevant Aub that

15 outperforming benchimarks on a gross
basis, over one year, three years and five
years. The gross basis reflects the largely
instrtutional nature of the chient base,
typically with the ability to agree bespoke
fee arrangements. Funds without a
performance benchrnark, for example
overlay strategres, are excluded

Relevance to strategy and
remuneration

Ashmore's stiategy seeks to caprtalise
on the growth trends across Emerging
Markets to deliver AuM growth over tme.

Growth in AuM is a vesting performance
condition for Executive Directors.

Ashmore’s success 1s dependent

on delivenng investment performance
consistent with clients’ objectives,
who typically ook at performance
over the medium to long term.

Investment perfarmance 1s a
vesting performance condition
for Executive Directors.

Five-year trend

Assets under management

US$55.9bn

Investment performance
{AuM outperforming over three years)

69%
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Adjusted FEBITDA margin

This measure provides a meanimgiul

assessment of the Group’s operating
performance, excluding the mark-to-

market volatility of FX translation

and seed capitalrelated items,

Diluted EPS

Profit alliizutable to the nquity holders
of the parent company divided by the
weghted average number of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

Balance sheet strength

Ashmaore maintains a stuny batanee sheot
over the Emerging Markets cycle, This is
measured by the financial resources
avallable 10 the Group, which are then
compared wath the Group's capital
requirement to provide an excess

capital ratio.

Delvering a high profit margin demonstrates
the benefits of Ashmore’s global operating
platform, enables investment in future
growth opportunities, supports cash
generation to sustan a strong balance
sheet, and provides for attractive returns
to shareholders,

The earnings per share reflect the overall
financial performance of the Group duning
the period and represent an aspect of
value creation tor shareholders.

Growth in diluted EPS compared with
benchmark indices 1s a vesting
performance condition for

Executive Directors.

A strong balance sheet enables Ashmaore
to build a diversified chent base, provides
opportunities for iInvestment to grow the
business including the seeding of funds,

and supports the Group's dividend policy.

Adjusted EBITDA margin

54%

Diluted EPS

12.2p

Excess capital ratio

774%
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BUSINESS REVIEW

‘Successfully
‘managing a cycle

Adjusted EBITDA margin of 54% reflects opening AuM below last year’s

| average level, mitigated by effective cost management. With higher ‘
: interest income and seed capital returns, diluted EPS is 12.2 pence, 4%

| lower YoY, and the balance sheet remains robust with £705 million of

| capital resources including more than £450 million of cash. |

Assets under management

AUM declined by 13% aver the year ta US$55.9 billan, with the
moverment attnbutable to net outflows of US$11.5 billion, offset
by positive investrnent pertormance of US$3.4 biliion, delivered in
each of the six investmeant themes. Reflecting the opening Aub
level of US$64.0 bilhon, average AulM was 30% lower than in the
prior year at US$58.2 bilion (FY2022: US$83.6 billion)

Gross subscriptions of US$7.2 bilfion represent 11% of opening
AuM, lower than in the prior year pnimarily as a consequence

of cautious investor sentiment reflecting concerns over the
macroeconomic backdrop in global markets (FY2022

US$13.1 bittion, 149% of opening AuM).

Subscrptions were strongest in the externaf debt, local currency
and eguities investrment themes, particularly as chents recognised
that Emerging Markets cential banks are ahead of thew developad

world counterparts i tackhing wilation, and the US doliar appeais to
have peaked in 2022. External debt inflows were a combination of
existing chent top-ups and continued product development to
capture the witnnsic value avalable in HY markets, and there were
new institutional clients in local currency and eguities.

Gross redemptions of US$18.7 billion, or 29% of opening AuM,
were lower than in the prior year {FY2022: U5$26.6 brllion, 28%

ot operung Aub) and nclude US$2.3 bdlon of overlay/guidity
redemptions (FY2022: US$6.0 bilhon), but remain relatively high

as a consequence of global macro concerns and market volatility,
particularly in the first half of the year, meaning some investors
shifted allocations in favour of traditicnally perceived safe havens.
This risk aversion was particularly evident in developed world
investors, retlected in a lower proportion of AuM from clents n the
Americas and the fact that Ashmare’s Ermerging Markets-domiciled
clients increased from 27% to 33% of Group AuM.

Reconciing tems

Fyzoz3 Seed caprtal FX tranzfation J FY2023 Y2022
£m Reported igainsifiosses igainstiosses Adjusted Adjusted
Net management fees 183.2 - - 183.2 2435
Perfarmance fees 5.1 - - 5.1 4.5
Other revenue 27 - - 2.7 29
Faoreign exchange 5.4 - (1.0} 4.4 63
Net revenue 196.4 - (1.0) 195.4 2572
Losses on Investment securities (44.3) 44.3 ~ - -
Change in thwd-party interests wn consohdated funds 19.3 2.3 - - - |
Personnel expenses (66.2) - 0.3 {65.9) 72.3)
QOther expenses excluding depreciation and amortisation {24.6) 1.3 - (23.3) (20.6)
EBITDA 80.6 26.3 0.7) 106.2 164.3
EBITDA margm 41% - - 54 % 64%
Depreciation and amartisation {3.2) - - (3.2) (3.1)
Operating profit 774 263 0.7 103.0 161.2
Finance mcome/lexpense) 333 (18.0) - 15.9 18
Share of profrt from associates 0.5 - - 0.5 1.3
Profit before tax 111.8 8.3 0.7 119.4 164.1
Diluted EPS (p) 12.2 0.6 0.1 12.7 18.7
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Consistent with the rally in markets from the September fows,
Ashmore's investment pertormance and net flow momentum
improved in the second half of the tinancial year. Positive
investrent performance of US$2.6 bilion in H2 compares wath
LUS$0.8 bilhon in H1, and net outflows approximately halved from
US$7.6 billion in H1 10 US$3.9 billion in HZ2.

Tho total net outfinw for the period of US$11.5 bilhon (FY2022:
US$13.5 billion net cutflow) comprnises a net outflow trom retail
clients of US$0.7 billion (24% of opening intermediary retail
AuMl, reflecting the typically shorter investment horizon, and net
redemptions from institutional chents of US$10.8 billion {18% of
uspening msilulicnal Au).

Ashmore’s local offices continued to perform well and llustrated
the benefits of diversification. Total AuM was stable at US$7.0
biltion (30 June 2622: US$6.9 billion) with only modest net
outflows of US$0 3 billion. As described in the CEC review, these
businesses have significant growth potential as they participate

in the development of independent domestic asset management
industries, and there are opportunities to expand the network over
time to enhance the strategic and financial benefits to the Group.

AuM movements by investment theme

The development during the perod of AuM by theme 1s shown
n the table below. The local currency iInvestment theme includes
US$6.3 bitlon of overlay/igudity funds (30 June 2022:

USS$7.2 billion).

AuM as invested

The charts on page 30 show AuM ‘as invested’ by underlying
nvestment theme, which takes account ot the allocation into the
underlying asset classes by multi-asset and blended debt funds
and of crossover investment by certain external debt funds.

The Group's AuM remain geographically diverse and broadly
consistent with recent periods, with 37% of AuM invested in Latn
America, 29% in Asia Pacific, 13% in Eastern Europe and 21% in
the Middle East and Africa.

Clients

Ashmore's clients are predominantly a diversified set of
institutions, representing 96% of AuM (30 June 2022: 95%]),

with the remainder sourced through intermediary retail channels.
Segregated accounts represent 81% of AuM (30 June 2022: 81%,).

Ashmore’s principal mutual fund platforms are in Europe and the
LS. which in total represent Aui of US$5.7 billion in 43 funds.
The European SICAV range comprnises 31 funds willt AuM of
US$4.8 bilhon {30 June 2022: US$5.4 billion in 30 funds) and

the LS 40-Act range has 12 funds with AuM of US$0.9 billion
{30 June 2022: US$1.0 bilion 1in 12 funds).

Investment performance

As at 30 June 2023, 67% of AuM 1s outperforming over one year,
69% over three years and 49% over five years (30 June 2022:
45%, 28% and 48%, respectively).

Charactensucally, as markets have started to recover from oversold
levels, Ashmere’s investment processes have delivered meaningful
outperformance. In addition to the consistently strong relative
performance in local currency, 1G and equities strategies, there has
been a notable improvement in some of the other, higher yielding
fixed income strategies.

Current valuations across the Emerging Markets asset classes
underpin additional recovery performance in coming pericds,
and the inherent value in Ashmore's portfolios support the
delivery of further outperformance for clients.

AunA AuM

30 Juns Gross Gross 30 June

2022 subserptions redemptions Net flows FPerfarmance 2022

investment theme USSbn USSbn USEbn LSgbn \JS§hn Usshn
External debt 4.4 1.7 5.7} 4.00 0.6 11.0
Local currency 206 27 8.0} (3.3) 1.5 18.8
Corporate debt 6.8 02 {0.8) {0.4) 0.1 6.5
Blended debt 14.4 0.7 (4.0} {3.3) 0.8 11.9
Fixed income 56.2 5.3 [16.3) (11.0) 3.0 48.2
Equities 6.3 19 {2.3) 0.4 03 6.2
Alternatives 15 -~ {0.1) 10.1} 01 1.5
Total 64.0 7.2 (18.7) {11.5) 3.4 55.9
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| BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED!

Ashmore’s diverse investment themes and clients

2023 (%)

AuM by investment theme

AuM as invested

AuM by client type

AuM by client geography
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External debt
Local currency
Corporate debt
Blended debt
Equities
Alternatives

External debt
Local currency
Corporate debt
Equities
Alternatives

| Central banks

| Sovereign wealth funds
Governments

}Pension plans

‘Corporates/financial
institutions

| Funds/sub-advisers
| Intermediary retall

| Foundations/
endowments

Americas

Europe

UK

Midd'e East and Africa
Asia Pacihc

20
33
12
21
n

31

15
n

13
37

19
26

2022 (%)

External debt
Lacal curency
Corporate debt
Blended debt
Equities
Alternatives

External debt
Local currency
Corporate debt
Equities
Altematies

Central banks

21
32
n
24
10

33
33
17

15

Sovereign wealth funds 22

Governments
Pension plans

Corporates/financial
mnstitutions

Funds/sub-adwvisers
Intermediary retail

Foundations/
endowments

Amencas

Europe

UK

Middle East and Africa
Agia Pacific

2
27

25
3
5

1

19
32

]
17
26



Financial review

Revenues

Cpening AuM and average AuM were 23% and 30%, respectively,
below the average AuM of the prior year, and this lower level of
AuM delivered the 25% fall in net revenue to £196.4 million. On an

adjusted basis, excluding FX translation effects, net revenue fell by
29% to £185.1 millinn

Net revenue

FY2023 Fy2022

£m frn
Net management fees 183.2 2435
Performance fees 5.1 4.5
Other revenue 2.7 29
FX: hedges 4.4 6.3
Adjusted net revenue 195.4 257.2
tX: balance sheet Uanslation 1.0 5.3
Net revenue 196.4 262.5

Net management fee income declined by 25% to £183.2 million.
This refiects the lower average AuM and a net management fee
margin of 38bps (FY2022: 39bps), parhally offset by the benefit of
a lower average GBP:USS rate in this period. At constant FY2022
exchange rates, net management fee income reduced by 32%.

The slight decline in the net management fee margin YoY reflects
the positive etfects from investment theme mix and large mandate
tlows otfset by the impact of market performance over the year
(stronger performance In lower margin strategies and accounts)
and competition and other mix effects.

Performance fees of £6.1 millon (FY2022: £4.5 million) were
realised in the year, and delivered by a range of funds in the local
currency, blended debt and alternatives investment themes.
Approximately US$12 bilion of the Group's AuM, or 21% of the
total, 15 eligible 10 earn performance fees at 30 June 2023, The
Group continues to expect its diverse sources of net management
fee iIncome 1o generate the majority of its net revenues.

Net managesment fess

Translation of the Group’s non-5terling assets and liabilities,
excluding seed capntal, resulted in an unrealised FX gain of

£1.0 milion (FY2022: £65.3 million gain}. The Group's effective
hedging proegramme and the active management of FX exposures
during the penod meant that realised and unreahsed hedging
gains of £4.4 milion were delivered (FY2022: £6.3 mullon gam).
Theretore, the Group recognised a total FX gain of £56.4 million

N revenues (FY2022: £11.6 milion gain).

Other revenue of £2.7 million was comparable to the prior year
(FY2022: £2.9 millicn).

The tabte below summarises the net management fee income,
performance tee income and net management fee margin by
nvestment theme.

Operating costs

Total operating costs of £24.0 milhon (FY2022: £28.5 million)
inchide £1.3 milhon of expenses incurred by seeded funds that are
required to be consolidated (FY2022: £1.4 million), as disclosed

n note 20. On an adiusted basis, 1aking inte account the impact

of seed capital and the proportion of the accrual for variahle
compensaton that relates to FX translation gains, operating costs
were reduced by 4% compared with the prior year. Adusted
operating costs fell by 7% at constant FY2022 exchange rates.

Fv2023 F¥2022
£m £m

Staff costs (31.4) (27.8)
Other operating costs {23.3} (20.6)
Depreciation and amortisation {3.2) (3.1}
Operating costs before VC (57.9) {51.5}
Variable compeansation (VC} (34.8) {45.6}
VC accrual on FX gains/losses 0.3 11

Adjusted operating costs (92.4) {96.00
Consolidated funds costs {1.3) (1.4
Add back VC on FX gains/losses 0.3) {1.1)
Total operating costs (94.0) (98.5)

Parfarmance fees Net managomont fee margin

FY2023 Y2022 Fy2023 Fy2022 FY2023 FY2022
Invastment theme £m Em fm £m £m £m
External debt 325 46.7 - 2.0 3 35
Local currency 43.0 54.9 3.3 0.8 28 27
Corporate debt 16.2 26.0 - - 30 37
Blended debt 46.8 69.3 1.1 13 44 46
Fixed income 1385 196.9 4.4 4.1 33 35
Equities 295 331 - 0.4 58 58
Alternatives 15.2 13.5 0.7 - 144 138
Total 183.2 24356 5.1 4.5 38 39
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i BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Statf costs increased by 13% to £31.4 million, of which nearly half
was due to the lower average GBPUSE rate. There was glso the
impact of wage inflation in certam locations and a 1% higher
average headcount. The underlying increase in staff costs was
primanly n the first half ot the year, with costs in the second half
being broadly flat on the first haif.

Cither operating costs, excluding consolidated fund expenses and

depreciation and amoruisahon, increased oy 13% to £23.3 million.

FX movernents account for approximately half of the increase and
the remainder was due to the full year impact of returning towards
mare normal levels of business travel and office occupancy.

Ashmuore accrued charitabie donations of £0.5 million (FY2022:
£0.6 million), equivalent to 0.5% of profit before tax.

Variable compensation has been accrued at 25% of EBVCIT,
resulting in a charge of £24 8 millon. The higher proporton of
profits reflects the point In the cycle, where Ashmore 1s delivering
mvestment outperformance for clients as markets recover, but
the financial performance lags with the impact of lower average
AuM levels. In absolute terms, the charge 1s 24% lower than in
the prior year (FY2022: £45.6 mihon) and consistent with the fali
in adjusted net revenue,

The combined depreciation and amortisation charges for the period
of £3.2 million were similar to the prior year

Adjusted EBITDA

The impact of the lower revenue base, partially mitgated by lowar
operating costs, means that adjusted ERITDA dechined by 35%
from £164.3 million to £106.2 mihon. This delivered an adjusted
EBITDA margin of 54% for the year (FY2022: 64%).

Finance income

Net finance ncome of £33.8 million (FY2022: £2.1 million finance
expense} includes gams relating 10 seed capital iInvestments, which
are described in more detail below. Excluding such items, net
interest inceme for the pernod of £15.9 million increased compared
with the prior year (FY2022: £1 6 million! due to the benefit of
higher market interest rates on the Group’'s cash deposits.
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Seed capital

The following table summanses the principal IFRS items in the
accounts o assist in understanding the financial impact of the
Group's seed capital programme on profits. The seed capital
investments generated realised gains ot £2.4 milion and an
unrealised mark-to-market loss of £10.7 million, 1o give an
aggregate loss of £8.3 milllon for the year (FY2022: £49.9 milhon
toss). This cornpnses a £15.3 rmithon loss in respect of consolidated
funds (FY2022: £40.5 mallion loss) and & £7.0 rmillion gain in respect
of unconsolidated funds (FY2022. £9.4 million loss}.

Impact of seed capital investments on profits

FY2023 2092
£m £m

Consolidated furds inote 20)
Fair value losses on Investment
securities {44.3) 61.3}
Change n third-party interests in
consolidated funds 19.3 1685
Operating costs (1.3) (1.4)
Investment income 11.0 5.7
Sub-total: consohdated funds {15.3) (40.5)
Uneonsolidated funds {note B):
Market return 57 {10.6)
FX 1.3 1.2
Sub-total: unconsohdated funds 70 2.4)
Total seed capital gains/[losses) (8.3) {49.9)
- 1ealsed 24 0.1
- unrealised {10.7) (60.0)

Profit before tax

Statutory prafit before tax was 6% lower at £111.8 muliion (FY2022:
£118.4 million} as a consequence of the dechne in adjusted EBITDA
mitigated by lower losses on seed caprtal Investments and the
benefit of higher interest rates on finance Income.

Taxation

The eftective 1ax rate of 22.6% [FY2022: 22.4%) 1s slightly higher
than the blended UK corparation 1ax rate of 20.5% for the year
(FY2022: 19.0%! due to the geographic mix of the Group’s profits
in the perod, the valuation of deferred tax assets relatung 1o
share-based remuneration and the impact of seed capital gans
and losses. Note 12 to the financial statements provides a full
recancihation of this difference compared with the UK
corporation tax rate.

The Group's current etfective 1ax rate, based on its geographic mix
of profits and prevaihng tax rates, 1s approxmately 19% 1o 20%.
Earnings per share

Basic EPS for the period fell by 7% to 12.4 pence (FY2022:

13.4 pence) and diluted EPS declined by 4% from 12.6 pence

10 12.2 pence.

On an adjusted basis. excluding the eftects of FX translation,

seed capital-related items and relevant tax, diluted EPS was 32%
lower at 12.7 pence (FY2022: 18.7 pence).



Balance sheet

Ashmore’s consistent approach is to mantain a strong and hquid
balance sheet over market cycles, enabling 1t to support the
commercial demands of current and prospectve investors, and
1o 1ake advantage of strategic development opportunities.

As at 30 June 2023, total eguity attributable to shareholders of
the parent wias £OR 8 millinn 30 June 2022: £915.0 million].
The Group has no debt.

The level of capital required to support the Group's activities,
including its regulatory requirements, 1s £80.6 million. As at 30
June 2023, the Group had total capnal resources of £704.8 mullion,
equvalent 10 99 pence per shere, and therelwe icpronantng an
excess of £624.2 mihon over the Board's level of required capital.

Cash

Ashmore's business model delivers a high conversion rate of
cperating profits to cash. Based on operating profit of £77.4 mullion
for the penod (FY2022: £119.2 million), the Group generated
£111.6 million of cash from operations (FY2022: £182.1 mullion).
The operating cash flows after excluding consolidated funds
represent 105% of adjusted EBITDA (FY2022: 113%).

Cash and cash equivalents by currency

30.June 30 June

2023 2022

£m £m

Sterling 374.0 2731
US dollar 71.1 2479
Cther 335 31.0
Total 478.6 552.0

Excluding cash held in consohdated funds, the Group’s cash

and cash equivalents reduced by £73.7 million to £468.3 million
(30 June 2022: £542.0 million), principally due to new seed capnal
investments. There was an increase In the proportion of cash held
in Sterling following the sale of US dollars for Sterling at attractive
levels in the first half of the year.

Seed capital investments

The Group's seed capital programme has delivered growth in
third-party AuM with approximately US$6 billion of AuM in funds
that have been seeded, representing 11% of total Group AuM.

Duning the year, the Group made new investments of £63.9 million
and protitably realised £24.6 million from previous investments.
The unrealised mark-to-market loss on the portfolic was

£19.2 milhon, meaning that the market value of the Group's seed
capital investments increased to £291.5 milhon (30 June 2022:
£272.0 million].

Subscriptions n the penod were focused on developing new funds
in the external debt, local currency and equities themes, including
providing access to the Group's local asset management
capabilities.

The ability to redeem seed capital was facilitated by successful
realisations by funds in the afternatives theme, particularly in
respect of infrastructure-related investments in Latin America,
and matching client flows into equity funds managed locally

n Saudi Arabia.

The mark-to-market reduction in value was due 10 changes In
asset valuations in alternatives funds, predominantly in the first halt
of the year, with positive returns delivered by funds in the fixed
ncome and eguities themes.

The diverstfied mix of seed capital investments means that the
underlying fund portfolios, some of which are consolidated under
IFRS 10, have exposure 1© a range of Emerging Markets asset
classes, Including sovereign and corporate fixed income, listed
equities, private equity, real estate and infrastructure, and a wide
array of industries including education, energy, financials,
healthcare, industnals, basic materials, transport and utilities.

Ashmore has integrated the consideration of ESG factors into 1ts
nvestment processes, which therefore means the Group’s seed
capial investments are in funds that are scored in accordance with
Ashmore's proprietary ESG methodology and may contribute to
Ashmore's iInvolvement in industry mitiatives such as Climate
Action 100+, NZAMI and UN PRI,

Seed capital market value by currency

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£m £m

US doilar 240.1 222.4
Colomtian peso 19.7 19.0
Other 31.7 30.6
Total market value 2915 272.0

As at 30 June 2023, two-thirds of the Group’s seed capital 1s held
in funds with at least monthly dealing frequency, such as SICAV
or US 40-Act mutual funds. Ashmore has also made seed capital
commitments 1o funds of £8.8 million that were undrawn at the
period end, giving a total value for the Group’s seed capital
pregramme of approximately £300 mulhon,

Goodwill and intangible assets

At 30 June 2023, goodwill and intangible assets on the Group's
balance sheet totalled £86.9 milion {30 June 2022: £30.9 million).
The movement tn the period is pnmarlly the result of an FX
revaluation loss in reserves of £3.9 rrullion (FY2022:

£10.5 million gain).

Shares held by the EBT

The EBT purchased £15.6 million of ordinary shares during the
penod in anticipation of the vesting of employee share awards.
Consequently, at 30 June 2023, the EBT owned 50,834,683
ordinary shares (30 June 2022: 55,512,301 ordinary shares),
representing 7.1% of the Group’s 1ssued share capital (30 June
2022:7.8%).
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| BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Foreign exchange

The majority of the Group’s fee income is received in US dollars
and '111s the Group’s policy 1o hedge up 0 two-thirds ot the notronal
vaiue of budgeted foreign currency-denominated net management
fees. Foreign currency assets and liabilities, including cash, are
marked to market at the penod end exchange rate with
movernents reported 1IN either revenues or QCI,

Movements In the GBP:USS and other exchange rates over the
period increased net managernent fees by 7%, increased cperating
costs by 3%, and resulted in a translation gain in net revenue of
£1.0 mulion on the Group's foreign currency assets and ligbilities
and a £1.3 million mark-to-market gan on the Group’s seed capital
investments.

Included in OCl is an unrealised FX translation loss on non-Sterling
assets and habilites of £28.2 million (FY2022: £80.2 million gain),
which, in addition to the goodwill movement descnibed above,
matnly comprises £11.5 million on the value of seed capital
investments and £7.6 million on the Group’s cash balances.

Dividend

The Board's policy 15 10 pay a progressive ordinary dividend over
time, taking into consideration factors such as the prospects for the
Group's earnings, demands on the Group’s financial resources, and
the markets in which the Group operates.

The Board recognises the importance of the ordinary dividend to
shareholders and, taking into consideration the profit for the year,
ihe substantial cash flows detivered, 1he strength of 1the batance
sheet, the positive near-term cutlook as descnbed in the CEQ
review and the substantial medium-term growth opportunitres
avallabie 1 Ashmore, it has recermmended a final dvidend of 121
pence per share.

It approved by shareholders, the dividend will be pad on
8 December 2023 to all sharehoiders on the register on
3 November 2023.

Tom Shippey
Group Finance Director

5 September 2023

34 Ashmare Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023



| RISK MANAGEMENT

Embedded risk

management culture

risks, with Lhe potential for harm to the firm, its clients and the markets

|
Ashmore recognises that its strategy and business model have inherent

in which it operates. Therefore, the Group identifies, evaluates and
. manages principal and emerging risks through an established and
effective internal control framework supported by an embedded risk

management culture.

The Group's three-phase Strategy
15 designed to create value for
sharehalders over cycles by
capitalising on the powerfy|
aconomic, political and social
convergence trends acrosg
Emerging Markets

The Group executes ils sirategy
using a distinctive business
model, and identifies, evaluates
and manages the emerging and
principal risks inherent in this
business model

Read about Ashmore’s
strategy on pages 14-15

Read about Ashmore’s
business model on pages §8-9

The Board has ultimate
responsibility for the Group's
strategy. It formally reviews the
strategy at least annually and
receves updates at each

Board meeting

The Board s respensible for nsk
management, although it has
delegated authority to carry out
day-to-day functions to Executive
Directors and specialised
committees, such as the RCC

Read about Ashmore’s
Read Ashmore’s governance principal risks on pages
report on pages 64-71 40-41

Overview of Ashmore’s risk management and
internal control systems

In accordance with the Codg, the Board is ulimately responsible
for the Group's nsk management and internal control systems and
for reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems and their review
are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of falure to
achteve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against materal misstatement or loss.

Within the Group's over-arching corporate governance frameawork,
through which the Board aims to maintan full and etfective control
over appropriate strategic, financial, operational and compliance
Issues, an internal control framework has been estabiishied, against
which the Group 1s able 10 assess the effectiveness of 1ts risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group's system of internal control 1s integrated into the
Group's strategy and busingss model and embedded within its
routine business processes and operations, and a strong control
culture includes clear management respensibility and accountabiiity
for individua! controls.

The interna} control framewark provides a process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the Group's emerging risks and principal
risks, and has been in place for the year under review and up to the
date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. The process 15
regularly reviewed by the Group's Audit and Risk Committee and
accerds with the Guidance.

The Executive Directors oversee the key nisks and controls and the
nsk management process on a day-to-day basis, and there is an
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and delegation of authonty.

There are established pohcies and procedures to enable the Audit
and Risk Committee and ultimately the Board, through its regular
meetings, to monitor the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. These systems cover all identfied
internal and external strategic, operational, tinancial, compliance
and other relevant risks, including the Group's ability to comply
with applicabie laws, regulations and clients’ requirements.

The main features of the Group's nsk management and internal
control systems are described below, covering the Group's key
policies, specialised committees, business processes, and
verification and confirmation activities.
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' RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

1. Policies

The Board seeks to maintain a strong
corporate culture, employing high
standards of integnty and fair dealing in the
conduct of the Group's activities,
compliance with both the letter and the
spirit of relevant laws and regulations,

and standards of good market practice
across Ashmore's activities.

Ashmgre’s compliance appreach underping
these objectives, setting out principles to
guide employees, officers and Directors
when conducting a wide range of business
practices to act with integnty. The
Compliance Manual provides employees
with relevant information concerning the
Group's regulatory environment, to enable
all employees to carry out therr
responsibilities in accordance with
applicable laws and regutations and

chent guidelines

To support its risk management and
internal control framework, Ashmore has a
number of policy documents, effective at
the Group and/or local business levels, with
which ail relevant employees are expected
10 comply. These pelicies serve as controls
and/or mitigants in relation to principal and
emerging nsks, and nclude:

— Anti-bribery and corruption

— Ant-money laundering

— Conflicts of interest

— Contact with regulators

- Data protection

- ESG

— Information secunty

- Media

Valuation and pncing

Whistieblowing

Additionally, the Board and rts committees \
are responsible for a number of policies
covenng the topics below!
- Seed capital
- Dividend
- Market abuse
- Dwversity, equality and inclusion
- Tax
- Corporate FX and liguidity
nsk management
— Directors’ remuneration
- Non-audit services

| 2. Committees

The Board has averali responsibiity for
risk management, but 1t has delegated
authority to carry out day-to-day functions
to the Executive Directors and specialised
committaes, of which the main cnes are
described below.

The investment Commuttees and therr
sub-commitiees meet weekly, monthly or
quarterly depending on investment theme,
and ensure that clients’ funds are managed
in accordance with the agreed investment
strategy and policies.

The ESG Committee has oversight

of Ashmore’s responsible investing
framework and focuses on the appropriate
implementaticn of all elerments of this
framework across Ashmore’s corporate
strategy and investment management
activity. This commuttee 1s also relevant

1o operational ang governance activities.

The Pricing Oversight Committee
supervises the effectiveness of pricing
pohcies for all Investments held in
Ashmore sponsored funds where a reliable
pricing source i$ available. This includes
the responsibility to ensure that appointed
third-party pricing agemts carry out the
agreed pricing policy faithfully and manage
the pncing sources appropriataly.

The Best £xecution Cormmitiee reviews
the effectiveness of trading practices
across asset classes and has oversight
of the reguiar compliance testing of
trade execution.

The Research Oversight Commuttee
addresses governance, oversight and
review of third-party research procured
by Ashmaore

The Pricing Methodology and Valuation
Committee has oversight of the valuation
methodologies used for fund investments
that cannot be readily priced using
external sources.

The RCC s responsible for internal
control and for assessing the impact
of Ashmore's activities on the firm'’s
regulatory and opergtional exposures.

The Operating Commuttee reviews

the Group's financial and operating
performance to focus on delivery of the
Group’s key strategic objectives and
implermentation

The Foreign Exchange and Liquidity
Managerment Committeg 1s responsible
for the oversight and management of the
Group's foreign currency cash flows and
balance sheet exposures, including the
appropriate level of hedging, and ensures
the Group meets its lquidity requirements.
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The /T Steenng Group ensures that the
Group's IT strategy 1s aligned with 1ts
strategy and objectives, and has
responsibility for implementing, managing
and supporting the Group's IT systems
and projects

The Product Committee has responsibility
for product governance including the
launch, amendment, pernodic review

and closure of funds, and also including
TCF and implementation of the FCA's
Consumer Duty principle.

The GIPS Committee acts as the Group’s
prirary decision-making body in refation
10 any changes 10 the existing set of
investment performance composites, and
approving the creation of new composites.

The Awards Commuttes has

delegated authorities from the Board's
Remuneration Committee to oversee
certain remuneration matters, ncluging
employee remuneration and contracts
of employment.

The Disciosure Committee s responsible
tor considering the assessment of
confidental information, determining
whether i1 consttutes inside information,
and taking appropriate action in accordance
with prevailing market regulations.




3. Processes

Underpinrung the policies and cormmutiees,
the following business processes are
componenits of Ashmore’s nsk management
and internal control framewark.

Risk management and compliance

The Risk Management and Control
function maintains a matrix of principal and
emerging risks, comprising key strategic
and business, client, treasury, Investrment
and opErational nahks, A cunsiders the
likelihood of those risks crystallising and
the resuitant impact. Senior management
and the employees responsible for the
risks and associated controls/mitigants
review the matrix quarterty. Ashmore
identrfies the inherent risk within each
business activity, and assesses the
adeguacy and mitigating effect of existing
processes to determine a current resigual
nsk level for each activity. On the basis that
the Group may employ further mitigants
andfor controls over time, it defines a
target resigual nisk for each activity and
tracks progress to target as appropriate.

The Audit and Risk Cormmmittee and/or
the Board receive requiar compliance,
risk and internal audit reports, while the
Board receives regular financial and other
management information related to the
control of expenditure against budget and
the making of Investments, and for
moenitoring the Group's business and

its performance.

The RCC analyses KR statistics on a
monthly basis. The KRls indicate trends
in the Group’s nsk profile, assist in the
reduction of errors and potential tnancial
losses, and facilitate dealing with a
potential risk situation before an

avent accurs.

The Compliance function’s responsibilities
and processes include ensunng that the
Group meets I1ts regulatory obligations;
integrating regulatory comphance
procedures and best practices within the
Group, including a compliance monitornng
programme that covers all relevant areas of
the Groun's operations and the results of
which are reported to the RCC; identifying
any hreach nf comphance wath apphcablio
reyulations: and real-trme monttoring of
client mandate iInvestment restrictions.

Operational and governance

Ashmore has a defined opcrational
framework and organisational structure
with appropriate delegation of authority
and segregation of duties and
accountability, that have regard to
acceptable levels of nisk.

The Risk Appetite Statement describes

the types and levels of nisk that the Group
15 prepared to take in pursuit of its strategic
objectives. The Board reviews the RAS in
line with Ashmore's strategy, business
model, financial capacity, business
oppertunities, reguiatory constraints and
other internal and external factors and,
through the ARC, regularly reviews nsk
metrics reported against the RAS.

The Group’s planning framework includes
a Board approved strategy. The Board
reviews and challenges the strategy
annually, and 1t receives updates on
progress aganst strategic objectives at
each scheduled Board meeting.

Ashmore is subject to the FCA's Semor
Managers and Certification Regime,
which reguires allocation of specific
responsibilities to individuals and the

recording ot this through a management
responsibiliies map and indwidual job
descriptions.

Financial controls are in place to ensure
aceutdle accountng for transactions,
appropnate authonsation limits to contain
exposures, and reliabllity of data
processing and integrity of information
generated.

The Group's Finance function, managed
by appropriately qualfied accountants, is
responsible tor the preparaton of the
financial statements. Executive Directors
and other parues review the statements,
and the process includes challenge by the
Audit and Risk Comrmttee and the Board.
The Finance function works in conjunction
with the Group’s auditors and other
external advisers to ensure compliance
with applicable accounting and reporting
standards, prevaling regulations and
industry best practice.

The Board reviews and approves a detalled
and comprehensive annual budget.

Board members receive monthly
management information including
accounts and other relevant reports,
which highlight financial and operational
performance against budget/forecast and
the pnor year period.

Ashmore has procedures and thresholds
governing the appraisal and approval of
corporate investments, including seeding
of funds and purchase of own shares, with
detailed investrnent and divestment
approval procedures, incorporating
appropriate levels of authanty and regular
post-investment reviews.,

4. Verification

The followwing activities are intended to
provide the Board with independent
verfication of the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal
contre! systems.

internal Audrt 1s responsible for reviewing
the Group's assurance map and proviging
an independent assessment of assurance
to the Audit and Risk Commitiee on an
annual basis. The assurance map
documents the interaction of the first,
second and third lines of defence with
regard 10 the controls and mitigants
relating ta the Group's principal risks

The Internal Audit function undertakes a
programme of reviews of systems,
processes and procedures as agreed with
the Audit and Risk Committee, reporung
the results, wogether with its advice and
recommendations, to the Audit and

Risk Committee.

The external auditor expresses an opinion
on the annual financial statements and
reviews the condensed set of financial
statements 1 the half-yearly financial
report, and also reviews management's
approach to reporting operating results and
tinancial resources.

The Group's external auditor independently
reviews the control systems pursuant 10
ISAE 3402 annually.

The Board, through the Audit and Risk
Committee, receives halt-yearly updates
from the Group’s external guditor, which
include any control matters that have come
to the auditor’s attenuon.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

[5. Cenfirmation ‘,
The Board has conducted an annual review The Board andfor Audchit and Risk

and assessment of the effectiveness of Committee received these repons

the Group's nisk management and internal throughout the year and up to the latest

control systems, and has not identitied any practicable date prior to the approvai of the

signtficant fatings or weaknesses during Annual Report and Accounts. The Board 15

this review. satsfied that appropriate planned actions

continue ta be effective m improving
cantrols as the Group develops, and its
overall assassment of the control
framework continues to be satisfactory.

In conducting this review, the Board and/or
Audit and Risk Committee have consitdered
penodic reports on compliance and nsk
matters, including reports provided by the
Internal Audit function, and the annual
report on risk management and internal
control processes from the Group’s RCC.

Principal and emerging risks, controls and mitigants

The table on pages 40 and 41 summanses those prncipal risks that the Group has assessed as being most significant currently, together
with examples of associated controls and motigants. Reputatonal and conduct nsks are commoen to most aspects of Ashmore's strategy
and business modei.

Ashmore’s internal control framework considars the assessment and ranagement of emerging nsks alongside its principal risks, current
examples of which are:

- the impact of inflation;

-~ geopobical and sanctions nsks; and

- ESG nsks including regulatory and industry focus on potential greenwashing, legal uncenainty and lingation risks arising from the
industry's diftening interpretation of ESG regulation, and the impact ot ESG factors an investors’ decisions 1o invest in Emerging Markets.

Three lines of defence

The Group has three ines of detence against unintended outcomes ansing trom the nsks 11 faces.

First: Risk ownership

This rests with ine managers, whether they are in portfolio management, distribution or support functions.
The senior management team takes the lead role with respect to implementing and maintaining appropriate
controls across the business

Second: Risk control
This 1s provided by the Risk Management and Control department, including the Group’s Principal Risk Matrix,
and Group Comphance, including the compliance monitorng programme.

Third: Independent assurance

Group Internal Audit is the third line of defence and pravides mndependent assurance over agreed (isk
management, internal control and governance processes as well as recommendations to mprove the
effectiveness of these processes
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Longer-term viability statement

In accordance with Provision 31 of the
Code, the Directors have assessed the
current position and prospects of the
Group over a threg-year period to

June 2026, which is consistent with the
planning and stress testing timeframe
used under the ICARA regime.

The Directors have made a robust
assessment af the princigal 4hid
emerging nsks impherit in the business
model, alongside the associated
controls and mitigants, as presentad
in more detail on pages 35 to 41,

The Board regularly reviews the
Group's strategy and prospects, and
management presents qualtauve
and quantitative assessments of the
principal nsks to the Audit and Risk
Committee quarterly. Regular
management reporting to the Board
against each rnisk allows the Directors
to assess the effectiveness of the

controls in place. The Board reviews
regularly the Group’s Risk Appelute
Statement.

The Board reviews regular infarmatinn
in respect of the prospects and finanoial
planning ot the Group. which includes a
three-year detalled financial forecast
alongside severe but plausible
suetgnu-based dovwnside stroos testing.
The stress tests include the impact of
investment underperformance, farlure
10 comply with regulations, breach of
chent mandate guidelines or
restrictions, a substantial dechine of up
to halt the Group’'s AuM and ineffective
third-party services. Consequently, the
Board regularly assesses the amount
of capital that the Group is required

10 hold to cover its principal risks,
ncluding the amounts required under a
range of severe stress test scenarios.

The Group delivers a high level of
profitabiity together with healthy cash
flows, has a strong balance sheet and
has a robust liquidity position, meaning
that it (s able to withstand the financial
impact of the range of stress testing
scenarios. Consequently, the Directors
have a reasonable expectaticn that
the Group will be abie to continue in
operation, meet e labios as they tall
due and maintain sufficient regulatory
capital over the next three years.

Ashmore Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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I RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Principal risks and asscciated controls and mitigants

Descripuon of principal tisks

Examples of associated controls and miugants

Strategic and business risks (Responsibility: Board of Directors)

Long-term downturm in Emerging Markeis
fundamentals/technicals/sentiment, and impact
of broader industry changes (including ESG) on
Ashmore’s strategy and business mode!

Group strategy 1s reviewed and approved by a board with reievant
industry experience

Diversihication of investment capabiities and products

Ashmore has a strong balance sheet with no debt

ESG and specialised commitiees meaet regularly

The Boacd reviews diversity data on a semi-annual basis

Market capacity 1ssues and increased competiton
constrain growth

Experienced Emerging Markets investrnent professionals with deep
market knowledge

Penodic investment theme capacity reviews

Emerging Markets asset classes continue to grow, increasing the size of
Ashmare's investable universe

Failure to understand and plan for the potential
impact of iInvestor sentiment, climate change and
sustainability regulations on product preferences
and underlying asset prices (including effects of
transition to a low-carben economy)

Oversight by ESGC, which covers corporate snd investment activities, and
scoring of allissuers for E, S and G factors

Head of Responsible Investment and ESG Policy provides updates to the Board
NZAMI membership and participation in industry working groups to prepare for

Client risks (Responsibility: Product Committee and RCC)

net zero commitments

Inappropriate marketing or ESG strategy and/or
ineffective management of existing and potential
fund investers and distributors, including )/mpact
of net outflows and fee margin pressure

|

r

Regular Product Comrnittee meetings review product suitability

and appropriateness

Experienced distribution team with appropnate geographic coverage
Investor education 1o ensure understanding of Ashmore invesiment themes
and products

ESGC includes distribution team members

Inadeqguate client oversight including alignment
of interests

Global distribution tearn appropriately structured for institutional and
intermediary retaill clients

Monitoring of chient-related 1ssues including a formal complamnts

handiing process

Compliance and legal oversight to ensure clear and fair terms ot business and
disclesures, and approprate client commurications and hinancial promations

Treasury risks (Responsibility: CEC and GFD)

]

tnaccurate fimancal projections and hedging of
future cash flows and balance sheet

Defined nsk appetite, and risk appetite measures updated quanerly
Group FX hedging policy and FX and Liguidity Management Comrittee

Investment risks (Responsibility: Group 1Cs)

Downturn in long-term performance

40

Consistent investment philosophy over nearly 30 years and numerous market
cycles, with dedicated Emerging Markets focus including country visits and
network ot local offices
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Descripuon of pancipal nsk s

Examples of assocuated contiols and mitigants

Operational risks (Responsibility: RCC)

Inadequate secunity ot information including cyber
secutity and data protection

- Information secunity and data protection policies, subject to annual review
including cyber secunty review

— Cyber Secunty Working Group meets quarterly

— Employees receive online training

Fallure of IT infrastructure, including mability 10
support business growth

Lengal action, fraud or breach of contract
perpetrated agamst the Group, 1ts funds
Or Investments

— Appropnate |T policies with annual review cycle
— IT systems and environmental monrtaring
— Group IT platform incorperates local offices

- Independent Internal Audit function that considers nisk of fraud in each audit

— Anti-money laundering and anti-tiribery and corruption pahcies, also required tor
service providers

— Whistieblowing policy including independent reporting line and Board sponsor

— Due diligence on all new, and regular reviews ot existing, service providers

— Insurance policies n ptace with appropnate cover

Insufficient rescurces, including loss of key
employees, inability 1o attract employees, and
impact of remote working, which hampers growth
or the Group's abllity to execute s strategy

— Committee-based investment management reduces key man risk
- Appropriate Rermuneration policy with emphasis on performance-related pay
and leng-dated deferral of equity avwards
~ Regular reviews ot resource requirements and updates provided 1o the Board
— Annual review of remuneration and benefits including benchmarking
aganst industry
— Annual Culture and Conduct report 1o the Board

Lack of understanding and compliance with global
and local regulatory requirerenits, as well as
conflicts of interest and not treating customers
farrly, and financial cnme, which includes money
laundering, bribery and corruption, leading to high
level publicity or regulatory sanction

- Regulatory Development Steering Group and compliance monitonng
programme, which covers financial cnme risks such as money laundenng
and bribery

— Compliance polcies covering global and local offices, for exarnple global
confhicts of interest and inducements policies

— Ant-money launderning and anti-bribery and corruption policies

— Conduct risk and organisational culture indicators are considered
on a monthly basis by the RCC and on a semi-annual hasis
by the Board

— ESGC has oversight of regulatory and reporting requirements

— Compliance function manages Sanctions restrictions

Inadequate oversight of Ashmore overseas otfices

— (FD has oversight responsibility for cverseas offices, and RCC has oversight of
the operatng model with annual reviews. Senior employees take local board/
advisory positions

— Dual reporting lines nto local management and Group department heads, with
adherence to Group palicies

- Local nsk and comphance committees held and RCC receives updates

~ Internal Audit reviews, and annual governance reviews reporied to RCC

Inaphropriate oversight of market, lquidity, credit,
counterparty and operational risks

— Group nsk management policies, reviewed regularly
- Monthly reviews of market and liguidity risk
— Quarterly reviews of principal risks, counterparties and credit risk
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' SECTION 172 STATEMENT

'Delivering for
"Ashmore’s stakeholders

:’C?C(;:srg;r;z;\:j'tg\}?ﬁecg;?sgﬁgs Eection 172 factor I Relevant disclosures [ Page]
{(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations The likely consequences - Company purpose i
2018}, the Directors provide this of any decision in the long term — Business mode! 8
staternent descnbing how they have - Strategy 14
had regard to the matters set out in The interests of the - People & culture 46
secton 172{1) of the Act, when Company's employees - Sustamnabiity 50
performing their duty to promote the - Remuneration report 78
success of the Company. Eunher The need 1o toster relabionships — Business model 8
detals on key actions in this regard with clients, suppliers and others - Business review 28
are also contamned within the Corporate _ Sustainability 50
gavernance report on pages 62 1o 71 — Drectors’ report 13
and the Directors’ report on pages 113
0 117. The impact of the Company’s — Sustainagbility 50
operations on communities and - TCFD 58
the environment
The Company's desire to mamntain - Risk management 35
a reputation for hugh standards - Sustainability 50
of business conduct - Audit and Risk Comrmntiee report 72
The need to act farly as between - Stakeholder engagerment 42
mermnbers of the Company — Annual General Meeting 117

Clients

Ashmore 15 a specialist Emerging
Markets investment manager and
rmanages US3%55 9 hillion of
assets as at 30 June 2023,
Ashmore manages a wide range
of investmant strategies and
products, organised under a
number of broad Emerging
Markets investment themes, for
a diversitied institutional and
intermedary retail clent base.

26%

AuM from institutional chients

42

What matters to this group?

Clients are central to Ashmore's business
and a primary focus 1S undersianding
chents’ needs, talloning Investment
strateqies to suit their chjectives, and
reporting on outcomes (n a transparent
manner,

Clients’ needs can change over timg and
understanding and responding to these
needs 15 central 1o Ashmore’s success.
Liability profile, applicable regulations, and
additional targets and objectives in relation
to climata change are just a few examples
of matters that impact on chents’
investment objectives. Ashimore seeks to
partner with chents to guide them through
these changes, and 10 evolve 1ts services
10 meet these changing requirements.

In the process, Ashmore builds long-term,
collaborative, mutually beneficial client
refationships based on trust.

Engagement and outcomes

Ashmore's global distrbution team works
closely with its dedicated portfolio
managers to service clients. The distribution
team engages with current and prospective
clients 1o learn about therr requirements
and buid lasting relatonships.

Ashmore Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Clients are provided with @ comprehensive
suite of reporting, which evolves to meet
chent needs, regulatory requirements and
industry standards, for example through
the extensicn of the availability of Carbon
Reporting duning the year, as well as the
recently introduced reporting on
engagements with issuers of equity and
fixed income securities, and statisucs on
proxy voting. Specifically for UK retail
customers, serviced through
intermedianes, Ashmore has implemented
the provisions of the UK Consumer Duty
regulations, mcluding assessments of costs
versus expected investment outcomes for
such UK retall customers. Similar fair
value assessments are required by EU
regulations. These assessments are now
an integral part of Ashmore's product
dessgn and approval process.

Ashmore publishes detalls of 1ts
engagements and proxy voting activities
for equity and debt portfolios in s
Sustainablhity Report and details of 1ts
engagement with issuers of equity and
fixed income securties and the outcomes
in 1ts Engagement Report, both available
on the Group’s website. Ashmore was
also accepted as signatory to the UK
Stewardshup Code in February 2023,



Shareholders

The support of Ashmore's
shareholders, with an
apprepriately long-term
nvestment horizon, 15 iImportant
to enable Ashmore to fulfil its
strategic growth ambitions.

c.40%

Equity owned by employees, giving
strong algnment of interests

Employees

Ashmore’s experienced, diverse
and dedicated employees are
central to the firm’s culture and
underpin 1ts successful business
model.

316

Employees acress 11 otfices

What matters to this group?

Shareholders require a clear and consistent
communication of Ashmore's straiegy and
business model, and information on
Emerging Markets to provide context for
Ashmore’s development.

Shareholders appreciate the strong
algnment of interests with employees,
achieved through long-term eguity
ownership,

Ashmore's growth stratcgy and resihent
business model underpin the delivery of
long-term value to shareholders over
market cycles.

Engagement and outcomes

Ashmore seeks 1o builld direct relationships
with sharehotders and potential investors
through a comprehensive iInvestor relations
plan with a focus on managing roadshows
and other interactions in-house.

The Executtve Directors meet regularty
with investors and the Board focuses on
accountability and consiructive shareholder
engagement opportunities, including being
responsive to shareholder requests

tor engagement.

Ashmore’s Executive Directore and senior
management held more than 135 virtual
and physical meetings during the year, and
the Chair of the Board held 2 number of
meetings with significant institutional
shareholders to discuss ther governance
views and other considerations.

Ashmare organised a comprehensive
governance roadshow for the Chair of the
Rernuneration Committee, covering ¢.75%
of the institutional shareholder register and
the main proxy advisers, which enabled the
Chair to discuss proposed changes to the
Drrectors’ Remuneration policy and other
rmatters ahead of the tnennial policy vote

at the 2023 AGM.

What matters to this group?

Ashmore’s employees are a critical asset
and central to delivering long-term value for
clents and shareholders. Employees’
strong work ethic, commitment and
expertise are key facters enabling Ashmore
1o meet the needs of cther stakeholders.

Ashmore’s diverse group of employees
seek opportunities for career development
and traimng, and 1o be suitably motivated
and rewarded with competitive pay and
henefits. Employees come from a wide
range of cultures and 37 nationalities.
Embracing diversity and inclusion in
attracting, retaining and developing
employees I1s central to Ashmore's culture.

Engagement and outcomes

Ashmare engages with its employees In a
variety of ways. The Beard receives a
Culture and Conduct dashboard, which
gives the Directors clear metrics across a
range of ernployee related topics, together
with a Hurnan Resources update at each
scheduled meeting. The Board continues
to meet employees tace-to-face through its
regular ‘meet the teams’ sessions, charred
by Ashmore’s Non-executive Director
responsible for workforce engagement,
wha gathers feedback and encourages the

sharing of views. Dunng the year, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the
penefits offered to employees and
enhancements were made 10 encourage
and support employee development and
further education, farmily friendly benefits
and emplayee retention over the

longer term.

Ashmore 1s focused on oftering
opportunities at all different career stages,
such as through the addition of further
farmily-friendly benefits for matermity and
paternity care and a menstrual and
menopause policy during the year. For
early careers, Ashmore took part in the
10,000 Black Interns programme for the
first tme in 2023 and the successful
graduate programme continues.
Employees receive regular newsletters on
husiness developments and opportunities,
as well as bnieting sessions on business
strategy and results. Ashmore’'s employees
take part i off-aite team building exercises,
including & summer social ai which
London-based employees were joined by
representatives from other Ashmaore
offices, as well as charnty events and
fundraising events focused on supporting
The Ashmore Foundation.
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SECTION 172 (CONTINUED)

Society

Ashmore engages with its
corporate and sovereign 1Ssuers
1o understand the issues relevant
1o them and 1he society In which
they operate. The Ashmiore
Foundation focuses on partnering
with non-profit erganisations to
promote positive social,
environmental and economic
change in communities in which
the Group operates. and ta offset
the Group's GHG emissions.

What matters to this group?

Ashmore invests across Emerging
Markets, and consequently, there 1s a wide
vanety of sustainability concerns relevant
1o issuers. Ashmore uses its ESG
scorecard to identify which considerations
are materiat 1o each issuer and engages
with the issuers on these where relevant.

The Ashmore Foundation engages with
stakeholders to make a positive and
sustainable difference to social and
economic Issues atfecting women, young
people and disadvantaged communities m
Emerging Markets. Underpinning the work
of the Foundation is a focus on
environmental sustamnability and partnering
with stakehclders to create long-term
impact, bulld gender equity and encourage
systemic change.

Engagement and outcomes

Ashmore 1s & public signatory 1o several
related industry initratives and forms part of
a growing universe of responsible
investment-minded investors. Over
FY2023, the majorty of the engagement

activities withissuers focused on cimate
change such as asking for increased
disclosure of GHG emissions and efforts to
understand the 1ssuers’ approach to
chmate action.

The Ashmore Foundation made over
US$350,000 of grants focused on
promoting social and economic
opportunities for women and young
neople, as well as donations 1o support
organisations delivering emergency rehef
services for the humanitarian ¢nsis n
Turkey.

The Group otfset its F¥Y2022 CO.e through
The Ashmore Foundation's partnership
with Plant Your Future in the Peruvian
Amazon, which dehivers positive
ghvironmental outcomes while
simultanecusly realising societal and
economic benefits for communities.

Regulators

Regulatory oversight of
Ashmaore’s investment
management cperations and
funds and adherence to global
regulatory standards 1s a
critical part of Ashmore’s
governance framewaork.

21

Regulators cvarseeing
Ashmore's activities
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What matters to this group?

As a global business, Ashmare works to
establish positive, collaborative
relationshups with regulators in the
junsdictions in which it operates. A
constructive and engaging regulatory
relationship enables Ashmore 1o meet the
growang regulatory requirements around
the world, ensunng it adheres 10 the rules
and standards within each junisdiction tc
protect chents and shareholders, as well as
providing insight into tuture regulatory
regquirements where appropriate.

Ashmore manages 1ts business to comply
with relevant international and local
requirements and to be able to meet the
needs of its chients and shareholders

Engagement and outcomes

Regulatory engagement and
understanding, including assessing how
changes will impact Ashmore and 1ts
clients, are reqularly considered by the
Board and 1ts commitiees, and Ashmore’s
senor management and complance teams
hold meetings with regulators to foster
strong waorking relationships and discuss
particular projects or regulatory
requirements.

Ashmore Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Throughout the year engagement with the
FCA was focused on monitoring regulatory
developments and implementation of the
UK Consurner Duty which 1s relevant 1o
Ashmore’s UK retail client base.
Engagement with other regulators
including in the United States and EU,
centred primanly around standard financial
reguiatory reporting, INvestor protection,
governance, culture and sustainability risk
and greenwashing and the oversight of
third parbes. Ashmore also completed
regulatory questionnaires on topics such as
the FCA Practitoner Questionnaire and the
FCA Financial Resiience Survey, and
provided opinions to help inform regulatory
views, as well as keeping self appraised
of the Wholesale Data Market Study and
other relevant mattars.



Third-party service
providers

Ashmore’s operating platform
relies in part on high-quality
service providers.

300+

Suppliers

What matters to this group?

Ashmore recognises the importance of the
services 1t provides to 1ts clients and has
made Investments over many years in
systemns, people and processes to ensure
operational resilience, utilising a global
network of external supplers to
supplement its own infrastructure and
expertise.

Ashmore 15 committed to regularly
reviewing 11s operational resihence and
making the necessary adjustments.

Engagement and outcomes

Ashmore performs an annual business
impact analysis exercise, aligned to the
FCA's requirement for operational
resilence.

As part of this exercise, Ashmore identifies
its impartant business services and maps
out the processes that enable those
services to function. it then determines
how much disruption those important
business services could tolerate and tests
their ability to endure that disruption to set
their impact tclerances. The resultant
self-assessment document 1s then subject
1o review and approval by the Board. The
most recent self-assessment was
approved in May 2023.

Ashmore also undertakes regular BCP
tasting and has develgped Jducurvcntation
to assist in incident response. Ashmore 1s
committed to the fair treatment of its
supphers who are viewed as key
stakehaoiders, The Board approved the
Group's Modern Slavery Statement as well
as the Supplier Code of Conduct.
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PEOPLE & CULTURE

Distinctive

team-based culture

Ashmore’s team-based culture is evident across the firm and instilled
and maintained by factors such as the Group’s performance-based
remuneration philosophy with an emphasis on long-term equity
ownership, a robust compliance and risk management framework,
and a clear ‘tone from the top’ imparted by the Board of Directors

and senior management.

Length of service (%)
< 4 years 40
4-9 years )
10-15 years 25
> 15 yeats 4
Employee age range (%)
1824 [}
26-34 23
35-44 38
4554 24
58+ 9

46
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Defining and maintaining culture

Culiuie is ulumately a reflecuion of common behets and behawviours,
and therefore is of utrmostimportance 1 a firm whose employees
are one of its key assets. Ashmore's culture 1s appropnate tor a
specialist asset management firm operating in distinctive markets
with significant long-term growth potential, 'mportantly, the cuiture
aligns the interests of employees, clients, shareholders and other
stakeholders over the longer term; 1t supports and reinforces the
pnncipat features of the business model; and i underpms the
achrevement of the Group’s strategic chjectives.

Ashmore’s culture has persisted through many market cycles

and significant groveth in the frm'’s aperations, including the
estabhshment of glcbal eperating hubs and thstribution offices in
New York, Dublin, Singapore and Tokyo, and also the development
ot local asset management operations in Colombia, Peru, Saud
Araba, the United Arab Emirates, India and Indonesia.

trportantly, winle the focal asset managerment busmesses operate
independently in terms of investment decisions, they share a
cammon team-based culture with the Group's global operations.
The sarne remuneration philosophy 1s followed by the local offices.

Efficient, team-based operations

Ashmaore’s management structure 1 efficient, with a relatively flat
hierarchy that munirnuses bureaucracy and supports effective
decision making with clear accountabihty

The Group's ICs oversee the management of client porifolios by
investment teams, whuch aperate with collecuve responstbility.
There s a3 'no star’ fund manager culture, with no indwidual
responsible tor a disorete fund, which insuls appropriate behavicur
with committee oversight.

c.40%

of Ashrnore's shares are owned
by current employees



The team-based approach 1s echoed across Ashmore’s operations
including distribution and support funcuons, and 1ts overseas
otfices. This results in a collegiate, collaborative, client-focused and
mutually supportive culture across the whole firm. The lack ot
individual profit centres or operational silos, together with a culture
of shared equity awnership for all Group employees, means that
Ashmare’s employees have suitable incentives to collaborate in

order to achieve appropnate outcomes for the business as a whole.

High standards

Ashmore's long-term strategic success Is ultimately dependent on
1ts more than 300 employees and it ams to attract, develop and
retain high-calibre pecple.

Racogmising the diverse nature of its operations acress 11
countries, Ashmore’s policies and procedures reflect best practice
within each of these countries and the firm requires its employees
10 act ethically and 1o uphold clearly the standards expected by the
Group's stakeholders including its ¢lients, regulators, shareholders
and broader society. By way of oversight, the Board receives
penodic culture and conduct updates.

Long-term employee loyalty

The effectiveness of Ashmore’'s commitment to and ongoing
Investment in 1ts employees is demonstrated by therr loyalty

1o the firm. As a consequence of the team-based culture and
performance-based and equity-focused remuneration philosophy,
Ashmore enjoys relatively low levels of unplanned staff turnover
(FY2023: 14.4%). This means that 0% of Ashmore's staff have
been with the firm for four or more years, and approximately 30%
Jjomed the firm more than a decade ago.

Diversity, equality and inclusion

Diversity means many things to Ashmore, but the unifying thread
1s that the diverse charactenstics of markets, clents, iInvestment
strategies and employees are all positive facters that help to
underpin the Group's long-term success.

Employee diversity can be considered through many lenses,
not just gender and ethnicity, but also charactenstics such as
experence, skills, tenure, age, disability and sexual orientation.
The diverse nature of a firm can help to reduce the nsks of
‘groupthink” and promote an appropriate culture that supports
the achieverment of strategic objectives.

Ashmgre's focus on Emerging Markets and s netwaork of 11
offices with local employees mean that 1t1s diverse from ethnioity,
gender and nationality perspectives, with 63% of employees from
diverse backgrounds (detined as being not white or male). More

than a third {36%) of the Group’s employees and 57% of the Board

Drirectors are female. Recognising that the financial services sector
has histerically been a male-dominated industry, the firm 1s keen to
promote gender dwersity.

However, Ashmore 15 a relatively small orgarisation of
approximately 300 employees, with a long-standing remuneration
philosephy that rewards perfermance and engenders long-term
employee loyalty. It does not have large-scale recruitment
programmes. Therefore, while Ashmare has become more diverse
over the past 12 months, any significant desired changes in the
profie of the employee base must occur over time as succession
occurs, new roles anse, and replacements are recruited based

on mernt and cbjective cnteria without any quotas set.

Within this context, Ashmore seeks to ensure that candidate poots
are assembled wherever possible to include candidates of different
gender, ethnic and social backgrounds.

Ashmore launched its graduate recruitment programme in FY2022
and the first group of graduates joined in September 2022. The
programme’s focus 1s on front office roles and 1t wall suppert the
ongoing development of a diverse workforce over the longer term.

To ensure diversity charactenstics are understecod and, where
necessary, acted upon, Ashmore maintains a comprehensive view
of the protile of its employees, based on selt-dentfied factual
data. The "diversity dashboard’ 1s reported periodically to the
Board, its Remuneration Committee and the RCC. In addition,

all employees receive comprehensive annual Equalty and
Diversity in the Workplace traning.

During the year, the Board agreed 1o establish a Diversity
Committee, chared by the Non-exacutive Director responsible for
workforce engagement. The committee held its first meeting in
July 2023, and will oversee Ashmare’s diversity and inclusion
strategies and activities.

Year end headcount
2023: 316
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PEOPLE & CULTURE (CONTINUED)

ethnicity

Nationality (%)

Nationality and

Ashmore 1s proud to have a diverse workforce with
employees from 37 different countries.

Ethnicity (%)

North America 7 Asian 31
South America 19 Black 2
Europe 42 Hispanic 17
Asia Pacific 25 Middle Eastern/ &
Middle East 6 North African
Afrca 1 Mxedrace 1
Other 1
White 35
No response 7
Diversity
Listing Rules disclosures
Gender identity or sex
Number af senor
pasitions on the Number in Parcentage of
Number of board FPercentage of the board ([CEC. CFO, axecutive executive
members hoard 51D and Chain rmanagemaent managsmsnt
Men 3 43% 3 T 92%
Women 4 57% 1 1 8%
Not specified/preter not to say 0 0% 0 0 0%
Ethnic background
Nurmber of seniar
pesitions on the Number in Percentage of
Nurnber of board Percentage of the  boarg ICED, CFO, executive executive
members board SID and Chairt management management
White British or other white {including mingnty-white groups) & 86 % 4 8 57%
Mixed/multiple ethnic groups 0 0% o] o] 0%
Aslan/Asian British 1 14 % o 1 8%
Black/African/Caribbean/Black Briish 0 0% 0 0 0%
Other ethnic group, including Arab 0 0% 0 3 25%
Not specified/prefer not to say 0 0% 0 0 0%

FTSE Women Leaders Review
The Review sets three targets to be met by the end of 2025. Ashmore has made good progress, meeting or exceeding two of the targets
with 57% of the Board, including the Senior Independent Director, being female. The third, and more challenging, target s for women to

represent 40% of the senior management team and Ashmore 1s currently at 19%.

Parker Review

Ashrore complies with the recommendations of this review. It has an ethnic minonty Board member and has recently established a target
for 40% of the senior management team 1o be from an ethnic minonty background by 2027.
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SUSTAINABILITY

in which it operates and invests.

Ashmore recaognises the role i1t plays in the deployment of 1ts
clients’ capital and the impact this can have on sustainability of the
environment and broader society. As such, the Groug ams to
integrate responsible investing across 11s operations, cocrdinated
by the Head of Responsible Investment and ESG Policy. Board
accountability is ensured through the Group’s specialised ESGC,
which has overall responsibility for Ashmore's sustairability and
responsible investing framework across 1ts operatignal and
Investment activities

Ashmore’s responsibiiity further extends to all 1ts stakeholders

and includes managing s operations in ways that effectively
ensure the health and wellbeing of its employees The Group's
distinctive culture means that Ashmore ensures that its employees
are able to work In an environment that enables personal and
professional development

Understanding and achieving sustainability can take many forms,
but arguably some cf the greatest impact and change can be
achieved in Emerging Markets. Two areas that are particularly
relevant 1o these markets are:

— Environmental challenges: specifically, the effects of climate
change, which already can be acutely feit by companies and
communities in these markets, including many in which
Ashmore operates and iInvests. In recognition of this, the
Group reports in accordance with the TCFD
recommendations and 1s a member of NZAMI.

- Inequality and wealth dispanty: this can present significant
challenges in developing markets, and the social Investments
made by The Ashmore Foundation aim 1o empower
communriies at the extreme end of these dispanties.

Critical to success

Ashmore is an Emerging Markets focused investment manager whose
success is dependent on understanding sustainability in the markets

Ashmore’s commitment to act as a responsible investor extends
to support for and membership of global and industry-specific
intiatives, including the UN PRI and Climate Action 100+.
Ashmore will continug to develop its approach in ling with
regulatory requirements and in so doing contribute to the
evolving industry practice.

Ashmare’'s broad and encompassing approach to sustamabily
1s centred on three pillars covening the breadth of its corporate
operations, INvestment activities, and social impact investing by
The Ashmore Foundation. These pillars are not mutually exclusive
but provide a framewaork enabling Ashmore to define and pursue
its sustainability objectives.

In addition 1o the sections below, relating to Ashmere’s approach
to corporate sustamability and The Ashmore Foundation, further
information 1s avallable elsewhere in this report and on the
Group's website:

Annual Report and Aceounts

- People & culture

- TCFD

- Directors’ report

Group website

— Sustainabiity Report
- TCFD Investment Management Report

Corporate responsibility

Responsible investment

The Ashmore Foundation

Ensure the Group 15 managed to the
appropnate governance, social and
environmental standards, in ine with
local expectaticns

Ensure Ashmore invests aligned with
the expectations of a ‘responsible
investor” with particular attention to the
risks sternming from ESG concerns
and sustainahility impacts

Phulanthropic efforts to make a social
and envircnmental difference in the
communities 1n which Ashmaore invests
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The Banghwa Bridge, South Korea

Corporate sustainability

Ashmore's approach to corporate responsibility recognises the role the Group plays in wider society and 1s underpinned by values of
transparency, farness, accountability and integrity across the Group's worldwide operations.

The nature of Ashrnore’s business as an investment manager and 1ts consistent single operating platform mean that corporate
respensibility can be considered and understood In a relatively small number of areas, listed in the table below.

1. Social

As a traditonal asset management business, employees are a critical asset to Ashmore. The Group's
responsibilities to its employees are well understood and reflected in s comrmitments 1o civersity, career
development, health and satety, including workplace benefits, and a remuneration philocsophy that delivers a
long-term alignment of interests between employees, chents and shareholders.

2. Governance

The Board maintains a distinclive culture across the Group, with a strong 'tone from the top’ that outlines clear
expectations, standards and the imporance of accountability to ermployees. In addition to the coerporate
governance arrangements described in the Governance section and the Section 172 statement, corporate
responsibility is also underpmned by the following factors:

— A commitment to upholding mgh ethical standards across the Group's operations and to minimising the rnisks
associated wrth financial cnme.,

— The Board has ultimate responsibility for nsk management and control. This encompasses a wide range of
principal and emerging risks, as described in the Apnual Report and Accounts.

— Ashmare has operations in multiple regulatory and 1ax jurisdictions and manages its business in a responsible
and transparent manner.

3. Environment

Ashmere's business 1s based pnmanly on intellectual capital so its direct impact on the environmeant is limited.
However, the Group manages the environmental nsks it faces responsibly, and described below are specific
developments in the areas of GHG emissions and carbon offsetting.

In recegnition of its approach to corporate responsibility, Ashmore Policy documents
is a constituent of the FTSEAGood eauity ndex. It has a AA ESG Ashmore has a nurnber ¢t policies and other documents that
rating from MSCL and a Sustainalytics ESG score of 19.2, which support its approach to corporate responsibility. These include

places it in the 'low exposure 1o ESG nisk’ category.

documents that are for employee use, that are made available to
the Group's clients, and that are publicly avallable on the Group's
website, such as those listed below:

- ESG Policy

Supplier Code of Conduct

— Slavery and human trafficking statement

Cenfilicts of interest statement

Complaints handiing procedure

UK tax strategy

1
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SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Governance

Ashmore's Board of Directars maimtains a strong corporate culture,
employing high standards of integrity and far dealing in the
conduct of the Group's activities, and complance with both the
letter and the spint of relevant regulations and standards of good
market practice in all jJunsdictions where the Group operates.

Ethical standards

The Board aims to ensure that the Group is tit and proper to
undertake 15 business, to safeguard the legitimate interests of
Ashmore clients and to protect Ashmore's reputation.

Although there have been no whistieblowing reports this year,
Ashmore considers itimportant that there 1s a clear and accessible
process through which staft can raise such concerns. Thereforeg,

It has procedures in place to enable employees G raise concerns
contidentially regarding behaviour or decisicns that are perceived to
be unethical. This includes use of a third-party agency to provide
staft with an independent whistleblowing channel and the Charr of
the Audit and Risk Committee acts as the nominated Board
Birector for whistleblowing.,

Financial crime risks

Ashmore 1s committed to minimising the risk that the Group

15 used for the purpcses of financial cnme, mcluding money
laundering, bribery and corruption, fraud and market abuse.

To actueve this aim, Ashmore has adopted a number of risk-based
policies and procedures for each area of financial cnime, as
described in the Risk management section of the Annual Report
and Accounts. The Group provides traiming to all employees in
relation to anti-money laundering and countering terrorst financing,
including customer due diligence requirements and identifying
moeney laundering, suspicious activity and financial crime.

Ashmore 1s commitied to ensunng that it venfies the identity of its
chents before a business relationship commences and that this is
valid throughout the course of the relauonship.

Information security and data protection

Ashmeore's client base comprises INstitutions, such as pension
funds and central banks, and intermediaries that provide access
1o end Investors, Consequently, the Group does not handle
substantial quantities of special categones personal data (also
known as sensitive personal datal relatng to clients, investors
or related parties.

The Group has comprehensive and, necessarily, confidental
Information Secunty and Data Protection policies that are
reviewed at least annually and apply to ail employees and offices.

The Board 1s ulimately responsible for the Group's nsk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The Group considers pnincipal and emerging nisks,
and associated controls and mitigants relating to information
security and data protection, within this framework.

The following sections provide a summary of the principles
and processes in place to manage data protection and
information security.

Data protection

Ashrmore processes (i.e. collects, uses and destroys) personal
data Iin accordance with applicable data protection and privacy
laws in place within the jurisdicticns in which 1 cperates,
including the GOPR as implemented in the United Kingdom
and the European Union.
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The Group's Data Protection Polhcy descniyes the GDPR-ahgned
principles by which Ashrore processes persona! data; how
Ashmare and 1ts employees are 10 adhere 10 these pninciples; and
the potential conseguences of non-comphance for Ashmaore, its
chents and 1ts employees. These pnnciples are listed below.

~ Lawfulness, farness and transparency: Personal data shall be
processed lawtully, farrly and in a transparent manner in
relation to individuals.

— Purpose imitation: Personal data shall be callected tor specified,
exphot and legitimate purposes and not further used or
otherwise processed in a manner that s incompatible with
those purposes.

— Data minimisation; Personal data shall be adequate, relevant and
imited to what 1s necessary in relation 1o the purposes for which
they are processed.

— Accuracy: Personal data shall be accurate and, where necessary,
kept up to date; every reasonable step must be taken to ensure
that personal data that are inaccurate, having regard to the
nurposes for which they are processed, are erased, or rectfied
without delay.

— Storage limitation: Personal data shall be keptin a form
which permits identification of mdividuals for na longer than
1s necessary tor the purpcses for which the personal data
are processed.

— Respect for indwviduals: Personal data shall be processed in
accordance with individuals’ fegal rights.

— Integrity and confidentiality: Personal data shall be processed in
a manner that ensures appropriate security of the personal data,
including protection against unauthorised or unlawful processing
and aganst accidental loss, destruction or damage, using the
appropriate technical or organisatichal measures,

- Safe transter: Personal data shall not be transterred abroad
without adequate safequards beng put in place in accordance
with the law.

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations Ashmore

respects and aims 10 comply with individuals’ nights as they
relate to ther data. For example, the Data Protection Policy
recognises the following rights under GOPR fegislation:

- to ask whether the Group holds personal data and/or to receive
a copy of that data,

— to restnct or object to processing of personal data;

— to prevent processing for direct marketing purposes;

— to object to decisions being taken by automated means;

— In certain circumstances, 1o have inaccurate personal data
rectified, blocked, erased or destroyed; and

- to claim compensation for damages caused by a breach of
the GDPR.

Furthermore, in accordance with the GDPR, Ashmore commits
10 keeping the use of legally defined special category personal
data, such as that relaung to a data subject’s ethnic angin, 1o a
minimum and to restrict 1ts avatability only 1o those people
who need 1o know 1t

Ashmore maintans a regrster that descnbes 1ts processing of
personal data in accordance with Article 30 of the GDPR.

Information security and cyber security
Informanion security {including cyber secunty) s wentfied as a
principal nsk 1o the business which 1s subject 10 Ashmore’s

gavernance, policies and procedures and risk assessment.
Ashmore assesses, monitors and controls data security risk,



and ensures that there 1s adequate communication between the
key stakeholders, which include senior management and IT,
human resources, risk management and control, and legal and
compliance departments.

Ashmore has a layered secunty model, within which multiple
complementary technologies and processes are employed.
Ashmore statf undertake mandatory training in matters of
information scounty (includimyg cyber secunty). Ashmore rontincly
deploys secunty updates to its systems and undertakes regular
vulnerability testing of its networks and systems using a specialist
service provider. Events from all key secunty platforms are
aggregated and correlated using a next-generation SIEM, which
ateris to suspicious patierns of activity. The SIEM is monitored
continuously by cyber security professionals. The Board's Audit
and Risk Committee receives an annual report on the Group's
cyber secunty arrangerments, and the Group has a cuiture of
continuous iImprevement that means improvements can and do
ocecur throughout the year.

Ashmore undertakes appropriate pre-contractual due diligence tor
new suppliers. Ashmore also maintains appropriate oversight of
cyber security arrangements for all key partners, ensunng there
1s additional monitonng and protection regarding therr cyber
security. For example, Ashmore affirms andfor attests with key
partners on an annual basis that they have not been susceptible
to cyber security attacks and vendors have taken all reasonable
steps to continuously monitor and protect themselves on cyber
security weaknesses.

Environment

Ashmore's business is based fundamentally on intellectual capital,
and it does not own its business premises, therefore 1ts direct
impact cn the environment s limited and there are few
environmental risks associated with the Group's activities.
Nevertheless, Ashmore has a responsibility to manage these
risks as effectively as possible.

The Group continues to promote energy efficiency and the
avoidance of waste throughout 1ts operations. Ashmore's largest
secupancy 1s at its headquarters at 61 Aldwych, London where
1t has a single floor of approximately 13,000 square feet In a ning
storey mult-tenanted bullding. Electnaty usage in London 1s
separately monitored by floor, with energy etficient lghting
installed. The bulding landlord aliocates the usage of other
utilitres based on occupied floor space.

Recycling programmaeas oparate for appropriate disposable
materials. The Group seeks to minimise the use of paper and
wherever possible chooses paper materials that have been
sustainably sourced and are FSC or equivalently accredited.

Carhon offsetting

Ashmore Group plc donates 0.5% of its profit before tax o
chanties each year, a proportion of which 1t denates to The
Ashmore Foundation. Within the Foundation’s donation 1s a
specific amount to support the Group's objective to offset its GHG
emissigns. |n this way, the intwative will have not only the desired
offsetting cutcome but also deliver sccial benefits in the emerging
countries in which Ashmore invests and operates.

Ashmore sets 1ts internal carbon price annually using the past three
months’ rolling average market price of the fwst carbon futures
contract traded on the European Energy Exchange. For FY2023,
the internal carben price 1s EUR 86.8 (FY2022: EUR 83.5).

Ashmare will continue to review its internal carbon price
methodology as industry best practice evolves.

Plant Your Future initiative

The Ashmore Foundation has developed a partnership with Plant
Your Future to offset Ashmore’s Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions for
FY2022 using a community approach maodel 1o reforest parts of
the Peruvian Amazon in Ucayall and Loreto.

Plant Your Future’s work 1s helping rural Amazonian communities
to break the vicious cycle of deforestation and degradation that is
trapping them in poverty The project is based on a sustainable
"agrotorestry’ model tor carbon offsetting through native species
tree planting, restoring canopy cover to defarested farmland, but
at the same time empowering local smallholder communities to
adopt an income-generating sustainable hvelihood from their land

The Astimare Foundation has purchased 654 1CO; to offset
Ashmore’s FY2022 emissions.

The Plant Your Future model 1s not just about planting trees, rather
it has a community-centred appreach and builds the capacity of
smallholders to transition permanently to sustainable farming
models and increase the productiity of their land. Agroforestry
combines "agriculture and forestry’, meaning that the trees planted
capture and store carbon from the atmosphere as they grow, but
the trees themselves, and crops planted alongside them, provide
improved livelihoods at the same tme to enable local pecple to

Iifi themselves out of poverty. In the Plant Your Future model,
smallbolders harvest cash crops (e.g. bananas or chill peppers)

for short-term income, alongside native frurt or orchard trees

{e.g. cocoa or lime) for a medium-term income.

Future initiatives

The Ashmore Foundation continues to research and plan nmatives
10 support Ashmore's carbon offsetting chjectives. Whie the scale
of indivdual intiatives tends to be relatively targeted, the Group
nonetheless believes that this approach 1s optimal because it helps
communities in emerging countries and has greater direct impact
than, for example, generically acquinng carbon-related securities.

The Ashmore Foundation Director visiting a local farmer
with Plant Your Future’s team in Loreto, Peru
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SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

The The Ashmore Foundation
Ashmore

Foundation Since its establishment in 2008, The Ashmore

Foundation has parinered with over 78 local
organisations in 26 Emerging Markets
caountries 16 eguip women and young people with the skills and
resources they need 10 generate ncome, drive systemic change
and have a positive environmental impact on therr local
cormmunities and beyond.

The Ashmore Foundation functions mdependently of Ashmore
and is registered in the United Kingdom as a chanty and
company imited by guarantee. It 1s staffed by an Executive
Director who 1s responsible for managing the Foundation’s atfairs.
The Ashmore Foundation board of trustees consists of eight
Ashmore employees, one Ashmore Group ple Non-executive
Director and one independent trustee. In addition to the board

of trustees, Ashmore employees are encouraged to engage
directly in the governance of the Foundation through
nvolvernent in sub-cormmittees.

Supported by The Ashmore Foundation, World Bicycle
Relief will distribute 350 bicycles, mostly to women, in
the Wayuu community in narthern Colombia

54 Ashmore Group ple Annual Repert and Accounts 2023

Ashmore supports the Foundation’s charitable activities through
the prowvision of pro bong office space, administrative support
and a matched funding commitment for employee donations

to the Foundation.

Ashmore Group plc donates 0.5% of its profit before tax to
charities each year, a praporuon of which o donates 1 The
Ashmore Foundation to deliver its charitable grant strategy.

Ashmore employees actively support the Foundation through a
worldwide annual giving prograrmme as well as organising and
participating 1n a range of fundraising events from wine tastings
to sports competitions. Thrs year will see employees from across
Ashmore's Asian and European offices chmb Mount Fuji ang
Meount Trigav 1o raise funds for the Foundation,

Delivering soctal impact in Emerging Markets

As shown opposite, The Ashmore Foundation’s grant strategy 1S
underpinred by the belief that gender equity, systemic change and
a people tirst approach are necessary to support economic and
social development at a time when inequality continues 1o nse mn
Emerging Markets.

The Ashmare Foundation believes that with the nght support and
investment in education, employment and entrepreneurship,
people can grow and prosper to break the cycle of poverty that
disproportionately affects women and young peaple nn Emerging
Markets countries. The Foundation therefore focuses 1ts social
investment strategy on programmes that aim 1o equip people with
the skills and resources they need to increase their livelihood
opportunities, enabling them to meet therr basic needs while also
supporting economic growth and beginning to address broader
sccietal Inequalities.

Mobilised communities in
rural Colombia

More than nine mithon people live 1n
rural areas across Colombia. La Guajira
1s one of the poorest of Colombia’s
Departments. The region has the
largest population of indigenous
people Iin the country, an estimated
20% of 1ts population. Uriia, one of
the municipalities of La Guajira,
reached one of the highest
mulidimensional poverly ndexes
[92.2%) in 2020. Affordabie
transportation cpligns are largely
unavalaple, resulting in farmibes —
especially women and girls — retying
primarily on walking to reach health
services, water and fuel sources, and
the district’s main market.




WHY we do it

WHO we do it for

WHERE we invest

Mission &
model

To equip people with the
skills and resources they
need to generate incorme
and meet their basic

Beneficiary groups

Geographic
areas

Where Ashimore has a
local presence, invests or

has existing networks,
with a focus on where it

needs as well as drive Women & Children & Carbon & other has a physical presence.
systemir rhange and yils yuuny GHG reduction Curreng priorities:
have a positive people initiatives )
environmental IMpact. - India
— Indonesia
- Peru
— Colombia
Disadvantaged Geographical focus does
communities not apply to emergency
responses.
HOW we do it WHAT we do
Partnership Impact themes & grant programmes
model

Build long-term
relationships with small to
mid-sized iocal NGOs to
Create systemic change.

However, we want to
ensure these NGOs do
not become reliant on
the Foundation.

Financial
resilience

Gender
equality

Skills &
training

S
O
®
®

Carbon /
environmental

Income generation
activities

Systemic
change

Emergency
response

Access &
inclusion to
economic
participation
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i TASK FORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

'Addressing

climate-related risks

“and opportunities

| Ashmore recognises the responsibilities it has as a steward of clients’

capital. It explicitly considers climate-related risks and opportunities

| inits operations and investment processes as recommended by the
TCFD framework and incorporated into the Listing Rules.

Comply or explain framework

in accordance with the Listing Rules for prermum-isted cormpanies,
speafically LR 2.8.6R(8) and LR 9.8.6BG, Ashmaore has made
disclosures consistent with the 11 TCFD recommendations,
including Sections C and D of the TCFD 2021 Annex. The Group

15 compliant with nine of the 11 recommendaticns, the

exceptions being:

- recommendation five {scenario modelling), where the Group has
performed only a gualtative analysis, but will consider a more
detaled, guantiative approach, including additional scenanes,
as data and maodels evolve; and

~ recormmendation 10 (GHG emissions), where Ashmore provides
Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions, but does not disclose financed
emissions, Foliowing recent FRC guidance, the Group will
continue to consider how 1t can resolve the challenges 1o
presenting a meamngful financed emissions figure.

Ashrmore intends to undertake further analysis in order to make
progress towards compliance with these recommendations over
the next 12 months.

Investment management activities

The disclosures an the following pages are i respect of Ashmore’s
corporate pperattons. The disclosures required in respect of 1ts
nvestment management activities are included in the separate
TCFD investment Management rgport, available on the

Group’s wehbsite.

Introduction

Environmental challenges, and specifically the effects of cimate
change, can be acutely felt by Emerging Markets countries and
companies. Ashmaore understands the climate-related challenges
faced by these markeats, as well as the need for investors from
both developed and emerging economies 1o Invest in Emerging
Markets to finance sustamnable growth. These markets have
typically not contributed 10 human-made chmate changg 10 the
same extent as developed markets, and conseguently they do not
bear much of the same responsioiity for global warming. Yet,
rany developing economies face some of the most senous
physical consequences of a changing clirate and must bear the
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burden of bulding adaptation measwes. Consequently, this lack

of cimate equity makes 1t impaortant to ensure that these

markets receive the monetary support and technology transters
necessary to continueg 1o rarse fving standards and ta suppart their
populations without adding to the mitigation challenge. Indeed,
several developing countries have stated in therr Nationally
Determined Contributions that they will have to rely on international
chmate finance if they are to reach therr stated targets.

Ashmore supports urgent action to mitigate global warming.
Transiticning 1o a low-carbon economy will be fraught with
challenges, such as ensuring a Just Transition, however Ashmore
beheves that it will also be a source of opportunities. Nowhere 15
this more the case than in Emerging Markets, where there 1s
significant potential to develop sustanable economic growth, and
to support growing populations, on renewable sources of energy.

Ashmore 1s suppartive of efforts that consider the complexity
and varying needs of countries 1o take action on ¢chimate change,
For some countries the tocus might be on decarbonising existing
infrastructure, while for others it might be strengthenmng
governance or protecting natural resources For example,
Emerging Markets countries are often the guardians of some of
the world’s most precious eccosysterns and carbon sinks. 111s
theretore crucial that the global economy provides such markets
with the incentives to protect and restore these, treating them
as the valuable resources they are.

Ashmore is headquartered in the United Kingdom and,

consequently, the UK's commitment in the Chimate Act 2008
(2050 Target Amendment) Order 2019 1o a net zero economy
has been considered as part of the Group's TCFD disclosures.

Currently, the main framework for asset managers in this regard
1s the voluntary NZAM! which Ashmore joined in July 2021.
Ashrmore submitted its NZAMI Intenm Targets in July 2022, and
this Initative serves as the man mechanism by which the Group
addresses climate change mitigation. Refer to the TCFD
investment Management report for further information.



Governance

1. Describe the Board's oversight of climate-related risks and opportunities. (Compliant)

Ashmaore Group plc has a premium listing on the London
Stock Exchange. The Board has ultimate responsibility for the
Group's strategy and maintains full and effective control over
appropriate strategic, financial, operational and compliance
matters, including imatenal climate-related issues through its
corporate governance framework. This framework provides
for regular reporting and other updates to the Board, through
which 1t1s able te oversee progress aganst the Group's
targets, Including those relating to chmate 1ssues.

Hence, overall responsibility for climate-related risks and
opportunities les with 1the Board. However, on a day-to-day
basis the authonty s delegated 10 the Execuuve Directors and
the Group's specialised commitiges. The Board's annual
review and challenge of Ashmore's strategy explicitly mciudes
areas of focus relating to ESG and responsibig investment.

[t 15 important to note that from an operational perspective,
physical climate nsk has limited impact on an asset
management business. Instead, chimate risks are
predominantly transitional and may irnpact the Group's
products, and costs of business travel and otfice use.

The consideration of climate-related 1ssues as they relate to
guiding strategy, major plans of action, risk management
policies, annual budgets and business plans 1s guided by the
Responsible Investment Strategy presented to the CEO,
extracts of which are also included and discussed In the
annual update to the Boarg.

The consideration of chimate-related 1ssues is a core part of
the investment framework applied by Ashmore’s investment
teams and consequently it1s a component of therr
performance objectives. The oversight, monitonng and
implementation of a range of responsible invesiment
activities also forms part of the performance objectives of
senior management, with ESG matters being one of the areas
of performance considered by the Remuneration Commettee
when determiming vanable remuneration on an annual basis
for the Executive Directors.

ESG in the context of Ashmore’s governance structure

PLC BOARD OF

—N DIRECTORS
-
PLC EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
Py —
. PLC AUDIT AND
-- ESG COMMITTEE RISK COMMITTEE

10CAL OFFICE RESPONSIBLE
INVESTMENT FORUM

{ 2. Describe management’s role in assessing and managing climate-related risks and opportunities. (Compliang)

The Board has delegated certain authonties 1o the Executive
Directors who in turn have formed several specialist
comrmittees with terms of reference to carry out the

tunctions delegated to them. One such specialised
comnmuttee 15 the ESGC, which 1s chaired by the CEC and
with members drawn from across Ashmore’s investrment,
distrnibution, risk, legal, operations and other support
tunctions. This ensures that responsible Investment topics are
appropnately understood, assigned to and discussed by all
relevant areas of the firm,

The ESGC has oversight of relevant cimate-related 1ssues and
the Group's Head of Responsible Investment and ESG Policy,
or a delegate, provides updates to the Board. The Board 1s
nformed about goals and targets designed to address
chimate-related 1s5ues and these are consequently reported

on the following year. Additionally, ESGC members provide
the Board, its Audit and Risk Committee and the RCC with
multiple formal points of contact throughout the year.

Furthermore, Ashmoere created the Local Office Responsible
Investment Forum to ensure the sharing of knowledge,
expertise, process and imtiatives between the ESGC and the
Group's local offices.

From an investment management perspective, Ashmare’s
ICs are ulimately responsible for the management of

chent portfolios. Through the oversight by these commiitees,
the Group has mtegrated the assessment and management
of ESG nsks and opportunities, including those related to
c¢hmate, into all its investment processes, Inciuding both
global and local investment plattorms and all investment
themes. Reports presented both at the ESGC and the relevant
ICs ensure the effective monitoring of ESG-related nsks.

The processes described in the Risk management section
on pages 35 to 38 incorperate how senior management is
informed about chmate-related 13sues and their assessment
and management of such nsks faced by the Group.
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ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

Strategy

3. Describe the climate-related risks and opportunities the organisation has identified over the short, medium and

long term. (Compliant)

Ashmore considers matenal cimate-related rnisks and
opportunities over the short term (Up to three years, which i1s
consistent with the planning honzon under the ICARA process),
the medium term (up to 10 years, being an appropriate
umeframe for a reasonable long-term investor), and the long
term (beyond 10 years). The process to determine the rnisks and
opportuniies that could have a matenal financial impact on the
Group is embedded in Ashmore's day-to-day operations and
ingludes consideration of climate-related risks and opportunities
through the Group’s internal control and risk management
framework, the activities of the ESGC including the Local
Office Responsible Investment Ferum, the ICs, and the
Group’s financial planning.

Qver the short and long term, to the extent possible, Ashmore
has identfied limited direct exposure to matenal operational
climate-related nsks. The medium-term opportunity retating to
Emeraging Markets capital flows has been wdentfied, for
example the IEA estimates USS1 tnlhon per annum will be
required to fund ciean energy intiatives consistent with
achieving net zero by 2050, Ashmore’s Emerging Markets
specialhsm means it 1s well-placed to facilitate and to benefit
from these capital flows, and in the meantime 1t is gaining
further understanding through membership of orgamisations
such as the Glasgow Financial Alllance for Net Zero (GFANZ).

Over the short term, a prominent chmate-related risk that could
have @ matenal financial impact on Ashmore 1s the evolving
chmate-related regulation and industry developments,
potentally leading to duplication, contradiction and diminishing
effectiveness of iniiatives. Ashmore remains focused on
actions that suppart its purpese to deliver long-term iNnvestment
performance tor clients and to generate value for shareholders
through market cycles. While evolving regulation poses
impiegmentation rnsks, 1t also creates opportunities for an active
manager to develop new products and strategies to tulhl
clients’ iInvestment objectives. In ine with client preferences,
and through its Preduct Committee, Ashmare will continue to
seek opportunities to manage capital to deliver appropriate
investment outcomes, including those related to climate risk,
Since Ashmore invests across fixed income, equity and
alternatives asset classes, and 118 investment universe

encompasses the full range of diversified Emerging Markets,
these opportunities are assessed on a broad basis.

Over the mediurm term, there will be further opportunities to
influence perceptions and methods of measuring scme of

the factars commonly linked to climate change. For example,
investors typically view GHG emissions from a producer
perspective, which 1s t¢ the detnment of developing countrnes
that serve as manutactunng bases, whereas a consurmer
perspective would shift the emphasis to patterns of behaviour
in developed countnes. Daveloping countries will require
nvestment capital 1o achieve domestic and international
ambitions related to chmate change. The first phase of
Ashmore's corporate strategy. which explicitly targets higher
allocations to Emerging Markets, and theretore a greater focus
by investars on the impact of, and action required to mitigate,
climate-related risks, means that more capital should continue
to flow to Emerging Markets over time.

Over the long term, the most prominent climate-related risk
that could have a matenal financiai impact on Ashmore s
farlure to deliver on its net zero commitment.

During the year, Ashmore conducted a review of the physical
climate-related nsks faced by seven of its 11 offices and
concluded that the mpact In the short termi s mited given s
office-based asset management modet and mitigating factors.

Ashmore’s office network spans both developed and emerging
countries and theretore the Group faces a wide range ot
climate-related physical nsks and with different nationat
adaptation capabilites. For example, while the UK may
expenence changing weather patterns, 1t has a hugh GDP per
capita and s relatvely weli-prepared. In contrast, India 1s
experiencing the consequences of severe weather events on
1ts population, including large-scale migration to urban areas
that 1s putting pressure on commuting infrastructure. In
Colombia, the reliance on services such as access to drinking
water 1s expected 10 be affected. However, Ashmore's otfices
are located in large cibes and benefit from the associated
infrastructure; the offices are leased, which provides
medium-term operational flexibility; and working from

home 15 an established option for employees.

Identified climate-related risks and opportunities for Ashmore Group pic

Risks

Opportunities

[

Transition to
low-carbon world

requirements (S)

- Ctianges in consumer preferences (M)

Evolving regulatory landscape & reporting

— Product development (S)
- Increased capital allocations 10
Emerging Markets (M}

— Market-wide chmate-related shocks (S)

— Net zero delivery [L)

Physical impacts of - Weather events (S}
climate change Floodhng {S)
Higher temperatures (3)

Timeframes considered: S = short 1erm; M = medium term; L = long term

58

Ashmore Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023




4. Describe the impact of climate-related risks and opportunities on the organisation’s businesses, strategy and

financial planning. (Compliant)

The identfied climate-related issues outlined above have not
significantly affected Ashmore’s business, strategy and
financial planning. Mrom an opcrations| standpamt this is, as
explained above, less matenal. Energy prices could pose a
financial nsk related 1o operaticnal runping ¢osts, but this is not
considered a matenal nsk at this time. The main area of impact
relates to the Group's products and services with opportunities
for il mveslinead Dhdnagasnd dcelsalies Ashinone's
investment processes currently Incorporate investment
solutions that respond to the evolving regulatory and industry
requirements as they relate to chmate change, including
establishing net zero capabilities. For chient portfolios, Ashmore
uses its proprietary ESG scorecard 10 make an assessment

of the impact of climate-related risks and opportunities.

Major categories of potential financial impact

Please refer 10 Ashmore’s TCFD investment Management and
Sustainability reports on its website for further information.

Ashmore will assess and act upon climate-related 1ssues that
might affect its planning processes, as appropnate, through
the Group's established processes including the Operating
Committee, ICs, the ESGC, the Product Committee, and via
the Board's regular strategy reviews. Thus far, ng cirect and
rmaterial impact ot chmate-related issues on Ashmore's financial
perforrmance has been identified. Furthermore, over the
medium 1o longer term, Ashmore’s business model provides
for sigriticant mitigating factors, such as flexibility afforded
through being a leasehold tenant rather than landlord and the
potential for remote working, 1ogether with regional or national
government commmitments to address climate-related challenges.

Financial peformance

Financial position

Revenues: The need for private capital to contribute to
addressing climate mitigation and adaption can patentially
act as an opporturity for Ashmore.

Assets and liabilities: Ashmore 1s conscious of how
climate-related risks may impact its assets and liabiiities
and includes this consideration in 115 assessments.

Expenditures: Ashmore's flexible cogt structure 1s
well-placed to accommaodate its required response 10
climate-related 1ssues.

Capital and financing: Climate-related risks have been
considered unhkely to affect Ashmore's capntal, and it
has nc debt.

5. Describe the resilience of the organisation’s strategy, taking into consideration different climate-related scenarios

including a 2°C or lower scenario. (Partially compliant)

Qualitative and guantitative scenano analysis, subject 1o
appropriate data being available 1o support quantitative
models, can help to highlight the transformations required
to meet certain chimate targets, warn about policy changes,
challenge conventional wisdom about the future, and
guestion business-as-usual assumptions.

Over the past year, Ashmore’s approach to scenario analysis
has remained largely qualitative with the airn of exploring the
range of potential cimate change implications for its business.
Ashmore 1$ also assessing the array of scenario analysis
techmiques avallable, as set out belowy.

Transiticn risks are considered as part of the Group's nsk
management and internal control framework, and do not
currently pose a significant threat to Ashmore's overall
strategy. Similarly, frorm a Group perspective, the review of
physical nsks to offices concluded that the risks are unhkely
to have a material impact in the short 1erm. Qver the medium
to longer term, there are significant mitigating factors, such
as flexibility afforded through being a leasehold tenant rather
than a landlord, the potential for remote working and
regional or national government commitments to address
chmate-related challenges.

Therefore, Ashmaore concludes that its strategy wili prove 1o
be resilient if faced with more severe effects of climate
change. The Group will keep 1ts position under review and
where appropriate will also consider additional scenario analysis
toois to complement its reviews including, as appropriate

data and models permit, the consideration of & transition to a
low-carbon economy censistent with a 2°C or lower scenario.
Ashmore intends to make further progress in this area over
the next financial year, including an assessment of the

three main scenano frameworks availlable, being the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change's Representative
Concentration Pathway scenanos; the |[EA's transition nsk
scenarios; and the Netwaork for Greening the Finanoial Sector’s
scenanos covering physical and transition risks.
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ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

Risks and opportunities

6. Describe the organisation’s processes for identifying and assessing climate-related risks. (Compliant)

Ashmore’s internal control framework, described in detail in
the Risk management section on pages 36 to 38, provides a
set of processes for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Group's emerging and principal risks, and identifies associated
controls and mitugants. The Board’s Audit and Risk Committee
regularly reviews the framework. Ashmore’s Principal Risk
Matrix explicitly identifies climate nisk and ensures senior
management 1s made aware of, and acts on, such risks.

For example, the principal nsk includes the failure to
understand and plan for the potential impact to the business
that investor or business sentiment, climate change and
sustainabibty regulations may have on product preferences
and on underlying asset prices that may be affected by the
transition to a low-carbon economy

In addition, consideration of the regulatory reguirements for
asset managers, including those relating to cimate change
{and ESG more generally), is a principal nsk for the Group.
This 15 monitored through the ESGC's standing agenda itam
covering regulatory updates.

Further information relating to Ashmore's investment
processes, ncluding sovereign and corporate engagemients,
1s avallable in the Group’s Sustainability, Engagement,

UK Stewardship Code and TCFD Investment Management
reports, available on its website.

7. Describe the organisation’s processes for managing climate-related risks. (Compliant)

Ashmore reviews and priontises chmate-related risks and
associated controls and mitgants as part of its Principa!l Risk
Matrix and, where appropriate, on a quarterly basis challenge 1s
provided by the RCC and the Audit and Risk Committee (see
Risk management section on pages 35 1o 41)

Climate change and the failure to understand and plan for the
potential impact to the business that investor sentment,

chmate change and sustainability regulations rmay have on
product preferences and on underlying asset prices that may
be atfected by the transition 1o a low-carbon economy are
mitigated by a combination of policy setting and governance
by the ESGC. At the Group level, this nsk 1s managed in
relation to Ashmore’s GHG emissions, which are offset via
The Ashmore Foundation.

8. Describe how processes for identifying, assessing and managing climate-related risks are integrated into the

organisation’s overall risk management. (Compliant)

Climate-related risks are considered in a similar manner 1o
other emerging or principal nisks, since they may affect vanous
aspects of the Group's strategy. business model, clients and
operatinonal and financial performance. in this context, the
identificaton, assessment and management of such nsks are
integrated into Ashmore’s robust risk management culture and
115 internal control framework.

For exampie, within Ashmore's Principal Risk Matrix, the
different aspects of cimate nisks would impact distribution
and client oversight activities, integration within investment

management processes as well as regulatory requirements
and the Group's overall reputation. These are considered both
on a standalone basis as well as in combination to ensure
related risks are assessed, managed and, where appropriate,
mitigated through the development of internal controls and
Processes.
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Metrics and targets

9. Disclose the metrics used by the organisation to assess climate-related risks and opportunities in line with its

strategy and risk management process. (Compliant)

The main chmate-related metnc used by Ashmore is its
operatiocnal GHG emissiens, which are modest and are
disclosed in accordance with the Act ang SECR requirements.
The fatest disclosures can be found in the Directors’ report.

As part of the process 10 offset its GHG emissions, Ashimore
sets an iMternal carbon price based on the three-month rolling
average rarket price of the first carbon futures contract traded
on the European energy exchange.

Summary of cimate-related metrics

This methodology 1s unchanged from last year and for
the penod ending 30 June 2023 resulted in a price of
€86.82 per tonne CO.e.

Ashmore's Remuneration Cormruttee takes into consideration
qualitative and quantitative ESG factors, including those relating
to climate issues, when determining Executive Directars’
performance-related vaniable remuneration, as described in the
Remuneration report.

Ashmore Group plc metric

Investment management metric —l

GHG emissions Scope 1, 2 & 3 provided in tCO.e

WACI (tCO,e/USE million revenue)
Total/Absolute Carbon Emissions {tCO.e)
Carbon Footprnint (1CO,e/US$ million invested)

Transition risks Qualitatve assessment

Stranded assets

Physical risks Qualitative review

Qualitative assessment

Climate-related Industry demand for dedicated
opportunities ESG-labelled products

Qualitative assessment

Capital deployment N/A

Qualitative assessment

Internal carbon price  Carbon price calculated using average price over three months

1. Refer to TCFD Investment Management report for further information, including details of NZAM| targets.

10. Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2 and, if appropriate, Scope 3 GHG emissions and the related risks. (Partially compliant)

Ashmore reports 1ts GHG emissions annualty, as required by
the Comparnies Act. The latest disclosures aren the Directors’
reponl on page 113, and summarised in the chart opposite.

In July 2023, the FRC published a thematic review of climate-
related metnes and targets with specitic guidance and
expectations for asset managers. This Included the view that
financed emissions are likely to be matenal for most asset
managers, and therefore relevant to the consideration of this
TCFD recommendaton. Ashmore does not currently calculate
financed emissions beyond its regulatary requirements under
SFDR (see Ashmore website for related disclosures) and client

reporting an specific portfolos, and hence it has concluded that

it is currently only partially compliant with thug TCFD

recommendation. The Group will continue to consider how 1o
resalve the inherent challenges in presenting a meaningful
financed emissions figure, which include the availability of
consistent and reliable data from Emerging Markets 1ssuers;
the treatment of data from corporate and sovereign issuers;
and the choice of appropriate intensity measures.

Ashmeore Group plk’s GHG emissions by scope (tCO,e)

11. Describe the targets used by the organisation to manage climate-related risks and opportunities and performance

against targets. (Compliant)

Operationally, Ashmore leases its officas, typically alongside
other tenants, meaning that in many cases 1t is allocated a share

of total building ermissions based on leased footpnnt. Theretore,

the ability 1o measure, and hence to directly influenge changes
in the Group's gross GHG emissions, is severely Imited.
Nonethelgss, Ashmore seeks 10 offset its operational GHG
emissions through a thoughtful, socially responsible and
measurable approach via The Ashmore Foundation.

As described in the Sustainability section, the Foundation has
developed a partnership with Plant Your Future, through which
1t has purchased 854 tCO, to oftset the Group's emissions
relating to FY2022. This will be delivered through a community
approach model 1o reforest parts of the Peruvian Amazon in
Ucayal and Loreto, and will assist local communities o break
the victous cycle of deforestation and degradation that1s
trapping them in poverty.

Ashmore Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023 !
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| BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Committed to robust

- standards of governance

Mark Coombs
Chief Executive Officer
Appointed to the Board: December 1998

Skills, experience and contribution: !

Mark Coornbs founded the business
which became Ashmore in 1992 and
has overseen its successful growth for
over 30 years. |

Other roles past and present:

Mark was appointed a Director on the
incorporation of the Company and has (
served as its Chief Executive Officer

since then. He held a number of positlons J
at ANZ and led Ashmaore’s buyout from
ANZ in early 1992. He 1s Co-Charr of
EMTA, having been on the Board since
1993, Mark holds an MA N Law from |
Cambndge University.

Tom Shippey ‘
Group Finance Director ‘
Appointed to the Board: November 2013

Skills, experience and contribution:

Tom Shuppey 1s a charered accountant
with extensive expenence in investment
management, mergers and acquisitions,
capital raising and financial and
regulatory reporting

Other roles past and present:

Tom was appomnited to the Board as

GFD in November 2013. Prior to joining
Ashmore in 2007, he worked at UBS
Investment Bank, including adwising on
the Ashmore IPC 10 2006. He 1s currently
a trustee of the Resurgo Trust,

Tom gualfied as a Chartered Accountant
with PricewaterhouseCoocpers in 1999 and
15 g Fellow of the ICAEW. Tom holds a BSc
in international Business and German from
Aston University.

@ - Audit and Risk

® — Nominations

® - Remuneration

(A square denctes the Chair)

Key to membership of committees

Board and committee attendance

Clive Adamson
Non-executive Chair

Appointed to the Board: Cctober 2015
and as Chair: Apni 2022 (independent
on appointmenti

. Skills, experience and contribution:

Clive Adamson has enjoyed a career in
financial services for over 40 years, spanning
executive roles In banking and regulation and

- Non-executrve Director roles, including Board

and Comrmittee Chair positions, across
wholesale and retai banking, insurance and

. asset managemeant.

" Other roles past and present:

Chve spent 20 vears in wholesale banking,
halding semor pasitions with Cigroup and

. Bank of Amenca. He moved into regulation

as an adviser at the Bank of England betore
joining the newly formea Financial Services
Authorty and then the FCA upon formaton
where he was Director of Supervision and an
Executive Member of the Board. Clive was a
Nop-executive Director of Virgin Money plc
and a Serior Adwviser at McKinsey & Company.

. He s currently Chair of J.P. Margan Europe Ltd

and its Nominations Commutiee {the Chase UK
digital consurer bank), a Non-executive
Director and Chair of the Audit Commuttes of
J.P. Margan Secunties plc, and Chair of
Nutmeg Saving and Investment Ltd. He1s a

- Non-executive Director and Chair of the Risk

Committee of both M&G plc and Prudential
Assurance Company Limited. Clive holds an
MA in Economics from Cambridge University.

Committee membershig: [N] ®

The table below sets out members' attendance at scheduled and additonal meetings of the Board and its committees,

N Normnations A Auditand Risk R Remuneration

Meeting attsndance between Board Committes Committee Committes
1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023 Attanded Anended Attended Attended
Mark Coombs 77 - - -
Tem Shippey 77 - -~

Chve Adamson’ 7 5/5 212 7
Helen Beck 7{7 5/5 717 77
Jennifer Bingham 7 5/5 7/7 7/7
Thuy Dam? i 11 11”1 11
Shirley Garrood® 5/6 4/4 7/7 5/6

Members of executive management are invited tc atteng scheduled Board comritiee meetings as requireo but do not attend as mernbers of those commitises

1 Clive Adamson stond down as a member and Char of tre Audit and Risk Committee on 23 January 2023

2 Thuy Dam was appointed to the Board on T Jjune 2023

3 Shirley Garrood was sppornted 10 the Board on 1 August 2022 and took over from Clive Adamsen as Charr of the Audit ana R sk Commitiee on 23 January 2023
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Helen Beck

Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed to the Board: June 2021
Skills, experience and contribution:

Helen Beck s a commercial international
adviser with significant expericnce in
advising boards on remuneration and
hurnan resources. She has a strong
executive track record in building and
growing chent centnc businesses with
exlonsive Hnancidl 3¢h1Ses oxpollunuy
across a broad range of asset management
firms and banks.

Other roles past and present:

Helen was tormerly a Partner and Head of
Financial services remuneration piactice at
Delaitte LLP. Prior ta joining Deloitte, she
held @ number of senior executive
appointments in human resources,
remuneratinn and cnnsultancy. including at
Standard Bank, MclLagan Partners and
Fidelity Asia-Hong Kong. Helen is currently
a Non-executive Director of Funding Circle
Holdings plc and Chair of its Remuneration
Canrunitler, an lndependent Govornor of
University ot Bedtordshire, and an
Independent Member ot the Remuneration

Jennifer Bingham
Senior Independent Director
Appointed to the Board: June 2018

Skills, experience and contribution:

Jennifer Bingham has in-depth experience
in Investment oversight of the iInvestment
portfolios of family offices and charitable
foundations and in her previous executive
role in the Emerging Markets fund
management business.

Other roles past and present:

Jennifer 1s an accountant and between
1992 and 2003 she was a senior executive
of Brunswick Capital Management Limited,
an investment manager specialising in the
Russian equity market. During this pernod
she varnously held the offices of Chief
Executive, Chief Operating and Chief
Financial Officer. Since 2003 Jennifer has
held finance, administration and
investment oversight roles with investment
company PCHB Limited (part of the Cundill

Thuy Dam

Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed to the Board: June 2023
Skills, experience and contribution:

Thuy Dam has extensive investment and
banking knowledge and has a thorough
understanding of the complexity of
Emerging Markets, particularly in Asia.

Cther roles past and present:

Thuy began her career as an entrepreneur,
co-founding Vietnam's first private toreign
investment consultancy firm. She then
joined ANZ, helping to set up ANZ's
banking business in Asia and becoming
the first Vietnamese citizen 1o lead an
international bank in Vietnam. Thuy was
ANZ's Vice Chair to the Greater Mekong
region pnaor to joning the National Australia
Bank as 1its Chief Representative in
Vietnam. She has previously served as a

Shirley Garrood
Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed to the Board: August 2022

Skills, experience and contribution:

Shirley Garrood has extensive financial
services expenence bullt up over many
years with a focus on operations, finance
and nsk matters within financial services
and investment management.

Cormmittee for the British Olympic
Association. She was previously a
Non-executive Director of Irwan Mitchell
Holdings Lirmited. Helen holds a BAIHons)
in Social Admunistration from the University
of Nottingham, 1s 2 Member of the
Institute of Personne! Development and
holds a Post Graduate Diplotna o
Personnel Management.

Committee membership: @ ®™ E

group of companies). She s currently an
Executive Director of FPC Philanthropies
Ltd (the Peter Cundilt Foundation) and sits
on the investment committee of PCHB
Limited. Jenrifer 1s also an Executive
Director of Valley Management {UK)
Limited, an Executive Director of Stichting
Pamina, a Dutch Charitable Foundation,
and a Trustee of The Ashmore Foundation.

Committee membership: &) (N} ®)

Non-executive Director and Charr of the
Rermuneration Committee ot VinaCapital
Vietnam Opportunity Fund Ltd and was
the President of the Fulbnght University
Vietnam. Thuy s Non-executive Director of
Thien Minh Group Limited, TASCO JSC
and EQuest Education Group. Thuy holds a
BA in Enghsh from the University of Hanol
and an MBA In Finance from the Wharton
School of Business at the University of
Pennsylvania.

Committee membership: @ @ ®

Cther roles past and present:

Shirley was Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Operating Officer of Henderson
Group plc and, since finishing her executive
career, has held roles at esure Group plc as
Deputy Chair, Chair of the Audit Committee
and Senior Independent Director; and Chair
of the Audt and Risk Cormnmittess and
Senior Independent Director of Hargreaves
Lansdown plc. She alsc served as a
governor of the Peabedy Trust housing
association; a Non-executive Director of
Royal London Mutual insurance Society
Limited, and Chair of Royal London Asset
Management Holdings Limited and Royal
tondon Asset Management Limited, also

Ashmore Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023

charring their Risk and Capital Committee;
and a Non-executive Director and Chair of
the Audit and Risk Committee of the BBC.
Shirley 1s currently an Independent
Non-exacutive on Deloitte LLP's Audit
Governance Board, providing oversight of
the externa! audit end assurance business
only. She is also Chair of Dignity Group
Holdings Lirmited and Chair of the Audit
Committee. Shirley holds a BScin
Economics and Accounting from the
University of Bristol and 1s & quahfied
Chartered Accountant and Corporate
Treasurer,

Committes membership: [A] () ®)
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NANCE

Commitment to

AND INTRODUCTION TO

' robust governance

Dear shareholder,

At the end of my first full year as Charr of the Board, | am pleased
10 say that Ashmore conunues 10 have a knowledgeable, engaged
and effective Board. We welcomed two new Board members
during the year, Shirley Garroed and Thuy Dam, and | lgok forward
to ther participation continuing 1o enhance our Board discussions
| 'would ke to thank all of my fellow Directors for therr ongoing
comrmitment to Ashmore.

The past year has seen notable improvements In many global
rmacra factors, aithough regretiably the war in Ukraine continues.
Although rharket cycles present chalienges, they also provide
investment opportunities and Ashmore’s cansistent approach and
experience of investing in Emerging Markets over the past 30
years means that it 1s delivering significant outpertormance tfor
clients as markets begin to recover from headwinds such as nising
interest rates. The Group's flexible and resilient business model
has helped o mitigate the imipact of lower average AuM fevels on
the financial performance, and the Board 1s recommending the
payment of an unchanged final ordmary dividend to shareholders.

| would aiso ke 10 thank Ashmaore's employees for ther efforts
during the year. They continue to show professionalism, dedication
and team spint, which 1s key to Ashmore’s success.

Governance and Company purpose

Ashmore's governance struciure remamns appropnate 1o the size
and compiexity of the business. It enabies the Beard 10 oversee
the executicn and delivery of Ashmore’s purpose, as a specialist
Emerging Markets investment manager, to deliver iong-term
investment outperformance for clients and generate value for
sharehalders across market cycles. in fulfiling its role, the Board 1s
gurded by the Group's purpose In the shaping of key decisions,
culture and values. The Board foliows the highest ethical and
professional standards in the business, supported by a strong
internal culture and staff values, which drive appropriate behaviour,
embedded by the Company’s compliance, risk management and
employment policies and practices.

The Beard's work duning the year 15 set out on page 71 and shows
the usual schedule of business as well as updates on specific
topics. The Company's consistent three-phase strategy remains
to capitalise on the substantial growth opportunities avalable in
the Emerging Markets in order to create value for clients and
shareholders. More detall can be found in the Strategy
description on page 14.
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Board changes and time commitments

The Nominations Committee regularly discusses succession
planning and diversity for both the Board and senior management.
This year we put this planning 1nto practice by approving the
establishment of a Diversity Committee and by welcoming two
new Non-executive Directors,

Shirley Garrood Joined the Board on 1 August 2022 and she
became a member of the Nominaticns, Remuneration and Audt
and Risk Committees on appointment. Following the receipt of
FCA approval, Shirley took over as Char of the Audit and Risk
Committee on 23 January 2023, capitalising on her extensive
financial services and audit experience.

We then welcomed Thuy Dam to the Board on 1 June 2023 and
she also became a member of the Nominatons, Remuneration
and Audit and Risk Cormmmittees con appointment. Thuy is our first
Mon-executwe Dwector based in an Emerging Market, Vistnam,
and brings valuable local markets insights on the Southeast Asia
region to Ashmore,

In both cases, any potential conflicts and other trme commitments
were declared to the Nominations Committee and considered by
the Board at the time of appointment. Shirley and Thuy each took
part in a comprehensive induction programme 1o support therr
introduction 1o Ashmore.

All external appointments are disclosed to and considered by
the Board in the context of the overall ume commitments of

the relevant Director (bearing in mind any roles that have also
been relinquishady and whether such commitments impinge

on therr duties to Ashmare. Detalls of the Directors’ external
commitments are provided on pages 62 to 83, The Nominations
Committee report gives detals on how it considered applications
by Non-executive Directors to take on new external
appointments an page 77.

Details ot each Director’s profile can be found on pages 62 to 63
of this report and the Board is recommending the election or
re-election of all Directors at this year's AGM.



Board evaluation

This year, | led the annual evaluation of the Board, 1ts cornmitiees
and the Directors, assisted by a questionnaire and meetings with
each member of the Board. All views were shared and discussed in
an informal meeting of the Board. All Directors were of the option
that the Beard and 11s committees are effective in carrying out thewr
responsibilities. Nevertheless, we found certain areas where we
can [ueus i the coming yeear. Mare detail 1s provided in the
Nominations Committee report on page 77.

The Board values the expenence of face-to-face meetings,
In-person management presentations and informal ‘meet the
tenme’ segeons, wihirh this year included visits to our Singapare
and Indonesa ottices a8 delailed below. | owevor, the henslin, |
remote meetings are recognised and will ensure that Thuy Dam s
able to participate fully on occasions when she is not present in
London for Board and committee meetings. It 1s anticipated that
Thuy will attend meelings in person at least three times a year.

Board visit to Singapore and Indonesia

ln December 2022, the Board held its Board and cornritiee
meetings in Ashmore’s office in Jakarta, Indonesia, and also visited
the Ashmore office In Singapore. As part of the wisit, the Directors
held ‘meet the teams’ sessions to meet the local employees In
toth the Singapore and Indonesia offices. Members of the
Singapcrean and Indonesian teams were atso invited to join the
Board for dinner, which offered the Directors an opportunity to
engage more informally with Ashrmore employees. The Board felt
that the trip was highly informative and intends to undertake similar
visits 10 other Ashmore offices in future years to continue to
expand 1ts understanding of the Group's local market operations.

Our people

In addition 1o the Board visit, the Directors have continued 10
engage directly with Ashmore's workforce, by hosting informal
discussions with employees from different departments. This
approach aliows Directors to meet directly and informally with
employees and helps us assess and monitor the culture of the firm.

Jennifer Bingham is the Non-executive Director for workforce
engagement. As such, she charrs the ‘'meet the teams’ sessions
and acts as a conduit for the Board to faciltate interaction and
understanding of workforce sentiment. This engagement helps 10
inform our discussions and decision making. A summary of the
Board's engagement with employees and other stakeholders is
included in the Secton 172 statement on page 42 and the
Directors’ report on page 113.

The Board has responsibility tor oversight of the Group's
whistleblowing arrangements and the Charr of the Audit and Risk
Committee 1s the nominated Director with responsibility tor
whistleblowing. An independent agency provides a means through
which employees can raise concerns confidentially, if they do not
wish 1o bring these to the attention of management. All employees
are made aware of and have access 1o these arrangements.

Details of how Ashmore invests in and rewards its people are
provided in the Remuneration report on pages 7810 111. The
Beard believes that the current remuneration structure for all
employees works to benefit clients, sharehoiders and employees
alike. The proposed changes to the Directors” Remuneration policy
are intended to maintain this alignment under the new structure for
the Executive Directors.

ArtScience Museum, Singapore

Diversity

In order to execute its strategy, the Group needs to continue to
attract, develop and retain a diverse workforce. Ashmore 1S an
organisation that spans multiple cultures and ethnicities, and the
Board and Nominations Committee understand the importance
of improving its gender and ethnic diversity. The Board regularly
discusses diversity and the diversity policies of the Board and the
Group are reviewed at least annually. A new Diversity Committee,
chared by Jennifer Bingham, was established during the year.
Our progress on diversity is described turther in the Nurminations
Committee report on page 77 and the Directors’ report on

page 113,

| am pleased to confirm that the Board meets the requirement to
have a minimum of 40% of Board positions held by women and
we have a female Semor Independent Director, meaning that
Ashmore was in compliance with the FTSE Women Leaders
Review and the Listing Rules throughout the year. Following the
appointment of Thuy Dam on 1 June 2023, the Beard also now
has at least one Director from an ethnic minerity background in
line with the Parker Review and the Listing Rules. The gender and
ethnic diversity of the Board, serwor management and employees
1s reported on pages 47 and 48.
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT AND INTRQOD
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTI
Qur shareholders

Understanding the views of shareholders Is essential to the
Group's long-term success. The Board regularly considers
shareholder feedback at ts meetings and factors these views
iNto 115 decision making. We keep shareholders updated on
performance and news through annual and hali-year results,
quarierly AuM statements and wvia the regulatory news service.

The Executive Directors hold regular meetings with a range of
shareholders and potenual mvestors and b also met several of
Ashmore’s major shareholders duning the year. Ashmore’'s AGM
provides an opportunity for all shareholders to meet with the
Board and rafse matters of interest.

At the 2022 AGM, 78% of sharehalders voted in favour of the
Remuneration report. Through our ongoing programme of
engagement with shareholders and proxy advisers, we are aware
ot the views held by certain governance teams in relation to the
Remuneration report, leading to the votes against.

In preparation for the trienmai shareholder vote on the Directors’
Remuneration pelicy at the 2023 AGM, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed Ashmare's approach to executive
remuneration and a comprehensive governance roadshow was
held, which covered ¢.75% of the insttutional shareholder register
and the main proxy advisers. This enabled Helen Beck, in her role
as Charr of the Remuneration Committee, 1o discuss proposed
changes to the Directors’ Remunegration policy and other matters.
Further detarls on this revtew and the subsequent roadshow can be
found in the Remunerabon report on pages 81 10 84, The proposed
Directors’ Remuneration policy 1$ set out on pages 85 1o 93,

Wider society

Ashmore continues 1o engage with investors, governments and
NGOs across a range of issues that are important © the business
and the wider world, Managerment shares insight and feedback
tram this engagement with the Board, helping us understand how
Ashmore’s products and services can better serve its stakeholders.

Cur Section 172 staterment on pages 42 1o 45 sets out how
Ashmore has taken account of our stakeholders, and the
Sustamability report on pages 50 to 55 describes the good work
that has been done this year by The Ashmore Foundation and the
offsetung of the Group's carbon emissions. ESG s integrated into
Ashmore's investment processes and we are committed to
providing transparent reportng 10 stakenolders on ESG outcomes
A more extensive review of Ashmore’s ESG activities can be
found in the Sustainability Report. which is available on the
Group's website.
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Dividend

The Board recognises the importance of the ordinary dividend to
shargholders, and, taking into consideratien the annual profit, the
unrealised nature of the seed capital result, the cash flows
delivered, the balance sheet's strength and the continued growth
opportunities avaNabie to Ashmore over the ionger term, it1s
recormnmending a final dividend of 12.1 pence per share, to give
total dividends per share for the year of 16.9 pence.

Clive Adamson
Charr

5 September 2023

2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code Compliance Statement:
Ashmore has comphed with the Code
during the year, save for Provision 24
(membership of the Audit and Risk
Committee) for part of the year. Ashmore
explains on pages 67 to 68 how each of the
Principles of the Code have been appled
and why there was a departure from
Provision 24 on an ntenm basis.

Qperational resilience

Durng the perod, Ashmare addressed the FCA's
operational resilience requirements. A working group
chatred by the GFD identified Ashmore's important
business services which are delivered to clients and
mapped out the processes that enabie those services 1o
function. It was then deterrmined how much distuption
each wnportant business service could tolerate and this
impact tolerance was then tested. This seli-assessment
was completed in March 2023 and approved by the
Board in May 2023. A similar operational restience
self-assessment will be completad annually, starting in
early 2024 and therefore well ahead ot the FCA's deadiine
of March 202%




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Complying with the Code

Ashmore explains below how it applied the Principles of the Code during
the year ended 30 June 2023. The explanation references the alphabetic
coding of the Provisions of the Code. Ashmore complied with all
Provisions, save as indicated below (Provision 24).

Board Leadership and Company Purpose

A. Board's rolo. A formal schedule of matters reserved for the

Board 1s reviewed and approved by the Board on an annual
basis. It sets out the framework unger which the Board
manages its responsibiites, discharges its authority and
manages its own activities. A yearly planner seeks to ensure the
most important and current topics are discussed at meetings
during the year. The Board's main activities throughout the year
are detailed on page 71.

. Purpese and culture. The Comipany’s purpose, as a specialst

Emerging Markets investrment manager, 1s 1o deliver long-term
nvestment outperformance for clients and generate value for
shareholders through market cycles. its strategy for doing so1s
set out in the Strategic repert and includes, among other
matters, how In pursuing the objectives set out within the
purpose, Ashmore ensures 1ts culture and working practices
ahgn both with 11s purpose and its broader set of stakeholders
through effective and entrepreneural leadership. The Board
receives regular reports on employees’ comphance with
regulatory and risk management requirements, hears
presentations and updates from different departments and
offices and meets employees on an informal basis after each
Board meeting. These elements underpin Ashmore's
assessment of 1ts culture, which is also considered as part of
nternal audit reviews.

. Resources and controls, It 1s the duty of the Board to ensure

that adeguate resources are in place for the delivery of its
strategy over the long term. The use of those resources Is set
out in a delegated suthonty tramework, designed to ensure that
decisions over those resources are taken by the right persons at
the right level with accountability 10 the Beard. The Risk
management section of this report further describes the
framework of controls by which Ashmore enables risk
assessment and risk management.

. Stakeholder engagement. The Section 172 statement made on

pages 42 to 45 includes examples of matters considered by the
Board dunng the year and what was taken into account when
making those decisions, including engagement with
shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board's monitoring
and response to any Director’s potental conflict of interestis
carned out by the Nominations Committee. An agreement 15 in

place with respect to the controlling shareholding of Mark
Coombs where independence provisions are in place. This is
explained 1n more detall in the Directers’ report on page 113.
Any Director with any concerns about the Board or
management of the Company may have these recorded in
the minutes.

. Workforee engagement. Jennifer Bingham, the Senior

Independent Director, is the designated Non-executive Director
with responstbility for engagement with Ashmore’s workforce.
An explanation as 10 how she undertook this function during the
year 15 given on page 113. The Charr of the Audit and Risk
Committee performs the role of whistleblowing champion for
the Group. A confidenua!l hothine is available for any employees
who wish to raise concerns of wrongdoing in the workplace on
an anonymous basis. The Board receives regular reports on the
functioning of the independent reporting arrangements in place
for any such matter raised.

Division of Responsibilities
F. Role of the Charr. Clive Adamson was iIndependent upon

appointment as Chair of the Board. He leads on the
effectiveness of the Board by setting the agendas and timetable
for meetings, and encouraging an open and constructive
dialogue during meetings, inviting the views of all Board
members. He ensures that Board members receive accurate,
timely and clear information in his regular interactions with
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary.

. Composition of the Board. The Board consists ot two Executive

Drrectors, four Non-executive Directors and a Non-executive
Chair who was considered independent upon appointment to
the Board. Their responsibilities have been set out in writing and
agreed by the Board and are available on the Group’s website.
Ther roles and responsibilities are also further descnbed on
page 70, which show the division between the Board
responsibilities and the executive leadership ot the Company.
These roles and responsibilities are reviewed annually,

A Senior Independent Director has been appointed and
Jennifer Bingham led this year's appraisal of the Chair.

More detaills are given on page 77.
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H.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Role of the Non-executive Directors. The Non-executive
Directors” engagement with management, therr constructive
challenge and contribution to Board discussion are assessed as
part of the Board’s annual effectiveness review. Their expected
minmum time commitment i$ set out In thewr appointment
letters and they are required to seek approval for any new
external appointments in advance, as sat out in the Nominations
Commuttee report on page 77. All Directors’ other appointments
are listed on pages 62 to 63 and therr attendance at meetings
on page B2.

Role of the Company Secretary. All Directors have access to the
advice and support of the Group Company Secretary and her
team. Directers can request the arrangement of additional
briefings on the business, external developments and
professional advice independent of the Company, at the
Company’s expense. The appaintment or removal of the

Group Company Secretary is a matter for the Board.

Composition, Succession and Evaluation

J

Appointments to the Board and succession planning.

The Nominations Committee report on pages 76 to 77 sets out
15 activities and areas of focus during the year. including the
recrwtment of a new Non-executive Director, Board and
committee composition and progress on diversity and inclusion.
All the independent Non-executive Directors are members of
the Nominations Committee and the Chair of the Board 1s also
Charr of the Committee, save where it considers the role of
Board Chair. All Directors are subject to shareholder election or
re-election at each AGM, unless retiring at the conclusion of the
meeting. None of the Non-executive Directors has served over
nine years on the Board.

Skilis, experience and knowledge of the Board. During the year,
the Nominations Committee recormmended the appointment of
a new Non-executive Director based on an analysis of the skills,
experence and knowledge needed. The Nominaticens
Committee report on page 76 gives further detals of that
recruntment process. Following the appointment of Shirley
Garrood and Thuy Dam to the Board, a senes of induction
meetings was set up to enable each of them 1o gather further
insights into the Company. There 1s a programme of ongoing
training for all Board members in addition to the regular
programme of presentations at Board meetings.

. Board evaluaticn. The internal Board evaluation, which took

place dunng the year, 1s described in the Nominations
Committee report on page 77. together with 1ts outcomes.

Audit, Risk and Internal Control

M.

68

Internal and external audit. The Audit and Risk Committee
currently compnises four independent Non-executive Directors.
From 21 Apnl 2022 to 23 January 2023, following the
resignation of David Bennett and appointment of Clive Adamscn
as Charr of the Board, the Company did not comply with
Provision 24 of the Code which states that the Charr of the
Board should not be a Committee member. Clive Adamson
retained the role of Charr of the Audit and Risk Committee when
he took over as Chair of the Beoard. This was an intenm solution,
while FCA approval was awaited for Shirley Garrood to take on
the role of Charr of the Audit and Risk Committee following her
appointment to the Board on 1 August 2022. On 23 January
2023, Shirley Garrcod succeeded Chve Adamson as Chair of
the Audit and Risk Committee and Clive stepped down as a
member of the Committee. Further details are set out In the
Nominations Committee report on page 76.

Ashmore Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023

The Board delegates a number of responsibilities to the Audit
and Risk Committee, including oversight of the Group's financial
reporting processes, internal control and rsk management
systems and the work undertaken by the external and internal
auditars. The Committee also supports the Board's consideration
of the Company's viability staterment and its abiiity to operate

as & going concern, The Audit and Risk Commitiee report on
pages 72 to 75 describes the work of the Committee durning

the year and how it discharged its duties and responsibilities.

N. Farr, balanced and understandable assessment. When taken as
a whole, the Directors consider the Annual Report and Accounts
1s farr, balanced and understandable and provides information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
performance, business model and strategy. A description of
how the Audit and Risk Committee ensures that a robust
process 1s in place for ensuring this 1s described on page 72.

Q. Risk management and internat control framewaork. The Board is
responsible for setting the Company’s rnsk appetite in line with
1ts long-term strategic objectives, and annually reviews the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems. The internal control framework s described
on pages 25 to 39 The Audit and Risk Committes has oversight
of the effectiveness of internal controls and for developing
proposals in respect of overall nsk appetite and tolerance as
well as metrics tc monitor the Group's risk management
performance. Further detalls are set out in the Audit and Risk
Commuttee report on pages 72 to 75 and a description of the
principal nsks facing the Company 1s set out on pages 40 to 41,

Remuneration

P. Remuneration pelicies and practices. The Remuneration
Committee comprises all the independent Non-executive
Directors and 1s chaired by Helen Beck. The Chair of the Board,
who was independent on appointment, s also a member of
the Cammittee. The Remuneration repart provides details of
the Group's approach to remuneration on page 94.

Q. Executive remuneration. The Remuneration Commitiee has
responsibiity for determining the policy for executive
remuneration and for setting remuneration for the Chair of
the Board, Executive Directors and senior management.

No Director 1s involved in deciding their own remuneration
and the remungratuon of the Charr of the Board and the
Non-executive Directors 1s designed 1o reflect their time
commitment and responsibilities. Further detalis are set
out in the Remuneration report on pages 7810 111

R. Remuneration outcomes and independent judgement. Detalls of
the composition and the work of the Remuneration Committee
are reflected In 1ts terms of reference and are set out In the
Remuneration report.



framework

Corporate governance

plc Board of Directors
Responsible for overall strategy, management and centrol

Schedule of matters raserved solely for its decision

plc Remuneration Committee

Terms of reference approved by the
Board. Determines compensation for
Executive Directors and Code Staff, and
reviews cormpensation for Control Staff

plc Nominations Committee

Terms of reterence approved by the
Board. Makes recommendations on
Board membership, diversity and
governance structure in hine with
corporate governance best practice

.

plc Executive Directors
Scheduie of matters delegated by the Board

-

Specialised committees

Responsible for overseeing business, investments and internal controls.
Terms of reference approved by executive managerment

- Investrment Committees — Risk and Complance
- Pnicing Methodology and Committee
Valuation Committee — Pricing Oversight Committee
— Product Committee - Foreign Exchange and Liguidity
- GIPS Committee Management Committee
- Awards Committee - IT Steenng Group (in respect
- Disclosure Committee of cyber secunty)
— Research Oversight Commttee - Best Executon Committee
— Operating Commitiee - ESG Committee

plc Audit and Risk Committee

Terms of reference approved by the
Board. Oversees the Group's financial
reporting processes, internal control
and rnisk management systems and
auditors in ing with corporate
governance best practice

Il

Senior management
Responsible for day-to-day management

Auditors

External:

Independent assurance via audit of
Group financial statements and audit
of internal control procedures under

ISAE 3402 and SSAE 18

Internally resourced:

Independent assurance via audit
directed at specific departmental
control procedures
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Roles of the Board

Executive roles

Non-executive roles

Chief Executive Qfficer

Responsible for managing and leading
the business and 1ts employees

Chair of the tixed income, equities, healthcare and
specal situations 1Cs

Developing an effective relatonship
with the Chair and the Beard

Leading the business towards
achievement of the strategy

Maintaining an effective diafogue
with shareholders and stakeholders

Making busmess decisions fwithin the framework
of the Board's delegated authonties)

Chair

Responsible for leading the Board and its
overall effectiveness

Bullding an effective and dwverse Board
with complementary skilis which s
progressively refreshed

Facilitating and encouraging an
gffective contnbution from all Board members

Ensuring the Board has clear, accurate
and pmely informabon

Facilitating an annual evaluation of the Board,
its committees and individual Directors

Group Finance Director

Managing the Group's capital, cash flow
and liquidity

Leading and overseeing the Finance, WMiddle Office
and IT functions, which are responsibile for
Operational Risk, Transaction Processing, Fund
Adrmimstraticn, Performance, Data and Clent
Repoarting, Information Technaliogy development
and infrastructure

Responsible for the Group’s tinancial reporting and
feading the annual budget process

Maintaining an effective dialogue with shareholders
and analysts on the performance of the Company

Responsible for investor relations and corporate
development, including mergers and acquisitions

Governance of the Group's subsidianes

Senior Independent Director
A sounding board for the Charr
and an intermediary for the other Directors
and shareholders

Faciitating an annual review ot the performance
of the Chair

Independent Non-executive Directors
Providing oversight of, but not managing,
the business
Providing effective independent oversight
and challenge of executive management

Scrutinusing the performance of
executive management

The Group Company Secretary 15 responsible for advising the Board on all governance matters.

70
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Board activity during the year

In addition to 1ts regular business, specific topics constdered by the Board at its

meetngs this year included:

July 2022
\

- Appointment of Shirley Garrood 2s a
Non-executive Director

April 2023

October 2022

September 2022

December 2022

February 2023

— Annual Review on the Effectiveness of Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

— |ICAAP report

— Distribution presentation

— Operational resilience update

-~ Qperations and IT presentation

— AGM arrangements, results of proxy voting and
governance agency reports
— Operational resilience update

- Board visit to offices in Singapore and Indonesia

— Annual review of Culture, Conduct and Diversity

— Group strategy review

— Annual review of delegated authorities and
matters reserved 1o the Board

— Modern Slavery Act statement

— Chief Risk Officer review

- Local office presentation: Indonesia

— ICARA approval

- Rewview of Seed Capital Policy

— Rewview of FX and Liquidity Management
Framework Policy and activities

— External debt team presentation

- Tax presentation

-~ Interim ICARA update

— Cperational resitience update

- Appaintment of Ermnst & Young LLP as external
auditor, subject to shareholder approval

- Appontment of Thuy Dam as a Non-executive
Director

— Consumer Duty overview

— Compliance officer reports

— Renewal of the Group and funds’ insurances

- Operational resilience update

June 2023

— FY2024 Budget

- ESG presentation

- The Ashmore Foundation presentation
— Operatonal resiience update

Standing agenda items:

Declaration of Directors’ potential conflicts of
interest and any significant additionat time
commitments

Reports from Chairs of Committees

Monthly management report

Investor relations update

Strategy update

Additional meetings and training:

‘Meet the teams’ sessions

Non-executive Directors’ private sessions
Beard effectiveness review

Diversity and inclusion tramning

Remuneration Committes training in
preparation tor the review of the Directors’
Remuneration policy

Operational resiience feedback session
GDPR briefing (via the Audit and Risk Committee)
Cyber secunty update {wia the Audit and Risk
Committes}
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‘ AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

Providing oversight

and challenge

This report outlines the activities of
the Audit and Risk Committee for
the year ended 30 June 2023. The
Committee remains central to the
oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting, risk management, control
and assurance processes and internal
and external audit. During the year,
the Committee led the tender for

the Group’s external audit.

Shirley Garrood
Charr

Commiittee membership

The foltowing Directors served on the Committee
during the year:

— Shirley Garrood (member from 1 August 2022 and
Chayr from 23 January 2023)

- Chive Adamson {stood down as a member and
Chair on 23 January 2023)

— Jennifer Bingham

— Helen Beck

— Thuy Dam (from 1 June 2023)

The members of the Committee at the date of this report
are all ndependent Non-executive Directors

The Code states that the Char of the Board should not be
a member of the Audit and Risk Commuttee. For part of
the year, untl Clive Adamson stood down as a member
and Charr of the Commuttee, the Committee’s
composition was not fully compbhbant with the Code. An
explanation i1s given in the Nominations Committee report
on page 76.

The attendance record of Committee members 1s set out
in the table on page 62.

The Beard Is satisfied that for the year under review and
going forward, Shirley Garrood 1s the Committee member
with recent and relevant financial experience, and the
Committee as a whole has competence relevant 1o the
sector in which the Cormpany operates.

The terms of reference for the Committee can be tound
on Ashmore’'s wehsite.

72
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Meetings

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2023, the Commities held four
scheduled meetings. Each of these meetings Is divided into two
sessions: the first to address risk management and cormpliance
reporting; and the second to address financial and audit reporting.
The GFD, Head of Risk Management and Controi, Head of Internal
Audrit, Group Head of Finance and Group Head of Compliance are
invited to attend the relevant sessions of each meeting. The Charr
of the Committee typically holds one-to-one meetings prior to the
Committee meetings, with the attendees and the external auditor.

The Committee has adopted an integrated assurance approach to
assess the vanous key matters relative to 1ts terms of reference
and to satisty itself that the sources of assurance and information
the Committee has used 10 carry out its role to review, menitor and
provide assurance or recommendations to 1he Board are sufficiant
and objective. This approach reles on the work of the external
auditor, cn management assurances received through reports
from the GFD, the Group Head of Compliance, the Head of Risk
Management and Control, the Head of Internal Audit and the
Group Head of Finance, and on the exisung Ashmore governance
framework such as specialised management committees. Other
independent assurance 15 recetved from the complance monitonng
programme, Internal Audit and the externally audited ISAE 3402
report on the controf environment.

The Committee considered a range of standing topics throughout
the year, including product governance, balance sheet nsks and risk
appetite metncs, updates in ine with the IFPR reguirements on
capital and hquidity, and subsichary and funds reporting and
governance. The Committee also received reports on the Annual
Review ot Risk Management and Internal Control Systems as well
as special topics such as cyber security and GDPR. The Chair
reports 1o the Board on the business of each Committee meeting.

For each of the half-year and annual financial statements, a review
1s undertaken by a panel compnsing the GFD, the Head of Investor
Relations, the Group Company Secretary and the Group Head of
Finance to ensure that the reporting 15 ‘farr, balanced and
understandable’, and other members of senicr management attend
as appropriate. This review 1s taken into account by the Committee
in advising the Board as to whether these critena have been met.

Financial statements

The Commitiee reviewed the 2023 Annual Report and Accounts,
the intenm results and reports from the external auditor, KPMG
LLP, on the outcome of 1ts reviews and audits in FY2023.

Significant accounting matters

During the year, the Committee considered key accounting issues,
matters and judgermneants in relation 1o the Group's financial
statements and disclosures. The principal areas of estimates and
Judgements are disclosed in note 2 of the financial statements.




Other accounting matters

Dunng the year, the Committee receved communications

from management and from the external auditcr on other
accounting matters. The Cornmittee has also reviewed the
adoption of the going concern basis in preparing the intenm and
year end consolidated accounts and considered the longer-term
viability staternent for the Group, which 15 described in more
detall on page 39.

External auditor

KPMG LLP (including i1ts prior entity KPMG Audit plc) has acted as
external auditor to Ashmore since the IPO in October 2006. The
lead audit partner rotates every five years to ensure independence.

The external auditor provides reports at each Committee meeting
an topics such as the control environment, key accounting matters
and mandatcry communicatiens. An annual audit plan for the full
year and a review plan for the inienm statement are presented for
the Commitiee’s dpproval each year, covenng key audit matters
and scope. There were na new financial accounting Standards ar
Interpretations inissue and required to be adopted by the Group
during the current year.

The Committee aiso receives presentations from the independent
auditors of Ashmore sponsored SICAV, US 40 Act, Guernsey and
Cayman tunds auditors on the conduct and outcome of the audits
tor the yvear, including any key accounting matters and
developments, and no matenal 1ssuas wera raised.

External auditor independence

[t is the responsibility of the Committee to monitor the
performance, objectivity and independence of the external
auditor. A policy 15 i place for permitted non-audit services, 10
ensure that these do not imparr these requirements. In pracuce,
the maiority of such services provided to the Company by KPMG
LLP are closely related to audit work, All contracts for non-audit
services over £25,000 must be notfied to and approved by the
Charr of the Committee

In £Y2023 the value of non-audit services provided by KPMG LLP
amounted to £0.2 million {FY2022: £0.2 million). Non-audit services
as a proportion of total fees paid to the auditor were

approximately 20% (FY2022: 21%). The Committee considers this
proportion acceptable. The non-audit services provided related to
supplying mandatory assurance reports in relation to client assets
1o the FCA (as the regulator of Ashmore Investment Management
Limited and Ashimore investment Advisors Limited), a review of
Ashmore's half-year financial statements and for work on ISAE
3402. ISAE 3402 covers internal control systems and is applicable
10 Ashmore's offices in London and Dubiin, in ine with investment
managemerntt ndustry standards.

The assurance provided by the Group's external auditor on the
items listed above 1s considered by the Committee ta be strictly
necessary In the interests of the business and, by thewr nature,
these services could not easily be prowided by a separate
professional auditing hirm. KPMG LLP does not supply tax
compliance or adwisory services to the Group. Independent tax
advice 15 supplied by Deloitte LLP.

At the end of each Commuttee meeting, the Non-executive
Directors meet with the external and internal auditors without the
Executive Directors present to permit themn to raise any matiers of
concern in confidence.

Wisma 46 skyscraper downtown Jakarta, Indonesia

The Committee I1s required to assess the guality and effectiveness
of the external audit process as well as the controls and procedures
in place to ensure auditor independence and objectivity. Measures
taken by the Committee included detalled questions for both
management and the external auditor, and a review of the audit
quality statistics. Dunng the year, the Committee also recernved the
outcome of the FRC's Audit Quaiity Review of KPMG LLP’s audit
of the Company's 30 June 2022 financial statements, which was
undertaken as part of the FRC's annual inspection of audit firms
and in which no significant improvements were required. Based on
its review, the Committee concurred with management’s view that
there had been appropriate focus and challenge of the primary
areas of audit risk and assessed the quality of the audit to be
satisfactory. The Committee was salistied with the work of KPMG
LLP and considered that it remained objective and independent.

External audit tender

The Committee previcusly undertook a tender process in March
2016. Mandatory audit firm rotation 1s required after 20 years and a
re-tender must be conducted at least every 10 years.

During the year, the Committee led a comprehensive tender
process for the Group and funds’ external audits. On the basis that
the maximum of 20 years would scon be reached, KPMG LLP did
not participate in the tender.

Four firms were considered to have the required expertise and
geographical reach and were inwited 10 participate, including
‘challenger” firms, with two firms taking part in the tender. The
Committee cornmunicated with the two firms opting not 1o
participate In the tender to understand the reasons for this.
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Once the request for proposal setting out the scope of the
external audit and the expectations of the successfui firm had
been issued, written responses were submitted for consideration
by the Cormmittee at an adational meeting. A number of calls
and meetings were convenad with the tendering frms. The two
hirms were then invited 1o present to the Committee, following
which the Committee met to consider their recommendation

to the Board.

Throughout the process, the Committee was conscious of the
need 1o base its selection on audit qualiy, including independence,
challenge and technical competence, rather than price or perceved
cultural fit, and Committee discussions centred on these factors.
The Cormnmittee concluded that bath audt firm options presented
10 the Board would undertake a high-gquality external audit, and

the reasons tor the preference were set out for consideration

by the Board

At the conclusion of the tender process, the Committee
recommended 1o the Board that a resolution be putto
shareholders for the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the
Company's external auditor at the AGM. The Board accepted the
Commuittee’s recommendation and the negotiation of the audrt
fee was then concluded.

internal controls and risk management systems

The Head of Risk Management and Control attends each
scheduled meeting of the Commitiee and provides reports.
These reports have addressed a number of nisk-related topics and
have dermonstrated how the cutput of the different IC, RCC and
Pricing and Vatuation Meathodology Committeas’ discussons
throughout the penod have been effective i highhghting, tracking
and contributing towards managing key market, liquidity, credit,
counterparty and operational risks. For example, the Committee
received updates on the impact of the macre-economic condiions
ansing from the combined eftects of the Russia/Ukraine conilict
and China as well as globa! inflation and growth concerns and also
an trading counterparty exposure. In relation to operational nisk, the
Committee continued to review and discuss the Group’s Principal
Risk Matrix which functrons as an effective tool to tughlight and
monitor the principal risks facing the Group. During the year, the
Commntee reviewed chmate-related transition and physical risks,
as well as potential nsks redated to greenwashing.

The Cormmittee also recewed a repart an, and conducted a review
and evaluation of, the system of internal contro! and risk
management operated within the Company pursuant 1o the
Guidance, prior to final review by the Board.

During the vear, the Commitiee recetved reqular updates on the
Group's conschdated capital and liguidity positions in ine with the
IFPR requirements which took effect from January 2022, The
Committee also received a more detaled report on the first ICARA
for Ashmore Investment Management Lirited prior 1o its
publication in December 2022.

A detalled descrniption of the nsk management framework and the
manner In which risks are identified and managed Is set out on
pages 35 to 41.
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Inteynal Audit

The Intemal Audit function denves its authonty from the Board
and operates under 1ts own terms of reference that are reviewed
each year. The Board has delegated oversight of the function to
the Committee which 1s responsible for ensuring that it has
adequate standing, 1s properly resourced and free of management
of ather restrictions.

The Head of Internal Audit has regular meetings with the Chair

of the Committee and attends all scheduled meetngs of the
Committeg. The Committee coritinues to monitor the Internal Audit
plan on an ongoinig basis to ensure that it remamns affective and
relevant 1o the needs of the business and 1o ensure that it can be
adapted or changed If a particular focus area necessitates this.

Duning the year, the Committee receved presentations fram
Internat Audit on a number of topics including the Internal Audit
plan for the year and the outcomes of any internal audits conducted
dunng the period under review. The Commiitee also receved
presantations from Internal Audit on the implementation of the
assurance framewaork in the year and the results ot the assurance
review over the effectiveness of the controls and mitigants in
place for the principal nsks. Based on the work described, and in
accardance with the requirements of the Internal Audit Financial
Services Code of Practice, Internal Audit has provided the
Committee with its assessment of the overall effectiveness of
Ashmorg's governance and nsk and control framework and i1s
conclusions with regard to Ashmore's adherence to 1is risk
appette framework.

Internal Audit prowvides annual confirmations to the Committes

on four areas: internal independence, Internal Audit's ongoing
conformance with relevant professional standards, any potential
conflicts of interest and the ongoing suitability of the Internal Audit
terms of reterence. In addition, the Internal Audit Financial Services
Code of Practice recommends that committees should abtain an
independent and objective external assessment of the Internal
Audit function at feast every five years, and that this assessment
should explicitly include whether internal Audit conforms with the
Internal Audht Financial Services Code of Practice. Accordingly, the
Commuttee approved BDO LLP 1o conduct this independent review
and they presented ther fimdings 1o the Committee duning the
year. The conclusions were that Ashmore's Internal Audit function
demonstrates 'general conformance’ with the standards laid out by
the institute of Internal Auditors Standards and the Financial
Services Code in &l areas. The review alsp recommended minor
enhancements and the Committee 1s pleased 1o report that these
have been implemented, mcfuding the publicatien of the Internal
Audit Charter on the Group's website.

After due consideration, and in accordance with the Internal Audit
Financial Services Code of Pracuce, the Committee remaing
satisfied that the guaity, expernence and expertise of the Internal
Audit function are appropniate, that it 1s operating eftectively for the
business and that it has adequate and appropriate resources 1o
fulhl vis remt.



The Gardens by the Bay, Singapore

Compliance

In order to ensure a co-ordinated reporting process with the Risk
Management and Internal Audit functions, Compliance is invited
1o attend and present to the Committee at 1ts regular scheduled
meetings. Reports from Complhiance include detalls of the Group's

interactions with regulators, the compliance monitoring programme,

material breaches, errors and complaints, ant-money laundering
controls and sanctions compliance. The Committee also
approves the compliance monitoring programme and reviews
the Group's procedures for ensunng compliance with regulatory
reporting requirements.

Information security

Infarmation security, including cyber security, 1s identified as a
principal sk to the business and is subject to Ashmore's
governance, policies and pracedures and nisk assessment.
The Committee receives annual updates from the Ashmore

IT department on cyber securty developments and potential
cyber secunty threats and how Ashmore would respond to a
significant event. During the year the Committee also receved
a bniefing on GDPFR.

Shirley Garrood
Char of the Audit and Risk Committee

5 September 2023
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NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

Ensuring a fair and

' balanced Board

This report details the role of the
Nominations Committee and the
important work it has undertaken
during the year ended 30 June 2023.

The Committee’s focus has continued to
be on maintaining a strong, value-
adding and effective Board, with a broad
range of professional backgrounds, skills
and perspectives.

Clive Adamson
Chair

Committee membership

The following Directors served on the Committee during
the year and to the date of this report:

- Clive Adamson (Chair}

— Jennifer Bingham

- Helen Beck

Shirley Garrood {from 1 August 2022)

- Thuy Dam {from 1 June 2023)

|

The Committee’s membership was fully compliant with
the Code. Clve Adamsan was an independent
Non-executive Directer prior to taking up his appointment
as Committee Char. The other Committee members are
independent Non-executive Directors, Shirley Garrood
joned the Board and the Commuittee on 1 August 20272,
Thuy Dam joined the Board and the Committee on

1 June 2023,

The attendance record of the Committee members 15 set
out In the table on page 62.

The terms of reference for the Commitiee can be found
on Ashmore’s website.
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During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Committee met
five times and was fully compliant with the Code in respect of
11s own proceedings.

Only Commitiee members have the right to attend 1ts meetings.
Other individuals such as the CEQ, the Group Head of Human
Resources, senor management and external advisers may
attend meetings as and when appropnate.

As previously reported, following the retirement of David Bennett
as Non-executive Director and Chair of the Board on 20 April 2022,
Chve Adamson was appointed as the new Charr of the Board and
Charr of the Nominations Cormmittee In his place. The Committee
agreed to recommend 1o the Board that Clive should retain his
existing role as Charr of the Audit and Risk Committee on an
interim basis, given that he had the most appropriate experience,
and he continued in that role whilst a successor was found.

In this respect, the Committee noted that, for a pencd, the
Company would not be in comphance with the Code requirement
that the Chair of the Board should nat be a member of the

Audrt and Risk Cammittee.

Chve Adamson stood down as a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee on 23 January 2023, and Shirley Garrood took over
as Charr of that Committee from that date.

Shirley Garrood joined the Board as a Non-executive Director on

1 August 2022, and the process leading to her appointment was
set out in the FY2022 Annual Report and Accounts. Following her
appointment, the Cormmittee’s focus on Non-executive Directar
succession planning continued, and 11 was agreed that an additional
Non-executive Director weuld strengthen the Board. The
Committee undertook 1o source potential candidates with
Emerging Markets expenence to ennch Board discussions and
who had the nght combmation of skills and experience in the
context of Ashmore’s commitment to diversity and mclusion. As a
result of this search, Thuy Dam was appointed to the Board as a
Non-executive Director on 1 June 2023,

Thuy Dam was identified as a potential candidate by the CEQ given
therr industry connections during their penod working together at
ANZ. In considering her appropriateness, the Committee focused
on Thuy's extensive Emerging Markets expertise and valuable
local market insights. The Commutiee also undertock a thorough
investigation inta her skills, past expenence, other tme
commitments and any potential conflicts of interest. Theretore,
while the Committee 15 aware of the Code expectation that an
external search consultancy or open advertising should generally
be used for the sourcing of candidates, given the avaitability and
suitability of Thuy Dam as well as the cost savings involved, 1t was
considered that departure from this expectation was acceptable.
Since joning the Board on 1 June 2023, Thuy Dam has undertaken
a comprehensive induction programme which included meetings
with all department heads 10 enable her to gather further insights
into the firm and 1ts operations,



During the year, the Committee considered the composition of the
Board, particularly in the context of the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and the recommendations of the Parker Review and the
FTSE Women Leaders Review. Following Shirley Garrood and Thuy
Dam's appointmeants, 57% of the Board members are women, the
Senior Indrpandent Director 1s a2 woman, and there 1s one ethnic
rminority mernber of the Board. In ine with the recommendauotis
of the Parker Review, the Committee agreed a target to be
achieved by the end of 2027 of 40% tfor ethnic minority
membership of the senior management team, defined as the
Operating Committee and their direct reports whao are leaders. The
Committee also monitored progress towards the target for the end
of 2025 of 40% women in the semior management team as set by
the FTSE Women Leaders Review. Detalls of the gender and
ethnicity balance of the Board, the senior management and the
workforce as a whole are provided on pages 47 and 48 1n
accordance with the Listing Bules.

In order to assist with ensuring that the Group diversity policies
remain in line with best practice and 1o monitor their
implementation, particularly in light of the various diversity
initiatives, the Commuttee agreed to establish a new Diversity
Committee during the year. This committee 1s chaired by Jennifer
Bingham, with employees including the Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary and the Group Head of HR as members,
and will report to the Nominations Commuttee at least annually.

The Committee’s terms of reference require 1t to note any changes
1o Ashmore's leadership with a view to ensuring the Company's
continued abilty to compele effectively in the marketplace,

During the year, any changes 1o the roles held by senior
management were noted and succession plans for the leadership
team were reviewed and agreed to be satisfactory.

The Committee 15 also tasked with considering significant new
appointrents for Non-executive Directors 1o ensure that any
additional time commitment does not compromise their
commitment to their roles at Ashmore and, as part of this, the
Committee also notes when previcus external roles come to an
end. Durning the year, the Committee considered propesals for
Non-executive Directors to take on other roles. Taking into account
the proposed ume commitments of each of these new roles and
the time already committed to existing roles, it was decided that
they would not impair the Directors’ commitment to Ashmore.
Having contfirmed that there were no conflicts of interest, these
proposed appointments were considered and approved.

Kathedraal van Jakarta, Jakarta, Indonesia

Following the tnenmat externally facilitated Board evaluation in
2027 and the imernal assessment of the Board's performance
carned out n 2022, this year there was another internal Board
effectiveness review in accordance with the Code. As part of this
process, the Chair interviewed each Director and held discussions
with the Board, together wath the Group Company Secretary,
focusing on the Board's prionties during the year, the committees’
responsibiities and how they were discharged, and the quality of
reporting. Jennfer Bingham, 1n her capacity as Senor Independent
Director, also conducted an appraisal of Clive Adamson in his role
as Charr. It was concluded that the Board and each of its
committees is operating effectively and the Board 1s satisfied with
the governance structures in place and with the guality of
information being provided. The Board agreed areas of focus for
the coming year, including continuing to embed the two Non-
executive Directors who have joined the Board duning the year,
centinued focus on etficiency and oversight of culiure, and
opportunities for informal catch ups of the Non-executive Directors
between scheduled meetings and Board dinners,

Clive Adamson
Chair of the Norminations Committee

5 September 2023
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Ensuring alignment between
employees and shareholders

This report outlines the activities of
the Remuneration Committee for the
financial year ended 30 June 2023.
The Committee is responsible for
setting and overseeing the operation
of the Remuneration Policy for both
Executive Directors and the wider
workforce. During the year, the
Committee has consulted widely
with shareholders on our proposed
Directors’ Remuneration Policy,

Helen Beck
Chair

Committee membership
The following Directors served on the Committee during
the year and to the date of this report:

— Helen Beck (Chair)

- Clive Adamson

— Jennifer Bingham

~ Shirley Garrood (from 1 August 2022)
— Thuy Bam {from 1 June 2023)

Shurley Garrood 1owned the Board and the Commuittee on
1 August 2022, and Thuy Dam joined the Board and
Commutiee on 1 June 2023.

Chve Adamson was an independent Non-axecutive
Director pros 1o taking up his appomitment as Charr of
the Board within the meaning of the Code. The other
Commuttee members are independent Non-exacutive
Directors of the Board. Only Committee members have
the night to attend rts meetings. Other executives may
be invited to attend as the Committee requests.

The attendance record of Commmittee members 1s set
out in the table on page 62.
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Activities

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Committee met seven
umes and was fully comphant with the Code in respect of its
Qwn proceedings

The key focus of the Commuttee dunng FY2023 has been an
extansive review and gonsultation precess with shareholders n
relation to the new Directors’ Remuneration Palicy, which will be
put to shareholders at the 2023 AGM.

in order that sufficient time was available to the Committee to
consider the new Duectors’” Remuneration Palicy, additional
Comumittee meetings were held dunng the year, which includad a
specific hsted company market practice review delivered 1o the
Committee by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Dunng the year, the Commitiee also implemented changes 10 the
Group's share plan 1in order 10 ensure comphance with the FCA's
MIFIDPRU remuneration rulas as they relate 1o malus and clawback
tar employees considered to be material nsk takers, as well as
other employees, and undertook a review of employee benefits

Performance during FY2023

As noted in detail on pages 10 and 11, the past year has provided
encouragmg evidence that the cychcal recovery has begun across
Emerging Markets despite continuing geopolitical and
macroeconomic headwinds. Against this backdrop, Ashmore has
debvered meaningful iInvestmeant outperformance for chents with
89% oif AuM ouiperforming therr benchmarks over three years
{FY2022: 26%).

The Group's financiai performance naturally lags the turn in markets
and so despite encouraging momentum in client activity levels over
the year, average AuM was 30% lower and net revenue fell by
25%. However, a focus on cost control, and migher levels of
interest earned on cash batances, meant that profit pefore tax was
just 6% lower.

Ashmore has expenenced many cycles in moere than 30 years
of speciabst investing 1n Emerging Markets and its distinctve
culture and Hexible remuneration structure are designed to
mitigate the impact of fluctuating AuM ieveis on 1ts operational
and Hinancral performance.



The Committee, with input froem the Committee Chair and CEQ,
has dacided to increase the proportion of profits pad to employees
In variable remuneration this year 10 25% (FY2022: 21.5%]). In
absolute terms, the sum available for annual bonuses 1s 24% lower
than in FY2Q22. However, the higher percentage payout reflects
the Committee’s desire to reward key employees for the much
improved investment outperfermance, continued chent focus and
support from the distribution teams in challenging markets, and the
strength of the cunbiul and operational funrtinns,

Disclosure

The Commuttee has provided greater transparency in the
disclosures made in relation 1o annual performance in the Annual
Report on Remuneration and there remains full disclosure of the
performance measures used to determine vesting for share awards
with additional performance condtions attached.

Executive Directors’ performance assessment and
reward for FY2023

Despite improved investment performance during FY2023, financial
performance as usual lags due to the delayed impact on net
inflows. As a result, the CEQ reqguested 1o wave any award for this
vear and the Commitiee agreed to make no bonus award,

The Committee assessed that the GFD had performed well in
FY2023, which has been the first full year of tus expanded
responsibilities, and he has demonstrated strong personal
performance. However, with the business reporting reduced
profitability, the Commuttee has determined that his borus should
be reduced by 10% reiative to the amount awarded in FY2022 and
that 70% of the award should be delivered in restricled shares. His
bonus far FY20231s £720,000.

Shares awarded to the Executive Directors in 2017 that were
subyect 1o performance conditions were due to vest during the
period. No shares vested as a result of the applhcation of the
performance conditions, and the Committee did not use therr
discretion to vary this outcome.

Shares awarded to the Executive Directors in 2018 will be due 1o
vest in September 2023, based on the application of performance
condrticns to the end of FY2023. The application of performance
conditions wall result In 17% of the shares vesting. The Committee
does not intend to apply 1ts discretion to vary these outcomes.

Executive Directors’ salaries FY2024

The CEQ’s base salary will remain unchanged at £100,000.
However, In ine with the new remuneration policy, the base salary
cap will be increased to £150,000. The Commuttee felt 1t was
appropniate that the GFD's base salary is increased 10 £140.000 1n
line wath other senior employees.

All employee remuneration

The Committee has spent ime this year considering all employee
remuneration and benefits, to ensure that, whilst maintaining
Ashmore’s flexible remuneration structure, which this year has
reduced the surn available tor varable remuneration by 24%,
consideration is given 1o salary levels and benefrts to recognise the
current inflationary environment. As can been seen in figure 10 on
page 108, relevant employee salaries were increased by 11% on
average during the penod, significantly ahead of previous penods,
with the focus being on those whu iecerve lowoer total
compensation. Taking into account the performance achieved, the
impact on relevant employees’ annual bonus payments in FY2023
can be seen in figure 10 on page 102, as an average reduction
relative to FY2022 of 8%.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Durning FY2022 the Committee has undertaken an extensive review
of the current Directors’” Remuneration Policy and has consulted
with shareholders and proxy voung agencies in relation 1o the new
Directors” Remuneration Policy {the Policy) which will be put to
shareholders at the 2023 AGM.

Throughout the review process It has been the Committee’s
intention 10 retain as much of Ashmore’s uniquely flexible
remuneration model for the Executive Directors as possible, to
retain their alignment with all other Group empioyees, clients and
shareholders and to ensure that the reward structure remans
aligned with the business strategy and culture of Ashmore, whilst
including some of the mare comman elements of remuneration
structures a number of shareholders have expressed a desire to
see adopted.

A summary of the key changes proposed as part of the new Policy
are set cut on the following pages.

An overview of the remuneration review process the Commitiee
undertook can be tound on pages 81-84 and the new Policy can be
found on pages 85-93, with detalls relating to the performance of
the Executive Directors in FY2023 on pages 96-38 followed by the
Annual Report on Remuneration from page 102.

We look forward to the support of our shareholders in adopting our
new Policy at the 2023 AGM, and thank all those who were so
involved In the consuitation process and shaping 1ts development.

Helen Beck
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee

5 September 2023
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The Chief Executive Officer's remuneration outcomes
The CEO was not awarded a bonus for FY2023, retlecting overall
tinancial performance durng the period,

Salary 90.4%
Pensions 8.1%
Taxabie benefits 1.5%
Annual cash bonus 0%

Annual bonus deferred

MO equity 0%
Annyal bonus deferred

Nto equity, with addimonal
performance conditions 0%

Long term mcentive awards made to Executive Directors’ in 2017
which were subject 10 the appiication of performance condiions
lapsed in full.

Vesting 0%
Lapsing 100%

Chief Executive Officer — variable remuneration
outcomes over time'

The chart below shows vanable remuneration awarded to the
CEQ each year between 2012 and 2023. As can be seen, the
Remureration Committee exercises its discretion in setting the
annual award at an approprate level based on the performance of
the business.

REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

FY2023 Executive Director reward outcomes

The Group Finance Director’s remuneration outcomes
The GFD's annual bonus compnising cash and restrcted

share awards at grant velue for FY20231s £720,000

[FY2022: £1.040,000).

Salary 13.7%
Pensions 1.3%
Taxable benefits 05%
Annual cash bonus 24.7%

Annual bonus deferred

no equity 30.2%
Annual bonus deferred

Into equity, with addimonat
perorrmance conditions 29.6%

17% of long term incentive awards rmade to Executive Directors’ in
2018, are due to vestin FY2024, which are after the application of
periormance condtions,

Vesting 17%
Lapsing 83%

Comparison of total remuneration and dividends
paid?

The chart below compares the annual total cost of remuneration
paid to employees, comprising personnel expenses and variable
remuneration, with the value of ordinary dwvidends paid to
shareholders in each year

T This chart includes data on shares awarded between 2611 and 2017 which vested between 2016 and 2022 Nc cash bonus or shares were awarded in 2014, 2029,
2022 or 2023 10 reflect business performance and the Rermunergton Commitiee’s spphcation of stnet Shscreton The cran wall be LUpdated n fulure years 1o snow the

vesting outcomes for shares awarded from 2017 onwards
2. Dwdends includes the estimated cost of the proposed final divdend for FY2023
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- Directors’ Remuneration policy review for implementation in FY2024
i Balancing shareholder requirements while retaining Ashmore’s culture

The existing Directors’ Remuneration Policy was approved by against the principles of clarity, simphicity, nsk management,
sharsholders in 2020 for a three-year penod, and at the 2023 AGM, predictability, proportionality and cuftural alignment.
Ashmore will ask shareholders to vote on a new Paolicy. In
determining the new Palicy, the Remuneration Commiitee
conducted a robust review of the existing Policy and the
Company's remuneration principles against the Company’s strategy
and the appreoach taken for the wider workforce.

The new Policy continues to place emphasis on vanable
remuneration being focused on performance measures linked 1o
Ashmore's strategy and long-term algnment through delivering a
high percentage of the varable remunaration in equity.

The Committee’'s aim 1s to evoive the Policy that has supported the
Group's strategy well, providing cost flexibility in a cyclical business
and creating an equity ownership culture that retains highly
motivated staff, delivering investment performance for clients and
incentivising value creation for shareholders across market cycles.

The Commuttee also sought teadback from management and
shareholders, including through consultation meetings with a large
majority of instituhonal sharehoiders and meetings with the pnimary
proxy voling agencies. The Committee also assessed the Policy

Ashmore’s fundamental remuneration principles are:

Alignment with stakeholders
A signmificant portion ot remuneration 1s delivered in Ashmore shares deferred over five years This provides alignment between employees,
executives and shareholders.

Base salanes are capped at lower market levels to ensure that fixed costs are ughtly controlied.

Under the new Policy there will be compulsory deferral of at least 70% of the bonus into Ashmore shares for a period of five years, creating
significant shareholder alignment
A porticn ot the Executive Directors' variable remuneration, defivered in the form of a new Long Term incentive Pian, will be subject to the
achievernent of performance targets, closely aligned with the Group's KPIs normally over five years,

Alignment with the Group's financial perfarmance 15 critical, with the Remuneration Committee balancing the total spend on remuneration with
Ashrmare’s financial performance, which determines a significant proportion of the variable remuneration outcomes.

Discretion and flexibility
Vanable remuneration is not fermulaic or capped at an indwidual level, an important element of Ashmere’s culture that 1s cascaded throughout the
Company. This allows the Remuneration Committee to apply discretion to ensure that awards reflect business and personal performance, as
evidenced in previous years where there has been a strang pay for performance linkage, thus, the behavioural nisk ansing from target-based
Incentives 1s absent. As part of the new Policy we have introduced an aggregate vanable remuneration cap for the Executive Directors which 13 an
approach to balance some sharehoiders' requests for individual caps and maintain thus key compoenent of Ashmore’s culture. The LTIP cutcome 18
formulaic against performance measures and targets set at the start of the performance period tor five years.

Consistency across the Group
The clear and simple policy has applied to all Ashmore Group employees, a maternial factor in defining and shaping the Ashmore culture.

The proposed Policy seeks to retain a high level of consistency of remuneration across all Group employees with low base salary caps for
employees and Executive Directors who will continue to have the same pension and benefits as our UK employees. The proposed Policy aims 10
mairtain a consistent approach to deferral between employees and Executive Directors. As set out later on, the matching share plan has been
removed for Executive Directors however, it will be retained for other employees Key to the entrepreneunal culture of Ashmore 1s having no
individual caps to remyneration; the proposed aggregate vanable remuneration cap for Executive Directors retains this crucial element of
Ashmore's culture whilst also taking intc account the views of some of aur shareholders

Pay for long-term performance
The Remuneration Comnttee considers the performance of the Executive Directors over the long term, considenng progress over a multi-year
period and annual performance in the context of the business progress made towards 1ts strategic objectives and KPls

Awards are deferred aver five years into Ashmore shares, and the LTIP for Executives Directors will have a five-year performance pered,
significantly longer than the usual FTSE reward structure.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)
DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION POLICY REVIEW FOR iIMPLEMENTATION

IN FY2024 (CONTINUED)

Policy changes
Removwal of the matching share plan

The Committee has removed the matching share plan for Executive
Directors. The matching share plan will be replaced with a separate
annual bonus and LTiP, detailed below. This provides a simplhfied
and market-aligned remuneraticn structure. The matching share
plan will be retained for employees other than Executive Directors.

Annual bonus

The new Policy mandates that for Executive Directors at least 70%
of annual bonus will be subject to deferral INto Ashmore shares that
will cliff vest after five years.

A defenial of at least 70% for five years s significantly above
current market practice and regulatory requirements. However, this
aligns Executive Directors with employees who make the full
voluntary deferral into the existing share matching plan. This leve!
ot deferral also ensures significant alignment of Executive Directors
with shareholders, an important aspect of Ashmore’s culture that
the Commitiee believes 1s impaortant to retain.
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Annual bonus performance measures

The Committee will determine the annual bonus by assessing key
financial and non-financial metncs of Ashmore's performance. The
most tughly weighted elements will relate to the Company’s
financial performance and for FY2024 will include key Group
metrics such as, but not muted to. profitability, adjusted EBITDA
margin, management of costs, AuM development and investment
performance relative 1o benchmarks over one, three and five years
by investment theme.

The non-financial performance measures for FY2024 will include
metrics such as strategic developments, risk management,
compliance matters, outcomes for investors and clients,
employees, culture and conduct, ESG metrics, and personal
objectuves, e g. management of teams and departments.

This provides the Remuneration Committee with an overview of
Ashmore’s business performance, supports Ashmore’s
sustainability values and meets regulatory and shareholder
requirements, The annual bonus will also be subject 1o appropnate
nsk and compliance review and malus and clawback 1t approprate.

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Linking remuneration to leng-term performance 1s a fundamental
element of Ashmore's culture; therefare the proposed introduction
of an LTIP for the Executive Directors aims to reinforce this
important value.

The LTIP will normally be measured over five years and will
incorporate consistent performance measures as currently used to
determine the vesung of Executive Directors’ deferred awards with
performance conditions, namely:

— investment performance relative to benchmarks over three and
five years;

— growth in assets under management over five years, and

- profitability.

These measures represent the key drnvers of Ashmore’s long-term

performance, but will be kept under review by the Remuneration

Committee The measures will be fully disclosed when the LTIP Is

awarded and performance relative to the measures will be fully

disclosed at the vesting measurerment point after five years, The \
LTIP will also be subject to malus and clawback f appropriate. i




Following shareholder feedback, the Committee has deterrmined
that the value of the LTIP will be eguivalent 1c at least 25% of the
individual annual bonus awarded and can be up 10 100% ot the total
varigble remuneration award made in a year, subject to overall
performance and atfordabiity.

Introduction of an aggregate Executive Directors’ variable
remuneration cap

Ashrmore’s current policy does not apply caps or targets to
individual incentives. Ashmore’s employees are not provided with
target ranges or maximum levels of varable remuneration. The
reward philcsophy has been, and will continue to be,
entrepreneunal and pays only for performance, in that all incentives
are discretionary and linked to overall Company and mdividual
performance. Therefore, ymposing individual variable remuneration
caps on the Executive Directors would be countercultural,

As discussed during Ashmaore’s consultation meetngs with
shareholders and proxy voting agencies, the Committee 1s
proposing 1o introduce an aggregated variable remuneration cap for
the two Executive Directors of £20 million. The cap will be based
on the total bonus and LTIP awarded inrespect of a performance
year and 15 intended to provide addiional certainty 1o shareholders,
whitst maintaining flexibiity to operate a fuily vanable pay approach.
In establishing the level of vanable remuneration cap, the
Committee has considered the previous highest remuneration
levels paid to Ashmore’s Executive Directors, the impact of inflation

over time and external compensation benchmarking dats sourced
independently from AON/McLagan and based on a peer group of
global asset management organisations appropriate to Ashrmore,
The cap is set at a level to provide headroom 1o reward
performance In years of considerable financial growth,

The Remuneration Commuttee has always placed considerable
focus on variable remuneration being aligned with Company
performance and, as highhighted by the chart below, has
demonstrated that 1t 1s prepared to reduce Executive Director
remuneration levels when there are penods of dimimished business
performance and increase them when 1t :s justified in doing so.

The discretion that the Remuneration Committee can apply,
combined with the absence of threshold or target levels that
produce formulaic outcomes, means that Ashmore’s remuneration
oulcomes are more vanable than may be seenin peer
organisations but more accurately reflect and align with the
econcmic performance of the business and the experience of
clients and shareholders The Committee also remains highly aware
that in deterrmining variable remuneration, 1t 1s essential that an
appropriate balance between returns to sharehclders and
employees 15 maintained.

In order 1o provide some clarity to shareholders, when the previous
highest award level is considered, the business performance across
the key Group KPIs is shown overleaf,

Ashmore CEO and GFD aggregate variable
remuneration

AON/MclLagan aggregate peer group market data
for CEO and GFD roles’

1. Source’ AON/MclLagan, 2021 data.
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IN FY2024 (CONTINUED)

Business performance in FY2011, when the highest
variable awards to date were made

FYzo11
AuM ($bn) 65.8
YoY growth 86%
Revenues (Em) 3338
YoY growth 17%
Adjusted EBITDA (£m) 250.9
Adjusted EBITDA margin 73%
Diluted EPS (p) 28.1
YoY growth 18%
AuM outperforming over 1 & 3 years 99% / 91%
Aggregate variable remuneration for £12

Executive Directors {Em)

It should be noted that the Commutiee has, in recent years,
reduced vanable remuneration awards when key Group KPIs have
not been achieved, and this will continue with the new Policy

Base salary positioning

Ashmore’s base salares are capped at or below the lower end of
the markat 10 ensure that fixed costs are tightly controlled and that
a rmore significant proportion of total remuneration is determined by
Company and individual performance than at peer organisations.
The Remuneration Commuttes reviewed and considered the base
salary for Executive Directors levels compared with market data
provided by Deloitte LLP and AON/Mclagan. The base salary cap
will move to £150,000, which 1s consistent with the base salary cap
for other UK employees, and remains significanily below market
levels. The salary level for the CEQ for FY2024 will remain
unchanged at £100,000. The salary for the GFD has been reviewed
and will increase to £140,000, taking into acceunt his increased
responsipilities through the fuil period and in aignment with other
senor employees within Ashmore,

Shareholding requirement during employment and
post-employment

in response to sharehoider feedback, the Remunerauon Commrttee
has reviewed the current sharehotder requirement lavel of 200% of
base salary and has increased it to 300% of base salary dunng
empioyment and for two years post-employment,

Remuneration disclosure

Discretion and flexibility are crucial elements of Ashrmore's Policy, and
therefore, formulaig arrangerents are not part of the Company’s
remuneration culture. The key measures of performance for the annua!
honus are outined above and are aligned with Ashmore's stategy,
placing a heavy emphasis on financial results. Ashimare has provded
greater transparency in the disclosures made 1n relation to these in the
Annual Report on Remuneration. There s currently tull disclosure of the
performance measures used 1o determine vesting for share awards
with addihonat performance conditions attached, and this ievel of
disclosure will continue with the new LTIP.
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REMUNERATION BEPORT {(CONTINUED)
DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION POLICY REVIEW FOR IMPLEMENTATION

Non-executive Director fees

To align with typical market practice it is proposed that going torwards

Non-executive Director fees will be structured wath a base fee and

separale fees for additional responsibilities. The Non-executive Director

base fae will be set at £60,000, with an additional fee of £15,000 for

the Senior Independent Director, Audit and Risk Committee Charr, and

Remuneration Cormmittee Chair. The Char fee wall remain at

£150,000, inclusve of Chaiing the Nominations Comimuttee.

This change will result in an increase 1n the fee for the Senicr ,
Independent Director to £75,000

Key Policy Changes

Neaw Polcy Current Policy

Base salary £150,000 £120,000

Annual bonus With at Jeast 70% 40% mandatory

mandatory deferral deterral with

for 5 years volurtary deferral

above this

LTiP LTIP for 5 years Matching share plan
Cap Aggregate Cap tor Uncapped at an i

Executive Directors indmidual level

Shareholding

requirements 300% of base salary 200% of base salary

Policy review conclusion

The new Policy incorporates the views of shareholders and retans
key elements that remain ahgned with Ashmore's culture and
long-term business strategy. A consistent remuneration structure
across all employees has been and remains vital, and this structure
1s retained by introducing a high level of deferral for the Executive
Directors. Ashmore focuses on long-term performance, with
deferral of the majomy of annual bonus for five years and the

LTIP bewng based principally on pedormance over five years,

Both the deferral penods and proportion of remuneration, which 1s
deferred into equity, are significantly greater than Ashmore's peers,
Ashmore values the consistency of approach with other employees
and past practices and the alignment it creates with clients and
shareholders. These awards are aiso subject to a full nsk and
compltance review and both malus and clawback If approprate.

The new Policy retamns a critical element of the current policy by not
introducing indiidual variable remuneration caps, whiie also
providing an aggregate vanable remuneration cap for the Executive
Dreciors 10 address anissue rarsed by ceriain shareholders
through the consultation process

Ashrnore would like 1o thank all those sharehoiders angd proxy
agencies who engaged with this process and whose feedback and
candid challenge were highly valuable, allowing the Committee 10
conciude that it shouid adapt the policy but retam a number of
aspects which are fundamentai 10 Ashmare's culture.



policy

This secticn of the Remuneration report has been prepared in
accordance with Part 4 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations
2013 and sets put the Remuneration Policy for the Company.

The Doy L Ligwn doveloped taking mig guaauint the prncples of
the Lode and shareholders’ executive remuneration guidelines. It 1s
intended that the Policy will be put befare shareholders for approval
by way of a binding vote at the Company’'s AGM on 18 Qctober
2023. If approved by shareholders, the Policy will apply for up to
three years from FY2024,

Policy overview

The Remuneration Committee determings and agrees with the
Board the Company’s Policy on the remuneration of the Board
Chairman, Executive Directors and senior managers, including
employees designated as matenal risk takers or code staff under
the FCA’s Remuneration Codes The Bemunerstion Commitiee’s
terms of reference are available on the Company's website.

In deterrmining the new Policy, the Committee followed a robust
process that included discussions on the content of the Palicy at four
Remuneration Committee meetings. The Committee considered
Input from management and adwvisers PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
and Delontte LLP and sought the views of Ashmore's major
shareholders, further detail of which is set out below. The
Committee also assessed the Policy against the pnnciples of

clarty, simplicity, nsk management, predictability, proportionality

and cultural ahgnment.

The key aims underpinning the review were;

- the need to encourage and promote the long-term success of
the Company;

— the need to attract, retain and motivate talented Executive
Directors and senior management;

— consistency with the remuneration principles applied to Ashmaore
employees as a whole;

- external comparnisons to examine current market trends and
practices and equivalent roles in similar companies taking into
acceunt their size, business complexity, international scope and
relstive pertormance; and

- the requrements of the Remuneration Codes of the FCA.

Directors’ Remuneration

Key changes to Remuneration policy
The key changes to the policy are:

1. Slmputicoticn of e vatidkie ernsratien plan by
remowing the voluntary deferral and the performance and
non-performance related share matching element;

2. Anincrease in the level of compulsory deterral of the
annual bonus 1o at least 70% of the award, normally for a
penod of five years;

3. The introduction of a separate Long-Term Incentive Plan
element, normally with a five-year performance period;

4. The introduction of an aggregated cap on Executive
Director variable remuneration;

B, Anincrease in the shareholding guideline for the CEO and
GFD 1o 300%;

6. Anincrease of the base salary cap from £120,000 to
£150,000; and

7. The annual Non-executive Director fee will now be
structured to align with current market practice of a base
fee and a supplementary fee for Commitiee Chairs and a
Senior Independent Director fee.

Other changes have been made to aid operation and
Increase clarity.

How the views of shareholders are taken

into account

In developing this Policy, the Committee Char met with
shareholders representing a substantial majonty of 11s shareholder
hase and the proxy voting agencies.

The Committee has made a number of changes to the Policy to
take into account shareholder feedback, including the introduction
of an aggregate cap on Executive Directors’ vanable remuneration,
removal of the matching shares element for Executive Directors’,
an increase in the level of annual bonus compulscry deferral, the
introduction ot a LTIP, a commitment that the value of the LTIP
wil typically be equivalent to no less than 25% of the Executive
Cirector's tatal annual banus award for the year, and an increase
to the shareholding guidelnes.

The feedback received as pant of this process has been positive and
constructive and we thank shareholders for their ume
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EMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)
IRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

Figure 1

Remuneration Policy {the Policy} for Executive Directors

Policy table
The table below summarises the key aspects of the Company’s Remuneration policy for Executive Directors.

Purpose and link to
short and long-term
strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity

Base salary

Benefits

Pension

86

Provides a sufficient
level of fixed
remuneration. The
cap on base salary
helps to contain
fixed costs.

Prowide cost-effective
beneiits 1o support health
and wellbeing.

Base salanes are paid monthly in cash. This
reflects broader practice below the Board.

Cansistent with the approach taken
throughout the Company, base
salarigs tor all emplayees, including
Executive Directors’ are currently
capped at £150,000.

The cap is reviewed penodically;

the Palicy permits the cap to be
changed if thus 1s deemed necessary
1@ meet busmness, legislative or
regulatory requiremeants.

Executive Directors are eligible to recerve
benehits in line with other UK employees.
Benefits currently include (but are not imited
to) medical insurance and life insurance. The
Company may reimburse any reasonable
business related expenses (including tax

thereon) incurred In connection with their role,

if these are determined 1o be taxable benefits.

Addwional benefits may be provided it
required, for example, in the event of a
relocation of an executive, the Company may
provide appropnate relocation assistance

Prowides a basic level of
Company contribution,
which individuals can
supplement with therr
own cantitbutton.

Company contnbutions are made, normally on
a defined contribution basis, either 10 a
pension plan or in the form of an equivalent
cash allowance.

Ashmore Graup plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Benefits are not subject to a specthe
cap, but represent only a small
percentage of total remuneration.

The current level of Company
contribution 15 9% of base salary, with

a further matching contribution of up to
1% of base salary, should the Executive
Birector make a personal contnibution of
an equivalent amaunt. The contribution
level for Executive Directors is currently
aligned with UK employees.

Whilst no changes are currently
anucipated, 1t is intended that any
changes to the pension Policy for UK
employees, or 1o participants in the
pension plan in the relevant country,

will also apply 1o the Executive Directors,




Purpose and link to
short and long-term
strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity

Aggregate
variable
remuneration
cap

To provide shareholders
with clarity on the
maximum variable
remuneraticn that may
be awarded 1o Executive
Directors each year.

The Palicv raps the aggregate variahle
remuneration for Executive Directors rather
than cap individual awards. The cap 15 based
on the grant value or award value made in
that year.

Tha aggregate maxmnum varioble
remuneration for Executive Directors 1s
capped, currently, at £20 milon.

The Pohcy pernvts the Remuneration
Committee to vary this cap i necessary
Iin the event of a change in the number
of Executive Directors on the Board.

Annual bonus

To incentivise and reward
performance in the year.

Bonus deterral enhances
alignment of interests
with those of
shareholders over the
longer term.

Executive Directors are considered for
discretionary variable remuneration awards
each year based on performance assessed at
the end of the financial year.

The assessment of performance will be based
on both Company and personal performance
and will take intc account a range of
performance indicators such as {but not
Imited to) financial performance including
profitability, growth in AuM, investment
performance relative 1o benchmarks,

strategic and operational achievements

and personal objectives,

Awards will be delivered as a combination of
cash following the end of the financial year
and deferred shares. At least 70% of the
award will be deferred into shares which wilt
normally vest after a penod of five years.

Deferred shares will normally be delvered as
resincted shares, although awards may be
granted in such other form that the
Commitlee determines has the same
economic etfect.

Deferred shares may include the nght 1o
receve dividends or dividend eguivalents In
respect of dividends paid, calculated on such
basis as the Committee determines.

Malus and clawback provisions will apply te
awards, as set out in the notes to this table.

Awards will be made within the
aggregate vanable remuneration cap
above.
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| REMUNERATION REPCRT (CONTINUED)
' DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

Purpose and link to
short and long-term

‘ strategy Qperation Maximum opportunity
Long-Term Rewards (ong-term LTIP awards are share-based awards typically  Awards will be made within the
Incentive Plan performance and ensures granted to Executive Directors following the  aggregated vanable remuneration
the interests of Executive end of the financial year. The LTIP will typically cap above.
Directors are closely be equivalent to no less than 25% of the
aligned with other Executive Director’s total bonus award for the
shareholders year, and can be up to 100% of the total

varniable remuneration awarded subject 10
' overall performance and atfordability

LTIP awards wall normally have a five-year
performance perod.

The Committee will determing the
performance conditions for each award which
aim to closely align the Executive Directors’
remuneration outcomes with the performance
of the business relative 10 its KPis, e.g.
invastment performance relative to
benchmarks, profitability and growth in assets
under management. Targets will be set that
are appropnately challenging relative to

3 relevant internal and external benchmarks,

The maximum level of vesting for achieving
threshold performance 15 25%, with 100%
vesting for maximum performance.

The LTIP may be granted in the form of
restricted shares or in such other form that
the Committee determines has the same
econamic effect.

LTIP awards may include the nght 1o receve
dividend equivalents in respect of dvidends
paid, calculated on such basis as the
Commuttee determines.

The Committee has discretion to vary LTIP
payments downwards or upwards in
appropnate circumstances, including if it
considers the outcome would not be a farr
reflection of performance.

Malus and clawback prowvisions will apply 10
awards, as set out In the notes to this table.
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Sharoholding
requirements

Purpose and link to
short and long
strategy

Frisiirps greater
alignment with the
interests of shareholders
and focus on long-term
strategy-

Operation

| avels are setin relation 1o annual base
salary, and are normatly required to be built
up over a five-year penod.

Any shares held as part of the vanable
remuneration schemes that are not subject to
any turther performance conditlons will count
towards meeting the guideline on a net of tax
basis where appropriate.

Post-cessation of employment, Executive
Directors are usually required to maintain their
in-employment shareholding guideline {or their
actual shareholding if lower) for two years
post termination of therr employment.

The Committee retains discretion to waive
these guidelines if it is not considered
approprate in the specific arcumstances
{2.g. in compassionate circumstances).

Maximum opportunity
Executive Directors are usually
regquired

a shareholding equivalent tc 300%
of salary.

Malus and clawback

In addition to the performance conditions described above,

Performance measures

- When determining discretionary vanable remuneration, the

the Remuneration Committee has the discretion to apply malus
and clawback provisions to all elements of vanable remuneration,
including 10 unvested equity awards made in prior pericds in the
period up 10 six years from the date of grant or such longer period
as the Remuneration Committee determines 1s reqguired by any
applicable lavv or regulation. The Remuneration Committee may
choose to exercise this discretion for a number of reasons,

for example:

a material misstatement of the financal resuits;

- an error in the ¢alculation;

— a matenal failure of nsk managemenit;

- seripus reputationai damage;

- misconduct, misbehaviour and matenal error on the part of the
participant, or failure of the participant to meet appropriate
standards of fitness and propriety;

- amaterial downturn in financial performance;

- the particpant committed an act of fraud or other conduct with
intent or severe negligence which led to significant losses; or

- any other circurmstances which the Remuneration Commuttee n

1ts discretion consigers to be similar in their nature or effect.

VWhere malus or clawback applies, the Remuneration Committee
may, in 1ts discretion, take a number of actons including (but not
irmited to) reducing the number of shares to which an award
relates, imposing further conditions on an award or reguinng a
participant to make a cash payment to the Company in respect of
some or all of the shares or cash delivered to the Executive Director.

Remuneratton Committee considers a range of financial and
non-financial measures. These may include profitability,
nvestment performance relative to benchmarks and growth in
AuM. Non-financial factors may include strategic and operational
achievements, envirenmental, social and governance factors and
employees’ culture and conduct may also be taken into accourit
The Committee considers both quantitative and qualitative
measures of performance in determiming the discretionary
varable remuneration outcomes, including longer-term
indicators. For the first LTIP awards to be made in FY2024,

the performance conditions will be based on investment
outperformance relative to benchmarks over three and five years;
growth In assets under management, demonstrated through a
compeund increase in AuM over the five-year performance
period; and profitability, demonstrated through Ashmore's diluted
EPS performance relative to a comparator index over the five-
year performance penod.

The Committee undertakes a comprehensive review of different
financial and non-financial measures in determining variable
remuneration to ensure that any awards are knked 1o wider
Company performance, the shareholder expernence, and the
wider stakeholder experence. There are comprehensive
disclosures included in the Directors’ Remuneration report on
how Ashmore has performed against these different measures.
The expected levels of performance are set at appropnately
stretching levels taking into account the business plan, analyst
forecasts, the sector that Ashmore operates in, and the wider
economic environment.
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" REMUNERATICN REPORT (CONTINUED)
: DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

External Non-executive Director positions

Executive Directors are perrnitted 1o serve as Non-executive Directors
of other companies where there 1s no competition with the Company's
business activities and where these duties do not interfere with the
individual’s ability to perform his or her duties for the Company.

Where an gutside appointment s accepted in furtherance ot
the Company’s business, any fees received are remitted to
the Company.

If the appointment is not connected to the Company’s business,
the Executrve Director is entitled to retain any fees receved.

Approach to remuneration for new Executive

Director appointments

The remuneration package for a new Executive Director would
normally be set in accordance with the terms and maximum levels
of the Company’s approved Remuneration Policy in force at the
time of appointment.

In the case of an externally recruited Executive Director, the
Remuneration Committee may offer additional cash andfor share-
based elements 10 take account of any remuneration relinguished
when leaving the former employer (& 'buy-out’ award), when it
considers these to be n the best interests of the Company (and
therefore shareholders}. In considenng any such payments, the
Committee would take account of the nature, vesting dates and
any performance requirements attached to the relinquished
remuneration. The Committee may determine to make any such
buy-out related awards outside the limits set cut in the Policy table.
For an internal appointment, any variable remuneration element
awarded in respeact of the pnor role may be allowed to be paid out
according to Its terms, adjusted, If necessary, 10 take INto account
the appcintment

For external and internal appointments, the Company may meet
certain incidental and/or relocation expenses (including any tax
thereon) as appropnate, including but not hmited to assistance with
housing, immigration, taxes and travel. This may take the form of a
cash payment.

(ther elements may be included in the following circumstances. (1)
an interim appointment bemng made to fill an Executive Director role
on a short-ierm basis; and i exceptional circumstances

require that the Chair or a Non-Executive Directar lakes on an
executive function.

Service contracts and loss of office payment Policy

Service contracts normally continue until the Executive Director’s
agreed retirement date or such other date as the parties agree,

The sernice cantracts contaan provisions for early termunaton.

Notice penods are irmited to 12 months by erther party. Service
agreements contam ng contractual entitlernent to receive vanable
remuneration; participation in these arrangements s at the
Remuneration Committee’s discretion. The Executive Directors’
sarvice contracts are avallable for inspection at the Company's
registered office dunng normal business hours.
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It the employment of an Executive Director 1s terminated without
giving the penod of notice required under the contract, the
Executve Director would be entitied 1o claim recompense for up to
one year's remungration sugject to consideration of the obhgation
1o mMitigate the loss. Such recompense 1s expected to be mted o
base salary due for any unexpired notice peried, and any amount
assessed by the Remuneration Committee as representing the
value of other contractual benefits and pension which wouid have
been receved during the period. in the event of a change of control
of the Company, there is nc enhancement to these terms.

In summary, the contractual provisions are as foilows:
Detailed terms.

12 months

Provision

Notice penod

Base salary plus value of benefits
{including pension) paid monthiy
and subject to mitigation

Termination payment in the
event of termination by the
Company without due notice

Same terms as above
on termination

Change of conuro!

An annual varable remuneration award may be payable in the year
of leaving in the case of ‘good leavers’. This will be subject to
performance and will normally be pro-rated for time in role during
the year and subject to deferral. in respect of the year within which
an individual steps down from the Board, the Commitiee may
decide to only award an annuai bonus and not grant an LTIP.

Any outstanding share-based entitlerments held by an Executive
Director under the Company’s share plans wiil be determined
based on the relevant plan rules.

For FY2022 onwards, any unvested shares normally lapse following
cessation ¢f employment during the relevant performance or
deferral penod. However, in certain prescribed circumstances, or
any other clicumstances at the discrenon of the Committes, ‘good
leaver’ status apphes. For good leavers, awards will normally vest
on therr normal vesting date, and, where refevant, will be subject to
the satisfaction of the relevant performance conditions at that tme
and reduced pro-rata 1o refiect the proportion of the period worked
between the grant date and onginal vesting date {except in the
case of death where the default I1s that pro-rating will not apply),
uniess the Committee determines otherwise

An Executive Director’s service contract may be terminated without
notice and without any further payrment or compensation, except
tor sums accrued up to the date of termination, on the occurrence
of certan events such as gross musconduct,

The Committee reserves the nght to make any other payments in
connection with & Director’s cessation of office or employment
where the payments are made in good faith In discharge of an
existing legal obligation {or by way of darmages for breach of such
an obhigation) or by way of a8 compramise or setttement of any
claim ansing in connection with the cessation of a Director’s office
or employment. Any such payments may include but are not
limited to paying any fees for outplacement assistance and/or the
Director's legal and/or prefessional advice fees mn connection with
cessation of office or employment and/or retirement gifts.



Incentive plan discretions

The Remuneration Committee will operate the current share plans
in accordance with their respective rules and the Policy set out
above, and i accordance with the Listing Rules and relevant
legislation or regulation. As is consistent with market practice, the
Remuneration Committee retains discretion over a number of areas
relating to operating and administrating the plan

These include (but are not imited to) the tollowing:

- who participates in the plan;

- the timing of the grant of an award and/for payment;

— the size of an award and/or a payment within the plan hmits
approved by shareholders;

— the chowce ot {and adustment of) performance measures and
targets in accordance with the Policy set out above and the rules
of each plan;

— discretion relating to the measurement of performance in the
event of a change of control or reconstruction:

- determination of a good leaver (in addition to any specified
categories) tor incentive plan purposes, based on the rules of the
plan and the appropnate treatment under the plan rules;

- the percentage spht of award between cash and share awards to
meet business, legislative or regulatory requirernents;

— adjustments required In crder to comply with any new regulatory
reguirements which the Company is compelled 10 adhere to; and

- adjustments requirad In certain crcumstances (e g. rights issues,
corporate restructunng, special dwvidends and on a change
of control).

Any use of the above discretions would, where retevant, be
explained in the Annual Report on Remuneraton. As appropriate,
It might also be the subject of consultation with the Company’s
major shareholders.

The Committee may make minor amendments to this Policy (for
regulatory, exchange control, tax or admunistrative purposes or to
take account of a change in legislation) without obtaining
shareholder approval for that amendment.

Legacy arrangements

For the avoidance of doubt, this Policy includeas authority for the
Company to honour any commitments entered into with current or
forrer Directors prior to the approval of the Policy, provided that
such commitments were consistent with the apphcable
remuneration policy in force at the tirme they were agreed. Any
commitments made pnor to an individual becarming a Director and
not In anticipation of therr appointment to the Board may also be
honoured, even where It 1S not consistent with the Policy at the time
the payment s made. Details of any payments to former Directors
will be set out In the Annual Report on Remuneration as they arise.

Non-executive Directors

Non-executive Directors are engaged under letters of appontment
and do not have contracts of service. They are appointed for an
initial three-year penod, subject to annual shareholder re-election.
Their continued engagement Is subject to the requirerents ot the
Company’s Articles relating to the retrement of Directors by

rotation. The letters of appointment are availlable for inspection at
the Company's registered office during normal business hours.

Compliance with the Remuneration Codes :
The Remuneraten Committee regularly reviews s Remuneration
policy's compliance with the principles of the FCA’s Remuneration
Codes, as applicable to Ashmore.

The Remuneration Policy 1s designed 10 be consistent with the
prudent management of risk, and the sustained, leng-term
performance of the Company.

Consistent Company-wide approach to remuneration
for all employees

The Campany aims to apply a cansistent remuneration philssophy
for employees at all levels and the remuneration policy for
Executive Directors is broadly consistent with that for employees
across the Company as a whole. However, there are some
differences that the Remuneration Committee believes are
necessary to reflect the different respeonsibilities of employees
across the Company.

The cap on base salary means that Executive Directors' base
salanes are set at a similar level t¢ other senicr investment and
professional employees in the Company, and the base salary range
trom lowest to highest in the Company is considerably narrower
than the market norm.

Rates of pension contribution and fringe benefit provisions

are consistent between executives and other employees within
therr country of employment. The Executive Directors are aligned
with the UK employees.

All employees may be eligible for a performance-related annual
bonus, and the principie of bonus deferral into Company shares or
equivalent applies to annual bonuses for all other employees.
Employees receive therr vanable remuneration in a mixture ot cash
and shares and are eligibie to receive share matching where
appropnate. Individuals identified as material nsk takers under the
regulations apphcable 1o Ashmore are subject 1o deferral

In line with those requirements.

The Committee discusses key remuneration topics relating to
employees throughout the year, including salary levels, regulatory
compensation matters and benefit trends.

The Remuneration Committee monitors the etfectiveness of the
Company's Remuneration Policy in recruiting, retaining, developing,
engaging and motivating employees and receives reports from the
CEO and the Group Head of Human Resources on how the
Company's remuneration policies are viewed by employees and
whether they are meeting business needs.

The Company does not operate format employee consultation on
remuneration. However. employees are able 1o provide direct
feedback on the Company's Remuneration Pelicy to ther line
managers, the Human Resources team, and the Board directly
through Ashmore's regular ‘meet the teams’ or indmvidually to
the Company’s nominated Non-executive Director for

waorkforce engagement.
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REMU
DI

Reward scenarios

The Remuneration Policy results in the majonty of the remuneration
received by the Executive Directors being dependent

on performance, normally with compulsory deferral of at least 70%
of the bonus into shares for five years and a five-year performance

penocd under the LTIP providing long-term shareholder alignment.

As noted earler, the Policy 1s not 1o cap individual awards,
but rather the aggregate award that may be magde 1o all Executive
Directors. As such, 111s not pessible to demonstrate maximum

Figure 2

NERATION REPORT {CONTINUED)
RECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

remuneration levels. In heu of this, an indication of the potential
range of total remuneration 15 dlustrated n Figure 2 using the
highest and lowest vanable remuneration awards in a five-year
period. The vanable remuneraticn awards are shown assuming Tull
vesting five years later of the long-term incentive cormponent based
on achievement relative to the performance conditions, both at the
grant price and also with 50% share price growth.

Executive Director total remuneration at different levels of performance (£'000)

1 Addtional value created should LTI share value increase by 50%
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Figure 3

Fee Policy for Non-executive Directors

Beard Chair
and Non-
executive
Director fees

Purpose and link to
strategy

To ensure that the Group
1$ able tc attract and
retain experienced and
skilled individuals

Operation Maximum opportunity

The Board Chair 1s paid a single fee for all The overall fees payable 1o Non-
responsibilities, inclusive of Chairnng the executive Directors will remain withm
Nominations Committee. the: imit stated in the Articles of

The Non-executive Directors are paid a basic fee Association, currently £750,000.

with additional fees pard for additional The current level of tees 1s disclosed In
responsibilities (currently Senior Independent the Annual Report on Remuneration.
Director, Chair of the Audit and Risk Coammittee

and Chair of the Remuneration Committee).

The leve! of the fees for the Board Chair and Non-
executlive Directors is reviewed penodically with
reference 1o market levels in comparably sized
FTSE companies.

Fees may alsc be increased on an ongeing or
temporary or ad hoc basis, 10 take into account
changes In the warking of the Board andfor
changes In responsibilities or tme commitments,

The Board Charr and Non-executive Directors rmay
be paid expenses including any tax thereon) in
relation to the performance of their role.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Ashmore’s approach to remuneration FY2023

The Remuneration Committee is guided by a clear set of remuneration principles, with a
comprehensive approach to determining variable remuneration outcomes.

These principles assist the Committee in determining its Policy and practices, and are in compliance with Provision 40 of the Code.

1. Discretion and flexibility

Vanabfe remuneration 1s not formulaic or capped at an
indwadual level, albert there 15 a cap at an aggregata level, and
as such the Remuneration Committee has discretion to ensure
that awards reflect business and individual performance, thus
the behavioural nsk arising from target based incentive plans 1s
not present.

Malus and clawback may be applied by the Remuneration
Committee 10 all elemeants ot vanable remuneration

The Remuneration Committee 1s able to apply an ex-ante risk
adjustrment to the bonus poal to reflect any concerns ansing.

2. Alignment with stakeholders
Base salaries are capped and set at the iower end of market
levels to ensure fixed costs are tightly controlled.

Cn an annual basis the bonus pool is derved solely from
profits made in the year and has been capped at 25% of
EBVCIT, ensunng predictability of overall outcomes.

Up to 77% of vanable remuneration is delivered in Ashmore
shares, restricted and deferred for five years.

remuneration will anly vest subject to the aclievernant of
stretching performance targets, closely aligned with the
Group's KPlIs.

3. Consistency across the Group
The clear and simple Rernuneration approach applies to all

materal factor in defining and shaping both the Remuneration
Policy and Ashmore's culture.

Executrve Directors receive the same level of pension
contributions as other employees.

4. Pay for long-term performance

The Remuneration Commitiee congiders the performance of
Executive Directors and senior managers over the long term,
taking account of progress over a multi-year period, annual
performance In the context of the business and progress made
towards both its strategic chyectives and its KPJs. Awards for
Executive Directors’ are subject to performance conditions
over a five-year performance period.

The Remuneration Committee determines annual bonus awards
based on a balanced scorecard of factors at bath the Group and
individual level, and applies discretion rather than a formulaic
approach in order to deliver outcemes which reflect the best value
for sharehclders. The current policy can be found on pages 119 to
126 of the FY2022 report and accounts.

Factors considered include, but are not imited to:

Financial

- AuM develocpment

— Adjusted EBITDA margin

— AuM outperforming benchmarks (1, 3 & 5 years)
— Protit before tax

— Net revenue

Diluted EPS

— Cost management

Non-financial

— Strategic objectives

Sustamability

- Qutcomes for investors and clients
— Risk management

Compliance

Employees, culture and conduct

— Personal objectives

!
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Key business metrics aligned to long-term
performance, delivering a strong equity
ownership culture.

Vesting of restricted share awards

is contingent on meeting stringent
long-term performance conditions,
clearly aligned with the achievement
of the Group’s strategic objectives and
KPIs, leading to a proportionality of
reward outcomes.

AuM development
AuM (US$bn}

Investment performance
% of AuM outperfaorming benchmarks

Profitability
Diluted EPS performance relative to
Emerging Markets indices (%)

To align with, encourage and maintain
Ashmore’s equity ownership culture, under
the current approach both employees and
Executive Directors may elect to reduce
their annual cash bonus by up to 50%, and
in exchange receive an equivalent value of
restricted shares, which are in turn matched
with a further award of restricted shares.

The remuneration approach generates strong retention

of employees, who are able to build up a meaningful
shareholding in the firm over time, thus aligning them with the
long-term interests of Ashmore's chents, shareholders and
therr colleagues, while also complying with relevant
remuneration regulations and encouraging behaviours
consistent with Ashmore's culture and strategy.

The five-year deferral and cliff vesting of share awards also
provides a smoothing of income over time which again aids
retention of employess through market cycles.

40%

Approximately 40% of employee equity ownership
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REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)
| ASHMORE’'S APPROACH TO REMUNERATION FY2023 (CONTINUED)

Executive Director bonuses are funded from the Group bonus pool
and determined by the Committee using a balanced scorecard of
financial and non-financial measures including in relation 10
individual personal performance. Within the FY2022 Annual Report,
the Committee confirmed that 11 would apply broadly similar
weightings and metrics for annual vanable remuneration in FY2023
as i prior periods, chosen to align with the Group's key
performance indicators and strategy.

Through the assessment of the Executive Directors annual short-term
perfaormance measures, the Committee evaluated the level of

performance achieved against key financial and non-financial measures.

As detailed below and overleat. performance in FY2023 was typical
of the beginning of a recovery period In Emerging Markets.

Investment performance improved significantly relative to the prior
period, which, as investor confidence improves, should translate
into positive AulM development. However, the broader financial
picture for FY2023 reflects the currently lower level of AuM.

The overalt management of the business has been effective, as can
be seen from the PBT and diluted EPS outcomes relative to net
revenues, with strong control of costs and effective management
of balance sheet assets and higher interest ncome mitigating the
impact of the lower revenues.

The Committee discussed the performance of the Executive
Directors and the appropriate variable remuneration outcomes for
them In the context of perfarmance delivered despite the revenue
headwinds faced by the Company this year.

Assessment of the financial measures for the Executive Directors

Performance Year Performance relative to the prior period Outcome Committee
measure sment
AuM FY2023 ] $55.9bn

Fy2022 ] $64.0bn

{see page 29 for more information)

Adjusted EBITDA FY2023
margin FY2022

| 54%
| 64%

(see page 32 for more information)

AuM FY2023 1yr 67%, 3yr 69%, Syr 49%

outperforming FY2022

1yr 45%, 3yr 28%, Syr 48%

benchmarks (1, 3

&5 years} {see page 29 ior more information)

Profit before tax  FY2023 I £111.8m
FY2022 | £118.4m
{see page 32 for more information)

Net revenue FY2023 ] £196.4m
Fy2022 | £262.5m
(see page 31 for more information)

Diluted EPS FY2023 I 12.2p
Fv2022 | 12.6p
(see page 32 for more information)

Cost Fv2023 . ] £94.0m

management FY2022 I £98.5m

{see page 31 for more information)
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Non-financial Performance in FY2023
measures

Committee
Assessment

Strategic objectives (seo pages 10 1o 15 for more information)

Phase 1 Lower allocations from Developed Markets investors, to an extent mitigated by ncreased
allocations from Emerging Markets based investors, who now make up 33% of AuM
(FY2022: 27%)

Phase 2 Continued strong Cquitics and other Fixed Income investment theme performance including high
yield and increasing client activity levels should result in flows to support the diversification ot
revenue streams as Investor sentiment IMproves

Phase 3 Local asset management platforrm AuM remained stable over the period

l Sustainability (see pages 50 to 61 for more information)

In FY2023, the Group will make a payment of £0.5 millien (FY2022: £0.6 million) 1o The Ashmore Foundation and
other charitable activities. The Group’s collaboration with The Ashmore Foundation continues to enable work
supporting referestation and livelihoads projects which also meet Ashmore's carbon offset needs (Scope 1-3
emissions} while generating income for farming communities through cash crops and carbon financing and providing
training for women working in seed nurseres in two regions of the Amazon.

Ashmore has maintained its ‘low’ ESG risk category with Sustainalytics, has maintained an AA ESG rating from MSCH
and remains a member of the FTSE4Good equity index and NZAMI.

Employees [see pages 46 to 49 for more information)

The Group's average headceunt increased shightly duning FY2023 1o 309 employees (FY2022: 305) as a result of
continued local oftice growth. Londan head office headcount remains flat, mantaining strong cost control.

Unplanned employes turnover increased dunng FY2023, with the London head office at 10% (FY2022: 8% and at
14% for the Group as a whole (FY2022: 11%); the increase including subsicianies and local asset management
businesses retlects the different nature of the employment envirnnments which they operate in.

Average employee tenure in the London head office (s over eight years and is almost seven years across the Group
as a whoie, providing clients and investors with continuity of ernployees and demonstrating retained institutional
knowledge through market cycles.

During the perod succession plans were implemented for a number of roles including two Non-executive Directors
and four senior management roles, with a smooth transition between individuals taking place.

A Diversity Committee, chatred by the Non-executive Director for workforce engagement, was established 1o oversee
Ashmore's diversity and inclusion strategies.

Compliance, culture and risk management (see pages 35 to 41 for more information)

The Remuneration Committee reviews a dashboeard of indicators on a biannual basis which seek to measure and
monitor aspects of organisational culture. Dunng FY2023 the number of indicators reported on was increased from 24
to 31 under the headings of 'tone from the top', incentive structures and remuneration, effectiveness of management
and governance and individual accountability. There were no matters of concern ansing during FY2023 that would
warrant the Remuneration Committee questioning the management of the Group or indicatng poor organisational
culture or conduct nisks. The Remuneration Committee i1s satisfied that all relevant regulatory and corporate
governance requirements have been met appropriately.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED}
ASHMORE'S APPROACH TO REMUNERATION FY2023 (CONTINUED)

The Remuneration Committee considered the gualitative and quantitative inputs provided to it by the management team across the
range of hnancial and non-linancial measures detaled above and, 1o assist shareholders in understanding therr decision making, summarises

ns assessrnent of performance as follows:

[Chief Executive Officer

Group Finance Director

The CEQ’s short-term performance is assessed.

— 75% on financial performance measures including effectively
managing investment performance to deliver consistent growth
relative to each investment theme, maintaining and ncreasing
AuM and maintaining and increasing EBIT; and

— 25% on non-finanoial managernent performance, including
management af matters relating to ESG, strategy development
and implementation, recruitment, staff turnover and succession
plannming and regulatory and comiplisnce adherence.

The GFD's short-term performance 1s assessed:

- B5% on his rmanagement of the Finance, Middle Office
Operations, Information Technology, Corporate Development
and Investor Relations departments and on his management
of subsidiary business activities outside the UK, inciuding
joInt veniures,

—~ 15% an conwbution to the development and implementation ot
strategic goals and increasing value for shareholders, investor
relations and communication, broadening the shareholder base
and communicating eftectively with all relevant stakeholders.

lPersonal performance

Personal performance ]

As detailed elsewnere in this report, FY2023 has seen a
signrhicant improvement in investment performance, with local
currency, external debt, investment grade and all cap equity
assets performing particularly strongly. However, it remains that
there 1s still reduced overall financial performance in the period
being assessed by the Remuneration Committee due to the
reduced AuM

The financial measures represent the greater proportion of the
areas considered by the Remuneration Commitiee in delermining
annua! remuneration for the CEQ, i order that there is a clear
alignment of annual incentives with the Group’s key performance
indrcators and the delivery over time of value for shareholders.

The business has remained well managed and the CEO has
continued to provide strong leadership through a penod of
chailenging market condiions, including in relation 1o the
management of costs,

During the penod positive developments relating to non-financial
measures have 1aken place in regards to sustamability and
succession planning and the business remains well governed and
conirolied with the appropriate personne! and resources in place

In the Remuneration Commutiee’s assessment, the GFD has
performed well in FY2023. This has been the fust full year
managing his expanded portfolio of responsibiittes. The areas of
the business he 1s responsible for have required restructunng and
personnel changes, both within the London head office and In a
nurnber of the subsidiary businesses, which have been managed
well, and the departrnents continue 10 be run effectively, with
high guality teams in place delivenng tiwnely and effective outputs.

The audit tender process ran effectively and the management and
tirancial reporting delvered was enbanced thiough the penod.

The subsidiary businesses have contnued 10 perform well,
maimairing Aul and becarnmng a retatively more matenal part of
the Group's operations through the penod, and remain well
integrated with the Group.

Operatng costs remained well managed by the GFD, reducing by
4% relative to the prior period.

Cngong comribubon 1o business strategy, mvestor relahions and
sharehalder and thard-party relationship management
remains effective.

Executive Director annual bonus awards for the year ending 30 June 2023

The Remuneration Comrmttee has considered these inputs and has determined that the reduced finanoal performance in the period must
be recogrised i this years award levels. The Committee agreed to the CEQ's request to wawe any award for this year and agreed 10 make
no banus award. The Commuttee also recogrised the contribution of the GFD; and awarded a bonus of £720,000, which 1s a reduction of

10% on the sum awarded in FY2022.

Annual bonus award

Mark Coombs
Tom Shuppey

£720.000
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Performance conditions, vesting outcome and grant FY2023

The table below sets out the measures and targets long-term incentive awards.

Figure 4

Performance conditions’ vesting scale FY2023

Performance condition

Performance

% of award vesting

TSR

Below median of pear group
Median

Between rmedian and upper quarlile
Upper quartile

Zero

25%

Straight-line proportnnate vestng
100%

investment outperformance

Growth 1in assets under management

Below 50% of assets outperforming the
benchmarks over three and five years

50% of assets outperforming the benchmarks over
three and five years

Between 50% and 75% of assets outperforming the
benchmarks over three and five years

75% or above of assets outperforming the
benchmarks over three and five years

Below 5% compound increase in AuM over the
five-year performance period

5% compound increase in AuM over the five-year
performance pencd

Between 5% and 10% compound increase in AuM
over the five-year performance pernod

Zero
25% - Threshhold performance
Straight-line proportionate vesting

100%

Zero
25% - Threshhold performance

Straight-line proportionate vesting

10% or above compound increase in AuM over the 100%
five-year performance penod
Profitability — Ashrmore’s diluted EPS Below the benchmark return Zero

performance relative to a cominnation of
Emerging Markets ndices representative

of the markets in which Ashrmore invests,

determined by the Remuneration
Commuttee and based on the underlying
structure of the business

At the benchmark return

Between the benchrark return and 10%
outperformance

At or above 10% outperformance retative to the
benchmark return

25% - Threshhold performance
Straight-line proportionate vesting

100%

Performance and vesting outcome for the CEQ and GFD’s long-term incentive awards
During FY2023, shares awarded to Mark Coombs and Tom Shippey in 2017 reached therr vesting date on 13 September 2022. On the

vesting date, all bonus shares and half of the restricted and matching shares that were not subject to additional performance measures

vested. The half that was subject to additional performance measures iapsed in full.

The 2018 awards had performance conditions ending at the end of the FY2023 performance year and will vest on 13 September 2023,
Performance conditions were applied to the half of the restricted and matching shares awarded due to vest. For the 2018 awards TSR was

not used as a performance condition, and the remaining three performance conditions were egually weighted at 33.3%. The performance

outcomes, relative to the performance conditions vesting scale shown in Figure 4, are shown in Figure 5.
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REMUNERATION REPQRT (CONTINUED)
PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS, VESTING OUTCOME AND GRANT FY2023
(CONTINWED)

Figure 5

Vesting outcome for CEQ and GFD’s 2017 long-term incentive awards subject to performance conditions

CED

GFD

Restrcted and
matching shares
awarded subject 10

Rezircied and
matching shares
awardad supject 1o

“estng Type of performance  Shares Shares porformance  Shares Sharas
o F’e_rformanc_eﬂea_sﬂe assessment _ percantage share avErE o Jg’“{‘ﬁf‘i vesung E?mgrg_ cﬂmmveﬂgg‘lqm@ .
Investment Below 0% of assets putperforming the 0% Restncte 61,818 - 51,818 14,682 — 14882
performance benchmarks over thres and five years, actual d shares
was 38% Matching 46,364 - 46,364 11,011 - 11011
shares
Increasing  The compound annual growth in AuM over 0% Restricte 61,818 - 61,818 14,682 - 14,682
AuM the five-year penod was below 5%, actual d shares
was 1.75% Matching 483684 - 467284 11,011 - 1101
shares
Profitability Ona compound basis, Ashmore's diluted 0% Restricte 61,818 - 61,818 14,682 - 14,682
EPS was below the benchmark return, actual d shares
was -5 4% compared 1o the benchmark index Matching 46.364 — 46364 11011 ~o11.01m
at-1.3% shares ' ’
TSR TheCompany's TSRwas 20 1%, whichranked 0% Restncte 61,818 — 61,818 14682 - 14682
Ashmore at 8 87 relative to the TSR peer group d shares
of 14 companl.es, the median rank which would 0% Matching 16,3684 — 46364 11.011 11011
have resulted in 25% vesting was 7.5 or a TSR shares
of £.9% . The upper quarble rank whweh would
have resutted in 100% vestng was 4 .25 ora
TSR of 83.9%. Theretore none of the restricted
and matching share awards vested
Totals 0% 432,727 - 432,727 102,772 - 102,772

Vesting outcome for CEO and GFD's 2018 long-term

incentive awards subject to performance conditions

e CED N < i - B
Restrcted and matehing T Resticted and matching
Veming  Type of shate  sharas awarded subect 1o Sharez Shares  shares awarded suopct o Shares Shares
Ferformance mseasure assessment percentage award performance condiions vesung lapzing performance condmans vesTtIng lapsing
Investment  53% of asseis were 52% Restncied 40,077 20,840 19,237 17,354 2118 84186
performance cutperfaorming the benchmarks shares
over three and five years Matching 30,058 15,630 14,428 3,757 1,954 1,804
shares
Increasing AUM reduced over the five- 0% Restncted 40,077 - 40,077 17.354 - 17,354
AuM year penod from $73.9bnin shares
2018 1o $55.8bn 1n 2023 Matching 30,058 - 30,088 2,757 - 3757
shares
Profitability On a compound basis, 0% Restricted 40,078 - 40,077 17,354 - 17.3564
Ashmore's diluted EPS was shares
below the benchmark return, Matching 30,058 - 30.058 3,758 - 3,757
actual was -10.1% compared to shares

Totals

the benchmark index at 0.2%

17%

210,408 36,470 173,936

63,874 11,072 52,803

The Rernuneration Commuttee has drscretion to adjust the vesting level of the awards if 1t considers that the vesting level does not reflect
the underlying financial or non-financial performance over the vesting perod, or the vesting level 1s not appropriate in the context of
crrcumstances that were unexpected or unforeseen; or there exists any other reason why an adjustrnent 1s appropriate, taking 1nto account
such factors as the Remuneration Committee considers relevant. The Remuneraton Commatiee has not apphed 1ts discreton 10 alter the
number of awards vesting duning FY2023 or due to vest an 13 September 2023,
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Figure 6

Long-term incentive awards made during the year ended 30 June 2023 - audited information

tle =2f Mt Share award Face valua Face value Performance period
MName Type of award shares ot award prace” (D (L} e 1 bdidiy) and dotn
Tom Shippey” Restricted shares 149,254 21 September 2022 £2.1440 £320,001 320% 20 September 2027
Tom Shippey’ Matching shares 111,941 21 September 2022 £2.1440 £240,002 240% 20 September 2027

1 Executives may voluntanly defer therr cash bonus into shares in order 1o receive an equivalent level of matching shares and are also required under the AIFMD rules to
defer a portion of their cash bonus for six months. These awards are not subject to any performance canditons and so are not included in Figure 6; full detalls can be
found in Figure 7.

2 Based on the average Ashmore Group pic closing share pnce for the five business days pnor 10 the grant date

3 Mark Combs did not receve a long term meentive award in FY2023.

Long-term incentive awards made during the year ended 30 June 2023 - performance conditions

Figure 8 provides details of the long-term incentive awards that were made during FY2023. These represent the restricted and matching
share awards, 50% of which are subject to addienal performance conditions, and witl vest on the fifth anniversary of the award date, 10 the
extent that the performance conditions are met. The remaiming 50% are subject to continued employment.

The performance conditions for the most recent awards were a combination of:

- 33.3% investment outperformance, relative to the relevant benchmarks over three and five years;

- 33.3% growth in assets under management, demonstrated through a compeound increase in AuM over the five-year performance period;
and

- 33.3% protitability, demonstrated through Ashmore's diluted EPS performance relative 1o a comparator index over the five-year
performance perod.

The performance conditions’ vesting scale remains unchanged in respect of these measures and I1s shown in Figure 4.

Payments to past Directors — audited information
No payments were made to past Directors during FY2023.

Payments for loss of office - audited information
No payments were made for loss of office during FY2023.

Non-executive Director fees at 30 June 2023

Non-executive Director fees paid at 30 June 2023 are shown below. Subject to the approval of the proposed Directors” Remuneration policy
by shareholdars at the AGM in October 2023, NED fees will be structured with a base fee and separate tees paid for additional
responsibilities. The Non-executive Direcicrs’ base fee wil be set at £60,000, with an additional fee of £15,000 for the Senior Independent
Director, Audit and Risk Committee Charr and Remuneration Committte Chair. The Charr fee will remain at £150,000, inclusive of Chairing
the Nominations Committee

Al Inglusive fee

Clive Adamson 150,000
Helen Beck 75,000
Jenmter Bingham 70,000
Thuy Dam’ 60,000
Shirley Garrood?® 75,000

1. Thuy Dam joined the Board on 1 June 2023,
2. Shirley Garrood joined the Board on 1 August 2022.
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- Annual Report on
- Remuneration

This part of the report has been prepared in accordance with Part 3 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts
and Reports) {Amendment) Regulations 2013 and 9.8.6R of the Listing Rules.

Figure 7

Remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2023 - audited information
The table below sets cut the remuneration received by the Directors in the year ending 30 June 2023.

Exscutrve Directors

“Mark Coombs Tom Shippey Chve Helen Beck Jenmfer Bingham Thuy Dam  Shirlsy Garreod
Le e w8 Adamsorn
2023 100,060 116,667 150,000 75,000 70,000 5,000 65,638
Salary and fees
2002 100,000 100,000 97,365 75.000 61,782 - -
7 2023 1,653 4,133 - - - - B
Taxable benetils
2022 1,123 2,808 - - - - -
2023 9,000 11.083 - - - = -
Pensions
2022 9,000 9,500 - - - - -
2023 - 210,600 - - - - -
Cash bonus
2022 - 232,800 ~ - - - -
) 2023 - - - - - B B
Voluntarly deferred share bonus®
2022 - 240,000 - - - - -
. 2023 - 257.400 - - - - -
Mandatonly deferred share bonus*
2022 - 287,200 - - - - -
2023 - 468,000 - - - - -
Total bonus
2027 - 760,000 - - - - -
L t " "= 2023 - - - - - — -
ong-term incentives vesting: -
g g 2022 542,619 271,308 - - - - -
Tota! for year 2023 110,653 599,883 150,000 75,000 70.000 5,000 65,538
2022 652,742 1,143,616 87,385 75,000 61,782 - -
. 2023 110,653 131,883 150,000 75,000 70,000 5,000 65,538
Total fixed remuneration
2022 110122 112,308 97,365 75,000 91,782 - -
2023 - 458,000 - - - - -
Total vanable remuneration
2022 542,619 1,031,308 - - - - -

N

w

&

&

7.

8.
@

Benefits for both Executve Directars include membership of the Company medical scheme

Long-term incentives vesting relates to share awards with perfarmance conditions where the performance period has ended i the relevant financial year plus the
value of any dividend equivalents

The figure of £542 618 shown as the value of Mark Coombs® 2022 Long-term incentives vesting reflects £21,979 of share price appreciation over the panod
between grant and vast. The figure of £271,308 shown as the value of Tom Shippey’s 2022 Long-term incentives vesting reflects £10,990 of share price
apprecistion over the pescd between grant and vest. No discretion es been exsrcised as a result Of share prce sppreciaton or depreciavan

Mark Coombs and Tam Shippey may voluntanly defer up ta 50% of therr cash benus in favour of an eguivalent amount of bonus share or phantor bonus share
awards and an equivalent value in matching share or phantorn rmatching share awards. All share o phantom share awards vall ba reparted i the Orrectors’ share
and phantom share award tables in the year of grant Tom Shippey chose to commute 50% of his cash borus in 2022 for an eguivalent value in bonus share
awards. Bonus shares are deferred for five years with no service condition attached

From the year ending 30 June 2075 onward, additonal pertormance conditons are zpplied to 50% of any restrcted or matching share award. The armounts shown
in the row labelted Mandaterily deferred share bonus represent the 50% of restricted and matching share awards that do nat have additional performance
condiions atteched, and also include the amounts detaled in note € below relating 1o compliance with the AIFMD These arounts Tepresent the cash value of
shares awarded at grant, which will vest after frve years subject ta contnued employment, and in the case of shares related to AIFMD, after a retenuon period
I order to compty with the AIFMD Mark Cogmbs and To™ Shippey receved a proportion of therr bonus, which would have otherwise been delivereg in cash, as
an additional award of restricted shares which will vest after a retenton period. In 2023, the vafue of this award for Mark Coombs was £0 (FY2022. £0i, and for
Torm Shiopey it was £4,320 (FY2022 £7,200¢

In respect of prior year deterred snare awards which have peen waved 1o chanty, any dividend equivalents associated with the amounts waived are paid directly
to the nominated charities The figures shown exciuge the amounts waived

Durdends or devidend equivalents were paid relating 1o voluntanly and mandatanly deferred share ar phantom share awards i tne penod

Mark Coombs racetves cash ir heu of 3 pension contribution Tom Shippey’s pension contnbution Includes an employee contubution via salary sacrifice, in 2023
this was £583 (FY2022. £500)

10 Tota' short-term benefiis for key maragement persannesl, including salary and fees, taxable benefits and cash bonuses. as reported n note 28 of the Ynarncial

102

statements, 1s £798,597 in FYZQ23 Ir addition, the total cost of equity-settled awards for the Executive Directors charged 1o the statement of comprekerns.ve
NCoMe, as reported in note 28 of the fimancie! staternents, s £397,79% 0 FY2023 1F¥2022 £223 884
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Figure 8

Outstanding share awards
The tahle halowy gats out dotails of Fxecutive Directors’ outstanding shiae avwands.

Typs of MNumber of Granted Lapsed Number of
Omnibus Share award shares at cdunng Vested dunng during shares at Performance
Executive award Date of award price 30 June 2022 year yaar year 30 June 2023 pericd Vestnglreleass date
Mark 13 September
Ceoombs RS 14 September 2017 £3.2353 449,542 - 202,289 247,273 - b years 2022
13 Septernber
REBS 14 September 2017 £3.2353 337,156 - 337,156 - - b years 2022
13 September
RMS” 14 Septermber 2017 £3.2363 337,156 — 151,702 185454 - 5 years 2022
13 September
RST 14 September 2018 £3.3269 218,342 - - - 218,342 5 years 2023
13 September
RES! 14 September 2018  £3.3269 163,757 - - - 183,757 5 years 2023
13 September
RS 14 September 2018 £3.3269 163,757 - - - 183,757 5 years 2023
12 September
RS 13 September 2019 £4.3833 248,580 - - - 248,580 5 years 2024
12 September
RES! 13 Septermber 2019 £43833 186,435 — - — 186,435 5 years 2024
12 September
RMS 13 September 2019 £43832 186,435 - - - 186,435 Evyears 2024
15 September
RS 16 September 2021 £3.7512 144,915 - - - 144,915 5 years 2026
15 September
RES 16 September 2021 £3.75612 108,686 — - — 108,686 5 years 2026
15 September
RMg 16 September 2021 £3.7512 108,686 - - - 108,686 5 years 2026
Total 2,653,447 - 691,127 432,727 1,529,593

1. Inrespect of the years ending 30 June 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2021 Mark Coombs chose to wave 10% of his potential non-AIFMD related vanable remuneration award
in return for the Remuneraton Commitiee considenng and approving a contribution 1o a charty or charities nominated by himself The 'Number of shares at 30 June
2022', 'Granted dunng year and ‘Number of sharas at 30 June 2023' higures are shown excluding the amounts waved. On the vesting/release date. any shares waved

ta chanty will vest to them to the extent that any relevant performance conditions have heen satisfied.

Key

RS - Restnicted shares

RBS - Restricted bonus shares

RMS - Restricted matching shares
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| ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Figure 8 continued

Outstanding share awards

Type of Number of Granted Vesied Lapsed Number st
Omnibus Share award shares at during during dunng shares et Performance
Execunve awerd Date of award price 30 June 2022 year year vear 30June 2023 penod Vesting/rslease date
Toni RS 14 September 2017 £3.2353 117,455 - 58,728 58,728 - 5years 13 September 2022
Shippey  RBS 14 Septernber 2017 £3.2353 88,001 - 88,09 - - Byesrs 13 September 2022
RMS 14 September 20017 £3.2353 88,091 - 44, 046 44,045 - byears 13 September 2022
RS 14 September 2018  £3.3269 105,204 - - - 105,204 5 years 13 September 2023
RBS 14 September 2018 £3.3269 22,544 - - - 22,544 5years 13 September 2023
RMS 14 September 2018  £3.3269 22,544 - - - 22,544 5 years 13 September 2023
RS 13 September 2019 £4.3833 91,256 - - - 91,2568 byears 12 September 2024
RBS 13 September 2019 £4 3832 68,442 - - - 68,442 5years 12 Septemnber 2024
RMS 13 Septermber 2019 £4.3833 68,442 - - - 68,442 5years 12 September 2024
RS 18 September 2020  £3.6009 95,976 - - - 93,576 5 years 17 September 2025
RBS 18 September 2020  £3.6009 74,882 — - - 74,982 S vyears 17 September 2025
RMS 18 September 2020  £3.6003 74,982 - - - 74,982 5 years 17 September 2025
RS 16 September 2021 £3.7512 90,638 - - - 20,638 5years 15 September 2026
RBS 16 September 2021  £37512 67,979 - - - 67.9/9 5 years 15 September 2026
RMS 16 September 2021  £3.7512 67.979 — - - 67,379 5vyears 15 September 2026
RS’ 21 Septemiber 2022 £2.1440 - 3,389 3,359 — - 5 years 15 March 2023
RS 21 September 2022 £2.1440 - 149,264 - - 148,254 5 years 20 September 2027
RBS 21 September 2022  £2.1440 - 111,841 - - 111,941 5years 20 Septembper 2027
RMS 21 September 2022 £2.1440 - 111,941 - - 111,941 5years 20 September 2027
Total 1,148,605 376,495 194,224 102,772 1.228,104

1 In order 1o comply with the AIFMD remuneration principles in regard 1o the delwvery of remuneration in retained Instruments, a proportion of Tem Shippey's cash
bonuses relating to the year ending 39 June 2022 were delivered in the form of restncted shares, subject 1o a six-month retention perod, rather than being dehvered in
cash. These shares vested in tull on the date shown and were not sulect to any addiional perfermance condiions.

Key
RS — Restricted shares RBS - Restncted bonus shares RMS - Restricted matching shares

The Company’s obfigations under iIts empioyee share plans can be met by newly ssued shares in the Company, or shares purchased in the
market by the trustees of the EBT.

The overall lmits on new 1ssuance operated under the existing share plans were established on the histing of the Company in 2006. Under
these agreed hmits, the number of shares which may be 1ssued in aggregate under employee share plans of the Company over any 10 year
penod following the date of the Company's Admussion in 200615 kmited to 15% of the Company’s 1ssued share capital. It is expected that
all of the awards made to date will be satisfied by the acquisition of shares 1n the market, thus none of the Company's obligations under its
employee share plans have been met by newly issued shares. As at 30 June 2023, the Company had 5.57% of the Company's 1ssued share
capital outstanding under employee share plans to its staff.

Defined benefit pension entitlements
None of the Directors has any entitlements under Company defined benefit pension plans
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Directors’ shareholding and share interests

Detalls of the Directors’ Interests in shares are shown in the table below. As set out earlier, subject 10 the approval of the proposed
Directors’ Remuneration Pelicy by shareholders at the AGM in October 2023, the shareholder requirerent 1s being increased from 200%
of salary 1o 300% of salary. New Executive Directors would normally be expected to achieve this within five years from appointment.

Mark Coombs meets both the current and future shareholding requirements. Tom Shippey’s salary was increased 1o £120,000 effective
1 September 2022, increasing his shareholding requirerment under the current policy 10 57,526 shares, which he will be required 1o hold
within threg years of the date of salary increase. Tom Shippey meets the future shareholding requirement.

Under the Directors’ Remuneration Poicy, the post-employment shareholder requirement wiil also increase to 300% of salary, or the actual
shareholding if lower. for two years post termination of ther employment. The Committee retains discretion to waive this guideline if 1t1s
not considered appropnate in the specific circumstances, e.g. compassionate crcumstances.

Figure 9

Share interests of Directors and connected persons at 30 June 2023 - audited information

Shares hald that are not subysct

to any further performance Shares held that are subject to Shargholding as a
o = Beneficially owned __ condmons further performance conditions Tota! interestin shares' psrcentage of salary:
Executive Directors
Mark Coombs 222,083,615 932,686 589,907 223,693,208 462,928%
Tom Shippey 52,390 786,995 441,109 1,280,494 814%
Non-executive Directors
Clive Adamson 2,304 - - 2,304

Helen Beck - - - - -
Jennifer Bingham - - - - -
Shirley Garrood - - - - -
Thuy Dam - - - _ _

1 Save as described above, there have been no changes in the shareholdings of the Drirectors between 30 June and 5 September 2023 The Directors are permutted to
hotd their shares as collateral for loans with the express permission of the Board

2 Shareholding as a percentage of salary is calculated as the value of the Directors” interests in shares which are either benefizially owned or not subject 1o future
performance condiions, and where currently unvested on a net of tax basis, dwided by the FY2022 year end share price of £2.08

Statement on implementation of the Remuneration Policy in the year commencing 1 July 2023

The Remuneration Committee intends to continue to apply broadly the same metrics and weaightings to the measures which determine
annual variable remuneration 1n the vear ending 30 June 2024 as have heen applied in the current pericd. The Committee also intends to
apply the same three performance conditions and targets 10 any long-term incentive awards made with the same weightings as used in
FY2023, these being in relation to investment cutperformance relative 1o benchmarks, growth in assets under management and profitability.

There wili be no change to the CEQ's salary (£100,000) for the year ending 30 June 2024. The Committee intends ta mcrease the basic
salary for the GFD to £140,000, subject to the approval of the proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy by shareholders at the AGM in
Octeber 2023, This takes into account his increased responsibilities through the full perod.

As set out earlier on, subject to the approval of the proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy by shareholders at the AGM in October 2023,
NED fees will be structured with a base fee and separate tees paid for additonal responsibiities. The Non-executive Director base fee will
be set at £60,000, with an additonal fee of £15,000 for the Senior Independent Director, Audit and Risk Committee Chair and Remuneration
Committae Chair. The Charr fee will remain at £150,000 inclusive of chainng the Nominations Committee
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I ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION {CONTINUED)

Membership of the Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee dunng the period are listed in the table below. All of these are independent Non-executive
Directors, as defined under the Code, with the exception of the Company Chair who was independent on his appointment.

Remuneration Committee attendance

Percantage of meetings attended out of potental maximum

Clive Adamson 100%
Helen Beck 100%
Jenniter Bingham 100%
Shirley Garrood 100%
Thuy Dam 100%

The Company's CEO attends the meetings by invitation and assists the Remuneration Committee inits decision making, except when his
personal remuneration 1s discussed. No Directors are involved in deciding therr own remuneration. The Company Secretary acts as
Secretary to the Remuneration Commuittee. Other executives may be invited to attend as the Remuneration Commitiee requests.

Terms of reference
The terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee include:

- reviewing the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the Rernuneration Policy;

— reviewing the design of all incentive and share incentrve plans for approval by the Board and shareholders;

- ensunng that members of the executive management of the Cormpany. iIncluding material nsk takers, are provided with appropriate
incentives 10 encourage enhanced performance and that remuneration incentives are compatible with the Company's risk policies and
Systems;

— making recommendations to the Board as 10 the Company’s framework or Policy for the remunieration of the Chawr, the Executive
Directors and the Company Secretary and 10 deterrmine their total individual remuneration packages including bonuses, incentive
payments and share options or other share awards;

- ensuring that z significant proportion of Executive Directors’ remuneration 1S structured sc as to link rewards to corporate and indvidual
performance and that performance condmions are stretching and designed to promote the long-term success of the Cormpany; and

- ensuring that contractual terms on termination, and any payments made, are fair to the individual and the Company, that faiiure 1s not
rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss s fully recogrised.

Activities of the Remuneration Committee
Dunng FY2023, the Remuneration Committee compnsed the following Non-executive Directors:

— Chive Adamson

— Helen Beck

— Jenniter Bingham

— Shirley Garrood {from her appointment on 1 August 2022)
— Thuy Dam {trom her appontrment an 1 June 2023}

The members of the Remuneration Committee have the approprate balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge of the
Company to enable them to discharge therr respectve duties and responsibiliies effectively, and met seven tmes dunng the year. The
Directors’ attendance at the Remunerayon Committee meetings 15 set out in the table above.
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The key areas ot focus during the year for the Remuneration Committee
The key focus of the Commuttee during FY2023 has been an extensive review and consultation process with sharehelders in relation 1o the
new Directors’ Remuneration Policy which will be put 1o sharehclders at the 2023 AGM.

In order that sufficient time was available 10 the Gommittea tn rrnaider tho now Dirggtars’ Mermuneraen Polgy, additonal Committes
meetngs were held duning the yonr, which inctuded & specrfic listed company market practice review delivered to the Committee by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP: included within this was a deialed assessment of shareholder and proxy advisers requirements.

The Committee debated the shareholder feedback following the consultation process.

During the year, the Committee also implemented changes tu Lhie Group's share plan in order to ensure comphance with the FCA's
MIFIDPRU remuneration rules as they relate to malus and clawback for employees considered to be material risk takers and also to
other employees.

The Committee also reviewed the employee benefit arrangements foliowing a review conducted by senior managerment.

The Committee reviewed the performance assessments of the CEO, the GFD, and the material nisk takers and determined or reviewed the
incentive allocations as appropriate.

Regulatory considerations for FY2023

For remuneration relating to FY2023, the Remuneration Committeg has again ensured that remuneration will be delivered to Executive
Directors and ather employees categonsed by the FCA as material risk takers or code staff consistent with the requirermnents of the
MIFIDPRU remuneration regime and AIFMD. This has meant that Executive Directors and other relevant employees will receive a
propartion of their cash bonus delivered as an award of restncted shares, which are retained and rastricted from sale for a six-month penod,
rather than as cash. Further details of this can be found on page 102. Throughout the period, regular regulatory updates were provided 10
the Committee.

Ashmore's UK employee headcount remains significantly under 250, and as a result of this, Ashmaore 1s not required to include a CEQ pay
ratio calculation as part of the Remuneration report.

Consideration of malus and clawback for FY2023

A malus and clawback principle applies teo vanable remuneration awarded to senior statf, including Executive Directors, enabling the
Remuneration Committee to recoup varable remuneration under certain circumstances. Malus and clawback can be applied to both the
cash and share-based elements of vaniable remuneration via the reduction or cancellation of any outstanding unvested deferred share
awards regardless of the year to which they relate, or via the repayment of amounts to the Company. The Remuneratian Committee
censidered there were no events or circumstances that would have made W appropriate to recoup remuneration from the Executive
Directors durtng FY2023.

External advisers

The Remuneration Committee received independent advice from Deloitte LLP throughout the penied from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023.
Deloitte LLP abides by the Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct, which reguires 1t to provide objective and impartiat advice. Deloitte
LLPs fees for the year enaing 30 June 2023 were £28,350 and were charged on a tme and materials basis. Delortte LLP aiso provides
other tax, employee mobility and share plan adrministration-related servicas 1o the Company. During the perod, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP provided the Cormmittee with training on competitor remuneration structures and shareholder princmles. PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP's fees for the year ending 30 June 2023 were £15,000 and were charged on & time and matenals basis.
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Compliance with the Code

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION {CONTINUED)

The Code requires a description of how the Remuneration Committee has addressed the following tactors dunng FY2023:

Code requirements

How the Committes has addressed the requireinent

Clanty — rernuneration arrangements should be
transparent and promote eftective engagement
with shareholders and the workforce

Simphcity — remuneration structures should avond
complexity and their rationate and operation
should be easy to understand

Remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors and the workforce are substanbally
the same, and are descrnbed in detall within the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. A
significant proportion of vanable remuneration is deferred for five years into Coempany
shares creating a direct ahgnment with exiernal shareholders.

Remunearaton is simple for Executive Directors and the workforce, comprising a capped
basic salary and an annual bonus, delivered partly i cash and partly w1 Company shares
which are deferred for five years.

Risk — remuneration arrangements shouid
ensure reputabional and ather nsks from
excessive rewards, and behavioural risks that
can anse from target-based incentive plans, are
dentified and mitigated

Predictability — the range of passible values of
rewards to individual directors and any other
limits or discrations should be identified and
explained at the time of approving the Policy

The Remuneration Committee has discretian to vary the bonus pool, to vary individuat
anpual award Jevels and 1o apply malus or clawback to existing awards. There 1s no
tormulaic or target-based incentive plan to dnve negative behaviours. The Remuneraton
Cormmittee will determine the appropriate outcomes based solely on individual and
Company performance.

individual level are uncapped, however the Company does not apply s discretion to
deliver excessive rewards, as can be seen in looking back at outcomes over previous
performance years which are fully aligned with performance.

Proportionality — the link between individual
aweards, the delivery of strategy and the long-term
performance of the comparny shou'd be clear.
Qutcomes should not reward poor performance

The Remunerauon Committee strictly applies its discretion to reward performance, and
1o recognise periods of underperformance, as has been demonstrated on more than one
occasion where senior management and risk takers have had very matenal reductions in
annual vanable remuneration and the CEC has not been awarded an annual bonus,
reflecting business performance at the time.

Alignment 1o culture - incentive schemes should
drive behaviours consistent with company
purpose, values and strategy

Ashrmaore’s purpose 1s 1o deliver long-term investment outperformance tor clients and
generate value for sharehoiders through market cycles. The Cormnmittee has ensured the
rermunieratian pohces of the Company support this, bullding employee retenuon through
cycles and delivening significant equity alignment between employee sharcholders and
aexternal shareholders.
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Figure 10

Percentage changes in the remuneration of the Executive Directors and the fees of Non-executive Directors

relative to the remuneration of a relevant comparator employee group

07 1h TR 2071 12072 2020 10 2021 2019 to 2020 2018 to 2019
% change % changs % change Y changé wa Lhanye
Mark Coocmbs base salary 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Tom Shippey base salary 20% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Clive Adamson fees’ © 54% 15% 0% 4% 22%
Helen Beck fees'? 0% 25% 0% -
Jenniter Bingham fees” ¢ 13% 3% 0% 0% -
Shirley Garrood fees™* 0% - - - -
Thuy Dam fees' © 0% - - - -
Relevant comparator employees’ base salary 11% 2% 1% 1% 3%
Mark Coombs taxable benefits® 47% 25% (87%) 16%) (8%)
Tom Shippey taxable benefits® 47% 25% 0% 16%) {49%])
Relevant comparator employees’ taxable benefits® 47% 25% 0% 0% (5%
MWark Coombs annual bonus? . NJA {100%) N/A {100%) 50%
Torm Shippey annual bonus (10%;) (6% {6%) (10%) 14%
Relevant comparator employees’ annual borus {8%) (16%) 4% (12%) 10%

1. Non-executive Directors da not receive a bonus.

2 Clve Adamson jomed the Board on 22 October 2015 and chared the Remuneration Cammittee from 21 December 2017 until 19 October 2018; he became the Senior

Independent Director and Audit and Fisk Commitiee Char on 12 October 2018, and became the Chair on 21 Apnl 2022
3. Helen Beck joined the Board on 1 June 2021 and became the Remuneration Committee Chair on 1 July 2021.
4 Jennifer Bingharm became the Sonior Independent Dirertar on 21 Apnl 2022
5. Shirley Garrood joined the Board on 1 August 2022, and became the Audi and Risk Committee Charr on 23 January 2023,
6. Thuy Dam joned the Board on 1 June 2023,
7 Mark Cocmbs did not receive a bonus in 2020, 2022 or 2023,
8. The increase In taxable benefits is a result of the cost increase of private medical coverage

Figure 10 compares the year-on-year percentage change from 2018 to 2023 in remuneration elements for the CEQ, the GFD and the Nan-
executive Directors with the average year-on-year change across relevant comparator employees as a whole. Relevant comparater
employees are all fuli-time employvees and part-ime employees on a ful-ime equivalent basis of Ashmore Group, who have been employed

throughout the full performance year. Figures do not include amounts of cash waived to chanty
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|
|
| ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Performance chart

Figure 11 shows the Company’s TSR performance (with dividends reinvested) against the perforrnance of the FTSE 250 and FTSE 100 for
the penod since 30 June 2013. These indices have been chosen as they represent companies of a broadly similar market capitalisation ©
Ashmore. Each point at a financial year end 1s calcuiated using an average TSR value over the month of June (ie. 1 June to 30 June
inclusive). As the chart indicates, £100 invested in Ashmore on 30 June 2013 was worth £102 10 years later, compared with £175 for the
same investment in the FTSE 100 Index, and £178 for the same nvestment in the FTSE 250 Index.

Figure 11

TSR - value of hypothetical £100 hoiding

Figure 12

Chief Executive Officer

Figure 12 shows the total remuneraton figure for the CEO dunng each of the financial years shown in the TSR chart. The total remuneration
figure includes the annual bonus and share awards, which vested based on performance in those years. As there 15 no cap on the maximurm
ndividual bonus award, a percentage of maximum annual bonus i1s not shown

Performance-related Parcentage of restricted

Annual restricted and matching and matching phantom
Year ended 30 tune Salary Benebts Pension bonus phantom shares vested shares vested Tola
2023 £100,000 £1,653 £9,000 - - - £110.653
2022 £100,000 £1,123 £9,000 - £542.619 79565% £852,742
2021 £100,000 £o0 £9,000 £1,241.700 £1,108,587 57.00% £2,460,188
2020 £160,000 £7.203 £9,000 - - - £118.203
2019 £100.000 £7,627 £9,000 £2,481,200 £997.173 30.23% £3,605,000
2018 £100.000 £8,293 £9,000 £1,261,277 - - £1,378,570
2017 £100.000 £8,404 £9,000 £3,071,748 £95,574 - £3.284,778
2016 £100.000 £8,400 £9,000 £1,083,458 £284,932 - £1,485790
20175 £100,000 £8,388 £8,000 £2,415,000 £462,159 - £2,993,547
2014 £100,000 £8,934 £7,000 - £452,386 - £568,320

1. Performance-related restrcted and matching or phantor share equivalert awards vested ouning the years ending 30 June 2019, 2021 and 2022 plus the value of any
dividend equivalents The sums shown In earner years relate 1a dwvidends or dvidend eauvalents paid on share or phartom share awards
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Figure 13

Relative importance of spend on pay

2022 to 2023

Metnc 2022 2022 % changs
Remuneration paid to or receivabie by all employees of the Group (l.e. accounting cost) £66.2m £73.4m (10%)
Average headcount 309 305 1%
Distnbutions 1o shareholders (dividends andfor share buybacks) E£118.4m  £118.5m 0%
Figure 14
Statement of shareholder voting
At the 202G AGM, the Directors’ Remuneration Policy received the following voles from shareholders:
2020 AGM resolution 10 approve
the Directers” Remunseration Policy
for the years endmg Y% of
Remuneration Policy 30 Junse 2021, 2022 and 2023 voles cast
Vaotes cast in favour 386,652,049 89.16%
Votes cast against 172,385,927 30.84%
Total votes cast 558,037,976 100.00%
Abstentions 38,657,285 N/A
At the 2022 AGM, the Directors’ Remuneration report recewved the following votes from shareholders:
2022 AGM resolution to approve
the Directors’ Remunaration report % of
Remuneration report o - ) for the yesr anded 30 June 2022 voles cast
Votes cast i favour ' 433,517,825 78.02%
Votes cast against 122,140,125 21.98%
Total votes cast 55,657 950 100.00%
Abstentions 38,468,005 N/A
For additional information, Figure 1% shows the histary of tinancial results for the last five years.
Figure 15
Five-year summary of financial results
2023 2022 201 2020 2018
AUM USSE billion {at pened end) 55.9 64.0 94.4 83.6 918
Operating profit £ milhon 77.4 119.2 258.3 209.7 202.8

Approval

This Directors’ Remuneration report including both the proposed Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the Annual Report on Remuneration

has been approved by the Board of Directors.

Signed on behalt of the Board of Directors.

Helen Beck f%’//f:(ﬁc’dt

Charr of the Remuneration Committee

5 September 2023
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NT OF DIRECTORS’
N RT

ENT
THE ANNUAL REPOC

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and
the Group and parent Company financial statenents in accordance
with applicable law and regulations,

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare Group and parent
Company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements

In accardance with UK-adopted international accounting standards
and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent
Company financial statements on the same basis.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view ot the state of affairs of the Group and parent Company
and of the Group's protit or loss for that peried. In preparmg
each of the Group and parent Company financial statements,
the Directors are required to:

— select suitable accountng policies and then apply them
consgistently;

— make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant
and reliable;

— state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards;

- assess the Group and parent Company's abllity to continug as
a going concern, disciosing, as apphcable, matters related to
gaing concern; and

— use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the parent
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the parent Company and enable
them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Comparies Act. They are responsible for such internal control as
they determing 1s necessary to enabla the preparation of financial
statements that are free from matenal rmisstatement, whether due
te fraud or errar, and have general respansibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also
responsible for prepaning a Strategic report, Directors’ report,
Remuneration report and Corperate governance statement
that comply with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions.

Im accordance with DTR 4.1.14R, the financial statements witl
form part of the annual report and accounts prepared using the
single electronic reparting format under ESEF. The auditor’s report
on these financial statements provides no assurance over the
ESEF format.

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect
of the annual financial report

The Directors confirm that to the best of therr knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and far view
of the assets, hatilities, financial position and profit or loss of
the Company and the undertakings included i the conschdation
taken as a whole; and

— the Strategic report and Directors’ report include a fair review
of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the issuer and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description
of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face.

The Directars consider the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as
a whole, 1s fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s
posttion and performance, business model and strategy.

Clive Adamson
Chair

5 September 2023




DIRECTORS" REPORT

1he Directors present their Annual Report and
Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2023.

The tinancial statemments have been prepared in accordance with
UK adopted international accounting standards.

Principal activity and business review

The principal actvity of the Group 1s the provisicn of investment
management sernvices. The Cuimpany s equired 10 3¢t out i thig
report a tair review of the busingss of the Group during the
financial year ended 30 June 2023 and of the position of the Group
at the end of that financial year and a descripticn of the principal
nsks and uncertainties facing the Group {referred to as the
Business review). The information that tuthls tho requiremerits ol
the Business review, along with an indication ot the hkely future
developments in the business, can be found in the financial
highlights on the inside front cover, the CEQ review on page 10,
the Business revicw on pages 28 to 34 and the Corporate
governance report on pages 62 tc 71.

The Group's approach to financial nsk management and the
prncipal operating risks facing the business, including price nsk,
credit nsk, hguidity nsk and cash flow risk, are detailed on pages
351041,

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out In the consclidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 126.

The Directors are recommending a final dividend of 12.1 pence
per share (FY2022: 12.1 pence) which, together with the interim
dnvidend of 4.8 pence per share (FY2022: 4.8 pence) already
declared, makes a total Tor the year ended 30 June 2023 of

16.9 pence per share (FY2022: 16.9 pencel. Further detalls relating
1o dividends are set out in note 14 1o the financial statements.

Subject to approval at the AGM, the final dividend will be paid on
8 December 2023 1o shareholders on the register on 3 November
2023 ({the ex-dividend date being 2 November 2023},

Related party transactions

Details of related party transactions are set cut In note 28 to the
financial statements.

Directors

The members of the Board tegether waith therr biographical details
are shown on pages 62 10 63. Shirley Garrood was appointed as a
Director on 1 August 2022 and Thuy Dam was appointed as a
Director on 1 June 2023. All other members of the Board served
as Directors throughout the year.

Detalls of the service contracts of the current Directors are
described on page 117.

Under the Articles, the minimum number of Directors 1s two and
the maximum is nine. Directors may be appointed by the Company
by ordinary resclution or by the Board. A Director appointed by the
Board must offer hmselifherself for election at the next AGM
following their appointment. That Director is not taken into account
n determining the Cirectors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation at that meeting. Notwithstanding these
provisions, the Board has adopted provision 18 of the Code and all
Directors will retire and seek re-election at each AGM. The Listing
Rules raguire that the election/re-election of independent directors
1s by a majority of votes cast by independent shareholders as well
as by a majonty of votes cast by all shareholders.

The Board confirms that the Company and Mark Coombs entered
nto a relationship agreement on 1 July 2014 as required under
Listing Rule 9.2.2ADR(1]; and that. {i} the Company has complied
with the independence provisions included in that agreement; (1
so far as the Company 18 aware, Mark Coombs has complied with
the independence provisions included in that agreement; and (i} so
far as the Company 15 aware, Mark Coombs has complied with the
prociremant oblkgaton included in that agreement pursuant to
Listing Rule 9.2.2BR{2}{a), in each case during the financial year
ended 30 June 2023.

Diversity

The Nominatinns Cammitiee and the Board recognise the
importance of diversity and ensuring candidates for Board
appointments, whilst being assembled on mernit and objective
criteria, wherever possible reflect different genders, ethnic and
social backgrounds. The Board's diversity policy applies to
appointments to the Board as well as 1o Lhe Audit and Risk,
Nominations and Remuneration Committees and retlects the
Board’'s behef that diversity includes and extends beyond gender
and encompasses, amongst other things, experience, skills, tenure,
age, geographical expertise, professional and socio-economic
background, ethnicity, disabiiity and sexual crientation. In addition,
the Neminations Committee, In assessing the suitability of a
prospective Director, will consider whether the candidate s
‘over-boarded’ and has sufficient time available to discharge

their duties, and the overall balance of skills, expernence and
knowledge on the Board.

it1s Ashmore's policy to attract and retain a diverse workforce.
Whilst there are no quotas set in respect of gender, age, ethnicity,
educational or professional background for its employees, Ashmore
15 committed to providing equal opportunities and seeks 1o ensure
that 1ts worktorce retlects, as far as i1s practuicable, the diversity of
the many communities in which it operates and this 1s set out in
the Group's diversity policy. Detalls of the gender and ethnicity
balance across the Group and In relation to the Beard and senior
management are provided on pages 47 and 48.

It 1s the Group's policy to give appropriate consideration ta
applicatons from persons with disabilities, having regard to their
particular aptitudes and athhiues. For the purposes of training,
career development and progression {including those who become
disabled during the course of their employrnent), all are treated on
equal terms with other employees.

Engagement with employees and wider stakeholders

The Board, at a senes of ‘'meet the teams’ sessions chaired by
Jenniter Bingham as the Non-executive Director for workforce
engagement, listened 10 employees’ views on the Group.

These Interactive sessicns help shape the Group's culture, N
addition 1o other forms of employes engagement such as

regular employee newsletters and off-site team bullding exercises
across the Group's offices. Ashmore's engagement with other
stakeholders and the outcomes are detailed in the Section 172
statement on pages 42 to 45.

Insurance and indemnification of Directors

The Company maintains Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
for all Directors. To the extent permissible by law, the Articles of
Association also permit the Company to indemnify Directors and
former Directors against any liability incurred whilst serving in
such capacity.
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+ DIRECTORS® REPORT {CONTINUED)

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Companies Act imposes upon Directors a statutory duty
1o avoid unauthonsed corflicts of interest vaih the Company.
The Company's Articles of Association enable Directors to
approve conflicts of imerest and aiso include other confhict of
Interest provisions. Such conflicts are then, where appropriate,
considered for approval by the Board.

Save as disclosed on page 62, the Executve Directors do not
presently hold any external appointments with any
non-Ashmore-related comparies.

Directors’ share interests

The imerests of Directors in the Company’s shares are shown on
page 105 within the Remuneration report.

Significant agreements with provisions applicable
to a change in control of the Company

Save as described, there are no agreements 1n place applicable to
a change in controt of the Company.

Resolution 12 in the Notce of AGM will seek approval from
shareholders to a waiver of the provisions of Rule 3 of the
Takeover Code m respect of the obligaton that could anse for
Mark Caombs to make a mandatory offer for the Company 1n the
event that the Company exercrses the authonty 10 make market
purchases of 1ts own shares. Further details will be cantained in
the separate Notce of AGM.

Relations with shareholders

The Company places great importance on communication with its
mvestors and has regular cornmumcation with instinutional and
retail shareholders, and sell-side analysts throughout the year.

Annual and intenim reperts and quarterly AuM updates are
distributed to other parties who may have an interest in the
Group's performance. These documents are also made avalable
on the Company’s website where tormal regulatory information
service announcements are posted. The CEO and GFD report to
the Board on investor relations and on specrfic discussions with
major shareholders.

The Company will be issuing a separate circular and MNotice of
Meeting in respect of this year's AGM. The Group will announce
the number ot votes cast on resolutions at the AGM via a
regulatory information service.

Substantial shareholdings’

The Senior Independent Director 1s avallable to sharehoiders if they
have a concern where contact threugh the normal channels of
Chair. CEQ or GFD has faled to resolve it or for which such contact
1S Inapproprate.

Share capital

The Company has a single class of share capital, ordinary shares
of 0.01 pence, each of which rank pari passu in respect of
partcipation and voting nghts. The shares are in registered form.
The 1ssued share capital of the Company at 30 June 2023 was
712,740 804 shares. There were no shares hetd in Treasury.

Detalls of the structure of and changes in share capital are set out
in notg 22 to the financial statements.

Restrictions on voting rights

A member shall not be entitled to vote at any general meeting or
ciass meeting In respect of any share held by him if any call or
other sum then payable by him in respect of that share remains
unpaid or It a member has been served with a restriction notice

{as detined in the Articles of Association) after fallure to provide the
Company with information concerning interests in those shares
required 10 be provided under the Companies Act. Votes may be
exerased in person or by proxy. The Articles of Association
currently provide a deadline for submission of proxy forms of

48 hours before the meeting.

Purchase of own shares

In the year under review, the Company did not purchase any of its
own shares for Treasury and the EBT purchased 7,038,638 shares
worth £16.6 mulhon. Until the date of the next AGM, the Company
15 generally and unconditionally authorised to buy back up to
35,637,040 of its own 1ssued shares. The Company 1s seeking a
renewal of the share buyback authonty at the 2023 AGM.

Power 1o issue and allot shares

The Directors are generally and unconditionally authorised to allot
unissued shares in the Company up 1o a maximum nerminal
amount of £23,758.03 {and £47,516.05 in connection with an
offer by way of a nghts tssue).

The Company has been notified of the following significant interasts in accordance with DTR 5 (other than those of the Directors which are
disclosed separately on page 105) in the Company's ordinary shares of 0.01 pence each.

Number Number

of voting of voting

nghts disclosed nghts disclosed
as at Percentags as at Percentage
30 June 2023 interests” G September 2023 Interests:
Overseas Pensions and Benefits Limited® 50,648,181 710 50,648,181 7.10
BlackRock, Inc. 42,956,269 501 44,196,398 8.19
Jupiter Fund Management PLC 36,034,780 5.05 36,034,780 5.05
Schroders plc 34 470,970 485 34,470,970 485
Allianz Globai Investors GmbH 32,695,220 4.58 32,695,220 4.58

1 The shareholding of Mark Coornbs, a Director ana substanual shareholder, s disclosed separately on page 105

M

In addition 1o tne nterests In the Company’s ordinary shares referred to above, each Executive Director and empleyee of the Group has an interest in the Company’s

ardinary shares hela by Overseas Pensions and Benefits Limited under the terms of the EBT. The vaung nghts disciosed for the EBT in this table reflect the last
notification made to the Company in accorgance with DTR 5 The aciual number of shares held by the EBT as at 30 June 2023 s disclosed in note 23 1o the

financial statements

w
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A further authonty has been granted to the Directers to allot the
Company's shares for cash, up 10 a maximum nominal amount

of £7,127.40, withaut regard to the pre-emption provisions of the
Companies Act. No such shares have been 1ssued or allotted under
these authorities, nor s there any current intention 1o do so, other
than to satisfy outstanding obligations under the employee share
schemes where necessary.

These authonties are valid until the date of the 2023 AGM when a
resolution for such renewal wilt be proposed.

Employees

Dotails of the Company’a employment practices cam be found in
the Pecple & culture report on page 46.

Overseas Pensions and Benefits Limited as trustee of the EBT has
discretion as 10 the exercise of voung nghts over shares which it

holds in respect of unallocated shares, namely those shares in
which no employee beneficial nterests exist.

Corporate governance

The Company 1S governed according to the applicable provisions of
company law and by the Company’s Articles. As a listed company,
the Company must also comply with the Listing Rules and the DTRs.
Listed companies are expected 1o comply as far as possible with the
provisions of the Code, and 1o state how 1ts principles have been
applied. There 1s a report from the Chair on corporate governance on
pages 64 1o 66 and a description of how the Company has applied
each of the principles of the Code on pages 67 to 68. The Company
comphed throughout the financial period with all the relevant
provisions set out in the Code other than Provision 24 where

Clive Adamson retained the role of Chair of the Audit and Risk
Committee on an intenm basis for part of the year whilst also being
Charr of the Company.

Mandatory GHG reporting and SECR requirements

In line with the Cormpanies Act (Strategic Report and Directors’
Report) Regulations 2013, all companies listed on the main market
of the London Stock Exchange have been required 1o repert therr
GHG emussions within their annual report. In addition, as ot 1 April
2019, the Group 1s required to meet the mandatory SECR
requirements. These compnse disclosure of Scope 1 and 2 emissions
and energy consumiption, at least one intensity metnc {e.g. emissions
per revenue, or per FTE], a list of energy efficiency actions taken

f applicable), and a companisen with the emissions of the previous
year, when avallable. An explanation of the methodology and the
sources of 1he conversion factors used Is also required.

Operational control methodology

The Group has followed the operational control method of
reporting. The emissions reported below are for the 11 otffices
around the world where the Group exercised direct operational
control In FY2023. The office emissions reported, as well as
emissions onginating from their operations, are those which are
considered matenal to the Group and for which data was available.

Emission scopes

In accordance with mandatory GHG reporting, Scope 1 and Scope
2 are required to be reported. In line with the GHG Protocol’s dual
reporting requiremesnts, Scope 2 emissions have been reported bhoth
in terms of 'market-based’ emissions and ‘location-based’ emissions.

It 1s not mandatory to report Scope 3. However, the Group
continues 1o report on key Scope 3 emission categones (e.g. arr
travel, water, waste) in order to provide more complete
disclosure to stakeholders.

FY2023 saw the inclusion of well-to-tank emissions” for the first
tme, to incroaceo the completenoss of Ashmore’s Scope 3
disclosure.

Exclusions and estimation

Overall, 14% of total emissions generated were based on
estimation {135 1CQO,e). Best endeavours have been undertaken at
each office to provide the required data; however, in some cases
data was not avallable for reporting and estimation was required.

Esumation methodologies adopled are summansed in the
following approaches:

— For offices located within shared and leased buildings, many
were only able to provide an estimated consumption rale based
on the apportionment of the building total as sub-metered data
was not avallable.

— Where only spend data was availlable, an average price per unit
estimate was applied to the total cost to calculate the
consumption rate,

— For some offices, waste data could only be provided in terms of
volume disposed. The waste volume was converted to weight
using UK Government waste-type specific weight canversion
factors.

— For offices unable to provide any waste or water data, it was
decided that estimation was inappropriate due to the significant
differences in disposal rates by bulding, otfice size and per
employee, and therefore no waste data was included

- For offices unable to provide therr emissions data relative to
the last quarter of the Group's financial year, the impact of this
quarter was estimated by projecting the available data for the
remaining months of this financial year.

Exclusions were based on three types of criteria: relevancy to the
Company's operations, materiality’ and data availabiiity. in particular,
Scope 1 and 2 emissions areas that are not covered in this analysis®
are not applicable; the exciuded upstream Scope 3 categories® are
expected to have an mmaterial impact on emissions, and none of
the downstream Scope 3 categones® are applicable except for
category 15 (tinvestments). The Group invests across muliple asset
classes and in markets where disclosure requirements are still
evolving, therefare it has not currently calculated an aggregate
figure for category 15. Please refer to the TCFD section on page 56
for turther information.

Well-to-tank emissicns are the Scope 3 emissions associated with the extraction, refiming and transportation of the raw fuel scurces prior to therr cembustion

They are calculated from the data on tuels burned in company owned vehicles and fuels and electnicity used in the company's prermises.

Process emissions, electric vehicles, and heat and steam consumphon

(S I B S )

Categories 910 15.

A rmaterality threshold of 5% of total emissians 1s used to determing whether an emissions source 1s reguired to be included as per SECR reguirements

Category 1 material use and supply chain, category 2 capital goods, and category 4 upstrearn freight.
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' DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Quantification and reporting methodology

Data collection and analysis has stnctly followed the GHG Protocol
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard. The WRI and the
WBCSD developed the standard to promote standardised global
carbon accounting methodologies and, as such, the GHG Protocol
Standard 1s one of the recommended methodclogies under the
SECR reguirements. The UK Government’s 2022 emission factors,
generated by DEFRA, have been used to quantfy all emissions,
with the exception of overseas electnicty, which has been
quantfied using data from European Investment Bank's 2022
Project Carbon Footprint Methodelogies (Colombia, India,
Indonesia, Peru, Saudi Arabia, Singapore, United Arab Emirates),
the IEA’s 2022 emissions facters (lreland), the 2021 Climate
Transparency Report (Japan}, and the 2022 factars from the United
States Environmental Protection Agency (United States). The
market-based (supplier-specific) conversion factors have been
supplied by the Group's offices in Colombia and lreland.

The Group’s data inputs and outputs have been reviewed and
processed by Carbon Responsible Limited.

Consumption and emissions

The Group emitted 4 total ot 990 tonnes of CO,e across Hs global
cffices for all scopes including Scope 3 which s not mandatory 1o
report). Scope 3 accountad for 68% of the total emissions, Scope 2
for 23% and Scope 1 for 10% of total emissions.

Oversall, the Group’'s GHG ermissions increased by 519% compared
1o FY2022. The sigmificant difference in emissions s primanly due
to an increase in reported business travel to pre-Cowvid levels,
access to wider data and inclusion of additional GHG categones.

Recorded emissions were generated by vanous sources, across
the three scopes. As a proportion of the total emissions, the
biggest source of emissions was business travel (831 tCO.e, 54%
of total emissions}, tollowed by electricity generation {225 tCOse,
23% of total emussions), fue! and electricity well-to-tank (71 tCO.e,
7% of 1otal emissions), hotels (47 tCO,e, 5% of total emissions),
stationary fuel (41 1CO.e, 4% of total emissions), refrigerants (38
1CO,e, 4% of total emissions), mebile fuel combustion (17 t1CC.e,
2% of total emissions) and electricity transmission and distnibution
{16 1C0O.e, 2% of total emissions). All other emission sources
contributed less than 1% of the total emissions.

Carbon offset

The Group seeks to offset its GHG emissions via The Ashmore
Foundation. It uses a carbon price methodology to establish a
donation amount and then the Foundanon identifies projectis) to
target the requirred offset in the emerging countries in which the
Group invests and operates. The activities relating to the FY2023
GHG emussions will be reported in the Group’s FY2024 Annual
Report and Accounts,
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Consumption of GHG emitting sources

Year-on-ysar

Scopa emissions by source Fy2022 F¥2023 change
Scope 1 Natural gas (kwwh) 212,833 222,083 +9,250
Other fuels (kWh) 29,8453 65,188’ +35,337
Owned vehicles (km) 5,670 = -6,670
Refrigerants (kg) 1 59 +68
Scope 2 Electricity (kWh) 509,618 554 256 +45,338
Scope 3 Arr travel

{passenger km} 2434869 4,825046 +2,380,177
Hotel stay (room rughts) 241 1,465 +1,224
Third-party vehicles (km) 498 15,280 +14,782
Water (m?) 1,454 1,877 +423
Waste (kg) 33,913 19,615 -14,298

. Fuel consumption data was availlable for all the vehicies owned by the Group,
so the data on the distance travelled by owned vehicles was not used In
FY2023. This does not mean that the emissions decreased, but simply that the
emissions from mobile fuel are all included in “other fuels’ nstead.

Emissions by scope

Change in % of total

Scope FY2022 Fvz023 1CQ-a change
1 51.9 949 +430 13%
2 {market-based) 2211 2246  +35 1%
2 ({location-based) 2273 2331 +5.8
3 3808 6701 +289.3 B86%
Total (market-based) 6538 0836 +3356
Total (location-based) 860.0 92981 +338.1
Scope 1,2&31C0O.e/FTE 2.2 33 +ia
Scope 1&21C0O.e/FTE 0.9 1.1 +0.2
Scope 1,2&3 kgCO.efoffice m? 118 177 +59
Scope 1&2 kgCO,efotfice m? 45 57 +8

Year-on-year change in emissions {UK and global)

Changs ih ¥ of 1otal

Uk/hon-UK FY2022 FY2022 WCO0.e change
UK & offshore 248 381 +115 34%
Global {non-UK) 408 629 +221 66%
Total 654 990 +2368

Intensity metrics

Two intensity metrics have been calculated tor emissions, one
based on FTE and one con office area {m?). Intensity metrics are a
useful way to assess changes i emissions within a growing
company, as whilst absolute emissions increase, the impact per
chosen unit can reduce.

The table on the following page shows the emissions per FTE and
otfice m? for FY2022 and FY2023. In both cases, the intensity
metrics are provided both for total (Scope 1, 2 and 3) emissions
and for Scope 1 and 2 emissions only. While providing intensity
metrics based on all the reported emissicns 1s a reguirement for
SECR, the intensity metrics regarding Scope 1 and 2 emissions
only are provided to faciitate a valuable comparison with the other
companies In the same sectar who only disclose Scope 1 and 2
emissions to comply with SECR requirements. Ermissions per FTE
are expressed in tonnes of CO.e per FTE; emissions per office area
are expressed in kilograms of CO.e per office squared metre.



By observing the table below, 1t 1s notable that reported Scope 1. 2
and 3 emussions per FTE and office area have both increased
substantally since FY2022, while both intensity metrics relative to
Scope 1 and 2 emissions only have remamned similar to therr
FY2022 values. Since nerther the number of FTE nor the area of
offices have varied substantially since last year, the increase in these
intensity metrics 1s reflective of an increase In emissions (especally
Scope 3 emissions) as presented above.

Intensity metrics relative to both total emissions and Scope
1 and 2 emissions only

Fy2022 FY2023
Scope 1,743 tLU,e/FTE 2.22 334
Scope 182 1C0O.&/FTE 0.93 1.08
Scope 1,283 kgCO.g/otfice m- 118 177
Scope 1&2 kgCO.efoffice m¢ 49 57

The report covers all the main grnissiuns sources that are required
to be reported under the SECR requirements and for which data
has been collected. Optional disclosure of Scope 3 impacts has
been undertaken as far as practicable to reflect the impact from the
Group's core operations.

Charitable and political contributions

Dunng the year, the Group made chantable donations of £0.5 million
(FY2022: £0.6 million). The work of The Ashrmore Foundation 1s
described in the Sustanability section of this report on pages 50
10 55, Itis the Group's policy not 10 make contributions for
political purpeses.

Creditor payment policy

The Group’s policy and practice in the UK are to follow s supplers’

terms of payment and to make payment in accordance with those
1erms subject to receipt of satstactary invoicing. Unless otherwise
agreed, payments to creditors are made within 30 days of receipt
of aninvoice. At 30 June 2023, the amount owed 1o the Group's
trade creditors in the UK represented approximately 271 days’
average purchases from supplers (FY2022: 17 days).

Directors’ service contracts

Auditors and the disclosure of information
to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there
15 no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditors are
unaware, and each Director has taken ail the steps that they ought
10 have taken as Drectors 10 make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit information and tn establish that the Group's auditors
are aware of that informaticn.

Resolutions will be proposed at the AGM to appoint Ernst & Young
LLP as auditor and to authorise 1he Audit and Risk Committee to
aqrce ther remuneration. Note 11 to the inancial statements sets
out delails of the auditor's remuneration

2023 Annual General Meeting

Details of the AGM will be given in the separate circular and Notice
of Mectng.

Going concern

The Company and Group have considerable inancial resources and
the Directors believe that both are well placed 1o manage ther
business risks successfully.

Further information regarding the Group's business activities,
together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position, are set out on pages 28 to 34.

After making enguines, the Directors are satisfied that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to continue to operate for
the next 12 months from the date of this report and confirm that
the Company and the Group are going concerns. For this reason
they continue 1o adopt the going concern basis in prepanng these
financial statements.

Companies Act

Thus Directors’ report on pages 113 10 117 inclusive has been
drawn up and presented in accordance with and in reliance on
Enghsh company law and the labiities of the Directors in
connection with that report shail be subject to the Imitations
and restrictions provided by such law.

References in this Directors’ report to the financial highhights,
the Business review, the Corporate governance report and the
Remuneration report are deemed to be ncluded by reference in
this Directors' report.

The summary below provides details of the Directors’ service agreements/letters of appointment:

Directors” servica contracts Date appointed Chrsctor

Contract commencarnant date

MNetice peniod Expirg/revieww date

Executive Directors

Mark Coombs 3 December 1988 21 September 2006 1 year Rolling
Tom Shippey 7275 November 2013 25 November 2013 1 year Rolling
Non-executive Directors

Clive Adamson 22 October 2015 22 Qctober 2015 1 month 22 October 2024
Jennifer Bingham 29 June 2018 29 June 2018 1 month 29 June 2024
Helen Beck i June 2021 1 June 2021 1 month 1 June 2024
Thuy Dam 1 June 2023 1 June 2023 1 month 1 June 2026
Shirley Garrcod 1 August 2022 1 August 2022 1 month 1 August 2025

Approved by the Board and signed on its beha!f by:

Alexandra Autrey @f\?,—
Group Company Secretary

5 September 2023
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Ashmore Group plc only

t
|
1
t
|
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|
\
| Year ended 30 June 2023

Qur opinjon is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Ashmore Group pic
{the Company) for the year ended 20 June 2023 which compnse the
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, Consclidated
hailance sheet, Consolidated statement of changes in equity,
Conschidated cash flow statement, Cornpany balance sheet,
Company staternent of changes in eguity, Company cash tlow
staterment, and the related notes, including the accounting policies
innotes 1104,

In our opinion:

— the finanaal statements give a true and farr view of the state of the
Group's and of the parent Company's affairs as at 30 June 2023
ang of the Group's proin for the year then endeg;

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards,

— the parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with LUK-adopted international accounting
standards, and as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2008; and

— the financial statements have been prepared In accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 20086.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accoidance with international
Standards on Audiing (UK} 1SAs (UKY and applicable law,

Our respansibilities are descrnbed below. We believe that the
audit evidence we have oblained is a sufficient and appropriate
basis for our epimion. Qur audit opinon Is consgistent with our
renort ta the Audd and Risk Commitiee.

We were first appointed as audiior of the Company fihen Ashmaore
Group Limuted) by the Directors following its incorporation on

30 November 1998, Subsequent 1o the Company's conversion
inte a public Tmited company and the public Iistng of 113 shares

on the London Stock Exchange on 3 October 2006, we were
reappointed as auditor of Ashmore Group plc by the Directors on
31 October 2007. The period of total uninterrupted engagement 1s
24 years ended 30 June 2023 (16 years since the Company’s public
hatingl. We have fulfiled our ethucal responsibiiies under, and we
remain independent of the Group in accordance wath, UK ethical
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to
histed pubdc interest entities,

No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were provided.

Overview

Materiality:

Group financia!
statements as a whole

£8.1m {2022: £3.1m)

5.2% of Group profit

before tax adjusted for investments
gains and losses averaged over three
years 12022: 5.5% of Gioup profit
before tax adjusted for investments
gains and iosses)

Coverage 89% (2022; 88%) of Group profit

before tax

Key audit matiers s 2022
Recurring risks Management fees 4 >
Recoverability of parent < »r

Company’s loan to subsidianes




Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in gur professional judgement, were of most significance In the audit of the financial slateinents
and include the most significant assessed nisks of matenal misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagerment team. We summanse below the key audit matters (unchanged from 2022), in decreasing order of audit significance, 10 arriving
al vu audit opinion nbhovn, togathor with our key andit procedures 1o Address those matters and our findings from those procedures in order
that the Company’s members as o budy may better understand the process by which we armived at our audit opsmion. These rmatters weie
addressed, and our findings are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provice a

separate opinion on these matters.

Tha risk

Our response

Revenue recognition:
Management fees
£185.4 milhon;

12022: £247.0 million)

Data capture and calculation error
1item In the consolidated statement of

area that had the greatest effect on the
overall Group audit. Management fees
comprise segregated and pooled
management fees.

Refer to page 140
{accounting policy).

The two key components 1o managemeant
fee caleulations are fee rates 1o be applied

and the amount of assets under
management (AulM).

The following are identified as the key
nsks for management fee income:

— Risk In relation to fee rates: There1s a

risk that fee rates have not been entered
appropriately into the fee calculation and

billing systems when new clients are

onboarded or agreements are amended.
— Risk in relation to AuM: There is a risk

that AuM data from the third-party service

providers and other in-house systermns 1s

not complete andfor accurate
— Riskin relation to calculation of

management fee income: There 1s a risk

that management fee income is
incorrectly calculated.

Management fees is the most significant

comprehensive income and represents an

Qur procedures included:

Procedures in relation to fee rates

— Control design and cperation: We tested the design and
operating effectiveness of controls over new and amended
fee agreements.

— Tests of detalls: We agreed a selection of fee rates used in the
system calculation to the original investment management
agreements (IMAs), fee ietters or fund prospectuses cutlining
the latest effective fee rates.

Procedures in relation to AuM

— Control design and operation: For segregated management
fees, we tested the design and operating effectiveness of
controls over the production of AuM valuations used in
calculating management fees.

- For pooled funds management tees, we inspected the
internal controls reports prepared by the outsourced service
organisations (in particular Northern Trust) 1o check whether
the key controls over the production of AuM valuations
used In calculated management fees were designed and
operating effectively.

General procedures

- Test of detals: We independently recalculated 100% of in-scope
component pooled managernent fees and a sample of
segregated management fees. We agreed the recalculated tees
to the general ledger records. This represented 91% (2022:
82%) of total revenue for the Group.

- Assessing transparency: We considered the adequacy of the
disclosures made in respect of management iees against the
relevant accounting standards.

Our findings
— We found no errcrs in the Group's calculation of its
management fee incorme {2022: no errors).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASHMORE

GROUP PLC ONLY (CONTINUED)

Year ended 30 June 2023

The risk

Our response

Recoverability of
parent Company’s
loan to subsidiaries
£266.4 milhon;
(2022: £376.9 muiiton)
Reter to page 137
{accounting pohcy}
and page 154

finangal disclosures).

Low risk, high value

The carrying amount of the

parent Company’s loans due from
subsidiaries represents 41 % (2022:
57 %) of the parent Company's total
assets and is compnsed of a loan to
one subsidiary. The recoverability of
1he toan is not at igh nsk of
sigrificant misstatement or subject
10 significant judgement. However,
due to 1ts matenality in the context of
the parent Company financial
statements, this i1s considered to be
the area that had the greatest effect
an our overall parent Company audit.

Our procedures included:

Test of details

- We assessed the parent Company’s ioan with reference to the
subsidiary’s balance sheet, 1o idenuty whether the subsidiary had a
positive net asset value, and therefore coverage of the debt owed,
as well as assessing whether the subsidiary had histoncaily been
profit-making.

Assessing subsidiary audits:

— We considerad the results of the work we perfarmed on the
subsidiary audit on those net assets, including assessing the ability
of the subsidiary to obtain hquid funds and, therefore, the ability of
the subsidiary to fund the repayment of the loan.

— We performed the tests above rather than seeking to rely on any of
the Company’s controls because the nature of the balance 1s such
that we would expect to obtain audit evidence prnmanly through the
detalled procedures described.

Our findings
- We found the Company’s conclusion that there is no impairment of
the loan due from 1ts subsidiary to be balanced {2022: balanced).
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Our application of materiality and an overview

of the scope of our audit

Maletiality Tor the Group Tinancial slalerienls as d whole was

set at £8.1 mulhon {2022: £9.1 million), which 1s determined

with reference to a benchmark of Group profit before tax adjusted
for investment gains and losses averaged over three years, of
which 1t represents 5.2% (2022 5.5% of Group profit betore tax
adjusted for Investments gains and losses). The adjustments are
made up of the following line items from the conselidated
staternent of comprehensive income: gains/ilosses} on investmeant
secuntes, change n third-party interests in consolidated funds
and finance incomef(expense). We have amended cur benchmark
by averaging it over three years to account for fluctuations in
financial performance.

Materiality for the parent Comgpany financial statements as a whole
was set at £6.5 milkon (2022: £6.6 milhon), determined with
reference to a benchmark of Company total assets, of which it
represents 1% (2022 19%).

In line with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual
account balances and disclosures were performed to a lower
threshold, performance materiality, so as to reduce to an
acceptable level the risk that individually immaterial misstatements
in individual account balances add up to a material amount across
the financial statements as a whole.

Performance matenality was set at 7% (2022: 75%!]) of materiality
for the financial statements as a whole, which equates 10

£6.1 million {2022: £6.8 million} for the Group and £4.9 million
(2022: £4.2 million) for the parent Company. We appled this
percentage in our determination of perfermance materiality
because we did not identfy any factors indicating an elevated

level of nsk.

We agreed to report to the Group Audit and Risk Committee any
corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding
£0.4 million (2022: £0.5 million}, In addition to other identified
misstatermnents that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Ot the Group’s 28 (2022: 28) reporting components, we subjected
four (2022 four) to full scope audits for Group reporting purposes
and four {2022: four) to specified nsk-focused audn procedures.
The latter were not individually financially significant enough to
require a full scope audit for Group purposes, but did present
specific individual risks that needed to be addressed. The
components within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages ilustrated opposite. For the residual components,

we performed analysis at an aggregated Group level to re-examing
our assessment that there were no significant nsks of matenal
misstatement within the components.,

All of the work, including the audit of the parent Company,

was performed by the Group team. The Group team performed
procedures on the items excluded from Group profit before tax.
The Group team approved component matenahtes, which ranged
from £6.5 mullion to £4.0 rilhon {2022: £8.0 million to £1.0 milhan),
having regard to the mix of size and nsk profile of the components
across the Group. The scope of the audit work perfermed was
predominately substantive as we placed limited reliance upon the
Group's internal control over financial reporting other than as set
out In our key audit matter.

Group profit before tax
£1118m {2022, £118.4m)

Group profit before tax

Group net revenue

91%
{2022: 82%)

Group total assets

97%

(2022: 96%)

Group matenality
£8.1m {2022: £8.1m)
£8.1m B

Whole financial statements
matenality (2022 £8 1m
£6.1m

Whole financial statements
performance materiahty
{2022 £6.8m)

£6.56m

Range of matenality at 8
cormponents [£6.5m to £4.0m)
(2022; £8 O to £10m)

£0.41m

Misstatements reported to
the Audnt and Risk Commitiee
12022, £0.46m}

Group materality

Group profit before tax

89%
(2022: 83%)

Group net assets

93%
{2022: 97%)

Full scope for Group audit purposes 2023
Specified nsk-focused audit procedures 2023
Full scope for Group audit purposes 2022
Specified nsk-focused audit procedures 2022

Residual components
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASHMORE

|
GROUP PLC ONLY (CONTINUED)
Year ended 30 June 2023

The impact of climate change on our audit

in planning our audit we have considered the potential iImpacts

of climate change on the Group's business and its tinancial
statements Climate change impacts the Group in a number of
ways: through its cwn operations (including potential reputational
risk associated with the Group’s delivery of its chmate related
mitiatives), through its pertfeho of Investments and its stewardship
role, and the greater emphasis on climate related narrative and
aisclosure in the Annual Report.

As a part of our audit, we have made enquines of management to
understand the extent of the potential impact of cimate change risk
on the Group's financial statements and the Group's preparedness
for this. We have performed a risk assessment of how the impact
of chimate change may affect the financial statements and

our audit. We held discussions with our own climate change
professionals to challenge our sk assessment.

On the basis of the nsk assessment procedures performed above
and taking into account the nature of the assets on the Group’s
balance sheet, we concluded that there was no significant impact
from climate change. We have also read the disclosure of chmate
related informaticn in the front halt as set out on pages 56 to 61 of
the Annual Report and considered consistency with the financial
statements and our audit knowledge.

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going
concern basis as they do not intend to hquidate the Company

or the Group of to cease therr operations, and as such they have
concluded that the Company's and the Group's financial position
means that this 1s realistic. They have also concluded that there
are no material uncertainties that could have cast signficant doubt
over therr ability 1o continue as @ going concern for at least a year
from the date of appraoval of the financal statements {the going
concern penod).

We used our knowledge of the Group, 11s industry, and the general
aconomic environmeant 1o identfy the inherent nisks to 11s business
model and analysed how those risks might atfect the Group's and
Company’s financial resources or ability 10 continue operations over
the geing concern period. The risk that we considered most likely
1o adversely affect the Group's and Company’s avallable financial
resources over this period was AuM outflows.

We cansidered whether the nsk could plausibly affect the llquidity
in the going concern period by assessing the degree of downside
assumpbon that, Indvidually and collectively, could resultin a
hquidity 1ssue, taking into account the Group’s current and
projected cash. We also assessed the completeness of the going
concern disclosure.

Cur conclusions based on this work:

- we consider that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
1S appropnate;

— we have not tdentfied, and concur with the Directors’
assessment that there 1s not, a8 matenal uncertainty related 1o
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group's or Company's ability to continue
as a going concern tor the going concern perod;
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— wea have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to
the Directors’ statement in note 2 to the financial statements on
the use of the going concern basis of accounting with no matenat
uncertainues that may cast significant doubt over the Group and
Company’s use of that basis for the gomng concern period and we
found the gong concern disclosure in note 2 to be acceptable; and

- the related statement under the Listing Rules set out on page 39
1s materially consistent with the financial statements and our
audit knowledge.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditons and
as subsequent events may result in cutcomes that are Inconsistent
with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were
made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Group or
the Company will continue in operaticn

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations - ability
to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

To identify nsks of matenial misstatement due 1o traud (fraud nsks)
we assessed events or conditions that could indicate an incentive or
pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud.
Our risk assessment procedures included:

- Enquinng of Directors and inspection of policy documentation as
to the Group's high-level policies and procedures to prevent and
detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

- Reading Audit and Risk Committee meeting minutes.

— Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or
unexpected relationships.

- Considenng remuneration incentive schemes and perfermance
targets for management and Directors such as the Group's
executive share-based incentive scheme.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team
and remained alert to any indications of fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our
overall knowledge of the control environment, we perform
procedures to address the risk of management overnde of controls,
In particular the nisk that management may be in & position to make
Inappropriate accountng entnes. On this audit we do not believe
there is a fraud nisk related to revenue recogniton because the
calculation of the revenue is non-judgemental and straightforward,
with imited opportunity for manmipulation

We did not i[dentify any additional fraud nsks.

We also performed procedures including dentifying journal
entnes to test based on nsk critena and comparing the identified
entries to supporiing documentation. These included all material
post-closing journats



{dentifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws

and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regutations that could reasonably
be expected 1o have a matenal effect on the financial statements
from aur general cormmercial and sector expenence, and through
discussion with the Directors and other management (as required
by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Group's
regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the
Directors and other managarment the policies and procedures
regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

As the Group 1s regulated, our assessment of nsks imvelved gaining
an understanding of the control environment including the entity’s
procedures far complying with regulatory requirements.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our
team and remained alert 1o any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial
statements vanes considerably.

Firstly, the Group 18 subject to laws and regulatons that directly
affect the financial statements including financial reporting
legislation (inciuding refated companies legislation), distributable
profits legislation, taxation legislation, and financial services
legisiaton and we assessed the extent of comphance with these
laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related
tinancial statement items

Secondly, the Group is subject 10 many other laws and regulations
where the conseguences of non-compliance could have a matenal
etfect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statemenits, for
instance through the iImposition of fines or itigation or the loss of the
Group’s authorty 1o operate. We identfied the following areas as those
maost likely to have such an effect: spectfic areas of regulatory capital
and hiquidrty, conduct ncluding chent assets, ant-money laundenng,
antrbribery and market abuse regulations, and certain aspects of
company legislaton and financial senvices legislanon recegnising the
financial and regulated nature of the Group's activities and 1ts legal
form. Auditing standards mit the required audit procedures 1o identify
noncomphance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the
Directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any. Therefore if a breach ot operational regulations
is not disclosed 1o us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit
will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owing 1o the inherent imitations of an audit, there 1s an unavoidable
nsk that we may not have detected scme material misstatements
n the financtal statements, even though we have praoperly planned
and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards.
For example, the further removed non-corpliance with laws and
regulations 1s from the events and transactions reflected in the
financial staterments, the less likely the inherently limned
procedures reguired by auditing standards would identify 1.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher nsk of
non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional ormissions, misrepreseritations, or the overnde of
internal controls. Our audit procedures are designead 10 detect
material misstaterment. We are not responsible for preventing
non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect
non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

We have nothing to report on the other information
in the Annual Report

The Directors are responsible for the other infermation presented in the
Annual Report together with the finanoial statements. Our opiion on
the financial statements does not cover the other nformation and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility 15 to read the other information and, in doing 50,
consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work,
the information therein 1s materially rmisstated or inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on
that work we have not identified material misstatements in the
other information.

Strategic report and Directors’ report
Bascd solely on our work on the other information:

— we have not dentihed matenal misstatements in the Strategic
report and the Directors’ report;

~ In our opinion the information given in those reports for the
financiat year 1s consistent with the financial statements; and

— In our opinion those reports have been prepared In accordance
with the Companies Act 2008.

Directors’ Remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report 10
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2008.
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‘ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASHMORE

GROUP PLC ONLY (CONTINUED)
Year ended 30 June 2023

Disclosures of principal and emerging risks and
longer-term viability

We are required to perform procedures to identfy whether there s
a matenal Inconsistency between the Directors’ disclosures in
respect of principal and emerging nsks and the langer-term viabiiity
statement, and the financial statements and our audit knowledge.

Based on those procedures, we have nothing materal to add or
draw attention to in relation to:

— the Directors’ confirmation within the longer-term viability
statement on page 39 that they have carned cut 8 robust

assessment of the emerging and principal risks facing the Group,

micluding those that would threaten s business model, future
performance, solvency and liquidity;

— the principal and emerging nsks disclosures desenbing thase
risks and how emerging nsks are wentfied, and explaining how
they are bemg managed and mutigated: and

— the Directors® expianation in the longer-term viability statement
of how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what penod they have done so and why they considered that
penod to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they
have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to
continue In pperation and meet 1ts habiiies as they fall due over
the penod of their agsessment, including any related disclosures

drawing attention to any necessary gualifications or assumptions.

We are also required to review the longer-term viability statement,
set out on page 39, under the Listing Rules. Based on the above
procedures, we have concluded that the above disclosures are
matenally consistant with the financial statements and our

audit knowledge.

Our work 1s limited to assessing these matters in the context of
only the knowledge acquired during our financial statements audi.
As we cannaot predict all future events or conditions and as
subseguent events may result in outcomes that are iInconsistent
with Judgements that were reasonable at the tme they were

made, the absence ot anything to report on these statements I1s not

& guarantee as to the Group's and Company's longer-term wiability,
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Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures to idenufy whether there is
a matenal mconsistency between the Directors’ corporate
governance disclosures and the financial statements and our

audit knowiedge.

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each of the
following 1s materially consistent with the financial statements and
our audit knowledge:

— the Directors’ statement that they consider that the Annual
Report and financial statements taken as a whole 1s far, balanced
and understandable, and prowides the information necessary for
shareholders 1o assess the Group’s positon and performance,
business model and strategy;

- the section of the Annual Report descnbing the work of the Audit
and Risk Committee, including the significant issues that the
Audit and Risk Comprittee considered in relation 1o the financial
statements, and how these 1ssues were addressed; and

— the section of the Annual Report that describes the review of the
eftectiveness of the Group’s rnisk management and internal
control systems.

We are required to review the part of the Corporate Governance
Statement relating to the Group’s compliance with the provisions of
the UK Corparate Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules
far our review. We have nothing to report in this respect.

We have nothing to report on the other matters

on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required 1o report 1o you if,
N our gpmion;

- adeguate accountng records have not been kept by the parent
Company, or returns adequate for gur audit have not been
received trom branches not visited by us; or

- the parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

— certain disglosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

We have ncthing to report in these respects



Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in ther statement set out on page 112,
the Lirectors are responsible Tor: he prepaation of the finanaal
statements including being satishied that they give a true and fair
view,; such internal control as they determing 1s necessary 10
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
maternal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Group and parent Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing. as applcable, matters related to going concern;
and using the gong concarn basis of accountng uniess they either
intend 1o ligwdate the Group or the parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial staternents as a whole are free from matenal misstaterment,
whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ISsUe our opINION N an
auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance,
but does not guarantee that an audit coenducted in accordance with
1SAs (UK) will always detect a matenal misstaterment when 1t
exists. Misstaternents can anse from fraud, other irregularities cr
error and are considered matenal If, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities,

The Company s required to include these financial statements in an
annual financial report prepared under Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule (DTR) 4.1.17R and 4.1.18R. This auditor’s repcrt
provides no assurance over whether the annua! financiai report has
been prepared in accordance with those requirements.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe
our responsibilities

This report1s made solely 10 the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
and the terms of our engagement by the Company. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
memibers those matters we are required to state to them n an
auditor's report, and the further matters we are required 1o state

to them i accordance with the terms agreed with the Company,
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone ather than the
Company and the Company’'s members, as a body, for cur audit
waork, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

e e
Jatin Patel (Senior Statutory Auditor]
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chanered Accountants

15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL

B September 2023
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. Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
. For the year ended 30 June 2023

2073

W22

Notes £m fm

Management fees 185.4 247.0
Performance fees 5.1 4.5
Other revenue 2.7 29
Total revenue 193.2 2544
Distnbution costs (2.2) (3.5)
Foreign %lla_ngg_ S S 7 54 TLB
N;;evenua ) ' o 195 2625
Losses on investment securmies 20 (34.3) (61.3)
Change im third-party nterests in consohdated funds 20 19.3 18.5
Personnel expenses o] (66.2) (73.4)
Other expenses e B 1 {278) 0 (5%
Operating profit - 774 119.2
Finance incomeflexpense) 8 339 (2.1}
Share of profit from associates 26 05 13
Profit before tax 111.8 1184
Tax expense 12 (25.3) (26.5)
Profit for the year 86.5 91.8
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of related tax effect
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Foreign currency translation differences ansing on foreign cperations (26.2) 80.2

Cash flow hedge intrinsic valug gams/{losses) 4.9 6.0
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax (21.3) 742
Total comprehensive income for the year 65.2 166.1
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 83.3 88.5
Non-controling nterests 3.2 34
Profit for the year 86.5 919
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 62.7 161.9
Non-controlling interests 25 4.2
Total comprehensive income for the year 85.2 1881
Earnings per share
Basic 13 12.43p 13.42p
Oihvted i3 12.15p 12.61p

The notes on pages 133 to 174 form an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Consolidated balance sheet

. Asat 30 June 2023
2023 2022
Notes £ £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets 15 86.9 g0 49
Property, plant and equipment 18 6.5 g1
Investment in associates 28 2.3 21
Non-current financial assets measured at fair value 19, 20 54.1 3983
Deferred acquisition costs 03 04
Deferred tax assets 18 23.9 327
174.0 1745
Current assets
Imvestmient securitiss 18,20 229.9 2051
Financial assets measured at far value 19, 20 55.8 322
Trade and other receivables 17 70.4 743
Cash and cash eqguivalents 478.6 552.0
834.7 9237
Total assets 1,008.7 1,098.2
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves - attributable to equity holders of the parent
Issued capita! 22 0.1 0.1
Share premium 15.6 16.6
Retained earnings 875.4 301.0
Foreign exchange reserve 7.7 33.2
Cash flow hedging reserve - 4 9)
g98.8 9450
Non-controliing interests 31 14.2 21.8
Total equity 913.0 S66.8
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Lease labilities 16 3.7 5.8
Detferred tax iiabilities 18 9.3 g8
13.0 146
Current liabilities
Lease labitities 16 2.1 22
Derivative tinancial instruments 19, 21 0.2 52
Third-party interests in consolidated funds i3, 20 56.2 730
Trade and other payables 24 24.2 364
82.7 116.8
Total liabilities 95,7 1314
Total equity and liahilities 1.008.7 1,098.2

The notes on pages 133 to 174 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board on 5 September 2023 and signed on its behalt by:
- ;’l, ‘
Mark Cq_omhs’

Chief Executive Otficer

) Tom Shippey
Group Finance Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Attributable 1o sguity holders of the parent

Foreign  Cash flaw Nen-
Issued Share Retaned  exchange hedging controlling Total
capital prermium earnings rezerve rezerve Total interests equity

£m £rn fm £ £m £m fm Em

Balance at 30 June 2021 o1 15.8 941.0 {46.2) 1.1 91186 211 932.7

Profit for the year - - 88.5 - - 825 34 91.g8

Other comprehensive income/{loss):

Foreign currency translation differences ansing on - — - 79.4 - 794 0.8 80.2
foreign operations
Cash flow hedge intrinsic value losses - — - - (6.0) 6.0) - 8.0}
Total comprehensive income/{loss) - - 88.5 78.4 (8.00 161.9 4.2 166.1
Transactions with owners:
Purchase of own shares - - (34.5) - - (34.5) — (34.5)
Share-based payments - - 245 - - 245 - 24.5
Decrease in non-contrelling interests - - - - - - 10.5) 0.5)
Dwvidends to equity holders - - (1185 - - (118.5) - (118.5)
Dividends to non-controlling interests ) o - - - - = - (3.0) (3.0

Total contributions and distributions - - {128.5) - - {1285 13.5). . (1320)

Balance at 30 June 2022 01 15.6 901.0 332 4.9 945.0 21.8 966.8

Profit for the year - - 83.3 - - 83.3 3.2 86.5

Other comprehensive Income/(loss):

Foreign currency translation differences ansing on - - - {256} - (25.5) {0.7) (26.2)
foreign operations
Cash flow hedge intninsic value gains - - - - 4.9 4.9 - 4.9
Total comprehensive income/{loss) - - 83.3 {25.5) 49 62.7 2.5 65.2
Transactions with owners:
Purchase of own shares - - {15.86) - ~ (15.6) - {15.6)
Share-based payments - - 185 - - 185 - 185
Movements m non-controlling interests - - 6.6 - - 66 (6.8) {0.2)
Dividends to equity holders - - (118.4) - - (118.4) - (118.4)
Dividends to non-controling interests - - - ~ - - (3.3) (3.3}
Total contributions and distributions - - {108.9) - - [108.9} (10.1) (119.0)
Balance at 30 June 2023 0.1 15.6 875.4 7.7 _ 898.8 14.2 913.0

The notes on pages 133 to 174 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022
£m £rm
Operating activities
Profit for the year 86.5 919
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation and amortssation 3.2 31
Share-based payments 18.9 24.3
Foreign exchange gains {5.4) (11 8)
Net Tosses on mvestment secunttes 25.0 448
Finance fincemelfexpense [33.9) 21
Tax expense 25.3 265
Share of profits from associates (0.5} (1.3}
Cash generaled hom operations before working capital changes 119.1 1798
Changes in warking capnal
Decrease in tracde and other recenvables 9.7 49
Decreasefiincrease) in denvative financial instruments {5.0) 55
_Decrease in rade and other payables - 122y  @©1
Cash generated from operations -7 111.6 1821
Taxes paid - 7.1) (24.7
Net cash generated from operating activities 1045 167.4
Investing activities
Interest and investrment income receved 31.2 8.1
Purchase of non-current financial assets measured at fair value {19.5) (1.9
Purchase of financial assets measured at fair value (23.0) 5 5)
Sake of investrment secunties 3.2 242
Sale of non-current financial assets measured at fair value 5.0 1.5
Sale of financial assets held for sale - 01
Sale of financial assets measured at faw value - 440
Met cash on inital consolidation of seed capitat investments (1.7 03
Purchase of property. plant and equipment (0.4} {0 5)
Net cash generated fromflused in} investing activities 5.2) 703
Financing activities
Dwidends paid to equity holders [118.4) (118.5}
Dividends paid 1o non-controlling interests (3.3} (3.0
Third-party subscnptions into consolidated funds 2.8 05
Third-party redemptions from consolidated funds (29.1) 4.2}
Distributions pad by consolidated funds {4.2) (10.7)
Decrease in non-controling interests (0.4) (0.5}
Payment of lease habilties [2.2) 20
Interest paid (0.3) 0.4
Purchase of own shares (15.6) {34.5)
Net cash used in financing activities {170.7) {173.3)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (71.4) 54 4
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 552.0 456 1
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents - N (2.0} 415
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 478.6 5520
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year comprise:
Cash at bank and in hand 40.9 57.4
Dally dealing liquidity funds 56.8 2257
Deposits 380.9 268.9
478.6 5520

The notes on pages 133 to 174 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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. Company balance sheet
|  Asat30June 2023

2023 2022
Notes £m £
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 4.1 4.1
Property, plant and equipment 16 4.1 5.5
Investment in subsidiaries 25 19.9 19.9
Deterred acquisition costs 0.3 0.4
Trade and other recevables 17 167.8 132.0
Deterred 1ax assels 18 11.6 18.2
207.8 180.1
Current assets
Trade and other recewables 17 116.6 3249
Denvative financial instruments 21 0.2 -
Cash and cash equivalents 327.7 159.7
444.5 484 8
Total assets 652.3 664 7
Equity and Kabifities
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 22 0.1 0.1
Share premium 15.6 158
Retained earnings 605.2 600.6
Cash flow hedging reserve - 4.9
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 620.9 511.4
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Lease hability 16 22 3.3
Current liabilities
Lease hability 16 1.2 1.3
Dervative financial nstiuments 21 - 5.2
Trade and other payables 24 28.0 43.5
29.2 50.0
Total liabilities S - L K E 53.3
Total equity and liabilities o T gs23 @647

The Company has taken the exemption under section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 not 1o present its profit and loss account and related
notes. The Company’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2023 was £120.1 mulion (30 June 2022: £188 6 miliion.

The notes on pages 133 to 174 farm an integral part of these finanoial statements.

The financial statements of Ashmore Group plc (registered number 03675683) were approved by the Board on 5 Septermber 2023 and
signed on 1ts pehaif by:

. N

Mark Coombs Tam Shippey
Chief-Executive Officer Group Finance Director
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Company statement of changes in equity
|

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Total aquity

Cazh flow attributable to

Issued Share Retained hedging equity holders of

capital premwm Garnings reserve the parent

Lo Lo L L i

Balance at 30 June 2021 0.1 156 540.6 1.1 B57.4
Profit for the year - — 188.6 - 18B.6
Cash tlow hedge intrinsic value losses - - - B.0) (6.0
Purchase of own shares - - 34.1) - (34.1)
Share-based payments - - 24.0 - 24.0
Dividends to equity hoiders - - {118.5) - (118.5)
Balanca at 30 June 2022 0.1 15.6 600.8 4.9 611.4
Profit for the year - - 120.1 - 120.1
Cash flow hedge intnnsic value gains - - - 4.9 4.9
Purchase of own shares - - [15.6) - {15.6)
Share-based payments - - 185 - 185
Dmadends to equity holders - - (118.4) - (118.4)
Balance at 30 June 2023 0.1 15.6 605.2 - 620.9

The notes on pages 133 to 174 form an integral part of these financial staterments.
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Company cash flow statement
i For the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022
£fm £m
Operating activities
Profit for the year 120.1 188.6
Adiustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 1.8 1.8
Share-based payments 13.7 19.3
Foreign exchange losses/lgains) 9.6 |58.4)
Finance income (10.0} 0.4
Tax expense a8 26.0
Dvidends recetved from subsidianies {145.2) (174.00
Cash generated fromy{used in} operations betore working capital changes (0.2} 29
Changes in working caprtal:
Decrease/tincrease) in trade and other recevables 57.8 (73.8}
Decrease/increase) in denvative financial instruments (5.4} 6.5
__Decrease in trade and other payables {15.5) {53.0)
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 36.7 (123.4)
Taxes paid {6.3) {12.1}
Net cash generated from/(used In} operating activites o 7 - 304 {135.5)
Investing activities
Interest receved 8.9 0.2
Loans advanced to0 subsidiaries (27.3) 0.2
Loans repaid by subsidiaries 137.8 184.0
Dividends received from subsidianes 145.2 174.0
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (0.3) {0.4)
Net cash generated from investing activities 264.3 3576
Financing activities
Dwmidends paid (118.4) (118.5)
Payment of lease liability (1.2) (1.1}
Interest paid (0.1) Q.2)
Purchase of own shares {15.6) (34.1)
Net cash used in financing activities {135.3) 1183.9)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 159.4 68.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 159.7 86.1
Effect ot exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 8.6 5.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 327.7 159.7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year comprise:
Cash at bank and in hand 29 6.3
Dailly dealing haudity funds 0.8 1.9
Deposits 324.0 151.5
3277 159.7

The notes on pages 133 1© 174 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1) General information

Ashmore Group plg {the Company) 1s a public Imited company
listed on the Londnn Stock Exchange and incorporated and
domiciled in the United Kingdom. The consolidated luiancial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
Group} for the year ended 30 June 2023 were authonsed for issue
by the Board of Directors on 5 September 2023, The principal
activity of the Group is described in the Directors’ repart on

page 113,

2) Basis of preparation

The Group and Company financiat staterments for the year ended
30 June 2023 have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards.

The financial statements have been prepared on & going concern
hasis under the histonical cost convention, except for the
measurement at fair value of dervative financial instruments

and financial assets and liabilities that are held at farr value
through profit or loss.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section
408 of the Companies Act 2006 that allows 1t not 10 present 11s
indwidual statement of comprehensive iIncome and related notes.

Going concern

The Board of Directors has considered the resilience of the Group,
taking into account its current finanoial position, and the principal
and emerging risks facing the business In the context of the current
econcmic outlook. The Board reviewed cash flow forecasts for a
period of 12 months from the date of approval of these tinancial
statements which indicate that the Group will have sufficient funds
1o meet 1ts liabilities as they fall due for that penod. The Board
applied stressed scenanos, mncluding severe but plausible downside
assumptions on AuM, profitablity of the Group and known
commitments. While there are wider market uncertainties that may
impact the Group, the stressed scenarios, which assumed a
significant reduction in revenue for the entire forecast period, show
that the Group and Company would continue to cperate profitably
and meet therr liabilties as they fall due for a penod of at least 12
months from the date of approval of the annual financial
statements. The financial statements have therefore been preparad
on a going concern basis.

Principal estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements In conformity wath UK-
adopted international accounting standards requires the use of
certain accounting estimates, and management 1o exarcise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
pohcies. The estimates and jJudgements used In preparing the
financial statements are percdically evaluated and are based on
historical expenence and other factors, including expectations ot
future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
Judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

There are areas of the financial staterments where the use of
estimation 1s important, but where the nsk of material adjustment
Is not sighificant, Including the assessment of performance
condrunns artached to certain executive share awards (note 10),
assumptions used in the valuation of level 3 seed copitul
investments (note 19} and deferred tax assets (note 18). The areas
where judgements are made include the iImpairment review of
goodwill (ncte 15), the calculation of lease assets and habilities
(note 16) and consolidation of seed capital investments (ncte 20).

3} New Standards and Interpretations not

yet adopted

There were no Standards or Interpretations that were in

1ssue and reguired to be adopted by the Group as at the date of
authorisation of these consolidated tinancial statements. No other
Standards or Interpretations have been issued that are expected to
have a rmatenal impact on the Group's financial statements.

4) Significant accounting policies

The following principal accounting policies have been applied
consistently where applicabte to all years presented in dealing
with items considered material in relation to the Group and
Company financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated hinancial statements of the Group comprise

the financial statements of the Company and 1ts subsidianes,
associates and joint ventures. This includes an Employee Benefit
Trust (EBT) established for the employee share-based awards and
consobdated investment funds.

Interests in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including investrment funds, over which
the Group has control as defined by IFRS 10. The Group has
contrel if it1s exposed to, or has rights to, vanable returns from

Its Involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements
ot subsidianes are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences unul the date when
control ceases. The Group reassesses whether or not 1t controls an
entity If facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

The profit or 1oss and each component of other comprehensive
income are atinbuted 1o the equity holders of the Company and to
any non-contrelling interests. Based on their nature, the interests of
third parties in consalidated funds are classified as liabilities and
appear as Third-party interests in consolidated funds’ on the
Group's balance sheet.
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4} Significant accounting policies continued
Agsociates and joint ventures are presented as single-line terns n
the statement of comprehensive income and balance sheet.
Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated on
consolidation. Consistent accounting policies have been applied
across the Group 1N the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements as at 30 June 2023.

A change in the ownership nterest of a consolidated entity that
does not result in a loss of control by the Group 1s accounted

for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a
consolidated entity, it derecognises the related assets, goodwill,
labdities, non-controling interest and other components of equity,
and any gain or loss 1s recogiised in consolidated comprehansive
neome. Any investment retained s recognised at s falr value at
the date of loss of control

Interests in associates and joint arrangements

Associates are partly owned entities over which the Group has
significant influence tut no control, Joint ventures are entities
through which the Group and other parties undertake an econormic
activity whichis subject to joint control.

Investments in associates and intarests i joint ventures are
measured using the equity method of accounting. Undes this
method, the investrnenis are intialty recogmised at cost,

inciuding attributable goodwill, and are adjusted thereafter for

the post-acquisttion changes in the Group's share of net assets
The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or 1oss 1s recognised in
the statement of camprehensive income. Where the Group's
financial year is not coterrminous with those of 1ts associates or
joint ventures, unaudited interim financial information 1s used after
appropriate adjustments have been made.

Interests in consolidated structured entities

The Group acts as fund manager 10 mvestment funds that are
constdered 1o be structured entities. Structured entrhies are entities
that have been designed so that voting or similar nghts are not the
daminant factor in deciding which party has control: for example,
when any voung rights relate to administrative tasks only and

the relevant activities of the enuty are directed by means of
contractual arrangements. The Group's assets under management
are managed wrthin structured entiies. These structured

entines typically consist of uniused vehicles such as Sociéte
d'Investissement a Capial Vanahle (SICAVs), konuted partnershups,
unit rusts and open-ended and closed-ended vehicles which
eriile third-party mvestors 1o a percentage of the vehicle's net
asset vaiue

The Group has intecasts in structured entties as a result of the
management of assets on behall of its clients. Where the Group
holds a direct interest in a closed-ended fund, private eguity fund of
open-ended pooied fund such as a SICAY, the interes s accounted
for erther as a consolidated structured entity or as a financial asset,
depending on whether the Group has contral aver the fund or not.
Control s determined in accordance with [FRS 10, based on an
assessment of the level of power and aggregate economic interest
that the Group has over the fund, relatrve to thrd-party investors
Power 15 normally conveyed to the Group through the existence of
an investment management agreament and/or athar cantractual
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arrangements. Aggregate economic interest 1s 2 measure of the
Group’s exposure to vanable retumns in the fund through a compmnaton
of direct merest, expected share of performance fees, expected
management fees, fair vaiue gains or losses, and distributions
receivable fram the tund. The Group concludes that it acts as a
principal when the power it has over the fund I1s deemed to be
exercised for seif-benefit, considering the level of aggregate
economic exposure in the fund and the assessed strength of third-
party investors” kick-out rights. The Group concludes that it acts as
an agent when the power it has over the fund is deemed to be
exercised for the benefit of third-party investors.

If the Group concludes that it acts as a principal, it i1s deemed to
have control and, therefore, will consolidate a fund as If twere a
subsidiary. If the Group concludes that it does not have control over
the fund, the Group recoghises and measures its nterest in the
fund as a financial asset.

Interests in unconsolidated structured entities
The Group classifies the following investment funds as
unconsohdated structured entiues:

- Segregated mandates and pooled funds managed where the
Group does not hold any direct interest. in this case, the Group
considers that 1ts aggregatle economic exposure 1s insignificant
and, in relation to segregated mandates, the third-party investor
has the practical abiity to remove the Group from acting as fund
manager, without cause. As a result, the Group concludes that
1t acts as an agent for third-party investors.

- Pooled funds managed by the Group where the Group holds a
direct interest, for example seed capital investonents, and the
Group’s aggregate economic exposure in the fund relative to
thrd-party iInvestons is 1ess than the threshold estabhshed by the
Group for determining agent versus prncipal classification. As a
result, the Group concludes that 11 is an agent for thirg-party
Investors and, therefare, will account for its beneficial interest in
the fund as a financial asset.

Tre disclosure of the AuM in respect 10 consohidated and
unconsohdated structured entities s provided n note 27.

Foreign currency

The Group's financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling
(Sterhng), which 1s also the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the functonal currency, which
is the currency that prevads i the primary econamic environment

o which the entity operates



Foretgn currency transactions

Transactions in fareign currencies are translated into the respective
tunctional currencies of the Group entities at Lhe spul exchange
rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and habilities genominated in foreign currencies
a1 the balance sheet date are translated inte the functional currency
al e syl ewr Biange sate At that dofe. Non monotary assets and
habihities that are measured in terms of historical cosl in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of

the transaction.

Foreign currency ditferencas ansing on translation are generally
recognised in comprehensive income, except for gualifying cash
tlow hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective, in which case
foreign currency differences ansing are recognised in other
comprehensive mncomea.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilines of foreign operations, nciuding goodwill
and fair value adjustments ansing on conschdation, are transiated
into Sterling at the spot exchange rates a1 the balance sheet date.
The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated
into Sterling at rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and accurnulated 1n the foreign currency
transiation reserve, except to the extent that the translation
difference 15 allocated to non-controlling interests.

When a foreign cperation 1s disposed of such that control 1s lost,
the cumulative amount in the foreign currency translation reserve
related to that foreign operation is reclassified to comprehensive
inceme as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group
disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant proportion of
the cumulative amount is reattnbuted to non-controlling interests.

It the settlement of a monetary 1item recervable from or payable to a
foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable
future, foreign currency differences arising on the item form part

of the net investment in the foreign operation and are recognised

in other comprehensive Income, and accumulated In the foreign
currency translation reserve within equity.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method as at the acquisition date. The acquisition date 1s the date
on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquiree.

The consideration transferred for the acguisition 1s generatlly
measured at the acqusition date farr value, as are the identtiable
net assets acquired, labiities incurred (including any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement)

and equity Instruments issued by 1the Group in exchange tor contrel
ot the acguiree.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred, except if they
are related to the 1ssue of debt or equity securities.

Contingent consideration 1s classitied either as equity or a financil
hability. Amounts classified as a financiat hability are subseguently
remeasured to far value with changes in fair value recognised

in protit or loss. If the contingent consideration is classified as
aquity. it will not be remeasured and settlement 1s accounted

for within equity.

1 the business combination i1s achieved 1n stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest
in the acguiree I1s remeasured to farr value at the acquisition date.
Any gains or lgsses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill

The cost of a business combination in excess of the fair value ot
nel dentifiable assets or labilites acquired, including intangibie
assets identified, 15 recognised as goodwill and stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill has an indefinite
useful Iife, is not subject to amortisation and 1s tested annually for
impairment or when there 1s an indication of impairment.

Intangible assets

The cost of intangible gssets, such as management contracts
and brand names, acquired as part of a business combination

1s their fair value as at the date of acquisition, The fair value at the
date of acquisition 1s calculated using the discounted cash flow
methodology and represents the valuation of the profits expected
1o be earned from the management contracts and brand name in
place at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carned at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Intangible assets with finite life are amortised on a systematic basis
over their useful lives. The usetul ife of an intangible asset which
has anisen from contractual or other legal nghts does not exceed
the pericd of the contractual or other lega! nights.

Non-controlling interests (NCI}

The Group recogrises NClin an acquired entity either at fair value
or at the NCI's proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identfiable assets. This decision 1s made on an acquisition-by-
acguisition basis. Changes to the Group's interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as

equity transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4) Significant accounting policies continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and imparrment losses. Cost s determined on the
basis of the direct and indirect costs that are directly attributable.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives, assessed to be

frve years for office equipment and four years for IT eguipment.
The residual values and useful ives of assets are reviewed at
least annually.

The Group's nroperty, plant and equipment include nght-of use
assets recogrised on lease arrangements In accordance with IFRS
16 Leases.

Leases

The Group's lease arrangements pnmanly consist of leases relating
to otfice space. Gbligations and rights under lease agreements are
recognised and classified within property, plant and equipment on
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with IFRS 16

The Group initially records a lease hability reflecting the present
value of the future contractual cash flows to be made over the
lease term, discounted using the rate implicit in the lease, being the
rate that the lessee would have to pay to berrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value 1o the nght-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
securty and conditions. Where this rate is not readly available,

the Group applies the incremnental borrowing rate applicable for
each lease arrangement. A nght-of-use asset is also recorded at the
value of the lease lability plus any directly related costs and
estimated dilapidation expenses and is presented within property,
plant and equipment. Interest 15 accrued on the lease lighihty using
the eftective interest rate method 10 give a constant rate of return
over the life of the lease whilst the balance 1s reduced as lease
payments are made. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
hie of the lease as the benefit of the lease 1s consumed.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease
term If there i1s & significant event or change in circumstances that
1s within its control and affects the likelihood that it will exercise for
not exercise} a term extension cpuon,

The cost of shart-term ess than 12 monthsl leases 1s expensed an
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Deferred acquisition costs

Costs that are directly attributable to securing an investment
management contract are deferred if they can be identified
separately and measured rehiably and 1t is probable that they will be
recovered. Deferred acquisition costs represent the incremental
costs incurred by the Group to acquire an Investment management
contract, typically on a closed-ended fund. The Group amortises the
deferred acquisiion asset recognised on a systematic basis, in fine
with the revenue generated from providing the investment
management services over the hife of the fund.
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Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Finanaial instruments are recognised when the Group becomes
party to the cantractual provisions of an instrument, intially at far
value plus transaction costs except for financial assets classified at
fawr value through protit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, being the date that the
Group commits tc purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rnghts to receive

cash flows fram the investments have expired or been transterred
ar when the Group has transterred substanually all nsks and
rewards of ownership. Financiat liabihties are derecognised

when the cbligation under the liability has been discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Subsequent measurement

The subseguent measurement of financial instruments depends
on their classification in accordance with IFRS 8 Financial
Instruments.

Under IFRS 9, the Group dassifies its financial assets nto

two measurement categories: amortsed cost and FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets under IFRS 915 generally
based on the business model In which a financial asset ts managed
and s contractual cash flow charactenstics. A financial asset 1s
measured at amortised cost if 1t meets both of the following
conditions and 1s not designated as at FVTPL:

— 113 held within a business model whose objectrve is to hold
assets to coliect contractual cash flows; and

— 1is contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and nterest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classitied as measured at amorntsed cost are
measured at FVTPL. The Group classifies its financial habiities at
amortised ¢ost or dervative liabilities measured at FVTPL.

Amartised cost is the amount determined based on moving the
initial amount recognised for the financial instrument to the maturity
value on a systematic basis using a fixed interest rate (effective
interast rate), taking account of repayment dates and initial
premiums or discounts



Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets inte the following
Lelcgones: investment secunties at FVTPL, financial assets at
FVTPL and financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Group may, from time to time, invest seed capital in funds
where a subsidiary 1s the investment manager or an adviser.
Whore the holding in such investments 1s deemed to represent

a controlling stake and is acquwed exclusively with a view 1o
subsequent disposal through sale or ditution, these seed capital
investments are recognised as financial assets measured at FVTPL,
it a seed capnal iInvestrment remains under the control of the Group
tor more than one year from the original iInvestment date, the
underlying fund s consolidated hne by ine.

Investment securities at FVTPL

Investment securties represent securities, other than derivatives,
held by consolidated funds. These securnties are measured at fair
value with gains and losses recognised through the consohdated

statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include certain readily realisable interests
in seeded funds, non-current financial agsets measured at faw value
and derivatives. From the date the financial asset s recognised,

all subsequent changes in fair value, forergn exchange differences,
interest and dividends are reflected in the consolidated staternent
of comprehensive income and presented In finance mcome

or expense.

(i} Non-current financial assets measured at fair value
Non-current financial assets include closed-end funds that are
measured at FVTPL. They are held at fair value with charnges in fair
value being recognised through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(i) Current financial assets measured at fair value

The Group classifies readily realisable interests in seeded funds as
current financial assets measured at FVTPL with farr value changes
baing directly recoanised through the consolidated staternent of
comprehensive income. Fair value 1s measured tiasad un e
proportionate net asset value in the fund.

(iii} Derivatives

Denvatives include foraign exchange forward contracts and options
used by the Group to manage its toreign currency expasures and
those held in consolidated funds. Derivatives are initially recognised
at fair vaiue on the date on which a derivative contract 1s entered
into and subsequently remeasured at far value. Transaction costs
are recognised immediately in the statcment of comprehensive
income. All derivatives are carrned as financial assets when the

fair value 1s positive and as financial habilities when the fair value

1S negative.

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in the farr value of
denvatives are taken directly in comprehensive income, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which Is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Financtal assets measured at amortised cost

{i} Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recevables are \nnually recorded at fair value plus
transaction costs. The fair value on acquisition 1s normally the cost.
Subseguent to inhal recognition these assets are measured at
amertised cost less impairment loss allowances. Imparment losses
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for
expected credit losses, and changes in those expected credit
losses over the Iife of the instrument. Loss allowances are
calculated based on Ifetime expected credit losses at each
reporting date.

{ii} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash represents cash at bank and in hand, and cash equivalents
compnse short-term deposits and investments in money market
Instruments that are redeemable on demand or with an onginal
maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these
assets approximates therr fair value.
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4) Significant accounting policies continued

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies s hnandial hatwlives nto the fallowing
categones: financal liabilhes at FVTPL and finanoal habilies at
amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Fmancial habities at FVTPL include denvative financial mstruments
and third-party inierests in consolidated funds. They are carried at
fair value with gains or fosses recogrused n the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within finance income

O expense.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial habilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Interest expense is recognised as 1t1s
meurred using the effective nterest method, which allocates
interest at & constant rate of return over the expectsd life of the
financial iInstrument based on the esumated tuture cash flows,

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value 1s defined as the price that would be receved to sell an
asset ar paud to transter a hability (e, the ‘exit price’) n an arderly
wansaction between market paricipants at the measurement date.
In deterrmining fair value, the Group uses various valualion
approaches and establishes a hierarchy tar inputs used in
measuring fair value that maximises the use of relevant observable
puis and mimimises the use of unobservable inputs by reguinng
that the most observable inputs be used when available.
Observable inputs are inputs that market participanis would use in
prcing the asset or hability developed based on market date
obtamed frorm sources independent of the Group.

Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Group's judgemernts
about the assumptions other market particpants would use in
prcing the asset or iabiinty, developed based on the best
information avarable in the circumstances.

Securities hsted on a recognised stock exchange, of dealt on any
other regulated market that operates regulariy, 1s recognised and
open to the public, are valued at the iast known available closing bid
price. If a secunty 1s traded on several actively traded and organised
financial markets, the valuation 1s made on the basis of the last
knawn Did price an the main markst gn which the secunities are
traded. In the case of secunties for which trading on an actively
traded and orgamsed financial rarket 1s not sigraficant, out which
are bought and sold on a secondary market wrth regulated trading
among secunty dealers fwith the effect that the price 15 set on a
market basig), the valuation may be based on this secondary market,
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Where instrurnents are not hsted on any stock exchange or not
traded on any regulated markets, valuation techmques are used

by valuation specialists. These technigues include the market
approach, the income appreach or the cost approach. The use of
the rmarket approach generally consists of using comparable market
transactions ar using techniques based on market ghservable
mputs, while the use of the income approach generally consists

of the net present value of estimated future cash flows, adjusied
as deemed appropriate tor hguidity, credit, market and/or other

risk factors.

Investments in funds are valued on the basis of the last avarlable
net asset value of the units or shares of such funds.

The fair value of the denvatives s therr guoted market pnce at the
balance sheet date.

Hedge accounting

The Group applies the general hedge accounting model in IFRS 9.
This requures the Group to ensure that hedge accounting
relationships are abigned with 1is nsk management objectives and
strategy and o apply a more quahtative and forward-looking
approach 1o assessing hedge effecuveness.

The Group uses forward and option contracts to hedge the
vanabiity in cash flows ansing frorm changes in foreign exchange
rales relating 1o management fee revenues. The Group designates
only the change in fair value of the spot element of the forward and
option contracts i cash flow hedging relationships. The etfective
portion of changes In fair value of hedging instruments is
accumulated i a cash flow hedge reserve as a separate
component of equity

The Group applies cash flow hedge accounting when the
transaction meets the specifled hedge accounting crieria.
To quality, the following conditions must be Mgt

- formal documentation of the relationshup between the hedging
instrument(s) and hedged temis} must exist at inception;

- the hedged cash flows must be highly probable and must
present an exposdre to vaniations in cash flows that could
ultimately affect comprehensive income;

- the effectiveness of the hedge can be relably measured; and

~ the hedge must be highly etfective, with eltectiveness assessed
or an ongotng basis.

For guaiitying cash fiow hedges, the change in far vaive of the
eftective hedging instrument 1s inttially recogrused in other
comprehensive mcome and 1s released to comprehensive come
in the same period during which the refevant financial asset or
liabiity affects the Group's results.

Where the hedge i1s highly effective overall, any ineffective portion
of the hedge 1s immeadiately recognised in compriehensive infome
Where the instrurmnent ceases to be tughly effective as a hedge, or
1S sold, terminated or exergised, hedge accounting 1 discontinued



Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
Iidhils e vashi Tlovws from the ascot oxpire, or swhen it tranefers
the financial asset and substantially all the nisk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. The Group derecognises a financial

lability when the Group’s obhgations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire.

Impairment of financial assets

Under IFRS 9, impairment losses on the Group’s financial assets at
amortsed cost are measured using an expected credit loss (ECL)
model. Under this model, the Group s required to account for
expected credit losses, and changes in those expected credit
losses, over the Iife of the instrument. The amount of expected
credit losses 1s updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition and, censequently, more timely
information 1s provided about expected credit losses.

The Group applies the simplified approach to calculate expected
credit losses for financial assets measured at amortsed cost.
Under this approach, expected credit losses are calculated based
on the ife of the snstrument.

Assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal 1o
hfetime expected credit losses. Expected credit loss allowances
for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from
the gross carrying ameount of the assets. The Group's financial
assets subject 1o iImpairment assessment under the ECL mode!
comprise cash depesits held with banks and trade receivables.
In assessing the impairment of financial assets under the

ECEL model, the Group assesses whether the nisk of default has
increased significantly since initial recognition, by considernng
both quantitative and gualitative infermatron, and the analysis is
based on the Group's historical experience of credit default,
including forward-looking information.

The Group's trade receivables compnse balances due from
management fees, performance fees and expense recoveries from
tunds managed, and are generally short term and do not contain
tnancing components. Factors considered in determiming whether
a default has taken place include how many days past the due date
a payment 1s, detenoration in the credit quality of a counterparty,
and knowiedge of specific events that could influence a
counterparty’s ability to pay.

The Group assesses ifetime expected credit losses based on
historical observed default rates, adjusted by forwaraHooking
estimates regarding the economic conditions within the next year.
Externally denived credit ratings have been idenutied as
representing the best avallable determinant of counterparty credrt
risk for cash balances and credit nsk 1s deemed to have increased
significantly if the credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the
reporting date relative 10 the eredit raring ar the date of

initial recognition.

Impairment of non-financial assets

For all other assets other than gocdwill, an impairment test

1s performed annually cr whenever events or changes in
crrcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An imparment {0ss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which
thare are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups

of assets {cash-generating units). Non-financial assets, other
than goodwili, that have suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairmeant at the end of each
reporting pernod.

Goodwill

Goodwili 1s tested tor impairment annually or whenever there s an
indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable based
on management’s judgements regarding the future prospects ot
the business, estimates of future cash flows and discount rates.
When assessing the appropnateness cf the carrying value of
goodwill at year end, the recoverable amount I1s considered

to be the greater of fair value less costs to sell or value in use.

The pre-tax discount rate applied 1s based on the Group's weighted
average cost of capital after making allowances for any specific risks.

The business of the Group 1s managed as a single unit, with asset
allocations, research and other such operational practices reflectng
the commonality of approach across all fund themes. Therefore,
for the purpose of testing goodwill for impairment, the Group 1s
considered 10 have one cash-generating unit to which all goodwill
is allocated and, as a result, no further spht of goodwill into smaller
cash-generating units is possible and the impairment review is
conducted for the Group as a whole.

An imparrment loss in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed,
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! NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4) Significant agcounting policies continued

Net revenue

Net revenue s total revenue less distnbution costs and including
foreign exchange. The Group's total revenue includes management
fees, performance fees and other revenue. The pnmary revenue
source for the Group 1s fee income received or receivable for the
provision of investment management Services.

The Group recognises revenue In accordance with the principles of
IFRS 15 Revenue trom Contracts with Customers.

The core principle of IFRS 15 1s that revenue 1s recognised to
reflect the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an arnount that reflects the consideration 1o which the enuty
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
Group applies the IFRS 15 five-step maodel for recognising revenue,
which consists of identifying the contract with the customer;
identifying the relevant performance obligations; determining the
amount of consideration to be received under the contract;
allocating the consideration 1o each performance obilgation; and
earning the revenue as the performance obligations are satisfied.

The Group's principal revenue recognition poiicies are
summarnsed below:

Management fees

Management fees are presented net of rebates, and are calculated
as a percentage of net fund assets managed W accordance wath
ndividual management agreerments, Management fees are
calculated and recognised on a monthly basis in accordance with
the terms of the management fee agreements. Management fees
are typically collected on & maonthly or quarterly basis.

Performance fees

Performance fees are presented net of rebates, and are calculated
as a percentage of the appreciation in the net asset value of a tund
above a defined hurdle. Performance tees are earned from some
arrangements when contractually agreed performance levels are
exceeded within specified performance measurement periods,
typically over ane year. The fees are recogrised when they can

be reliably estimated and/or crystallised, and there is deemed

to be a low probability of a significant reversal in future penods.
This 1s usually at the end of the performance penod or upon early
redemption by a fund investor. Once crystallised, performance fees
typically cannot be clawed-back.

Rebates

Rebates relate 10 repayments of management and performance
fees charged subject to a rebate agreerment, typically with
institutional investors, and are calculated based on an agreed
percentage of net fund assets managed and recognised as the
service 1s recerved. Where rebate agreements exist, management
and performance fees are presented on a net basis in the
consohdated statement of comprehensive income

Other revenue

Other revenue principally comprises fees for other services,

which are typically driven by the volume of ransactions, along with
revenues that vary in accordance with the volume of fund project
development activities
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Other revenue includes transacton, structuning and administration
fees, project management fees, and reimbursement by funds of
costs incurred by the Group. This revenue Is recognised as the
relevant service 15 provided and 1t is probable that the fee wall be
collected.

Distribution costs

Distnbution costs are costs of sales payable 1o exiermnat
intermedianes for marketing and investor servicing. Distribution
costs vary based on fund assets managed and the associated
management fee revenue, and are expensed over the pencd In
which the service 1s provided.

Employee benefits

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans
are secogiised as an expense in the staternent of comprehensive
mcome when payable in accordance with the scheme particulars.

Share-based payments
The Group 1ssues share awards to Its employees under share-based
compensation plans,

Far equity-settled awards, the farr value of the amounts payable to
employees IS recognised as an expense with a corresponding
incTease In equity over the vesting period atter adjusting for the
estimated number of shares that are expected to vest. The farr
value is measured at the grant date using an appropriate valuation
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the Instruments were granted. At each balance sheet date prior to
vesting, the cumulative expense representing the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and management's best estimate of
the awards that are ultimately expected to vest is calculated. The
movement in cumulative expense 1s recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding entry within equity.

For cash-settled awards, the fair value of the amounts pavahle to
empioyees I1s recognised as an expense with a corresponding
labity on the Group's balance sheet. The far value is measured
usINg an appropnate valuation model, taking nto account the
estimated number of awards that are expected 10 vest and the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted.
During the vesting penod, the liability recagnised represents the
portion of the vesting pened that has expired at the balance sheet
date multiphed by the fair value of the awards at that date.
Moverments in the liability are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive INCome.

The Group has in place an intragroup recharge arrangement for
equity-settled share-based awards whereby the parent Company 1s
reimbursed based on the grant-date cost of share awards granted
to employees of the subsidiary entity. During the vest penod, the
subsidiary entity recognises a share-hased payment expense in
accordance with IFRS 2 requirernerts with an intercompany
payable to the parent Company. The parent Company recogrises
an intercompany recevable and a corresponding credit within
equity as a share-based payment reserve. The intercompany
balances are settled regularly and reported as current
assets/liabilties.



Finance income and expense

Finance incecme includes interest receivable on the Group's cash
and cash equivalents, and both realised and unrealised gains on
lindiiial assels 41 FYTPL.

Finance expense includes both realised and unrealised 10sses on
financial assets at FVTPL. Interest expense on lease habilities s
presented within finance expense.

Taxation

Tax expense for the year comprisas current and deterred tax.

Tax 1s recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income except 1o the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity, n which case 1t 1s recognised in equity.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recewable on
the taxable income or loss for the year, and any adjustment to the
tax payable or receivabie in respect of previous years. It s
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Group operates.
Current tax also includes withholding tax ansing from dividends.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet habihty method,
in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and habilities tor financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The following ditfarences are
not previded for:

- goodwill not deductible for tax purposes; and

- differences relating to investments in subsidanes 1o the extent
that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected
manner of realisaton or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and labilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Defarred t1ax assets are recognised only 1o the extent that 1t 1s
probabie that future taxable profits will be avalable aganst which
the assets can be utlised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that the related tax benetit will be realised.

Deferred 1ax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be
applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when shareholders’ nghts 1o receive
payments have been established.

Equity shares

The Company’s ordinary shares of 0.01 pence each are classified as
equity instruments. QOrdinary shares issued by the Company are
recorded at the tair value of the consideration received or the
market price at the day of 1ssue. Direct 1ssue costs, net ot tax, are
deducted from equity through share premium. VWhen share capital
1s repurchased, the amount of consideration paid, including directly
attributable costs, 1s recognised as a change In equity.

Own shares

Own shares are held by the Employee Benetit Trust (EBT).
The holding of the EBT comprises own shares that have not
vested unconditionally to employees of the Greoup. In both the
Group and Company, own shares are recorded at cost and are
deducted from retained earmings.

Segmental information

Key rmanagement information, including revenues, margins,
investment performance, distribution costs and AuM flows, which
1s relevant to the operation of the Group, 1s reported to and
reviewed by the Board on the basis of the iInvestment management
business as a whole. Hence, the Group’s management considers
thet the Group's services and Its operations are not run on a
discrete geographic basis and compnse one business segment
(being provisicn of investment management services).

Company-only accounting policies
In addition to the above accounting policies, the following
specifically relates 1o the Company:

Investment in subsidiaries
Investments by the Company in subsidiaries are stated at cost less,
where appropnate, provisions for impairment,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5} Segmental information

The Group’s operations are reperted 1c and reviewed by the Board on the basis of the investment management busingss as a whole,
hence the Group is treated as a single segment. The key management information considered is adjusted EBITDA which 1s £106.2 million
tor the year as reconciled on page 28 (FY2022: adjusted EBITDA of £164.3 millien was derived by adjusting operating profit by £3.1 million
of depreciation and amortisation expense, £46.2 million of loss related to seed capital and £4.2 million of foreign exchange gains).

The disclosures below are supplementary, and provide the location of the Group’s non-current assets at year end other than financial assets
and deterred tax assets. Disclosures relating to revenue by location are in note 6.

Analysis of non-current assets by geography

2023 2022

£m £m

United Kingdom and Ireland 243 26.5
Urited States 69.8 735
Other 19 2.5
Total non-current assets 96.0 1025

6) Revenue

Management fees are accrued throughout the year in ine with prevailing levels of AuM and performance fees are recognised when they
can be estimated reliably and it 1s probable that they will crystallise. The Group 1s not considered to be rehant on any single source of
revenue. During the year, none of the Group's funds (FY2022: none) provided more than 10% of total revenue in the year respectively when
considenng management fees and performance fees on a combined basis.

Analysis of revenue by geography

2023 2022

£m £m

United Kingdom and Ireland 142.3 193.8
Urited States 13.7 220
Other 37.2 38.8
Total revenue 193.2 254.4

7) Foreign exchange
The foreign exchange rates which had a matenal impact on the Group's results are the US dollar, the Euro, the Indonesian rupiah and the
Colombian peso

Average rate Average rate

Clasing rate Closing rate year ended year shded

as at 30 June as at 30 June 30 June 30 June

£1 2023 2022 2073 2022

US dollar 12714 1.2145 1.2079 1.3288

Euro 1.16563 1.1617 1.1523 1.1785

Indonesian rupiah 19,061 18,082 18,259 18,146

Colombian peso 5,309 5,083 5,519 5,164
Foreign exchange gains are shown below

2023 2022

£m £m

Net realised and unrealised hedging gains 4.4 6.2

Translation gains on non-Sterling denaminated monetary assets and habilues 1.0 53

Total foreign exchange gains 5.4 11.6
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8) Finance income/(expense)

2023 2022
£m £m
Interest and nvestment Income 27.2 77
Net reahsed gains on seed capital nvestments measured at far value 2.4 0.1
Net unrealised gains/tlosses) on seed capital investrents measured at far valug 4.6 19.5)
Interest expense on lease labilives (note 16) {0.3) (0.4
Total ﬁnanc_e income/{expense} 33.3 2.1}

Included within interest and investment income 1s interest earned on cash deposits of £18.2 million {FY2022: £2.0 millon} and investment

income ot £11.0 milhon (FY2022: £5.7 millon} on consaolidated funds (note 20c¢).

Included within net realised and unrealised gains on seed capital investments totalling £7.0 million (FY2022: £9.4 million losses} are £2.6
mithion gans (FY2022: £12 5 millun lusses) on financial assets measured at FYTPL (note 20a), £1.4 milhon gains (FY2022: £4.2 million gains)
on non-current financiat assets measured at fair value (note 20b) and £3.0m realised gains an consclidated funds (FY2022: £1.1 million

losses on financial assets held tor saie).

9) Personnel expenses
Personnel expenses durng the year comprised the following:
2023

2022

£m fm
Wages and salaries 24.0 221
Performance-related cash bonuses 17.3 20.7
Share-based payments (note 10) 175 24.9
Social security costs 24 1.9
Pansion costs 2.1 1.8
Other costs B _ N 29 2.0
Total personnel expeﬁéesﬂ - S ) 66.2 73.4

Number of employees

At 30 June 2023, the number of investment managemeant employees of the Group (including Executive Directors) during the year was

as follows:
Average for Average for
the year the year
anded ended At At
30 June 2023 30 Juns 2022 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Numher Number Number Number
Total investment management employees 309 305 310 309

Directors’ remuneration

Disclosures of Directors’ remuneration during the year as required by the Companies Act 2008 are included in the Remuneration report

on pages 7810 111,

There are retirement benefits accruing to two Executve Directors under a defined contribution scherne {FY2022: two).

10} Share-based payments
The cost related to share-based payments recognised by the Group in the statement of comprehensive income 15 shown below:

2023 2022
Group £m £m
Omnibus Plan 17.4 251
Phantom Bonus Plan 0.1 0.2)
Total share-based payments expense 17.5 24.9

The total expense recognised for the year In respect of equity-settled share-based payment awards was £18.5 million (FY2022:
£24.5 milhon), of which £0.4 million (FY2022: £0.2 million} relates to share awards granted to key management personnel.
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10) Share-based payments continued

The Executive Omnpibus Incentive Plan (Omnibus Plan)

The Omnibus Plan was introduced prior to the Company hsting in October 2006 and provides tor the grant of share awards, market value
options, premium cast opuons, discounted options, inked options, phantoms andfor nil-cost options 10 ernployees. The CQrmmbus Plan will
also allow bonuses 1o be deferred in the form of share awards with or without matching shares. Awards granted under the Omnibus Plan
typically vest after five years from date of grant, with the exception of bonus awards which vest after the shorter of five years from date of
grant or on the date of termmation of employment. Awards under the Omnibus Plan are accountad for as equity-settied, with the exception
of phantoms which are classified as cash-settled.

The comlbined cash and equity-settled payments below represent the share-based payrnents relating to the Ormnibus Plan.

Total expense by year awards were granted (excluding national insurance)

Group and Company 2023 2022
Year of grant £m fm
2017 - 32
2018 30 29
2018 3.7 35
2020 35 35
2021 39 55
2022 33 57
2023 1.2 -
Total Omnibus share-based payments expense reported in comprehensive income 18.8 243

Awards cutstanding under the Omnibus Plan were as follows:

i} Equity-settied awards

2023 2023 2022 2022
Number of Weighted Number af Weighted
shares subject averasge  shares subject average
Group and Company to awards share price 10 awarda share price
Restricted share awards
At the beginning of the year 19,311,495 £3.65 19,997,383 £3.58
Granted 5,653,128 £2.14 4,423,544 £3.71
Vested (4,671,286} £3.25 (3,874,613} £3.44
Forteited (1,160,520} £217 (1,234,829) £3.44
Awards outstandrg atyearend 19032817 _ £332 19311485 £355
Bonus share awards
At the beginning of the year 10,997,593 £3.64 106176848 358
Granted 3,014,720 £2.14 2,285,034 £3.75
Vested {3,686,132) £2.87 (1,905,089) 344
Forfeited {179,660) £3.67 - -
Awards outstanding at year end 10,146,521 £3.31 10,997,593 £3.64
Matching share awards
At the beginning of the year 10,379,745 £3.65 10,687,135 £358
Granted 3,031,105 £2.14 2,287,585 £3.75
Vested (2,647,699) £3.28 (1,881,231) £3.44
Forfeited {652,622) £2.18 1723,744) £342
Awards outstanding at year end 10,210,529 £3.31 10,379,745 £365
Total 39,389,867 £3.32 40.688.833 £3.65
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ii] Cash-settled awards

2023 2023 2022 2002
Number af Weighted Numbar of Weightad
shares subject average chares subjact avernge
Group are Company to awards share price 10 awards share price
Restricted share awards o L _
Althe beginning of the year T 110,280 £2.60 122,239 £353
Granted 47,785 £2.14 15,741 f3.75
Vested {15,003) £3.24 (27,700) £3.40
Futfeited - - - -
Awards putstanding at year end 193,062 £3.13 110,280 £3.60
Bonus share awards
At the beginning of the year 80,511 £3.60 80,765 £3.55
Granted 34,982 £2.14 11,276 £3.75
Vesied (33,753) £3.24 {11,530 £3.40
Forferted - - - -
Awards outstanding at year end 81,740 £3.12 80,511 £3.60
Matching share awards
At the beginning of the year 80,511 £3.60 80,765 £3.85
Gramed 34,982 £2.14 11,276 £3.75
Vested (33,753) £3.24 111,530} 3.40
Forferted - - - -
Awards outstanding at year end 81,740 £3.12 80,511 £3.60
Total o 276,542 £3.13 271,307 £3.60
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

10) Share-based payments continued

iii} Total awards

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2023 2023 2022 3027
Number of Weighted Mumbsr of Weighted
shares subject average shares zubject average
Group and Company to awards share price 10 awvards share price
Restricted share awards
At the beginning of the year 19,421,775 £3.65 20,119,632 £3.58
Granted 5,600,913 £2.14 4,439,285 £3.71
Vested (4,716,289) £3.25 (3,902,313} £3.44
Forfeited (1,160,520} £2.17 (1,234,828} £3.44
Awards outstanding at year end 19,145,879 £3.32 19,421,775 £3.65
Bonus share awards _ -
At the beginming of the year - 11,078,104 £3.64 10,698,413- ) £3.68
Granted 3,048,702 £2.14 2,296,310 £3.75
Vested {3.719.885) £2.87 (1.916.619) £3.44
Forterted (179,660) £3.67 - -
Awards cutstanding at year end 10,228,261 £3.31 11,078.104 £3.64
Matching share awards
At the beginming of the year 10,460,256 £3.65 10,767,800 £3.58
Granted 3,066,087 £2.14  2,308.861 £3.75
Vested {2,581,452) £3.28 (1,892,761} £3.44
Forfeited (662,622) £2.18 (723,744) £3.47
Awards outstanding atyearend 10292269 _£331 10460256  £3.65
Total ) S 39,666,409 £332 40,960,135 £3.65

The weighted average far value of awards granted to employees under the Omnibus Plan dunng the year was £2.14 (FY2022: £3.73),
calculated based on the average Ashmore Group plc closing share price for the hive business days pnor to grant. For Executive Directors,
the fair value of awards also takes into account the performance conditions set out In the Remunerauon report.

Where the grant of restricted and matching share awards 1s inked to the annual bonus process, the fair value of the awards 1s spread over a
period including the current financial year and the subsequent five years to their vesting date when the grantee becomes unconditionally
entitied to the underlying shares. The fair value of the remaining awards 1s spread over the penod from the date of grant to the vestng date.

The hatihity ansing from cash-settled awards under the Ominibus Plan at the end of the year and reported within trade and other payabies on
the Group consolidated balance sheet 1s £0.3 million (30 June 2022 £0.4 million) of which £nil (30 June 2022: £nil) relates to vested awards.
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11) Other expenses
Other expenses consist of the followang:

2023

2022

£m £m
Travel 21 09
Professional fees 55 4.7
Information technology and communications 7.8 7.3
Amortisation ot intangible assets incte |19 0.2 0.2
Lease expenses 04 0.4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 16) 30 29
Premises-related costs 13 1.3
Insurance 1.0 1.0
Research costs 0.4 0.4
Audrtor's remuneration {see below} 0.9 0.9
Consolidated funds 1.1 1.2
Other expenses B B 4.1 39

o 27.8 25.1

Lease expenses relates to short-lerm leases where the Group has applied the optional exemption contained wathin IFRS 16, which permits
the cost of short-term leases {less than 12 manths) 1o be expensed on a straight-ine basis over the lease term.

Auditor’'s remuneration

2023 2032
£m fm
Fees for statutory audit services:
— Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Group's accounts 0.2 0.2
— Fees payable 1o the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries
pursuant ta legislation 0.5 0.5
Fees for non-audit services:
- Other non-audit services 0.2 0.2
] 0.9 09
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12} Taxation
Analysis of tax charge tor the year:

2023 2022
£m fm
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 5.6 111
Overseas ¢corporation tax charge 10.5 14.9
Adjustments In respect of prior years 0.1 C5)
16.2 255
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal ot temporary differences (note 18) 9.1 1.0
Tax expense 25.3 26.5
Factors affecting tax charge for the year
2023 2022
£m £m
Profit before tax 111.8 118.4
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the blended UK tax rate of 20.5% (FY2022: UK tax rate of 19%) 229 22.5
Effects of:
Permanent differences including non-taxable ncome and non-deductible expenses 7.4 4.7
Ditferent rate of taxes on overseas profits (3.2) 3.3
Non-deductible/{non-taxable) investrment returns’ (1.9} 3.2
Adjustments in respect of pror years 0.1 0.6)
Tax expense 25.3 26.5
1. Non-taxableé iInvestment returns comprise seed capital Investmeant gainsiosses in certain junsdictions in which the Group operates for which there are local
tax exempilons
The tax chargeficredit) recognised in reserves within cther comprehensive income s as follows:
2023 2027
£m fm
Current tax expense/{credit) on foreign exchange gans/{losses) {0.6) 29
Tax expense/(credit) recognised in reserves (0.6) 2.9
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13) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share at 30 June 2023 of 12.43 pence (30 June 2022: 13.42 pence) is calculated by dividing the profit after tax for the
financial year attributable 1o equity holders of the parent of £83.3 million (FY2022: £88.5 mullion) by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares nssue dunng the year, excluding own shates.

Dituted earnings per share 1s calculated based on basic earmings per share adjusted for dilutive potential ordinary shares. There is

LHOd3d J1D3LVHLS

]
no difference between the profit for the year attnbutable 10 equity holders of the parent used in the basic and diluted earnings per g
share calculations. ul
Z
The weighted average nurmber of shares used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share are shown below, 5
2023 202 o
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinany
shares shares -
Weighted average number ot ordinary shares used In the calcuiation of basic earnings per share 670,224,113 555,466,487 %
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 685,760,649 702 124,339 (?)
E
14) Dividends 9
Dividends paid in the year b
2023 2022 m
Comparny £fm £m rgn
Final dividend for FY2022 — 12.10p (FY2021: 12.10p) 84.8 85.0 5
wy
Interim dvidend FY2023 - 4.80p (FY2022: 4.80p) 336 33.5
118.4 18,5
In addition, the Group paid £3.3 million (FY2022: £3.0 milhion) of dividends 1o non-controlling Interests.
Dividends declared/proposed in respect of the year
2022 2022
Comparyy pence pence
Interim dividend per share pad 4.80 4.80
Final dividend per share proposed 12.10 12.10
16.90 16.90

On 5 September 2023, the Board proposed a final dividend of 12.10 pence per share for the year ended 30 June 2023. This has not been
recognised as a liability of the Group at the year end as it has not yet been approved by shareholders. Based on the number of shares
in issue at the year end that quality to receive a dividend, the total amount payable would be £85.1 million.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15) Goodwill and intangible assets

Fund
managsment
Goodwill intangible assets Total

Group £m £m £m
Cost (at original exchange rate) o _ B o
At 30 June 2023 and 2022 B 70.4 0.9 713
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 30 June 2021 - (0.5} 0.5
Amaortisabon charge for the year 7 ) - o ] - 0.1 _ia.n
AL30 June 2022 - 0.8) 0.6)
Armortisation charge for the year - (0.1} {0.1)
Af 30 June 2023 - (0.7) 0.7
Net book value
At 30 June 2021 801 0.4 80.5
Accumulated amortisation for the year - (0.1) 0.1}
Foreign exchange revaluation through reserves’ 10.4 0.1 10.5
At 30 June 2022 905 0.4 509
Accumulated amortisation for the year - (0.1} {0.1)
Foreign exchange revaluation through reserves” (3.8) {0.1) (3.9}
At 30 June 2023 86.7 02 86.9
* Foreign exchange revaluation through reserves 1 a result of the retranslavon of US dollar-denomimated intangibles and goochwill

Goodwilt
Company £m
Cost
At the beginning and end of the year 4.1
N_et carrying amount at 30 June 2023 and 2022 4.1

150 Ashmore Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023




Goodwill

The Group’s goodwili balance relates to the acquisition of subsidiaries. The Company's goodwill balance relates to the acquisition of the
business from ANZ in 1999,

Goodwill acguired in a busmness combination 1s allocated 10 the cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. It1s the Group’s judgerent that the lowest leve! of cash-generating unit used to determine imparrment s the Investment
management segment level. The Group has assessed that it consists of a single cash-generating unit for the purpgses of monitoring and
assessing goodwill for iImpairment. This reflects the Group’s global operating model, based on a single operating platform, into which
acquired businesses are tully integrated and trom which acquisition-related synergies are expected to be realised. Based on this model,

the Group's Investment management activities are considered as a single cash-generating unit, for which key management regularly receive
and review internal financial information.

An annual iImpairment review cof goodwill was undertaken for the year ending 30 June 2023, and no factors indicating potential impairment
of gocdwill were noted. Goodwil! 1s tested for impairment annuaily or whenever there 1s an indication that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable based on management'’s judgements regarding the future prospects of the business, market capitalisation, macroeconomic and
market considerations. The key assumption used to determine the recoverable amount is based on a farr value calculation using the
Company’s market share price.

Based on the calculation as at 30 June 2023 using a market share price of £2.08, the recoverable amount was In excess of the carrying
value of goodwill and no imparrment was implied In addition, the sensitivity of the recoverable amount to a 10% change in the Company’s
market share price will not lead to any impairment. Therefore, no iImpairment loss has been recognised in the current or preceding years.

Fund management intangible assets

Intangible assets as at 30 June 2023 comprise tund management contracts recognised by the Group on the acquisition of Ashmore Avenida
Investrments {Real Estate) LLP in July 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16) Property, plant and equipment

The Group's property, plant and egquipment include nght-of-use assets recognised on lease arrangements as follows:

Group Company
£m Fm
Property, plant and equipment owned by the Group 12 0.9
Right-of-use assets 53 3.2
Net book value at 30 June 2023 6.5 4.1
The movement in property, plant and equipment 1s provided below:
2023 2022
Property, plant Property. plant
and equipment and equipment
Group £m frm
Cost
At the beginning of the year 23.0 21.8
Additions 0.6 a5
Foreign exchange revaluation [0.6) 0.6
At the end of the year 23.0 230
Accumulated depreciation
At the beginning of the year 139 10.7
Depreciation charge for the year 3.0 2.9
Foreign exchange revaluation o4 03
At the end of the year 16.5 13.9
Net book value at 30 June 6.5 a1
2023 2022
Property, plant
and equipment
Company £m frm
Cost
At the beginning of the year 13.9 135
Additions 03 0.4
At the end of t.hé_;/ear 14.2 _1_3‘9-
Accumulated depreciation
At the beginning of the year 8.4 6.8
Depreciation charge tor year 1.7 16
At the end of the year 10.1 84
Net book value at 30 June 4.1 5.5
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Lease arrangements

The Group leases otffice space In vanous countries and enters into lease agreements on office premises with remaining lease periods of one
tn sk yenrg. Loase torms are negotiated nn an ndnadual basis and ¢ontain varying terms and conditions depending on location. The lease
agreements do not impose any cavenants other than the secunty interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. The Group
caleulates the lease habilities using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates that resuited in a weighted average incremental borrowing rate

140d3d 21931VH1S

of 4.9% (FY2022: 4.6%). 8
The carrying value of nght-of-use assets, lease liabilities and the movement dunng the year are set out below E
Group Company f-
Rught-of-use Leass Right-af-use Lease a2
assels liabiitigs assets habilues m
£m £m £m £m
A1 30, lune 2021 9.4 9.8 55 5.7 -
Lease payments - (2.4 - (1.3} E
interest expense (note 8) - 0.4 - 0.2 %
Depreciation charge 12.1) - (1.1 - E
Foreign exchange revaluation through reserves 0.3 0.z - - it
At 30 June 2022 7.6 8.0 4.4 4.6 3
Additions 0.2 0.1 - - 4
Lease payments - [2.5) - {1.3) E
interest expense (note 8} - 0.3 - 0.1 @
Depreciation charge (2.4) - (1.2) -
Foreign exchange revaluaton through reserves {0.1) (0.1} - -
At 30 June 2023 5.3 5.8 32 3.4
The contractual matunties on the minimum lease payments under lease habilities are provided below:
Group Campany
30 Juna 30 Junse 30 June 30 June
2023 2022 2023 2032
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows £m £m £m fm
Within 1 year 24 2.6 13 1.3
Between 1 and 5 years 3.9 6.0 2.3 3.7
Later than 5 years - 0.2 - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 6.3 8.8 3.6 50
Lease liabilities are presented in the balance sheet as follows:
Current 2.1 22 1.2 1.
Non-current 3.7 5.8 22 33
Total lease liabilities o 5.8 8.0 3.4 5
Amounts recognised under financing activities in the cash flow siatement:
Payment of lease liabilities 2.2 2.0 1.2 1.1
Imerest paid 0.3 0.4 0.1 0.2
Total cash outflow for leases 25 2.4 13 1.3
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17) Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022

£m £m £m £rm

Trade debtors 60.7 66.1 21 1.0
Prepayments 4.4 35 19 2.1
Amounts due from subsidianes - - 10.4 738
Lcans due from subsidianes - - 266.4 376.9
Other recevables 5.3 a7 36 31
Total trade and other receivables 704 743 284.4 456.9

Group trade debtors include accrued managernent and performance fees in respect of iInvestment management services provided up to
30 June 2023. Managernent fees are received 1n cash when the funds’ net asset values are determined, typically every month or every
quarter. Performance fees are accrued when crystallised, and amounted to £1.3 milion as at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: £0.5 muilion).
The majonity of fees are deducted from the net asset values of the respective funds by independent admiristrators and therefore the credit
nsk of fee receivables 1s minimal. As at 30 June 2023, the assessed provision for expected credit losses was immatenal and the Group has
not recognised any expected credit lasses i the current yvear (30 June 2022 £nily.

Amounts due from subsidianes for the Company represent intercompany trading balances that are repayable within one year.

Loans due from subsidiaries for the Company inciude an intercompany ioan 1o 3 subsidizry related 1o the provision of funding for seed
capital investments and cash invested by the subsidiary 1n daily-traded investrment funds. Loans due from subsidianes included within non-
current assets amounted to £167.8 mullion as at 30 June 2023 {30 June 2022: £132.0 million ncluded within non-current assets), The
intercompany loan 1s repayable on demand and the amount classified as current is regularly settled dunng the year. Under the IFRS 9
expected credit loss madel, credit risk 1s assessead by determining the borrower's capacity to meet contraciual cash flow obligations, taking
INto account the available net assels to repay the intercompany balance 1n future perods. Expected credit losses are estimated based on
the assurnption that repayment is demanded at the reporting date. If the borrower has sufficient accessible highly iguid assets available o
settle the balance If demanded at the reporting date, the expected credi loss has been assessed 1o be immateral. In line with the
Company's historical experience, and after consideration of current credit exposures, the Company does not expect 10 INcur any credst
losses and has not recognised any expected credit losses in the current year (30 June 2022 Enil).

18) Deferred taxation
Deferred tax assets and liabilites recognised by the Group and Company at year end are attnbutable to the following

2023 2022
Other Other
temporary Share-based Tarnporary Share-based
differences payments Total differences payrnents Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax assets 1.0 12.9 23.9 12.5 20.2 327
Deferred tax labilities (9.3} - {9.3) (8.8) - (5.8
1.7 12.9 14.6 37 202 235
2023 2022
Other
temporary Share-based Other temporary Sharé-based
differences payments Total dfferences payments Total
Cormpany £m £fm £m £m £m £m
Deferred 1ax assets - 11.6 11.6 — 18.2 18.2

Deferred taxes at the balance sheet date reflected in these financial statements have been measured using the relevant enacted of
substanuvely enacted tax rate for the year in which they are expected 1o be reabsed or settled,
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Movement of deferred tax balances

The movernent in the deferred tax balances between the balance sheet dates has been
income ag follows:

refiected in the statement of comprehensive

Other

140434 21DILVHIS

JINVYNHIAOD

temporary Share-based
differences payrments Total
Group £m £m £m
At 30 June 2021 {2.9) 272 243
Credited/icharged) to the consclidated statement of comprehensive income 6.0 (7.0} (1.0
Foreign exchange revaiuation 0.6 - 0.6
At 30 June 2022 37 202 239
Charged to the consalidated statement of comprehensive income {1.8) (7.3) (9.1}
Forelgn exchange revaluation [0.2) - {0.2)
At 30 June 2023 17 12.9 14.6
Other
temporary Share-based
differences paymants Total
Company fm £m fm
At 30 June 2021 - 25.1 251
Charged to the staternent of comprehensive income - 6.9) (6.9
At 30 June 2022 - 18.2 18.2
Charged to the statement of comprehensive income - [6.6} [6.6)
At 30 June 2023 - 116 11.6

19} Fair value of financial instruments

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This framework includes committees that
have overall responsibility for all significant fair value measurements. Each committee regularty reviews significant inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third-party information 1s used to measure far value, the committee assesses and documents the evidence obtained from

the third parties to support such valuations. There are no matenal differences between the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
and their farr values at the balance sheet date.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures far values using the following tarr value levels that reflect the significance of Inputs used in making the
measurements, based on the degree to which the farr value is observable:

- Level 1: Valuation s based upon a queted market price in an active market for an identical instrument. This fair value measure relates
to the valuauon of quoted and exchange traded equity and debt securities.

- Level 2: Valuation techriques are based upon observable inputs, either directly (e, as pnces) or indirectly (.e. derived from prices).
This fair value measure relates to the valuation of guoted equity securities In Inactive markets or in interests in unlisted funds whose
net asset values are referenced to the fair values of the listed or exchange traded securities held by those funds. Valuation techniques
may include using & broker quote in an inactive market or an evaluated price based on & compilation of pnmarily observable market
information utihsing information readly avallable via external sources.

- Level 3: Far value measurements are derved from valuation techniques that include inputs not based on observable market data.

For financial nstruments that are recegnised at fair value on a recurning basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between ievels in the hierarchy by reassessing categonsation (based on the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole} at the end of the financial year.
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I NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19) Fair value of financial instruments continued

The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments which are carried at far value at year end 1s summarised below:

2073 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £
Financial assets

Investment secunties 112.3 88.8 28.8 2299 158.8 827 23.6 265.1
Financial assets measured at fair value - 55.8 - $5.8 - 323 - 323
Non-current financial assets at fair value - 14.9 39,2 54.1 - - 393 393
112.3 159.5 68.0 339.8 158.8 1150 62.9 336.7

Financial liabilities
Third-party interests In consolidated tunds 36.0 9.6 10.6 b6.2 58.4 6.3 83 73.0
Denvatve financial instruments - 0.2 - 0.2 - 5.2 - 5.2
36.0 9.8 10.6 56.4 £8.4 1.8 83 782

Transfers between levels

The Group recogmses transfess into and fransfers out of far value hierarchy levels at each reporing penod based on assessments of price
inputs used in the vaiuation of financial assets. There were no transters between level 1. level 2 and level 3 of the fair value hierarchy durng

the year

Fair value measurements using significant unocbservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022:

Third-party

Non-currant interests in

Investment financial assets gt consolidated

Securmes tair valug funds

£m £m Em

At 30 June 2021 424 34.0 16.9
Additions - 1.9 -

Disposals (25.5) (1.5) (10.7}
Transters out 11.6) - -
Unrealised gains recognised in finance ncome 4.4 35 2.1
Unrealsed gains recognised in reserves 38 1.4 -
At 30 June 2022 236 39.3 83
Additions 25 29 12

Disposals 9.1) (5.0} (3.8}
Urnrealised gains recognised n finance mcome 12.0 29 4.9
Unrealised losses recognised in reserves (0.2) - -
At 30 June 2023 28.8 39.2 10.6
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Valuation of level 3 financial assets recognised at fair value on a recurring basis using valuation techniques

investments valued using valuation techniques include financial Investments which, by their nature, do not have an externally quoted price
based on regular trades, and financial investments for which markets are ne longer active as a result of market conditions, e.g. market
ihquidity. The valuation techniques used include compansen to recent arm's length transactions, rmarket approach making reference 1o other
instruments that are substantally the same, discounted cash flow analysis, enterprise valuation and net assets approach. These techniques
may Include a number of assumptions relating to variables such as interest rate and pnce earnings multiples. Changes in assumptons
relating to these vanables could positively or negatively impact the reported fair value of these instruments. When determining the inputs
nte tha valiation feghnques used, poonty 1 given to pablicly available prices from independent sources when available, but overalf the
source of pricing 1s chosen with the objective ot armving dl 4 lair value measurement that rafleciy the price uu which am ardorly transachnn
would take place between market participants on the measurement date.

The fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based upeon available market information and Judgements about the financial
instruments, including estimates of the timing and amount of expected future cash flows. Such estimates could include a marketability

adjustment to reflect iliquidrty and/or non-transferability that could result from offering for sale at one time the Group's entire holdings of a
particular financial Instrument.

The following tables show the valuation technigues and the significant unobservabie inputs used to estimate the fair value of level 3
nvestments as at 30 June 2023 and 2022, and the asscciated sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs 1o a reasonable alternative.

2023 Change in
Fair value Significant Range of Sensitivity fair vafua
Asset class and valuation technigue £m  unobservable inputs estimates factor £m
Unguoted securities
EBITDA multiple 15x +/- 1% +/-0.6
Market multiple and discount 6.4 .
Marketability adjustment 30% +/-5% -4+ 0.7
Discount rate 10%-17% +- 1% /+ 3.0
Discounted cash flow 323 N ° 1% /
Marketability adjustment 10%-54% +-5% 4+ 28
Unqueted funds
Net assets approgch 293 NAV B Tx +-5% +-15
Total level 3 investments 68.0
2022 Change in
Fair valua Significant Range of Sensitivity farr value
Asset class and valuation technique £m uncbservable inputs estimates factor Em
Unquoted securties
EBITDA muluple 14x +- 1x +/-05
Market multiple and discount 6.2
p Marketabihity 30% /5% e 0.4
adjustment
Discount rate 10%-20% +/-1% -+ 3.8
Discounted cash flow 263 ki ili
Marketability 10%-60%  +/ 5% 415
adjustrment
Unquoted funds
Net assets approach 30.4 NAY' X +/- 5% +/-15

Total level 3 investments 62.8

1 NAV priced assets nclude seed capital mvestments whose value 1s determined by the fund admirustrator using unobservable inputs The significant unobservable nputs
applied include EBITDA, market multples, last observable vendor pnce and discount rates

The sensitivity demonstrates the effect of a change in one unobservable mput while cther assumptions remain unchanged. There may be a

correlation between the unobservable inputs and other factors that have not been considered. 1t should also be noted that some of the

sensitivities are nan-inear, therefore larger or smaller impacts should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial assets and habihities that are not measured at fair value include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recervables, and trade
and cther payables. The carrying value of financial assets and financial labiltes not measured at fair value 1s considered a reasonable
approximanon of fair value as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.
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20) Seed capital investments
The Group considers itselt a sponsor ot an investment tund when it facllitates the establishment ot a fund in which the Group 15 the
investment manager. The Group ordinanly provides seed capital in order to provide initial scale and facilitate marketing of the funds to

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

third-party Investors. Aggregate interests held by the Group include seed capital, management fees and performance fees. The Group

generates managament and performance fee income from managing the assets on behalf of third-party investors,

The movements of seed capital iInvestmenis and related tems during the year are as follows:

Investment

Financial securites Other Third-party Non-current
Frnanciet assels yrefating 1 ireigtng 1o mterests n financiak assels
assets measured at consoldated consofidated consoldatad measured at
held for sals fair value funds)' fundst- funds fair value?® Total
Group Ern £m £m £m £m Em £r
Carrying armount at 30 June 2021 42.4 41.0 3181 9.6 (105.7) 314 336.8
Reclassification:
Financial assets held for sale to (33.1) - 40.5 0.4 (1.8} - ~
consohdated funds
Consolidated funds to FVTPL - 391 59.5) 01 203 - -
Additrons - 5.5 ~ ~ - 1.9 7.4
Dispasals 0.1) 44.9) {25.5) - 102 (1.5 61.8)
Fair value movement 3.2} 8.4) 8.5) 1.0 40 47 10.4)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2022 - 32.3 265.1 1.1 (73.0) 3685 272.0
Additions - 23.0 22.8 - (1.4) 195 63.9
Disposals - - {23.3) - 3.7 {5.0} {24.6)
Fair value movement - 0.5 {34.7) (0.5) 145 0.4 {19.8)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2023 - 55.8 229.9 10.6 {56.2) 514 2915

1. Investment secunties in consolidated funds ere measured a1 FVTPL,
2 Relates to cash and other assets in consohdated funds that are not Invesimant secunties, see notg 20(c)
3. Excludes £2 7 millon of other noncurrent financial assets measured at fair value that are not classified as seed capital.
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a) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Where Group companies invest seed capital into funds operated and controlled by the Group and the Group 1s actively seeking to reduce its

investment and it 1s considered highly probable that it will relinguish control within a year, the interests in the funds are recognised as
financial assets and measured at FYTPL.

If the fund remains under the control of the Group for more than one year from the onginal investment date, it will cease to be classified
as a financial asset, and will be consclidated line by line after it 1s assessed that the Group controls the investment fund in accordance with
the requirements of IFRS 10,

Investments cease 10 be classified as consolidated tunds when they are no longer controll&d By the LISUD. A 1085 O CORTION IRaY Happet
through sale of the investment and/or dilution of the Group's holding. No such fund was transferred 1o the FVYTPL category during the year
(FY2022: three funds with an aggregate value of £39.1 million were transferred 10 the FVTPL category).

FVTPL investmenis at 30 June 2023 comprise shares held in debt and equity funds as follows:

2023 022

£m £m

Equity funds 29.6 15.5
Debt funds L 26.2 168
Financial assets measured at fair value a 55.8 32.3

Included within finance income are gains of £2.6 million [FY2022: losses of £12.5 million) on the Group’s financial assets measured
at FVTPL.

b) Non-current financial assets measured at fair value
Non-current financial asset investments relate to the Group's halding in closed-end funds and are measured at FVTPL.

2023 2022

£fm £m
Real estate funds 0.9 1.5
Infrastructure funds 22.0 241
Other funds 28.5 109
Non-current financial assets measured at fair value’ 514 365

1 Exciudes £2 7 milion (30 June 2022: £2.5 million) of other non-current finanoial assets measured at fair value that are not classified as seed capital.

Included withun finance income are gains of £1.4 million {FY2022: gains of £4.2 milhon} an the Group's non-current financial assets
measured at far value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20) Seed capital investments continued

¢) Consolidated funds

The Group has consolidated 17 investment funds as at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: 18 investment funds), over which the Group 15
deemed to have control (refer to note 25). Consclidated funds represent seed capital iInvestments where the Group has held its posttion
for a period greater than one year and 115 interest represents a controlling stake in the fund In accordance with IFRS 10. Consolidated fund

assets and liabliues are presented hne by line after intercompany eliminations. The table below sets out an analysis of the carrying amounts
of interests held by the Group in consolidated investment funds

2023 2022
£m £m
investment secunties’ 2299 265.1
Cash and cash eguivalents 10.3 10.0
Other? 0.3 1.1
Third-party interests in conschdated funds {56.2) (73.0)
Consolidated seed capital investments 184.3 203.2

1. Investment secuntes represent trading securities held by consalidated investment funds and are measured at FVTPL, Note 25 provides a st of the consalidated funds
by asset class, and further detalled informauon at the secunty level 1s availabte 1 the Indivigual fund financial staterments

2. Other includes trade receivables, trade payables and accruals.

The maximum exposure to loss 1s the carrying amount of the assets held. The Group has not provided financial support or atherwise agreed
tc be respensible for supporting any consolidated or unconsolidated funds financially.

included within the consclidated statement of comprehensive income are net losses of £15.3 rillion (FY2022: net losses of £40.5 million)
relating to the Group’s share of the results of the individual statements of comprehensive Income for each of the consolidated funds,
as follows:

2023 2022

£m £m
Investment INCoOMe 11.0 5.7
Fair value 10sses on investrnent securities (44.3} 61.3)
Change in 1Mrd-party Interests in consolidated funds 19.3 16.5
Audit fees (0.2} (0.2}
Other expenses {1.1) {1.2)
Net losses on consolidated funds {15.3} 40.5)

Included n the Group's cash generated from operations 1s £0.1 rmilhon cash utlised in operations (FY2022: £2.8 miliion cash utiksed in
operations) refating to consolidated funds.

As ot 30 June 2023, the Group's consolidated funds were domiciled in Guernsey, Luxembourg, Saudi Arabia and the United States.
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21) Financial instrument risk management
Group

The Group 1 suject 10 sualeyw and businenn, client, nvestment. freasury and operational risks throughout its business, as discussed In
the Risk managerent section. This note discusses the Group’s exposure to and management of the following principal risks wlnch arisc
from the financial instruments 1t uses: credit risk, iquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange nsk and price risk. Where the Group holds
units in investment tunds, classified either as financial assets measured at FVTPL or non-current financial assets, the related financial
instrument risk disclosures in the note below categorise exposures based on the Group's direct interest in those funds without looking
through 1o the nature of underlying securnities.

Risk management 1s the uitimate responsibility of the Board, as noted in the Risk management section on pages 35 to 41.

Capital management

It1s the Group's pohcy ihal glf entiies within the Group have sufficient capital to meet regulatory and working capital requirements and
1t conducts regular reviews of 1ts capital requirements relative 1o its capital resources.

Ashmore has been reporting under IFPR since 1 January 2022 and applies the ICARA approach to the calculation of the capital and liquidity
requirement for its UK regulated entity, AIML.

The Board has determined that the capital required to support the Group's activittes, inctuding its regulatory requirements, 1s £80.6 million.
The equivalent figure as at 30 June 2022, calculated under the previous ICAAP approach, was £125.2 mullion.

Ashmore helds total capital resources of £704.8 milhon as at 230 June 2023, providing an excess of £624.2 miilion over the Group
capital requirement (30 June 2022: £788.7 milleon, providing an excess of £663.5 milllon over the Group capital requirement).

Credit risk

The Group has exposure 10 credit nsk from its normal activities where the nsk i1s that a counterparty will be unable to pay in full amounts
when due.

Exposure to credit risk 1s monttored on an ongoing basis by serior management and the Group’s Risk Management and Control function,
The Group has a counterparty and cash management policy in place which, in addition to other controls, restncts exposure to any single
counterparty by setting exposure limits and requining approval and diversification of counterparty banks and other financial institutions.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s represented by the carrying value of its financial assets measured a8t amortised cost,
excluding prepayments. The table below lists financial assets subject to credit nisk.

2023 2022

Notes Em £m
Trade and other recewables 17 66.0 708
Cash and cash equivalents 478.6 552 0
Total 544.6 622.8

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, compnsing short-term deposits with banks and liquidity funds, are predorminantly held with
counterparties with credit ratngs ranging from A- to AAAM as at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: A to AAAM). As at 30 June 2023, the Group
held £56.8 million (30 June 2022: £2257 milion) in the Ashmore Global Liguidity Fund.

All trade and other receivables are considered to be fully recoverable at year end. They include fee debtors that anse principally wathin the
Group's Investment management business. They are monitored regularly and, historically, default levels have been insignificant. There 1s no
signiticant cencentration of credit nisk in respect of fees owing from clients.
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21) Financial instrument risk management continued

Group
Liquidity risk

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficuity in meeting obligations asseaiated with its financial hatilites that are settled

by dehwvenng cash or other financial assets.

In order t¢ manage hguidity nsk, there 1s a Group hquidity policy to ensure that there 1s sufficient access to funds to cover all forecast

committed requirements for the next 12 months

The table below summarises the maturiy profile of the Group’s financial iabiliies at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 based on contractual

undiscounted payments:

At 30 June 2023
More than
Within 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
£m £fm fm £m
Current trade and other payables 242 - - 242
Lease liabilives 24 39 - 6.3
Total 26.6 39 - 30.5
At 30 June 2022
Mgores than
\Within 1 year 15 years. 5 years Total
£m £m £m £m
Current trade and other payables 364 - - 364
Lease habobes 2 &b 0z &8
Tota! 39.0 6.0 02 45.2

Interest raie risk

interest rate nsk 1s the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of finanoal Instruments wiil fluciuate because of changes i market

interast rates.

The principal interest rate rsk 1s the nsk that the Group wiil sustain a reduction in interest income through adverse movements in interest
rates. This relates (o deposits with banks and liguidity funds held in the ordinary course of business. The Group has a cash management

pabcy which moanitors cash levels and retumns wathin set parameters on a continuing basis,

Bank and similar deposits Lincluding hquidity funds) held al year end are shown on the consolidated balance sheet as cash and cash
equwvalents. The effective interest earned on bank and similar deposiis during the year is given in the 1able below:

2023
%

2022

Y

Deposits with banks and hquidity funds

3.22

0.47

At 30 June 2023, ff mterest rates over the year had been 50 basis pomits mgherflower with all other variables neld constant, profii before tax
tor the year would have been £2.5 mullion tugher/lower (FY2022: £2.5 million hugherflower), mainly as a result of tngher/lower interest on
cash balances. An assumption that the fair value of assets and liabilities will not be afiected by a change in interest rates was used n the

model to calculate the effect on profit before tax.

In addinon, the Group 1s indirectly exposed to interest rate nisk where the Groun holds seed captal investments i funds that investin

debt secunties.
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Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will ffuctuate because of changes in foreign
ewrhango rates.

The Group's revenue 15 almost entirely denominated in US doflars, while the majority ot the Group’s costs are denominated in Swetling.
Consequently, the Group has an exposure to moverments in the GBP:USD exchange rate. In addition, the Group operates globally, which
means that it may enter into contracts and other arrangements denominated in local currencies in vanous countrnies. The Group also holds
a number of seed capttal investments denominated mainly in US doliars, Colombian pesos and Indonesian rupsah.

The Group’'s policy 1S to hedge a proportion of the Group's revenue by using a combination of iorward foreign exchange contracts and
options for a penod of up to two years ferward. The Group also sells US dollars at spot rates when opportunities anse.

The table below shows the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% exchange movement in the US dollar, Colombian peso, Indonesian rupiah and the
Ewo, net of hedging activities.

2023 2022

Impact on Impact on
profit Impact on prafin Impact on
before tax equity befors 1ax aguity
Foreign cumency sensitvity test £m £m Em £m
US dallar +/- 1% 0.4 25 0.4 3.9
Colombian peso +/- 1% - 0.2 0.1 0.2
Indonesian rupiah +/~ 1% - 0.1 - 01
Eure +/- 1% 0.1 0.1 - -

Price risk
Price nsk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrurnents will fluctuate because of market changes.

Seed capital

The Group is exposed to the nsk of changes in market prices in respect of seed capital mvestments. Such price sk is borne by the Group
directly through interests in financial assets measured at fair value or indirectly either through line-by-line consoldation of underlying financial
performance and positions held in certain funds. Detalls of seed capital investrents held are given in note 20.

The Group has procedures defined by the Board governing the appraisal, approval and monitoring of seed caprtal investments.

At 30 June 2023, a 5% movemeant in the fair value of these mvestments would have a £14.86 million (FY2022: £13.6 rmillion} impact
on net assets and profit before tax.

Management and performance fees

The Group 1s also indirectly exposed to price risk i connection with the Group’s management fees, which are based on a percentage of
value of AuM, and fees based on performance. Movements in market prices, exchange and interest rates could cause the AuM to fluctuate,
which in turn could affect fees earned. Pertormance fee revenues could also be reduced depending upcn market condiicns.

Management and performance fees are diversified across a range of investment themes and are not measurably correlated 1o any single
market index in Emerging Markets. In addition, the policy of having funds with year ends staged throughout the financial year has meant
that in penods of steep market decline, some performance tees have still been recorded. The prohitability impact is hikely 1o be less than this,
as cost mitigation actions would apply, including the reduction of the vanable compensaton paid to employees.

Using the year end AuM level of US$55.9 billion and applying the year's average net management fee rate of 38bps, a 5% movement
in AuM would have a US$10.6 mullion impact, equivalent to £8.3 mitlion using a year end exchange rate of 1.2714, on management fee
revenues (FY2022: US$64.0 billion and applying the yvear's average net management fee rate of 33bps, @ 5% movemeant in AuM would
have a US$12.6 mithon impact, eguivalent to £10.3 rmillion using a year end exchange rate of 1.2145, on management fee revenues).

Hedging activities

The Group uses forward and option contracts to hedge its exposure 1o foreign currency risk. These hedges, which have been assessed as
effective cash flow hedges as &t 30 June 2023, protect a proportion of the Group's revenue cash flows from foreign exchange movernents.
The cumulative fair value of the outstanding foreign exchange hedges asset at 30 June 2023 was £0.2 million and 15 included within the
Group's derivative financial instruments (30 June 2022 £5.2 million foreign exchange hedges hability included in derivative

financial Instruments).
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¢+ NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21) Financial instrument risk management continued

Group
The noticnal and farr values of foreign exchange hedging Instruments were as follows:

2023 2022
Fair value Far value
Naotional assets/ Neonal azcets/
amount (liabilities} amount {liabnltes
US$m £m ussm Em
Cash flow hedges
Foreign exchange nil-cost option coliars 40.0 0.2 100.0 5.2}
40.0 0.2 100.0 5.2y
The matunty prohite of the Group's outstanding hedges 1s shown below.
2023 2072
Notional amount of option collars maturing: uSss$m US3m
Within & months 30.0 40.0
Between § and 12 months 10.0 40.0
kater than Y2 months . _=_ _ 20
40.0 100.0

When hedges are assessed as effective, intrinsic value gains and losses are initally recognised 1n other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to comprehensive mcome as the corresponding hedged cash flows crystallise. Time value in relation to the Group's hedges is
excluded from being part of the hedging itermn and, as a result, the net unrealised loss related 1o the tme value of the hedges is recognised

N the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income tor the year.

Anintninsic value gain of £4.9 million (FY2022: £6.0 million loss) on the Group’s hedges has been recognised through other comprehensive
income and & £0.%5 million intrinsic value gain (FY2022: £0.5 million intrinsic value Ioss) was reclassified from equity to the staterment of

comprehensive mcome in the year.

Included within the net realised and unrealised hedging gain of £4.4 million (note 7) recogmised at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: £6.3 million

gainj are;

- a £0.5 million gain in respect of foreign exchange hedges covering net management fee income for the financial year ending 30 June 2023

(FY2022: £0.5 mullion loss); and

- a £3.9 milion gain in respect of crystallised foreign exchange centracts (FY2022: £6.8 mitlion gain).

Company

The sk management processes of the Company, including those relating to the specific risk exposures covered below, are aligned with

those of the Group as a whole unless stated otherwise,

in addition, the nsk definitions that apply 1o the Group are also relevant for the Company.

Credit risk

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit nsk is represented by the carrying vaiue of s financial assets measured at amorised cost,

excluding prepayments. The table below lists financial assets subject to credit nsk.

2023 2022

hotec £m Em

Cash and cash equivalents 327.7 199.7
Trade and other recevables 17 282.5 454.8
Total 610.2 6145

The Company’s cash and cash equrvalents compnse short-term deposits held with banks and hquidity funds which have credit ratings

ranging from A- 10 AAAM as at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022; A to AAAMY),

All frade and other receivables are considered 1o be fully recoverable and none were overdue at year end (30 June 2022: none overdue),

Liquidity risk

The Company's exposure 10 lquidity risk is not considered to be matenal and, therefore, no further information is provided

Detalls on other commitments are provided in note 29.
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Company
Interest rate risk

The principal interest rate nsk for the Company 1s that 1t could sustain a reduction in interest revenue from bank deposits held in the ordinary
course of business through adverse movements in interest rates.

Bank and similar deposits (including liguidhty funds) held at year end are shown on the Company’s balance sheet as cash and cash
equivatents. The effective interest earned on bank and similar deposits during the year 1s given in the table below:

2023 2022
"% %
Deposits with banks and hgqudity funds 4.17 0.4G

At 30 June 2023, 1t interest rates over the year had been 50 hasis poinis higherflower wath all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit
1or the year would have been £1.2 milhon higher/lower (FY2022: £0.6 million higher/lower}, mainly as a result of higherflower interest on
cash balances. An assumption that the fair value of assets and ligbilities will not be affected by a change in interest rates was used in the
model 1o calculate the effect on post-tax profits.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed pnmarily to foreign exchange nisk in respect of US dollar cash balances and US dollar-denominated intercompany
balances. Howeaver, such risk 1s not hedaged by the Company.

At 30 dune 2023, 1t the US dollar had strengthened/weakened by 1% against Sterling with all other vanables held constant, profit before tax
for the year would have increased/decreased by £2.4 millon (FY2022: increased/decreased by £3.6 million).

22) Share capital
Authorised share capital

2073 2022

2023 Nominal 2022 Neminal

Number of value Number value

Group and Company sharas £000 of shares £7000

Ordinary shares of 0.01p each 900,000,000 90 800,000,000 90
Issued share capital - allotted and fully paid

2022 2022

2023 Nominal 2022 MNominal

Number of value Number valug

Group and Company shares £000 of shares £'000

Ordinary shares of 0.01p each 712,740,804 71 712,740,804 71

All the above ordinary shares reprasent equity of the Company and rank part passu in respect of participation and voting nghts.

At 30 June 2023, there were equity-settled share awards issued under the Omnibus Plan totalling 39,389,867 (30 June 2022: 40,688,833)
shares that have release dates ranging frorm July 2023 to September 2027. Further details are provided in note 10.

23} Own shares

The Trustees of the Ashmore 2004 Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) acquire and hold shares in Ashmore Group plc with a view to facilitating
the vesting of share awards. As at 30 June 2023, the EBT owned 50,834,683 (30 June 2022: 55,512,301) ordinary shares of 0.01p with a
nominal value of £5,083 (30 Jure 2022: £5,551) and shareholders’ funds are reduced by £164.2 million {30 June 2022: £187.6 million)

in this respect. The EBT 1s penodically funded by the Cormpany for these purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24} Trade and other payables

Group Group Company Compary
2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m

Current
Trade payables 13.3 158 3.0 2.4
Accruals and provisions 10.9 206 4.5 1.4
Amounts due to subsidianes - - 205 29.7
Total trade and other payables 24.2 36.4 28.0 435

25) Interests in subsidiaries

Operating subsidiaries held by the Company
There wera no movernents in nvestmeant in subsidianies held by the Company during the year.

2023 2022
Company £m £m
Cost
At 30 June 2023 and 2022 199 199

In the opinion of the Directors, the following subsidiary undertakings principally atfected the Group's results or financial position at
30 Jung 2023. A fult iist of the Group’s subsidiaries and all related undertakings 1s disclosed in note 33

Country of
Incorporation/

tormation and % of equity

principal place of shares held

Name opsiation by the Group
Ashmore Investments (UK} Limited England 100.00
Ashmore Investment Management Limited England 100.00
Ashmore Investment Advisors Limited England 100.00
Ashrmare Management Company Colombia SAS Colombia 59.26
Ashmore CAF-AM Management Company SAS Colombia 53.09
Ashrnore Avenda Investments {Real Estate) LLP Colombia 56.00
Ashmore Management Company Limited Guermsey 100.00
Ashmore Investment Management India LLP India 100.00
PT Ashmore Asset Management Indonesia Thk fndanasia 60.04
Ashmore Investment Managemaent {lreland) Limited Ireland 100.00
Ashmore Japan Co. Limited Japan 100.00
Ashmore Investments (Holdings} Limited Maurtius 100.00
Ashmore Investments Saudi Arabia Saudh Araia 100.00
Ashmore Investment Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100.00
Ashmore Investment Management (US) Corporation USA 100.00
Ashmore Investment Advisors (US) Corporation Usa 100.00
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Consolidated funds

The Group consolidated the following 17 investment funds as at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: 18 investment funds) over which the Group

1s deemied to have control:

Cauntry of Y% ot net

inesrporation/ asset value

principat place of held by the

Name Type of fund operation Group
Ashmgre Emerging Markets Debt and Currency Fund Limited Alternatives Guernsey 57.72
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Corporate Debt ESG Furd Corporate debt | nxemhmirg 100.00
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Equity ESG Fund Equity  Luxembourg 99.36
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Indonesian Equity Fund Equity Luxembourg 100.00
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Giobal Small-Cap Equity Fund Equity Luxembourg 47.55
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Middle kast Equity Fund Equity  Luvembnurg 88.78
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets |G Total Beturn Fund Blended debt  Luxembourg 100.00
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Total Return ESG Fund Biended debt  Luxembourg 99.77
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Sovareign Debt ESG Fund External debt Luxembourg 100.00
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets China Bond Fund Local currency  Luxembourg 100.00
Ashmore Saudi Equity Fund Equity  Saudi Arabia 69.29
Ashrnore Emerging Markets Active Equity Fund Equity USA 73.14
Ashmore Emerging Markets Equity ESG Fund Equity USA 100.00
Ashmore Emerging Markets Short Duration Select Fund Equity USA 100.00
Ashrnore Emerging Markets Investment Grade Income Fund Corporate debt USA 100.00
Ashmore Emerging Markets Corporate Debt ESG Fund Corporate debt USA 100.00
Ashmore Emerging Markets Local Currency Bond Fund Local currency USA 78.91

26} Investment in associates
The Group held an interest in the following associate as at 30 June 2023, over which it continues to have significant influence:

Country of Incorporation/
fermaton and poncipal

% of squity
shares held by

MNarme Type Nature of businass place of aperation the Group
Taping Fund Management Company Associate  Investrment management China 523%
The movement In the carrying value of investment in associates for the year 1s provided below:

2023 2022
Assocates £m £m
At the beginning of the year 2.1 0.9
Reclassification - 0.2)
Gain on dilution - 1.3
Share of profit for the year 0.5 -
Foreign exchange revaluation [0.3) 0.1
At the end of the year 2.3 2.1
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' NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26) Investment in associates continued
The summarised financial iInformation for the associate 1s shown below,

2023 2022
Assocmates £m £m
Total assets 53.2 54.5
Total liabilites (10.0) 113.3)
MNet assets 432 412
Group's share of net assaets 2.3 2.1
Revenue for the year 2386 235
Profit for the year 9.6 0.8
Group's share of profit for the year 05 -

The carnying value of the investment in associates represents the cost of acquisition subsequently adjusied for share of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of loss. No permanent impairment is believed to exist relating to the associate as at 30 June 2023.
The Group nad no undrawn capital commitments {30 June 2022: £n) 1o Investment funds managed by the associate.

27) Interests in structured entities

The Group has interests in structured entities as a result of the management of assets on behalf of its clients. Where the Group holds a
direct interest In a closed-ended fund, private equity fund or open-ended pooled fund such as a SICAV, the interest s accounted for erther as
a consolidated structured entity or as a hinancial asset, depending on whether the Group has control over the fund or not.

The Group's interest in structured entibes i1s reflected in the Group's AuM, The Group is exposed to moverments i AuM of structured
entities through the potential loss of fee ncome as a result of client withdrawals. Qutflows from funds are dependent on market sentiment,
asset performance and investor considerations. Further information on these risks can be found in the Strategic report.

Considering the patental for changes in AuM of structured entities, management has determimed that the Group's uncensohdated
structured entities mnclude segregated mandates and pooled funds vehicles. Disclosure of the Group’s exposure to unconsolidated
structured entities has been made on this basis

The reconcillation of AuM reported by the Group within unconsolidated structured entities 1s shown below.

Lesz Auld within
AuM wathin uncensolidated
consolidated structured
Total Auld funds entites
US$bn US$bn US$bn
Jwez022 0 ®40 03 87
30 June 2023 55.9 0.3 55.6

Included in the Group's consolidated management tees of £185.4 million (FY2022: £247.0 million} are management fees amounting to
£184 2 mullon (FY2022: £246.0 mulllon) sarned from unconsalidated structured entioes.

The table below shows the carrying values of the Group’s Interests in unconsahdated structured entites, recognised in the Group balance
sheet, which are equal to the Group's maximum exposure to loss from those interests.

2023 2022
£m £m
Management fees recevabie 377 47.6
Trade and other receivabies 1.3 08
Seed caprital investments ™ 107.2 688
Total exposure 146.2 117.2

* Compnise fnancial assets measured at tair value and non-current hinancial assets measured at fair value refer 10 note 200

The main risk the Group faces from its beneficial interests in unconsohdated structured entities anses from a potential decrease in the far
value of seed capntal investments. The Group's beneficial interests in seed capital nvestments are disclosed in note 20. Note 21 includes
further information on the Group's exposure to market nsk ansing from seed capital investments,
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28) Related party transactions

Related parties of the Group include key management personnel, close family members of key management personnel, subsidianes,
associates, joint ventures, Ashmore funds, the EBT and The Ashmore Foundation.

Key management personnel — Group and Company
The compensation paid to or payable to key management personnel 1s shown below:

2023 2022
[ £m fm
Short-term benelils 0.0 0.8
Detined contnibution pension costs - -
Share-based payment benefits (note 10} ¢4 G2

1.2 1.0

Short-term benefits include salary and fees, benefits and cash bonus.
Share-based payment benefits represent the cost of equity-settied awards charged to the statement of comprehensive income.
Details of the remuneration ¢f Directors are given in the Remuneration report on pages 78 to 111,

During the yesar, there were no other transactions entered into with key management personnel {FY2022: none). Aggregate key
management personnel Interests in consolidated funds at 30 June 2023 were £44.5 million (30 June 2022: £62.7 milion).

Transactions with subsidiaries — Company
Detalls of transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below:

2023 2022
£m £m

Transactions during the year
Management fees 59.7 &87.2
Net dividends 145.2 174.0
l.oans repaid by subsidianes 110.5 183.8

Amounts recewvable or payable to subsidiaries are disclosed in notes 17 and 24 respectively.
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

28) Related party transactions continued

Transactions with Ashrpore funds — Group

During the year, the Group receved £64.0 million of gross management fees and performance tees (FY2022: £96.2 million) frem the
104 funds (FY2022: 92 funds) t manages and which are classitied as related partres. As at 30 June 2023, the Group had recevables due
from funds of £4.6 million {30 June 2022: £5.8 millkon) that are classified as related parties.

Transactions with the EBT — Group and Company

The EBT has been provided with a loan facility to allow it 10 acquire Ashmore shares in order to satisfy outstanding unvested share awards.
The EBT s included within the results of the Group and the Company. As at 30 June 2023, the foan outstanding was £150.7 mifhon

(30 June 2022: £183.7 mulion].

Transactions with The Ashmore Foundation — Group and Company

The Ashmaore Foundation 1s a related party to the Group. The Foundation was set up to provide financial grants to worthwhile causes within
the Emerging Markets countries in which Ashmaore invests and/or operates with a view 10 giving back to the countries and communites.
The Group donated £0.5 millien to the Foundation during the year (FY2022: £0.6 million).

29) Commitments
The Group has undrawn investment commitments relaung 10 seed capital Investments as follows

2023 022
Group £m £m
Ashmore Andean Fund Il, LP a1 0.1
Ashrore Avenida Cotombia Real Estate Fund | (Cayrman) LP 0.1 0.1
Ashmore ! = CAF Colombian Infrastructure Senmor Debt Fund 5.7 6.6
Fando Ashmore Andino It - FCP 3.0 -
Ashmore KCH HealthCare Fund 11 - 1.2
Ashmore KCH HeahlthCare LLC - 4.4
Total undrawn investrnent commitments 8.9 12.4

Company
The Company has undrawn loan commitrnents to other Group entities totalling £482.5 million (30 June 2022: £354.1 million) to support their
investment activities but has no investment commiments of its own (30 June 2022: none).

30) Contingent assets and liabilities

The Company and its subsidianes can be party 1o fegal claims ansing mn the normal course of business. The Directors do not anticipate that
the outcome of any such potential proceedings and clarms will have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial pasition and at
present there are no such clams where their financial impact can be reasonably estimated. There are no other matenal contingent assets or
liabilites.
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31} Non-controlling interests

The Group's matenal NCI as at 30 June 2023 was held in PT Ashmore Asset Management Indonesia Tbk (Ashmore Indongsial. Set out
below 15 summarnised financial information and the amounts disclosed are before intercompany eliminations.

40% NCI
Ashmore Indonesia
2023 2022
Summansed balance shsst £m £m
Total assets 19.8 23.0
Total abtlities (4.4} (6.4)
Net assets 15.4 16.6
Non-controlling interests* 6.1 13.6
Surmmansed staterment of comprehensive ncome
Net revenue 10.9 12.3
Profit for the period 5.1 5.9
Other comprehensive income/{loss) (0.9) 1.6
Total comprehensive INcome 4.2 75
Profit allocated to NCI 1.6 30
Owidends paid to NCi 2.3 2.3
Summanssd cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities 4.6 6.5
Cash flows used mn investing activities - (3.6)
Cash flows used n financing activites (6.3} 6.3)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (& e (3.4}

* £6.8 rmullion of histonical NCI was reclassified 10 retained earmings duning the year
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32} Post-balance sheet events

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Thete are no post-balance sheet avents that reguire agjustrnent o disclosure in the Group consolidated hinancial staterments.

33} Subsidiaries and related undertakings

The following 1s a full list of the Ashmore Group plc subsidianies and related undertakings as at 30 June 2023, along with the registered
address and the percentage of equity owned by the Group. Related undertakings comprise significant holdings in associated undertakings,
jont ventures and Ashmore sponsored public funds in which the Group owns greater than 20% interest

Y% votng
armg Classhieption nterest Regsiersd address and place of mcorporation
Ashmore Investments (UK) Lirnited” Subsidiary  100.00 61 Aldwych, London WC2B 4AE
Ashmore Investment Management Limited Subsidiary  100.00 United Kingdom
Ashmore Investrment Advisors Limited Subsidiary  100.00
Aldwych Administration Services Limited {dorrmant) Subsiaiary 100.00
Ashmore Asset Management Limited {dormant) Subsidiary 100.00
Ashmore Avenida Investments (Real Estate) LLP Subsidary 56.00
Ashmore Avenida Deveco Holding Company Limited” Subsidiary 100.00
Ashmore Investment Management {Ireland) Limited Subsidiary 100.00 32 Molesworth Street, Dublin 2, D02 Y512
Ashmore Investment Management India LLP Subsidiary  100.00 507A Kakad Chambers, Dr Annie Besant
Road Worli, Mumbai 400 018, India
Ashmore Investment Management {US) Corparation Subsidiary 100 00 The Corporation Trust Center, 1208 Crange
Ashmore Investment Advisors (US) Corporation Subsidiary  100.00 Street, Wilmington, DE 19801, USA
Averida Partners LLC Subsidiary 100.00 200 Park Avenue South
Avenida CREF | Manager Cayman LLC Subsidiary  100.00 New York, 10003
Avenida CREF | Manager LLC Subsidiary 100.00 USA
Avenida A2 Partners LLC Subsidiary 100.00
Avenida Colombia Member LLC Subsidiary 83.30
Avernda CREF Il Partners LLC Subsidiary 100.00
Avernda CREF Il GP LLC Subsidiary  100.00
MCA Partners LLC Substdiary 100.00

1 Ashmore Investrnents (UK) Limited jregistered number 3345138) 1s exempt fram the requirements relating 10 the audit of accounts under sechon 479A of the UK

Companes Act 2006,

2 Ashmore Avenida Deveo Holding Company Limited 15 under an active proposal 'c stnke off.
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Name Classification fVTn\;s:\ar\ﬁg: Registered address and place of incorperation
Avenida REF Holding SA Subsiciary 100.00 Yamandu 1321, 11500
Avenida CREF || Manager SRL Subsidiary 99.99 Montevideo
Avenida CREF Partners SRL Subsichary  99.99 Uruguay
Avenwda CREF |t GP SRL Subsidiary 85.09
Ashmaore Avenida LatAm Energy Efficient Attordable Housing Subsidiary 100.00 10 rue du Chateau d'Eau, L-3364
Fund ilf GP Leudelange, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg
Kshmore Investment Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Subsidiary 100.00 1 George Street, #15-04, Singapore 043145
KCH Cairo Pte. Ltd (dormant) Subsidiary 100.00
KCH Cairo S.A.E. (dormant) Subsidiary 299.20 Zone {T) — Emaar, Up Town Cairo,
Mokattam, Caro, Egypt
PT Ashimore Asset Management Indonesia Tbk Subsidiary 60.04 Pacific Century Place, 18" Floor,
Ashmore Dana Pasar Uang Syanah Financial asset  100.00  SCBD Lot 10, JI. Jenderal. Sudirman Kav.
Ashmore Dana USD Fixed Income Financial asset 39.42 52-53 Jakarta 12190, Indonesia
Ashmore Managemeni Company Colombia SAS Subsidiary 59.26 Carrera 7 No. 75-66,
Ashrmore-CAF-AM Management Company SAS Subsidiary 53.09 Office 701 & 702
Ashmore Holdings Colombia SAS Subsidiary  100.00 Bogata, Colembia
Ashmore Investment Advisors S A, Sociedad Fiduciana Subsidiary 100.00
Ashmore Backup Management Company SAS Subsidiary 100.00
Avenida Colombia Management Company SAS Subsidiary 100.00
Ashmore Avernda DP General Partner SAS Subsidary 80.00
Ashmore Avenida Back Office SAS Subsidiary 100.00
Ashmore Peru Backup Management Subsidiary 100,00  Av. Crrcunvalacion del Club Golf Los Incas
Na. 134, Torre 1, Cf. 805, Surco. Lima, Pery
Ashmore Japan Co. Limited Subsidwary 100.00 11F, Shin Marunouchi Bullding 1-5-1
Marunouchi Chiyoda-ku
Tokyo Japan 100-6511
Ashmore Investments (Colombia) SL Subsidiary 100.00 cfo Hermosilla 11, 4°A, 28001 Madnd, Spain
Ashmore Management (DIFC} Limited Subsidiary 100.00 Unit L30-07, Level 30, ICD Brookfield Place,
Dubal Internaticnal Financial Centre, Duba,
LAE
Ashmore Investment Saudi Arabia Subsidiary 100.00 3rd Floor Tower B, Olaya Towvers
Ashmore Saud Equity Fund Consclidated fund 69.29 Olaya Main Street, Riyadh, Saudi Arabia
Ashmore AISA (Cayman) Lirmited Subsidiary 100.00 PO Box 308, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands
AA Development Capital Investment Managers Subsidrary 55.00 Les Cascades Building
{Mauntus) LLC 33 Edith Cavell Street, Port Louis
Ashmore Investments (Holdings) Limited Subsidiary 100.00 Mauritius
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

33) Subsidiaries and related undertakings continued

Name

Claszificaton

% veting
Intarest

Registered address and placa of iIncorporation

Ashmore Management Company Limited

Ashmore Global Special Situations Fund 3 (GP) Limited
Ashmore Global Special Situations Fund 4 {GP) Limited
Ashmore Global Spacial Situations Fund 5 (GP) Limited
Ashmore Venezuela Recovery Fund 2 Ltd

Ashmare Emerging Markets Debt and Currency Fund Limited
Ashmore SICAV Ernerging Markets Middle East Equity Fund
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Sovereign Debt ESG Fund
Ashmore SICAY Emerging Markets Corporate Debt ESG Fund
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets China Bond Fund

Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Global Small-Cap Equity Fund
Ashmore SICAY Emerging Markets I1G Total Return Fund
Ashmore SICAYV Emerging Markets Total Return ESG Fund
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Indonesian Equity Fund
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Equrty ESG Fund

Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Local Currency Bond Fund 2
Ashmare SICAY Emerging Markets Sharah Active Equity Fund
Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets 1G Short Duraticn Fund

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Financial asset
Consalidated fund

100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
45.85
57.72

Trafalgar Court
Les Banques
St Peter Part

GY13QL
Guernsey

Consolidated fund
Consolidated fund
Consolidated fund
Consohdated fund
Consolidated fund
Consolidated fund
Consohdated fund
Consolidated fund
Consoiidated fund
Consolidated fund

Financial asset

Financial asset

Ashmore SICAV Emerging Markets Mult-Asset Fund
;\ghn:aéaeﬁg—%r@apmate Debt ESG Fund
Ashmore Emerging Markets Investment Grade income Fund
Ashmore Emerging Markets Active Equity Fund

Ashmore Emerging Markets Local Currency Bond Fund
Ashmore Emerging Markets Equity ESG Fund

Ashmaore Emerging Markets Short Duration Seiect Fund

Consolidated fund
Consolidated fund
Consolidated fund
Consolidated tund
Consolidated fund
Consclidated fund

Financial asset

88 78
100.00
100.00
100.00
47 55
160.00
9977
100.00
9936
100.00
100.00
30.01
28.46
10000
100.00
73.14
7891
100.00
100.00

10, rue du Chatesu d'Fau
L-3364 Leudelange
Grand-Duchy of Luxembuourg

_50§u1h LaSalle Street
Chicago, lilinois 60603

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements
It15 possible that this document could or may contain forward-looking staterments that are based on current expectations or beliefs, as well
as gssumptions about future events. These forward-looking statements can be identtied by the fact that they do not relate anly 10 histoncal
or current facts. Forward-iooking statements often use words such as anticipate, target, expect, estmate, ntend, plan, goal, beiieve, will,

may, should, would, could or other words of sirmitar rneaning.

Lndue rehance should not be placed on any such statements because, by ther very nature, they are subject 10 known and unknown nsks
and uncertainties and can be atfected by other factors that could cause actual resuits, and the Group's plans and objectives, 1o differ
mzerially from those expressed or imphied in the forward-looking staterments. There are several factors that could cause actual results 1o
differ matenally from those expressed or imphed in forward-looking statements. Among the factors that could cause actual results to differ
matenally from those described in the forward-locking statements are changes in global, political, economic, business, competitive, market
and regulatory forces, future exchange and interest rates, changes In tax rates and future business combinations or dispositions. The Group
undertakes nc cbhgation to revise or update any forward-looking statements contained withun this document, regardliess of whether those
statements are affected as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.,
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Five-year summary

2023 2022 7021 2020 2018
£m £rn fm fm fm
Management fees 185.4 247.0 276.4 330.0 307.8
Palunnanve legs 5.1 4.5 1.9 3.9 2.8
Other revenue 27 2.9 4.6 4.1 59
Total revenue 193.2 2644 2929 3380 31863
Distribution costs (2.2) {3.5) 5.5 {14.5) (13.3)
Foreign exgn;mg_s o - 54 1.6 4.3 7.0 B 11.3
Net revenue— o 196.4 2625 201.7 330.0 314.2
Gans/(losses) on investment secunties (44.3) 61.3) 123.5 (19.1) 0.5
Change in third-party interests in consolidated funds 192.3 16.5 (62.6) 7.5 38
Personnel expenses (31.4) (27.8) (26.7) (27.6) (26.5}
Vanable compensation (34.8) (45.6) 153.6] {(55.0) (57.7}
Other operating expenses (27.8) (25.1) 24.0} (26.6) (31.6}
Total operating expenses (94.0) (98.5) {104.3} (109.2} (115.8)
Operating profit 77.4 119.2 258.3 209.7 202.8
Finance income/(lexpense) 339 12.1) 238 12.0 17.4
Share of profi/{loss) from associates and joint ventures 0.5 1.3 0.3 0.2) 0.3)
Profit before tax 111.8 118.4 282.5 2215 2199
Tax expense (25.3) 126.5) 140.7) {36.8) {38.4)
Profit for the year 86.5 21.9 241.8 184.7 1815
EPS (basic) 12.4p 13.4p 36.4p 27.4p 26.6p
Dividend per share 16.9p t16.9p 16.9p 16.9p 16.7p
Other operating data {unaudited)
AuM at year end (USEbn) 55.9 64.0 94.4 B3.8 91.8
Average AuM (USEbn) 58.2 836 90.0 89.6 B80.5
Average GBP:USD exchange rate for the year 1.21 1.33 1.35 1.28 1.30
Penod end GBP:USD exchange rate for the year 1.27 1.21 1.38 124 1.27
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| ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Ashmore discloses APMs in order to assist shareholders’ understandimg of the Group's operational performance dunng the accounting
penod and to allow consistent comparisons with prior penods,

The calculation of APMs 1s consistent with the financial year ended 30 June 2022, Historical disclosures relating to APMs,
including explanations and reconciliations, can be found in the respective intenm financial reports and Annual Reports and Accounts.
Net revenue

As shown in the CSCI, net revenue 1s total revenue less distnbution costs and including FX. This provides a comprehensive view of
the revenues recognised by the Group m the period.

FY2023 Fy2022

Reference fm £m

Total revenue CSCi 193.2 254.4
Less:

Distribution costs CSCI (2.2) (3.5)
Add:

Foreign exchange CsCl 5.4 11.6

Nel revanue 196.4 2625

Net management fees
The principal component of the Group's revenues 1s management fees, net of associated distribution costs, earned on AuM.

Fv2ozz Fyonz2
Reference £m £m
Management tees CsCl 185.4 247.0
Less:
Distribution ¢osts CSCI (2.2} (3.5)
Net management fees 183.2 2435

Net management fee margin

The net management fee margin 1s defined as the ratio of annualised management fees less distribution costs to average AuM for the
period, in US dollars singe 1t1s the primary currency in which fees are received and matches the Group's AuM disclosures. The average
AuM excludes assets where fees are not recognised in revenues, for example AuM related t¢ associates or Joint ventures. The margin
1s 8 principal measure of the firm’s revenue generating capability and 1s a commonly used industry performance measure.

FY2023 Fy2022
Net management fee income {USEmM) 220.6 323.4
Average AuM (USEhn) 57.7 828
Net management fee margin {bps} 38 39

Variable compensation ratio

The vanable compensation ratio 1s defined as the charge for VC as a proportion of E8VCIT. The Inking of variable annual pay awards to
the Group’s profitability 1s one of the principal methods by which the Group controls its operating costs. The charge for VC 1s a component
of personnel expenses and comprises share-based payments and performance-reiated cash bonuses.

EBVCIT 15 operating profit excluding the charge for VC. chamtable donations and seed capital-related mems. The latter comprises gans/
losses on investment securrties, change i third-party interests in consolidated funds, and other expenses in respect of consohdated funds.

FY2023 Fy20z2

Rafsrence £m Em

Operating profit CSCl 774 119.2
Less:

Seed capialrelated tems CSCI, Note 20c 26.3 46.2
Add:

Vanable remuneration Note 9 34.8 458

Charntable donations 05 0.6

EBVCIT 139.0 2118

VL ratio 25.0% 21.5%
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EBITDA

EBITDA provides a view of the operating performance of the business before certain non-cash items, financing iIncome and charges,
and taxation.

FY2023 Fran2?

Reference £m £m

QOperating profit CscCl 77.4 119.2
Add:

Mepreciation And amortisation Note 11 3.2 3.1

EBITDA 80.6 122.3

Adjusted net revenue, adjusted operating costs and adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted figures exclude items relating to FX translation and seed capital. Thus provides an aliernative view of perfarmance, excluding the
volatiity associated with thuse iterns, which is used by management to assess the Group’s operating performance.

FY2023 FY2022

Reference £m fm

Net revenue CSCI 196.4 2625
Less:

FX translation Note 7 (1.0) 5.3}

Adjusted net revenue 195.4 257.2

Fy2023 Fy2022

Reference £m £m

Personnel expenses CSCl (66.2) (73.4)

Other expenses CsCl {27.8) {25.1)
Less:

Other expenses in consclidated funds Note 20c 1.3 1.4
Add:

VC % on FX translation Note 7 0.3 1.1

Adjusted operating costs (92.4) 196.0)

FY2023 Fy2022

Reference fm £m

EBITDA 80.6 122.3
Less:

X translation Note 7 (1.0} 5.3)

VC % on FX translation Note 7 0.3 1.1

Seed capital-related items CSCI, Note 20c 26.3 48.2

Adjusted EBITDA 106.2 164.3

Adjusted EBITDA margin

The ratio of adjusted EBITDA to adjusted net revenue. This 1s an appropriate measure of the Group's operational efficiency and ns ability
to generate returns for shareholders.
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| ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES {CONTINUED)

Adjusted diluted EPS

Diluted EPS excluding items relating to FX translation and seed capital, as described above, and the related tax impact

FY2023 FY2022

Reference pence pence

Diluted EPS CsCl 12.2 12.6

Less:

EX translation Nate 7 (0.1) 10.6)
Tax on FX translation - 0.1
Seed caprtabrelated tems CSCl, Note 8, Mote 20¢ 1.2 71
Tax on seed capnal-related 1items {0.6) 0.5)
Adjusied diluted EPS 12.7 18.7

Conversion of operating profits to cash

This compares cash generated from operaticns, excluding conseoldated funds, to adusted EBITDA, and is a measure of the effectiveness
ot the Group’s operations in converting profris to cash flows for shareholders. Excluding consolidated tunds aisc ensures consistency

between the cash flow and adjusted EBITDA

Fyzo22 FY2022

Reference £m £m
Cash generated from operations Consohdated cash fiow statermnent 111.6 1821
Less:

Cash flows relating to consolidated funds Note 20c 0.1 2.8
Operating cash flow 11.7 184.9
Adjusted EBITDA 106.2 164.3
Canversion of operating profits to cash 105% 113%

Capital resources

Ashmore has calculated its capital resources in a manner consistent with the IFPR. Note that goodwill and intangible assets include
associated deferred tax liabilities and deferred acquisition costs, and foreseeable dividends relate to the proposed final dvidend of
12.1 pence per share. Other adjustments relate to the cash flow hedging reserve.

30 June 2023 30 Junes 2G22

Reference £m £m

Total equity Balance sheet 898.8 945.0
Less:

Goodwill and intangibles nfa (80.0) 84.4)

Deferred tax assets Balance sheet {23.9) (32.7)

Foreseeable dividends Nete 14 (85.1) (84.7)

Investments in finanoial sector entities n/a {5.0) 4.8}

Other adjustments Consoldated statement of changes in eguity - 49

Capital resources 704.8 7432
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| INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Ashmaore Group plc

Registered in England and Wales.
Company No. 3675683

Registered office

61 Aldwych

London WC28 4AE

Tel: +44 (Q) 20 3077 6000

Taa. +44 (0) 20 3677 6001

Principal UK trading subsidiary
Ashmore Investment Management Limited

Registered in England and VWales, Company No. 3344281.

Business address and registered office as above.

Further information on Ashmore can be found

on the Company's websiie: www. ashmoregroup.com.

Financial calendar

First quarter AuM statement

13 October 2023

Annual General Meeting

18 October 2023

Ex-diwdend date

2 Novermber 2023

Record date

3 November 2023

Final dividend payment date

8 December 2023

Second guarter AuM statement

January 2024

Announcement of unaudited interim February 2024
results for the six months ended

31 December 2023

Interim dividend payment date March 2024
Third quarter AuM statement Apnl 2024
Fourth quarter AuM staterment July 2024

Announcement of results for the year
ended 30 June 2024

September 2024

Registrar

Equinitt Registrars
Aspect House
Spencer Road
West Sussex
BN93 6DA

UK shareholder helpline: +44 (0) 371 384 2812, Lines are open
8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday 10 Friday. If caling from overseas,
pleasa ansure the cnuntry code 15 Used,

Further information about the Registrar is avaitable on its website
WL eqUINItLCom

Up-to-date intormation about current holdings on the register
15 also avallable at www.shareview.co.uk.

Shareholders will need their reference number (account nurmber)
and posicode 1o view nformation on their own holding.

Share price information

Share price information can be found at www.ashmoregroup.com
or through your broker.

Share dealing

Shares may be sold through a stockbroker or share dealing service.
There are a variely of services avallable. The Registrar offers an
internet-based share dealing service known as Shareview Dealing.

You can log on at www .shareview co.uk/dealng to access this
service, or contact the helpline on +44 (Q) 345 603 7037 10 deal
by telephone.

You may also use the Shareview service to access and manage

your share investments and view balance movements, indicative
share prices, information on recent dividends, portfelio valuation

and general information for shareholders.

Shareholders must register at www.shareview.co.uk,
entering the shareholder reference on the share ceruficate
and other personal details.

Having selected a personal PiN, a user 1D will be ssued
by the Registrar.

Electronic copies of the 2023 Annual Report and
Accounts and other publications

Copies of the 2023 Annual Report and Accounts, the Notice

of Annual General Meeting, other corporate pubhcations, press
releases and announcements are avallable on the Company's
website at www.ashmoregroup.com.
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Sharegift

Shareholders with only a small number of shares whose vatue
makes them yneconomic 1o sell may wash to consder donating
to charity through Sharegift, an independent charity share
donation scheme.

For further information, please contact enther the Registrar or
see the Sharegift website at www sharegitt.org,

Frequent shareholder enquiries

Engquiries and notifications concerning dividends, share certificates
or transfers and address changes should be sent 1 the Registrar;
the Company’s governance reports, corporate governance guidelines
and the terms of reference of the Board committees can be found
on the Company’s website at www .ashmoregroup.com.

Notifying the Company of a change of address
You should notify Equiniti Registrars in writing.

If you hold shares in joint names, the noufication to change
address must be signed by the first-named shareholder. You may
choose to do this online, by logging on to www . shareview.co.uk.
You will need your shareholder reference number to access this
service — this can be found on your share certificate or from a
dividend counterfoil.

You will be asked to select your own PIN and a user ID will be
posted 1o you.

Notifying the Company of a change of name

You should notfy Equinitt Registrars in writing of your new name
and previous name. You should attach a copy ot your marriage
certificate or your change of name deed, together with your share
certficates and any un-cashed dividend chegues in your old name,
so that the Registrar can reissue them.

Dividend payments directly into bank or building
society accounts

We recommend that all dividend payments are made directly into
a bank or building society account. Dividends are paid via BACS,
providing tighter security and access 1o funds more quickly.

To apply for a dividend mandate form, contact the Registrar,

or you can find one by logging on to www.shareview.co.uk
tunder Frequently Asked Questions) ar by calling the helphne
on +44 10) 371 324 2812 (imes are open 8.30am 1o 5.30pm,
Monday to Friday). If calling from overseas, please ensure the
country code is used
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Transferring Ashmore Group plc shares

Transterring some or all of your shares to someone else (for example
your pariner of a member of your family) reguires completion of a
share transter form, which 1s available from Equiniti Registrars

The form should be fully completed and returned with your share
certificate representing at least the number of shares being
transterred. The Registrar will then process the transfer and 1ssue
a balance share certificate to you if applicable. The Registrar will

be able 1o help you with any questions you may have.

Lost share certificate(s)

Shareholders who lose their share ceruficate(s) or have ther
certhicate(s) stolen should mform Equinit Registrars immediately
by calling the shareholider helpline on +44 (0) 371 384 2812

{ines are open 8.30am 19 £.30pm, Maonday to Friday). If caling from
overseas, please ensure the country code 1s used.

Disability helpline

For deat and speech impaired customers, Equinitl welcomes calls
via Relay UK. Please see wwwrelayuk.bt.com for more information.



GLOSSARY

AGM Annual General Meeting

AIFMD Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

ANZ The Australia and Now Zealand Banking Group Limited
APM Non-GAAP financial alternative performance measures
Ashmore Ashmore Group plc

AuM Assets under management

BCP Business continusty planming

CEMBI BD J.P. Morgan Corporate Emerging Markets Bond Index Broad Diversified Core Index
CEQ Chief Executive Officer

CO,e Carbon dioxide eguivalent

Code 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code

Companies Act

UK Companies Act 2006

Company Ashrmore Group plc

CPI Consumer Price Index

ECTV Consolidated statement of comprehensive income -
-DTI':!_ i F(-ZA‘;D\sclosﬁre Gruwdranrce 7and %rianrsr,bare;cy?u\gr

EBIT Earnings before interest and tax - ) 7 S

EBITDA Earnings before interast, tax, depreciation and amartisation - -
EBT Ashmore 2004 Employee Benefit Trust

EBVCIT Earnings before vanable compensation, interest and tax

EM Emerging Markets

EMBI GD J.P. Morgan Emerging Market Bond Index Global Diversified

EMTA Trade Association for the Emerging Markets

EPS Earnings per share

ESEF Eurcpean Single Electronic Format Regulation

ESG Environmental, social and governance

ESGC ESG Committee

FCA Financial Conduct Authority of the United Kingdom

Fed Federal Reserve of the United States of America

FRC Financial Reporting Council

FSC Forest Stewardship Counci®

FTE Full time equivalent
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GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)

FX Foreign exchange

GAAP Generally accepted accounting principle

GBI-EM GD J.P. Morgan Government Bond Index - Emerging Markets Global Diversified

GBP British pound sterling, the official currency of the United Kingdom and its territones

GDPR General Data Protection Regulations

GFD Group Finance Director

GHG Greenhouse gas

GIPS Global investment performance standards

Group Ashrmore Group plc and 115 substdianes

Guidance FRC's Guidance on Risk Management, Imernal Control and Related Finantal and Business Reporung 2014
HY High yield

ic Investment Commitiee

ICAAP Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

ICARA Internal Capital and Risk Assessment

{EA International Energy Agency

IFPR Investment Firms Prudentizl Regime

ﬁ:Ré_ o Fl-mernatian/aﬁméﬁ %inﬁaﬁd:as) R
6 investmentgiade S
]Mr - \ﬁtermat\ona\}\ﬂonetar-y Fund - " 0 0
TSA—EEMJT - I@at-ﬁsmérd$ﬁx-saan-ce Engégjments 342

KP1 Key performance indicators

KR! Key risk indicator

Listing Rules FCA's Listing Rules

LTIP Long-term incentive plan

NGOs Non-governmentat organisauons

NZAaMI Net Zero Asset Managers intiative

ocCI Other comprehensive income

Omnibus Plan Ashmore Group plc Executive Omnibus Incentive Plan 2015

PPP Purchasing power party

RAS Risk Appetite Statement

RCC The Group's Risk and Comphance Commuttee

Remuneration report

Directors’ Remuneration pohey and the Annual Report on Remuneration
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Scope 1 Direct emissions from owned or controlled sources, including fuel consumption, fugitive emissions and
vehicle usage
Scope 2 Indirect GHG emussions from the generation of purchased electricity
Scope 3 Indirect GLlG emissmﬂs_lncludmg air travel, hoterlrs, water and waste
SECR Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
SFDR Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation
SIEM Syetam informatinn and euent management
SSAE 18 Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements no. 18
TCF Treating customers fairly
TCFD Financial Stability Board's Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
TSR Total shareholder return
UN PRI United Nations Principles for Responsible Investment
uss US dollar, the official currency of the United States of Amenca
WACI Weighted Average Carben Intensity
7WBCSD - ) Wor\d Business Council for Sustainab\e Deveiéb;ﬁent -
WRI Wgr\d Resources Institute - S
YoY Year on year 7 o o
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